
 
Town of Surfside 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD/ 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

AGENDA 
July 26, 2018 – 6:00 p.m. 

Town Hall Commission Chambers –  
9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor, Surfside, FL  33154 

 
Rule 7.05 Decorum.  Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes 
boisterous while addressing the commission shall be barred from further appearance before the 
commission by the presiding officer, unless permission to continue or again address the 
commission is granted by the majority vote of the commission members present. No clapping, 
applauding, heckling or verbal outbursts in support or opposition to a speaker or his or her 
remarks shall be permitted. Signs or placards may be disallowed in the commission chamber by 
the presiding officer. Persons exiting the commission chambers shall do so quietly. 
 
Any person who received compensation, remuneration or expenses for conducting lobbying 
activities is required to register as a lobbyist with the Town Clerk prior to engaging in lobbying 
activities per Town Code Sec. 2-235.  "Lobbyist" specifically includes the principal, as defined in 
this section, as well as any agent, officer or employee of a principal, regardless of whether such 
lobbying activities fall within the normal scope of employment of such agent, officer or employee. 
The term "lobbyist" specifically excludes any person who only appears as a representative of a 
not-for-profit community-based organization for the purpose of requesting a grant without special 
compensation or reimbursement for the appearance; and any person who only appears as a 
representative of a neighborhood, homeowners or condominium association without 
compensation for the appearance, whether direct or indirect or contingent, to express support of 
or opposition to any item. 
 
Per Miami Dade County Fire Marshal, the Commission Chambers has a maximum capacity of 99 
people.  Once reached this capacity, people will be asked to watch the meeting from the first floor. 

 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
2. Approval of Minutes: April 26, 2018 

 
3. Design Review Board Applications: 
 

A. 9513 Harding Avenue -  The applicant is requesting one (1) illuminated wall sign for the 
Her Royal Household business.  The applicant is proposing a channel letter sign and logo 
to be illuminated by spotlight per Town Code. 
 

B. 9571 Harding Avenue - The applicant is requesting one (1) illuminated wall sign for the 
Morelia Gourmet Paletas business.  The applicant is proposing a facelit channel letter sign 
and logo. 



  
 

2 
 

C. 9257 Carlyle Avenue - The applicant is requesting to build a 4,373 square foot two-story 
new home.   
 

D. 9248 Dickens Avenue – The applicant is requesting approval to legalize a garage 
conversion.  
 

E. 9072 Carlyle Avenue – The applicant is requesting approval of a fence and gate along the 
front property line.  
 

F. 700 Surfside Boulevard – The applicant is requesting approval of a fence along the corner 
side yard to enclose a pool. 
 
 

4. Quasi-Judicial Application: 
Please be advised that the following items on the Agenda are Quasi-Judicial in nature. If you 
wish to object or comment upon an item, please complete a Public Speaker’s Card indicating 
the Agenda item number on which you would like to comment. You must be sworn in before 
addressing the Board and you may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse to submit to 
cross-examination, the Board will not consider your comments in its final deliberation.  Please 
also disclose any Ex-Parte communications you may have had with any Board member. Board 
members must also do the same. 
 
A. 8995 Collins Avenue - Site Plan; Conditional Use for Hotel Pool and Alternative 

Parking System; Variances for Landscaping and Loading Space Size 
 

B. 303 Surfside Boulevard – Site Plan for Four Unit Townhouse Development 
 

5. Adjournment 
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Town Commission Liaison Report – Vice Mayor Daniel Gielchinsky 

 
3. Approval of Minutes – June 27, 2018 

 
4. Quasi-Judicial Application: 

Please be advised that the following items on the Agenda are Quasi-Judicial in nature. If you wish to 
object or comment upon an item, please complete a Public Speaker’s Card indicating the Agenda item 
number on which you would like to comment. You must be sworn in before addressing the Board and 
you may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse to submit to cross-examination, the Board will 
not consider your comments in its final deliberation.  Please also disclose any Ex-Parte 
communications you may have had with any Board member. Board members must also do the same. 
 
A. 8995 Collins Avenue - Site Plan; Conditional Use for Hotel Pool and Alternative 

Parking System; Variances for Landscaping and Loading Space Size 
 

B. 303 Surfside Boulevard – Site Plan for Four Unit Townhouse Development 
 
 



  
 

3 
 

5. Discussion Items: 
 
A. Walkability – Verbal Update 
B. Future Agenda Items 

 
6. Adjournment 

 
 
THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 
1990, ALL PERSONS THAT ARE DISABLED; WHO NEED SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS 
MEETING BECAUSE OF THAT DISABILITY SHOULD CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-
4863 EXT. 226 NO LATER THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH PROCEEDING.   
 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANYONE WISHING TO 
APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE COMMISSION, WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER 
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD 
SHALL INCLUDE THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE VIEWED AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF SURFSIDE TOWN HALL, 9293 
HARDING AVENUE.  ANYONE WISHING TO OBTAIN A COPY OF ANY AGENDA ITEM SHOULD CONTACT THE 
TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863.  A COMPLETE AGENDA PACKET IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE 
AT www.townofsurfsidefl.gov. 
 
TWO OR MORE MEMBERS OF TOWN COMMISSION OR OTHER TOWN BOARDS MAY ATTEND AND 
PARTICIPATE AT THIS MEETING. 
 
THESE MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY MEANS OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA 
TECHNOLOGY, SPECIFICALLY, A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL.  THE LOCATION 9293 HARDING AVENUE, 
SURFSIDE, FL 33154, WHICH IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, SHALL SERVE AS AN ACCESS POINT FOR SUCH 
COMMUNICATION. 

http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/


Town of Surfside 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD/ 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
MINUTES 

April 26, 2018 – 6:00 p.m. 
Town Hall Commission Chambers –  

9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor, Surfside, FL  33154 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Chair Lecour called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.

Recording Clerk Duval called the roll with the following members present:
Chair Lindsay Lecour, Vice Chair Judith Frankel, Board Member Peter Glynn, Board Member
Brian Roller, Board Member William Fleck and Board Member Jorge Garcia.

The meeting was turned over to the Town Attorney to elect a Design Review Board Chair and
Vice Chair.  Board Member Roller nominated Lindsay Lecour as Chair.  The motion received
a second from Board Member Glynn and all voted in favor.  Board Member Roller nominated
Judith Frankel as Vice Chair.  The motion received a second from Board Member Glynn and
all voted in favor.

2. Approval of Minutes: March 29, 2018
Vice Chair Frankel made a motion to approve the minutes.  The motion received a second from
Board Member Fleck and all voted in favor.

3. Design Review Board Applications:

A. 8810 Harding Avenue - The applicant is requesting to add a pre-fabricated shed to the rear
of the property.
Town Planner Sinatra introduced Town Planner Robert Collins from Calvin Giordano &
Associates who will be presenting all development items.   Mr. Collins presented the item
and staff is recommending approval.

Chair Lecour asked if any members of the public wished to speak on the item and seeing
none the public hearing was closed.

Building Official Prieto answered questions from the Board.  The Board discussed the item.

DRB #2



  
 

2 
 

 
Board Member Roller made a motion to approve as recommended by staff.   The motion 
received a second from Vice Chair Frankel and all voted in favor.   
 

B. 9217 Emerson Avenue - The applicant is requesting replacing their existing asphalt 
shingle roof with new asphalt shingles. 
Town Planner Collins presented the item. 

 
Chair Lecour asked if any members of the public wished to speak on the item. 
 
Public Speaker Denis Murphy the contractor and applicant Mercy MacDonell spoke on the 
item.  Building Official Ross Prieto answered questions from the Board.   
 
Board Member Glynn made a motion to approve.   The motion received a second from 
Board Member Garcia and all voted in favor.   
 

C. 9325 Abbott Avenue - The applicant is requesting to build a 4,007 square foot two-story 
new home.   
Town Planner Collins presented the item and is recommending approval with conditions.  
The applicant and architects for the project gave further details on the item.    
 
Chair Lecour asked if any members of the public wished to speak on the item and seeing 
none the public hearing was closed. 
 
The Board discussed the item and the architect answered questions from the Board. 
 
Board Member Fleck made a motion to approve with the following conditions: 
1.  At time of Building Permit, submit a Landscape Plan that meets the requirements of 
Town Code Section 90-95. 

 2. Driveway material to be verified at Building Permit. 
3. Add one foot of freeboard 
The motion received a second from Vice Chair Frankel and all voted in favor.   
 

D. 9482 Harding Avenue - The applicant is requesting one (1) illuminated wall sign for the 
Italian Jewelry business.   
Town Planner Collins presented the item and is recommending approval with conditions.   
 
Chair Lecour asked if any members of the public wished to speak on the item and seeing 
none the public hearing was closed. 
 
Board Member Glynn made a motion to approve with the following conditions: 



  
 

3 
 

1. Proposed sign shall be off-set from the wall a minimum of one quarter inch to a 
maximum of two inches to permit rain water to flow down the wall face. 
2.  The wall face shall be reconditioned and painted as necessary 
The motion received a second from Vice Chair Frankel and all voted in favor.   
 

E. 9499 Collins Avenue - The applicant is requesting two (2) illuminated reverse channel 
letter signs for the existing Spiaggia Ocean Condominium.      
Town Planner Collins presented the item and is recommending approval. 
 
Chair Lecour asked if any members of the public wished to speak on the item and seeing 
none the public hearing was closed. 
 
Board Member Roller made a motion to approve.  The motion received a second from 
Board Member Garcia and all voted in favor.   
 

F. 9525 Carlyle Avenue - The applicant is requesting to convert their garage to 
approximately 260 square feet of additional living space.   
Town Planner Collins presented the item and is recommending approval.   
 
Chair Lecour asked if any members of the public wished to speak on the item and seeing 
none the public hearing was closed. 
 
The Board discussed the item. 
 
Vice Chair Frankel made a motion to approve with the following conditions: 
1. No net decrease in windows. 
2. Irrigate planter or plant landscaping directly in the ground.   
The motion received a second from Board Member Roller and all voted in favor.   
 

G. 8975 Hawthorne Avenue - The applicant is requesting fencing in the secondary front yard.  
A 4.0-foot-high wood fence is proposed. 
Town Planner Collins presented the item and is recommending approval.  Lisa Herman the 
applicant spoke on the item. 
 
Chair Lecour asked if any members of the public wished to speak on the item and seeing 
none the public hearing was closed. 
 

 The Board discussed the item and Building Official Prieto provided information. 
 

Board Member Glynn made a motion to approve with the following condition: 
 1.  The applicant shall provide that it meets the 50% opacity requirement. 

The motion received a second from Board Member Fleck and all voted in favor.   



  
 

4 
 

 
Vice Mayor Daniel Gielchinsky attending as liaison entered at 6:41 p.m. 

4. Quasi-Judicial Application: 
 

A. 8995 Collins Avenue – Site Plan; Conditional Use for Hotel Pool and Alternative 
Parking System; Variances for Landscaping and Loading Space Size 
Chair Lecour read the process and rulings of a quasi-judicial hearing. 
 
The applicant attested that compliance with advertising notice requirements have been met.  
The Town Attorney asked the DRB and Planning and Zoning Board if anyone had ex-parte 
communications with the Applicant or any objector.  Board Member Roller said he had 
spoken briefly with the applicant.  All other Board members said no.  Recording Clerk 
Duval swore in anyone who wished to speak on the item. 
 
Town Planner Sinatra presented a brief synopsis of the item.  Graham Penn representing 
the applicant spoke on the item and introduced members of the team.  George Kousoulas, 
Justine Velez, and Kobi Karp architects for the project went through the overall plan with 
a slide presentation.   

 
Chair Lecour opened the public hearing. 
Public Speakers: 
-Michael Marcell representing clients from the Surf Club spoke objecting to the project. 
No one else wishing to speak the Chair closed the public hearing. 
 
The Board discussed the item and the applicant answered questions posed by the Board.  
The Board discussed the dunes and traffic issues as it was a concern.   Karl Peterson, Traffic 
Consultant from CGA, spoke about his traffic analysis.  Jason Halpern gave details 
regarding public space and answered questions from the Board.  There was further 
discussion regarding traffic issues. 
 
Vice Mayor Gielchinsky attending as liaison exited at 7:15 p.m. 
 
Board Member Fleck made a motion to continue the item next month, May 31, 2018 at 
6:00 p.m.  The motion received a second from Board Member Garcia and all voted in favor.     

 
 
 

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 



  
 

5 
 

 
 
5. Adjournment 

 
There being no further business to come before the Design Review Board,  
Board Member Glynn made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  The motion received a 
second from Vice Chair Frankel and all voted in favor.  Meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 
 

 
Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2018 

 

    
________________________ 

      Chair Lindsay Lecour 
Attest: 
 

______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 
  



 
Town of Surfside 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD/ 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

AGENDA 
July 26, 2018 – 6:00 p.m. 

Town Hall Commission Chambers –  
9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor, Surfside, FL  33154 

 
Rule 7.05 Decorum.  Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes 
boisterous while addressing the commission shall be barred from further appearance before the 
commission by the presiding officer, unless permission to continue or again address the 
commission is granted by the majority vote of the commission members present. No clapping, 
applauding, heckling or verbal outbursts in support or opposition to a speaker or his or her 
remarks shall be permitted. Signs or placards may be disallowed in the commission chamber by 
the presiding officer. Persons exiting the commission chambers shall do so quietly. 
 
Any person who received compensation, remuneration or expenses for conducting lobbying 
activities is required to register as a lobbyist with the Town Clerk prior to engaging in lobbying 
activities per Town Code Sec. 2-235.  "Lobbyist" specifically includes the principal, as defined in 
this section, as well as any agent, officer or employee of a principal, regardless of whether such 
lobbying activities fall within the normal scope of employment of such agent, officer or employee. 
The term "lobbyist" specifically excludes any person who only appears as a representative of a 
not-for-profit community-based organization for the purpose of requesting a grant without special 
compensation or reimbursement for the appearance; and any person who only appears as a 
representative of a neighborhood, homeowners or condominium association without 
compensation for the appearance, whether direct or indirect or contingent, to express support of 
or opposition to any item. 
 
Per Miami Dade County Fire Marshal, the Commission Chambers has a maximum capacity of 99 
people.  Once reached this capacity, people will be asked to watch the meeting from the first floor. 

 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
2. Approval of Minutes:  

 
 April 26, 2018 
 June 27, 2018  

 
3. Design Review Board Applications: 
 

A. 9513 Harding Avenue -  The applicant is requesting one (1) illuminated wall sign for the 
Her Royal Household business.  The applicant is proposing a channel letter sign and logo 
to be illuminated by spotlight per Town Code. 



  
 

2 
 

 
B. 9571 Harding Avenue - The applicant is requesting one (1) illuminated wall sign for the 

Morelia Gourmet Paletas business.  The applicant is proposing a facelit channel letter sign 
and logo. 

C. 9257 Carlyle Avenue - The applicant is requesting to build a 4,373 square foot two-story 
new home.   
 

D. 9248 Dickens Avenue – The applicant is requesting approval to legalize a garage 
conversion.  
 

E. 9072 Carlyle Avenue – The applicant is requesting approval of a fence and gate along the 
front property line.  
 

F. 700 Surfside Boulevard – The applicant is requesting approval of a fence along the corner 
side yard to enclose a pool. 
 
 

4. Quasi-Judicial Application: 
Please be advised that the following items on the Agenda are Quasi-Judicial in nature. If you 
wish to object or comment upon an item, please complete a Public Speaker’s Card indicating 
the Agenda item number on which you would like to comment. You must be sworn in before 
addressing the Board and you may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse to submit to 
cross-examination, the Board will not consider your comments in its final deliberation.  Please 
also disclose any Ex-Parte communications you may have had with any Board member. Board 
members must also do the same. 
 
A. 8995 Collins Avenue - Site Plan; Conditional Use for Hotel Pool and Alternative 

Parking System; Variances for Landscaping and Loading Space Size 
 

B. 303 Surfside Boulevard – Site Plan for Four Unit Townhouse Development 
 

5. Adjournment 
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Town Commission Liaison Report – Vice Mayor Daniel Gielchinsky 

 
3. Approval of Minutes – N/A 

 
4. Quasi-Judicial Application: 

Please be advised that the following items on the Agenda are Quasi-Judicial in nature. If you wish to 
object or comment upon an item, please complete a Public Speaker’s Card indicating the Agenda item 
number on which you would like to comment. You must be sworn in before addressing the Board and 
you may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse to submit to cross-examination, the Board will 
not consider your comments in its final deliberation.  Please also disclose any Ex-Parte 
communications you may have had with any Board member. Board members must also do the same. 
 
A. 8995 Collins Avenue - Site Plan; Conditional Use for Hotel Pool and Alternative 

Parking System; Variances for Landscaping and Loading Space Size 



  
 

3 
 

 
B. 303 Surfside Boulevard – Site Plan for Four Unit Townhouse Development 
 
 

5. Discussion Items: 
 
A. Walkability – Verbal Update 
B. Future Agenda Items 

 
6. Adjournment 

 
 
THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 
1990, ALL PERSONS THAT ARE DISABLED; WHO NEED SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS 
MEETING BECAUSE OF THAT DISABILITY SHOULD CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-
4863 EXT. 226 NO LATER THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH PROCEEDING.   
 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANYONE WISHING TO 
APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE COMMISSION, WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER 
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD 
SHALL INCLUDE THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE VIEWED AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF SURFSIDE TOWN HALL, 9293 
HARDING AVENUE.  ANYONE WISHING TO OBTAIN A COPY OF ANY AGENDA ITEM SHOULD CONTACT THE 
TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863.  A COMPLETE AGENDA PACKET IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE 
AT www.townofsurfsidefl.gov. 
 
TWO OR MORE MEMBERS OF TOWN COMMISSION OR OTHER TOWN BOARDS MAY ATTEND AND 
PARTICIPATE AT THIS MEETING. 
 
THESE MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY MEANS OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA 
TECHNOLOGY, SPECIFICALLY, A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL.  THE LOCATION 9293 HARDING AVENUE, 
SURFSIDE, FL 33154, WHICH IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, SHALL SERVE AS AN ACCESS POINT FOR SUCH 
COMMUNICATION. 

http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/


Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Design Review Board 
Thru: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  
From: Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner  
CC: Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 
Date: May 31, 2018 
Re: 9513 Harding Avenue – Her Royal Household 

The subject property is located at 9513 Harding Avenue and is within the SD-B40 
zoning district. The applicant is requesting one (1) illuminated wall sign for the Her 
Royal Household business.  The applicant is proposing a channel letter sign and logo 
to be illuminated by spotlight per Town Code.    

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review 
Board.  In this report, Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Recommendation

STANDARDS / RESULTS 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 

Sec. 90-73 
Signs Permitted Proposed 
Area 25 square feet 15 square feet 

Location With the exception of theater 
marquees and V-box signs, no sign 
shall be erected so that any portion 
thereof shall project over a dedicated 
street or sidewalk or so that any 
portion thereof shall project more than 
five feet from any main building wall.  

Sign does not project over the 
sidewalk or street. 

3A



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Offset 
Signs shall be off-set from the wall a 
minimum of one quarter inch to a 
maximum of two inches to permit 
water to flow down the wall face.  

Letters are proposed to be offset 
1/2 inch 

Illumination  
All signage, lettering, logos or 
trademarks shall be required to be lit 
with white illumination from dusk to 
dawn. The illumination may be either 
internal illumination or external 
illumination, however, all walls below 
the sign shall be illuminated with white 
wall wash LED lighting. It shall be 
located and directed solely at the sign. 
The light source shall not be visible 
from or cast into the right-of-way, or 
cause glare hazards to pedestrians, 
motorists, or adjacent properties. 

Sign detail indicates that the 
sign will be illuminated externally 
per Town Code requirements. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 
1). At Building Permit, external illumination to be reviewed and verified that it 
meets the requirements of the Town Code. 
 
2). The wall face shall be reconditioned and painted as necessary. 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Design Review Board 
Thru: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  
From: Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner  
CC: Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 
Date: May 31, 2018 
Re: 9571 Harding Avenue – Morelia Gourmet Paletas 

The subject property is located at 9571 Harding Avenue and is within the SD-B40 
zoning district. The applicant is requesting one (1) illuminated wall sign for the 
Morelia Gourmet Paletas business.  The applicant is proposing a facelit channel 
letter sign and logo.    

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review 
Board.  In this report, Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Recommendation

STANDARDS / RESULTS 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 

Sec. 90-73 
Signs Permitted Proposed 
Area 25 square feet 18 square feet 

Location With the exception of theater 
marquees and V-box signs, no sign 
shall be erected so that any portion 
thereof shall project over a dedicated 
street or sidewalk or so that any 
portion thereof shall project more than 
five feet from any main building wall.  

Sign does not project over the 
sidewalk or street. 

3B



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Offset 
Signs shall be off-set from the wall a 
minimum of one quarter inch to a 
maximum of two inches to permit 
water to flow down the wall face.  

Letters are proposed to be offset 
2 inch 

Illumination  
All signage, lettering, logos or 
trademarks shall be required to be lit 
with white illumination from dusk to 
dawn. The illumination may be either 
internal illumination or external 
illumination, however, all walls below 
the sign shall be illuminated with white 
wall wash LED lighting. It shall be 
located and directed solely at the sign. 
The light source shall not be visible 
from or cast into the right-of-way, or 
cause glare hazards to pedestrians, 
motorists, or adjacent properties. 

LED illuminated channel letters 
and logo are proposed 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 
1) The wall face shall be reconditioned and painted as necessary. 
 
 



Page 1 of 6 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Design Review Board 

Thru: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  

From: Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner 

CC:  Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 

Date: June 27, 2018 

Re: 9257 Carlyle Avenue – New Home 

The property is located at 9257 Carlyle Avenue, within the H30B zoning. The applicant is 
requesting to build a 4,373 square foot two-story new home.  The plans include new 
driveway, walkways, pool, deck and cabana.    

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Applicable Design Guideline standards, along with the results of the review
• Staff Recommendation

3C



 
Page 2 of 6 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 
Sec. 42.92 Lowest Floor Elevation 

Residential Lowest Floor Proposed  

Single-Family Residential Base Flood +2 Base Flood (8 Feet) +2 
(10 Feet) 

 
Sec. 90.43 Maximum building heights 

Height Required Maximum Proposed  
H30B 30 feet  29 feet 

 
Sec. 90-45. Setbacks 
H30B UPPER STORY 
FLOOR AREA IS 65% to 
80% OF FIRST STORY 
FLOOR AREA 

Required Proposed 
78% 

Maximum Lot Coverage 40% 40.0% 

FIRST STORY (Up to 15 feet in Height) 

Primary Frontage Minimum 20 feet 20 feet 

Interior side (lots equal to 
or less than 50 feet in 
width) 

Minimum 5 feet North Side - 5.92 feet 

South Side – 5.0 feet 

Rear Minimum 20 feet 25 feet  

UPPER STORY  
Primary frontage Minimum 20 feet /Average 30 feet Minimum 28 feet /  

Average 30 feet 

Interior side (Wall length is 
greater than 20% of the lot 
depth) 

Minimum 5 feet / Average 10 feet North Side: Min. 7 feet / 
Ave. 10.2 feet 

South Side: Min. 5.58 feet 
/ Ave. 12.7 feet 

 

Rear Minimum 20 feet / Average n/a 20 feet 
 
Sec. 90.49 Lot standards 

Lot Standards H30B Required Proposed 
Minimum Lot width 50 feet 50 feet  
Minimum lot area 5,600 feet 5,625 square feet  
Maximum lot coverage 40% 40.0%  

Pervious area 35% (minimum) 35.4% 
 
 



 
Page 3 of 6 

Sec. 90.50 Architecture and roof decks 

 Required Proposed 

Unique Elevation 

A unique elevation from the main 
buildings of the adjacent two (2) 
homes shall be created through 
the modulation of at least three (3) 
of the following architectural 
features: 
(a)Length, width and massing of 
the structure; 
(b)Number of stories; 
(c)Façade materials; 
(d)Porches and other similar 
articulation of the front façade; 
(e)Number and location of doors 
and windows; and 
(f)Roof style and pitch. 

The proposed two-story 
structure is a unique 
design and different than 
adjacent homes. A flat 
roof is proposed which 
adds to the variation of 
the style of the home.  
The second floor balcony 
and entryway articulation 
are utilized to add 
uniqueness to the front 
façade. 

Wall openings 10% for all elevations 

The proposed structure 
includes windows and 
doors on each elevation. 
All elevations are 10% or 
greater for wall openings. 

Roof Material 

(a) Clay Tile;  
(b) White concrete tile;  
(c) Solid color cement tile which 
color is impregnated with the 
same color intensity throughout, 
provided said color if granted 
approval by the Design Review 
Board; 
(d)Architecturally embellished 
metal if granted approval by the 
Design Review Board; or 
(e)Other Florida Building Code 
approved roof material(s) if 
granted approval by the Design 
Review Board. 

(e) A Florida Building 
Code approved flat roof 
is proposed which 
requires approval by the 
Design Review Board.  

 
Sec. 90.50.2 Roof decks 

 Required Proposed 

For properties in the 
H30B District 

b) No extension of stairs over 30-
foot height limitation; 
c) 10-foot setbacks on sides and 
rear of building 
 

b) 30 feet 
c) 10-foot setback 
provided 

 
Sec. 90.54 Accessory Structures 

Accessory 
buildings 

Required Proposed 
90-54.1 Any accessory buildings not connected to 
the main building, except by a breezeway, may be 
constructed in a rear yard, subject to the following 

(a) 12 feet in height; 
(b) 40 square foot cabana 
is proposed; 



 
Page 4 of 6 

provisions:  

(a) Maximum height shall be 12 feet; 
(b) Maximum aggregate area shall be 500 
square feet;  
(c) Minimum rear setback shall be 5 feet 
and shall conform to all other applicable 
setbacks for the property.  

 

(c) 5-foot rear and side 
setbacks are proposed.  

 
Sec. 90.56 Fences, walls and hedges 

Fence   

Required Proposed 
Fences in the front are only permitted 
with the Planning and Zoning Board’s 
approval. 

A metal louvered fence is proposed within 
the front setback.  

 
Sec. 90-56.4 Front yard and corner yard fences and ornamental walls—Table. 

Frontage Maximum 
Height (Feet) Maximum Opacity (Percent) Proposed 

50 feet 4.0 feet 
All wall and fence surfaces above two 
(2) feet measured from grade shall 
maintain a maximum opacity of fifty 
(50) percent 

4.0 foot metal fence is 
proposed. Opacity is less 
than 50% 

 
 
Sec. 90.61.1 Paving in front and rear yards in H30 and H40 Districts 
Paving Yards Required Proposed  
Front setback permeability 50% minimum  > 50% 
Front yard landscaped 30% minimum  > 30% 
Rear yard landscaped 20% minimum  > 20% 
Number of Curb Cuts One minimum One 
Curb Cut side set back 5 feet minimum 6.58 feet 
Curb cut width 18 feet maximum 9 feet 

Driveway Materials 

Limited to the following 
1. Pavers 
2. Color and texture treated 
concrete, including stamped 
concrete 
3. Painted concrete shall not 
be permitted. 
4. Asphalt shall not be 
permitted. 

Pervious pavers 

 
Sec. 90-77 Off-Street Parking Requirements 
Required Minimum Space Requirements Proposed  

Single-family 2 spaces 2 spaces are provided. 

 



 
Page 5 of 6 

Sec. 90-89.4(6). Street Tree Requirements  

Required Required  Proposed  

Street trees shall be required at one shade 
tree/palm tree per 20 linear feet of street 
frontage thereof along all public or private 
street right-of-ways in all zoning districts. 

2 trees 2 trees 
 
 
 

Sec. 90-95. Single-family H30A and H30B district landscape requirements. 

Required Required  Proposed  

A minimum of five trees of two different 
species and 25 shrubs shall be planted per lot.  

5 trees, 25 shrubs +5 trees and +25 
shrubs are proposed  

 
Town of Surfside Adopted Residential Design Guidelines 
 
Building Massing 
Required Proposed  
Building forms should be varied enough to 
avoid monotony and to avoid pyramidal 
massing and should be compatible with 
surrounding houses. 

Consistent 

 
Decorative Features 

Required Proposed  
Decorative features should be stylistically 
consistent throughout the entire building. Consistent.   

 
Overall Architectural Style 

Required Proposed  
The overall style of each house should be 
consistent on all sides of the building, as well 
as among all portions of the roof.  

Consistent.  

 
Wall Materials and Finishes 

Required Proposed  
The same material should be used on all 
building elevations unless multiple materials 
are a legitimate expression of the particular 
style. 

Consistent   

 
Roof Materials, Types, and Slopes 

Required Proposed  
Roof types and slopes should be generally 
the same over all parts of a single building.  

Consistent  



 
Page 6 of 6 

Restricted materials for roofs are pre-
determined in the Town’s Building Code, 
which restricts roofing materials to: 
1. Clay tile; 
2. White concrete tile; 
3. Solid color cement tile which color is 
impregnated with the same color intensity 
throughout, provided said color is first 
approved by the planning and zoning board; 
and 
4. Metal. 

A Florida Building Code approved flat roof 
is proposed which requires approval by 
the Design Review Board. 

 
Windows and Trims 

Required Proposed  
Window styles should always be consistent 
among all elevations of a building.  

Consistent. 

Frame materials should never vary on a 
single building. 

No variation. 

Window, door and eave trim should be 
consistent on all elevations of the house 

Consistent. 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed house along with the Florida 
Building Code approved flat roof and 4-foot high metal fencing in the front yard.    
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Design Review Board 

Thru: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  

From: Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner 

CC: Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 

Date: July 26, 2018 

Re: 9248 Dickens – Garage Conversion  

The property is located at 9248 Dickens Avenue, within the H30B zoning. The applicant is 
requesting to convert their garage to approximately 240 square feet of additional living space.  
The garage was previously converted without a permit or approval from the Board.  The 
applicant is now going through the process to legalize the garage conversion.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Recommendation

3D



 
Page 2 of 2 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 

Sec. 90-50.1 (5) Garage Facades  
Required Proposed  

1 window 1 window is proposed on the front. 

Landscaping required along the base No landscaping is shown or proposed.   

 
   
Sec. 90-77Off-street Parking Requirements 
Required Minimum Space Requirements Proposed  

Single-family 2 spaces 2 spaces are provided in 
existing driveway  

 
Windows and Trims 

Required Proposed  
Window styles should always be consistent 
among all elevations of a building.  

Consistent. 

Frame materials should never vary on a 
single building. 

No variation. 

Window, door and eave trim should be 
consistent on all elevations of the house 

Consistent. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval subject to the following condition: 
 
1. Landscaping to be added along the base of the previous garage door area per 
Town Code requirements. 



Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Design Review Board 

Thru: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  

From: Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner 

CC: Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 

Date: July 26, 2018 

Re: 9072 Carlyle Avenue – Fence/Gate  

The property located at 9072 Carlyle Avenue is within the H30B zoning district. The applicant 
is requesting to add a gate to a previously approve fencing application that was reviewed by 
the Board in December 2017.  A 4.0 foot high aluminum picket gate across the driveway is 
proposed. The applicant is also proposing to install a landscaping planter in front of the 
fencing, however this is shown within the right-of-way and therefore prohibited.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Recommendation

3E



 
Page 2 of 2 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 

Sec. 90.56 Fences, walls and hedges 

Fence   

Required Proposed 
Fences in the front are only permitted 
with the Planning and Zoning Board’s 
approval. 

An aluminum picket fence/gate is proposed 
within the front setback.  

 
Sec. 90-56.4 Front yard and corner yard fences and ornamental walls—Table. 

Frontage Maximum 
Height (Feet) Maximum Opacity (Percent) Proposed 

50.0 feet 4.0 feet 
All wall and fence surfaces above two (2) 
feet measured from grade shall maintain 
a maximum opacity of fifty (50) percent 

4.0 foot aluminum picket 
fence/gate is proposed with 
opacity less than 50%. 

 
Recommendation 

 
Staff recommends denial of proposed application due to the following reasons: 
 
1. Property survey needs to be submitted to verify existing conditions and 
proposed locations of improvements; 
 
2. Landscaping (other than groundcover) and any planters are prohibited within 
the Town’s right-of-way; 
 
3. The gate should be setback to allow for a vehicle to access the driveway while 
gate is opening to avoid a vehicle stacking in the street, waiting for the gate to 
open. 



Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
To: Design Review Board 

Thru: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  

From: Sarah Sinatra Gould, AICP, Town Planner 

CC: Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 

Date: July 26, 2018 

Re: 700 Surfside Boulevard - Fence  

The property located at 700 Surfside Boulevard is within the H30B zoning district. The 
applicant is requesting fencing in the secondary front yard.  A 4.0 foot high aluminum picket 
fence is proposed. The applicant is also proposing a new concrete paver driveway.  The 
proposed pool is not part of this application.  

Staff has reviewed the current application for consideration by the Design Review Board. In 
this report Staff presents the following: 

• Applicable Zoning Code regulations, along with the results of the review
• Staff Recommendation

3F



 
Page 2 of 2 

STANDARDS / RESULTS 
 

Town of Surfside Zoning Code, Applicable Requirements 
 

Sec. 90.56 Fences, walls and hedges 

Fence   

Required Proposed 
Fences in the front are only permitted 
with the Planning and Zoning Board’s 
approval. 

An aluminum picket fence is proposed 
within the secondary front setback.  

 
Sec. 90-56.4 Front yard and corner yard fences and ornamental walls—Table. 

Frontage Maximum 
Height (Feet) Maximum Opacity (Percent) Proposed 

56.2 feet 4.0 feet 
All wall and fence surfaces above two (2) 
feet measured from grade shall maintain 
a maximum opacity of fifty (50) percent 

4.0 foot aluminum picket 
fence is proposed with 
opacity less than 50%. 

Sec. 90.61.1 Paving in front and rear yards in H30 and H40 Districts 
Paving Yards Required Proposed  
Front setback permeability 50% minimum  > 50% 
Front yard landscaped 30% minimum  > 30% 
Rear yard landscaped 20% minimum  N/A  
Number of Curb Cuts One minimum One 
Curb Cut side set back 5 feet minimum 12 feet 
Curb cut width 18 feet maximum 18 feet 

Driveway Materials 

Limited to the following 
1. Pavers 
2. Color and texture treated 
concrete, including stamped 
concrete 
3. Painted concrete shall not 
be permitted. 
4. Asphalt shall not be 
permitted. 

Concrete panel pavers 

 
Sec. 90-77 Off-Street Parking Requirements 
Required Minimum Space Requirements Proposed  

Single-family 2 spaces 2 spaces are provided. 

 

 
Recommendation 

 
Staff recommends approval  



Town of SurFside

Planning and Zoning Communication

Agenda Date: May 31, 2018

Subject: 8995 Collins Avenue
From: Gulllermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

Sarah Sinatra Gould, AlCP, Town Planner

Table of Contents:

1. Site Plan Report
2. Development Impact Committee Report
3. Architecturally Significant Report
4. Conditional Use Report
5. Variance Report
6. Application and Letter of Intent
7. Traffic Engineering Staff Review Comments & Conflict Point Graphics
8. Site Plan Package

REQUEST:

The agent, Graham Penn, Esq., for the owner, Surf House Condominium Association, is
proposing a site plan to renovate an existing nine story tower by adding three additional stories
while renovating both the interior and exterior of the tower, located at 8995 Collins Avenue. The
existing building located at 8995 Collins Avenue was constructed in 1966 and is known as the
Surf House Condominium. The building was designed by Robert Jerome Filer in the "International
Style," an architectural style that was one of the strains of the "MiMo - Miami Modern" movement
of architecture. Three sides of the building contain a grid of repetitive window patterns in a
structural concrete frame. The fourth (south side) is practically a blank wall that appears to have
been designed that way in anticipation of a future adjacent building. The applicant is proposing to
renovate the existing nine story building and add three additional stories while renovating both
the interior and exterior. The proposed renovation and addition will include 55 condominium hotel
units. The existing 36 units will be demolished.

The applicant submitted an application to the Planning and Zoning Board on March 13, 2017
requesting the building to be designated Architecturally Significant. The application was heard on
April 27, 2017 and was deemed significant. The applicant then submitted a site plan application
on May 19, 2017. Staff confirmed that the package was complete and scheduled a Development



Review Group (DRG) meeting for June 19, 2017. Comments were provided to the applicant at
this meeting and the applicant revised the site plan. A second DRG meeting was held on August
24,2017. Comments were provided to the applicant at that time. The plans were resubmitted and
a final DRG was held on September 28, 2017. The application was heard by the Planning and
Zoning Board on February 22,2018. The Board voted to defer the application as it had concems
regarding traffic back up as a result from the triple stacked system and concems as to how the
application was meeting the architectural significance ordinance.

The application was resubmitted on March 29, 2018. The changes include adding a second
parking lift, reducing the encroachment into the right-of-way and modifying the architecture. The
application was heard on April 26, 2018. The Planning and Zoning Board indicated that there
were still concerns neqardlnQ the traffic and deferred the application to the Planning and Zoning

Board meeting of Mav 31. 2018.The aoDlicant has since revised the valet operations analvsis.

The aoolicant provided an undated valet ooerations plan. This has been reviewed and staff has

no further comments and staffs analvsis on the report Is attached. However. Staff is oroDOSina

the fbllowina conditions!

Conditions for Parkinp and Loading!

1. The parking svstem shall be staffed with a minimum of three vaiet operators at all times
and shall have an additional valet operator staffed Initlallv for six months after the
development is opened.

Follow up Study

2. Traffic Data Collection will be bv video data collection. The traffic data collection will be

made at the 8995 Collins Avenue inoress and epress driveway location on 90th Street
Traffic counts will be collected at this driveway and the Surf Club driveway with 90th Street
The manual turning movement counts will be collected during the morning and evening
peak hours.

3. Movement Counts shall also be collected at Collins Avenue and 90th Street signalized
intersection.

4. Aerial Drone video footape will be collected along the 90th Street and 8995 Collins main
driveway documenting the valet traffic operations and vehicular interactions within 90th
Street durinp peak times on a weekday and weekend.

5. Field calculations of the valet operations will be taken and documented in the follow up
study. This shall include the processing time for arrivinp and departing vehicles.

6. Evaluate vehicles stacklna on 9(y Street attemotinQ to make eastbound left turn into Surf
Ciub opening once the Surf Club Is fiillv operational.



7. If the follow up study determines that the system is causing unacceptable traffic operations
including but not limited to a negative impact on the safety of pedestrians and/or the
reasonable flow of traffic on 90th Street because of the queuing of vehicles entering or
exiting the system, the applicant shall be required to undertake modifications to the
system or staffing to resolve the issue.

This application includes three variance applications, a right-of-way encroachment agreement
and a conditional use application. The following describe the additional applications.
Variances

The applicant Is requesting variances fixim the following sections of the code:

1. A. Section 90-82. - Off-street loading requirements (Loading Space Size).
Two spaces are rBQuired for a (X)rid^inium or hotel. Only one full size (124Betby3(>4iBet) off-
^reet loading space Is provided, A second offslreet loading space Is provided but Is O-feet by
25-fBet whk^ does not meet the spe^ size requirement

2. B. Section 90-912. - Required buffer landscaping adjacent to streets and abutting properties
(Landscape Buffer).
A ten^oot buffer Is required three trees every 50 linear feet On the 9(f Street &de of the
property the required buffer and trees located within the applicant's property. Several of the
required trees and portions of the buffer are provided oflF-sAe in the F^ht-of-Way whl^ the
applicant Is requesting an encroachment agreement with the Town.

3. C. Section 90.93(1b). - Open Space (Open Space Trees).
One large tree (35 for buildings over 75 feet In height Is requked per 25 linear feet of the
building per each sfde for scaling and softening. All of the required large trees are not located
within the appficant's property. Several of the required large trees are pro\dded off-^e In the
f^ht-cf'Way which the applicant Is requesting an encroachmerrt ag/eemenf with the Town.

Encroachment Agreement

The applicant is proposing to include 25 additional feet of Town property within their application
to accommodate a vehicular drop off area and landscaping. They are proposing an encroachment
agreement as the mechanism to address the encroachment The applicant states that the result
of the granting of the agreement is a toss of four f^t in depth, 386 square feet, of public property,
however the proposal eliminates the use of a significant portion of 90*** Street and staff disagrees
with the assessment of the loss. The encroachment usurps the Town's control of a stretch of 90^
Street approximately 142*7" long and includes a significantly larger area than the applicant
alleges.

The Valet Operational Plan narrative includes valet uslno both elevators and stacking vehicles In

east-west area fuo to three vehicles^. The narrative in this plan discusses the limited need for the

valet operators to make additional looped movements Into 90"* Street which will reduce the

number of vehicle and pedestrian Interaction on the south side of 90"^ Street. In essence the site
has UP to five vehicle stacking positions fas depicted in the fiouresl to use in the Valet Traffic

Operations, not the three stacking positions that were oriainallv reported.



staff has further evaluated this request based on traffic enafneerino conflicts. Below are Staffs

concerns:

1. The future 24^oot-wide pavement area restricts the maneuverabilitv of vehicles droDPlna
off Individuals and/or families at the street end.

2. Potential concern of vehicles stacking on 90*^ Street attempting to make eastbound left
turn into Surf Club ooenlno. This will need to be evaluated as part of the post devetooment

study once Surf Club Is fuiiv ooeratlonai. There is limited space available for oueuina

before stacking into the Coiiins Avenue sianallzed intei

To demonstrate the concerns, staff prepared the attached Conflict Point Drawing which shows

the number of conflicts that could ootentiallv occur within the 90^ Street public right of wav.
Subsets of the overall Conflict Point Drawing were created that show all of the individual

movements. This graphic also includes the nre Rescue laddering area.

Conditional Uses

The project requires conditional use approval for the use of a hotel pool and an alternative parking
lift system. The code requires an applicant to request conditional use approval when they are
proposing a pool In connection with a hotel use. The proposed parking conditional use relates to
the utilization of a triple stacked parking system. The code indicates that a parking lift can be
utilized if one space is unencumbered, therefore resulting in a condition were only two vehicles
can be stacked. The applicant Is requesting that the Town consider an alternative program
whereby three vehicles would be stacked.

The Development Impact Committee (DiC) met in an open, advertised, televised session on
November 16, 2017 to discuss this application. The applicant proffered improvements to 90^
Street, however, staff indicated that the Surf Club has already committed to improvements on 90''*
Street Additional proffers have not been extended by the applicant.

The total gross acreage of the site is 1.16 acres, which would permit 116 units. The code requires
a 15% reduction in density for aggregated properties, meaning, if a property is split between more
than one site and the owner wants the benefit of amalgamating that property, the property will be
subject to a 15% overall density reduction. This results in the permitted density of 99 units. The
applicant is requesting to provide 55 condominium hotel units while demolishing the existing 36
units.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board recommend denial of the
site plan appiication, variances and conditionai uses due to the following condusbns:

1. As discussed in the attach^ staff reports, the applicant has not demonstrated that the
requests meet the Town Code requirements for the variances, or oondltionai uoo approval.

2. The site plan, without the ̂nificant variances, tho parking lift conditionai uso approval and
the use of Town right-of-way, does not meet the requlrernmts (rfthe Code.



5.

Providing spacG for only throo vohlcios In tho drop off aroa of tho driveway is not practical
and may rosuit in a spillovor of vohiclos into iho right-of-way croating traffic congestion. Thic
would allow for a sito plan that only has space for throo vohlcios at tho pickup and drop
off aroa, whilo utilizing a triple lift system for parking. This hac caused staff to bo
concornod about potontial oncroachment into tho right of way for oxcoco vohiclos. Staff
also hac concerns with valot analysis porformod which hao not domonotratod do
minimus impacts.
The encroachment agreement is not in the best interest of the public as it solely serves the
private property owner and does not create a public benefit The applicant Is utilizing the
encroachment area as the justification for the variance, which results In the need for the
encroachment area to extend to the roadway.
Staff has outstanding comments rolating tho traffic onginooring and landsoapo roviow. Soo
attached comments.

Budget impact: The applicant has proposed a total of $851,050 in proffers to the Town. These
include the following:

1. Enhancements to the 90*^ Street Beach Access & Promenade by beautifying 90"* Street
from Harding Avenue to the beach including a sidewalk between Collins and Harding
Avenues and landscaping. Also proposed is an enhanced promenade at the beach entry
with decorative paving, a planted coral stone gateway with signage, benches and a
shower. The amount proffered is $686,050. Staffs review of the proposal indicates there
is a conflict with the proposed improvements already proffered by the Surf Club, which
results in duplicative improvements.

2. Two solar powered trashcans. The amount proffered is $30,000.
3- Two diverter dunes at a location to be specified in the future. The amount proffered is

$20,000.
4. $115,000 for the encroachment of the right-of-way.

Growth Impact: The project includes 55 condominium hotel units. The existing site has 36 units,
resulting in a total of 19 more units than currently exist on site. Also, the existing building is a
condominium while the proposed renovations result in the 55 units all being part of a condominium
hotel. However, the property has a maximum density permitted of 99 units; therefore, based on
the density alone, there are no negative impacts to level of service standards for traffic or public
facilities within the Comprehensive Plan. The applicant Is required to coordinate with the Miami-
Dade School Board relating to School Impact Fees.

Staff Impact: The applicant has funded the review through the cost recovery process and the
building permit review will be funded through the building permit fees.

Sarah Sinatra Gould, AlCP, Town Planner uillermo Olmedino, Town Manag



SITE PLAN REPORT



SITE PLAN INFORMATION:

Address 8995 Collins Avenue

General Location East and west side of Collins Avenue, south of 90^ Street

Property Size East Parcel: .83 gross acres

West Parcel: .33 gross acres

Zoning District East Parcel: H120

West Parcel: H40

Adjacent Zoning

Districts

East Parcel: H120 to the north and south, H40 to the west

West Parcel: H40 & H30 to the north, H40 to the south, H30C to the west, and H120 to the

east

Future Land Use East Parcel: High Density Residential/Tourist

West Parcel: Moderate High Density Residential

Density Permitted East Parcel: 109 units per acre = 90 units

West Parcel: 79 units per acre = 26 units

Total: 116X15% reduction = 99 units permitted

Number of units

proposed

East Parcel: 55 dwelling/hotel units

West Parcel: 0 dwelling units

TOTAL: 55 units proposed, with 36 existing units being demolished

Number of

parking spaces

East Parcel: 111 spaces

West ParcehO spaces

TOTAL Provided: 111 spaces

TOTAL Required: 108 spaces

100% triple mechanical lift parking proposed through a Conditional Use application.



ZONING CODE. APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

Sec. 90.42

Minimum Unit Sizes Minimum Required Proposed

One-bedroom 800 square feet 977 square feet

Two-bedroom 950 square feet 1,272 square feet

Three-bedroom 1150 square feet 2,240 square feet

Sec. 90.43

Maximum Building Heights Maximum Required Proposed

H120 120 feet maximum 120 feet

H40 40 feet maximum 0- lot to be sodded and fenced

Sec. 90.44

Modification

of Height
Maximum Permitted Proposed

Must be of high architectiirai quality integral
to the design of the building

H120 20ft
30% of roof

area

14 feet, 2

inches

The mechanical equipment, rooftop decks and
parapet walls meet these criteria.

Sec. 90.45(b)
Setbacks Minimum Required Proposed

Front (Collins Avenue) 40 ft

26 ft, 11 inch - Per the project

receiving architecturally significant

designation

Rear (Beach) 30ft 146 fti 9 inches

H120 Setback from platted bulkhead

line
20 ft

15ft, - Per the project receiving
architecturally significant

designation

Street Side 20 ft

10 ft - Per the project receiving

architecturally significant

designation

Side 10 ft 10ft

H40

Front (Collins Avenue) 20 ft Oft

Side 10ft Oft

Rear 10ft Oft



Sec. 90.47

Yards generally, allowable

projections
Required Proposed

H120 - Projections of

balconies features into

required yards

Maximum 8 feet for front, secondary

and rear and 5 feet for interior side

7 foot front encroachment and 7

foot 1 inch side encroachment - Per

the project receiving architecturally
significant designation

Sec. 90.49

Lot Standards Required Proposed

Minimum Lot width 50 feet

East Parcel: 73 ft

West Parcel N/A - no development proposed

Minimum Pervious

area
20%

East Parcel: 20%

West Parcel: 100%

Architecture Required Proposed

All elevations for new

structures and multi

story additions

(additions greater than

fifteen (15) feet in

height)

Minimum of 10% wall openings including

windows, doors or transitional spaces

defined by porches, porticoes or

colonnades.

East and west buildings both meet or

exceed 10% wall openings

Roof materials are

limited as follows:

a. Clay Tile; or
b. White concrete tile; or
c. Solid color cement tile which color is

impregnated with the same color
intensity throughout, provided said
color if granted approval by the
Design Review Board;

d. Architecturally embellished metal if
granted approval by the Design
Review Board; or

e. Other Florida Building Code approved
roof material(s) if granted approval by
the Design Review Board.

Roof deck will include terraces for two

private penthouses.

Roof Deck

Provisions
Required Proposed

Roof Decks are

limited to

a. Maximum 70% of the aggregate roof area;
62%

b. Shall not exceed the maximum roof height
required by any abutting property's zoning
designation;

120 feet



c. Minimum setback of 10 feet from the roofline

on all sides

10 feet

Sec. 90.67.2

Underground

utilities

Required Proposed

All utilities including telephone, cable, and
electrical systems shall be Installed

underground.
The lines are Installed underground.

Sec. 90.77(c)

Off-Street

Parking

Minimum Required Proposed

108 Spaces

East Parcel: 111, if requested variance is
granted permitting triple stack parking lifts

West Parcel: 0

TOTAL: 111

Sec. 90.83

Off-Street Loading Minimum Required Proposed

Hotel Greater than

100,000 sq ft
2 1 provided. Variance requested.

Sec. 90.91

Vegetative Provisions Minimum Required Proposed

Xerlscape In pervious

area
50% 79%

Sec. 90.91.2

Buffers

Applicant has requested a variance.Landscape buffer

adjacent to streets and

abutting properties

Sec. 90.93

Open Space

Applicant has requested a variance.

Landscaping along all

buildings and

structures, shrubs and

trees required In open
space



DEVELOPMENT IMPACT

COMMITTEE REPORT



DEVELOPMENT IMPACT COMMITTEE MEETING

The Development Impact Committee (DIG)* met on November 16,2017 to discuss the application for
the 8995 Collins Avenue ("the ProjecT). The DIG meeting was attended by the following:

Staff Attendees: Guiilermo Olmedillo, Town Manager
Ross Prieto, Building Official
Police Chief David Allen

Kathryn Mehaffey, Town Attomey
Randy Stokes, Public Works Director
Duncan Tavares, Assistant Town Manager
Tim Millan, Parks and Recreation Director
Bill Tesauro, Landscape Reviewer
Eric Czemiejewski, Traffic Engineer
Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner

Applicant Attendees: Achraf El Churafa, Ownership
Graham Penn, Attorney, Bercow, Radell, Fernandez & Larkin
Carly Koshal, Attomey, Bercow, Radell, Femandez & Larkin
Matt Picard, Architect, Kobi Karp
George Kousoulas, Architect
Camilo Tamayo, Architect
Tom Hall, Traffic Engineering

Citizen Attendees (who signed in): None

*NOTE: The DIG meetings are televised on the Town's Channel 77 and are well on the Town's
website and posted on Town Hall.

The following were discussed:

1. Concerns with the encroachment into the right of way and the proposed encroachment
agreement.

2. Concems with the triple stacked parking system.
3. Concerns with the amount of space for vehicular and valet stacking of vehicles.
4. Applicant proposed improvements to 90"^ Street, however, the improvements conflicted

with the Surf Club's proposed improvements to the right-of-way.
5. The following proffers were made:

a. Enhancements to the 90"^ Street Beach Access & Promenade by beautifying 90'*'
Street from Harding Avenue to the beach including a sidewalk between Collins and
Harding Avenues and landscaping. Also proposed is an enhanced promenade at
the beach entry with decorative paving, a planted coral stone gateway with
signage, benches and a shower. The amount proffered is $378,824. Staffs review
of the proposal indicates there is a conflict with the proposed improvements
already proffered by the Surf Club, which results in duplicative improvements.

b. Two solar powered trashcans. The amount proffered is $30,000.



c. Two diverter dunes at a location to be specified in the future. The amount proffered
is $20,000.

d. $71,176 for the encroachment of the right-of-way.



ARCHITECTURALLY SIGNIFICANT

REPORT



Date: 04-11-2018

Project Name: 8995 Collins Avenue Condo-Hotel

Permit Number: 08-1763.26

Project Address: 8995 Collins Avenue, Surfside, FL 33154

The proposed development for the subject property has been reviewed for compliance with

Section 90-33(3) of the Town Code. The following review comments are based on the contents
of this section within the context of a historically significant structure.

Sec. 90-33. - Alterations or enlargement of non-conforming structures.

(3) Alterations or additions to architecturally significant buildings on H120 zoned lots that
are nonconforming as to setbacks may follow existing building lines as long as the
alteration or addition maintains the architectural integrity of the existing building. The
lesser of the current code-required setback or the existing building line shall be deemed

to be the required setback line.

Any redevelopment project undertaken under this subsection must comply with the
Town's minimum finished floor elevation requirements for all portions of the building
and further must be designed and developed in accordance with Leadership in Energy &
Environmental Design (LEED) or Florida Green Building Coalition (FGBC) building design
and construction standards.

Redevelopment projects seeking to utilize the setback exception of this subsection shall
be limited to a total height of no more than twice the number of existing floors in a
building, up to a maximum of 120 feet.

REVIEW COMMENTS FOR 90-33(3):

1. The proposed alterations and/or additions are not within the existing building lines:

a. The addition of balconies extend the typical floor footprint approximately 5'-6" on

the North side, 5,-0" on the South side, 6'-4" on the West side and 8'-0" on the

East side. Although the proposed balconies are not within the existing building

lines, they maintain the integrity of the existing building and constitute a desirable

element that complements the residential use.

2. The proposed alterations and/or additions maintain the architectural integrity of the

existing building:

a. The proposed arrangement for the new balconies emphasizes the verticality of the

original structure. The Introduction of vertical bands with no balconies break up

the horizontal bands of the new balconies thus emphasizing the original

structure's vertical orientation and creating a rhythm similar in proportions to the

original fenestration. The clear glass balcony rail allows for the original building's



vertical structural elements and the tall vertical glazing to be more prominent. This

Important design element, however, Is not continuous from top to bottom. At the

uppermost level, the balconies continue across some of the voids, thus breaking
the continuity of the vertical bands from top to bottom.

b. The replacement of all glazing and repetitive vertical fenestratlon at the openings

between columns with full glass floor to floor sliders are now part of vertical
elements separated by voids and secondary to the main vertical structural

elements 9''0" on center.

c. The proposed alterations maintain two very Important and prominent elements

that define the style of the existing building:

I. Arches

The proposed alterations maintain the arches. The arches at the top of the
building are one of the unique elements that characterize the original
design. They culminate and unify the vertical structural elements. The
combination of the arches and the horizontal roof line, similar In function
to the entablature found In classical architecture above columns, bring
together the arches and draw the eye to the top of the structure.

II. Plinth

In the same manner that the arches are united by a horizontal element at
the top of the structure, the plinth at the bottom brings together the base
of the structural columns that support the arches and represents a
transitional element that anchors the building fagade to the ground.

REVIEW COMMENTS FOR 90-33(3)(a) Determination of Architectural Significance:
a. A request for a determination of architectural significance representative of the

MIMo/ Miami Modern architectural style has been made and properly submitted.
b. Staff has reviewed the analysis prepared by the property owner and has Issued a

recommendation stating that the building meets the town's standards of

architectural significance.

c. After a Public Hearing, the Design Review Board has Issued a determination of

architectural significance.

REVIEW COMMENTS FOR 90-33(3)(b) Alterations to Architecturally Significant Buildings:
a. The revised proposed alteration or addition requires demolition or alteration In a

manner that allows the building to remain architecturally significant; and

b. The proposed alteration or addition Is designed In a manner that Is compatible
with the existing building with two exceptions:

I. The continuous balconies at the uppermost level on the North and West
elevations do not allow the vertical voids to be continuous.

II. The addition of a balcony on the South elevation's uppermost level.



REVIEW COMMENTS FOR 90-33(3)(c) Site Plan Review for Architecturally Significant Buildings:
a. The revised proposed alteration or addition requires demolition or alteration in a

manner that allows the building to remain architecturally significant; and

b. The proposed alteration or addition is designed in a manner that is compatible
with the existing building with two exceptions:

i. The continuous balconies at the uppermost level on the North and West
elevations do not allow the vertical voids to be continuous.

a. The addition of a balcony on the South elevation's uppermost level.

CONCLUSION / RECOMMENDATION

The proposed alterations to the architecturally significant building at 8995 Coiiins Avenue,
Surfside, Florida do not comply with the requirements of Section 90-33(3) of the Code of
Ordinances of the Town of Surfside, Florida.

In order for the design to achieve compliance we recommend the following revisions:

1. Continue the vertical voids between the balconies at the uppermost level on the North
and West elevations in order to emphasize the verticaiity.

2. Include in South elevation the doors to the stairs from the balcony at the uppermost level.

Based on this review, approval is recommended if the recommendations are incorporated into the
design.

Respectfully,

Manuel Synaiovski, AiA, NCARB, LEED AP
Managing Principal



CONDITIONAL USE REPORT



Request
The Applicant Is requesting conditional use approval for an automated parking system that is not
defined in subsection 90-77(f). The applicant is proposing a vertical parking lift for three vehicles
which requires a conditional use. The applicant is also requesting conditional use approval for a
pool. Code section 90-41 (c) requires a conditional use application to be reviewed for pools
associated with hotels.

Conditional Use Criteria

Section 90-23 of the zoning code provides standards of review for Conditional Uses. Conditional
Uses are generally compatible with the other land uses permitted in a zoning district but, because
of their unique characteristics or potential impacts on the surrounding neighborhood and the Town
as a whole, require individual review as to their location, design, configuration, and/or operation
for the particular use at the particular location proposed, as well as the imposition of individualized
conditions in order to ensure that the use is compatible with the surrounding neighborhoods and
appropriate at a particular location.

Town Code section 90-77(f) allows parking lifts that allow for the parking of two passenger
vehicles. A parking lift space in a two-car parking lift may be counted as a parking space required
by subsection 90-77(c), and shall not be subject to the minimum parking stall size requirements
of subsection 90-81.1(1) provided that all of the following conditions are fulfilled:

(1) A traffic queuing analysis shall be submitted by the owner of the building for parking areas
using parking lifts, for review and approval by the Town Manager, to ensure efficient processing
times and queue lengths. The number of parking lifts permitted to be counted as required parking
spaces shall be determined by the approved queuing analysis.

The Applicant has submitted a Traffic Analysis (8995 Collins Avenue Traffic Impact Study
(Revised). The applicant updated the report after the April 26. 2018 Planning and Zoning Board
meeting to staff's satisfaction. Staff has roviowod the roport and hoc concornc rolatod to tho
limitod vohicular staging aroa boing propocod which only pormitc throo vohicloa at a timo. The
roGubmittod application includos an additional lift to assist with vohicloc loaving tho proporty,
howovor, Staff continuos to havo concerns ovor the fact that only throo vohiclos may bo staged
at the drop off.

(2) All parking lifts shali be located within a fully enclosed parking garage and shall not be
visible from exterior view. No outside parking lifts shali be permitted.

The Applicant is proposing that all lifts will be located in a subterranean garage structure and will
not be visible from the exterior.

(3) Parking lifts shall be permitted only when operated by an attendant or a licensed and
insured valet parking company on a 24-hour/seven-days-a-week basis, to be confirmed by
restrictive covenant to be recorded by the owner/applicant prior to establishment of the use.

The Applicant is proposing that all parking for the building will be provided via 24-hour valet
service. Staff is oroposina a condition if the application is approved that a minimum of three

valets be reauired at all times with an additional valet for six months after the building is

operational.



(4) No resident, guest, patron or customer of the building shall be permitted to operate the
parking lift. A physical barrier shall be placed in the parking area to prohibit access to the parking
lift area by residents, guests, patrons or customers of the building.

The Applicant has indicated that physical access to the basement will not be available to the
general public including residents, guests, patrons or customers.

(5) All parking lifts shall be maintained and kept in good working order.

The Applicant is proposing to enter into a maintenance agreement with the manufacturer of the
lifts prior to installation. Two lifts are proposed to accommodate ingress and egress.

(6) The parking lift platform must be sealed and of a sufTicient width and length to completely
cover the bottom of the vehicle on the platform to prevent dripping liquids or debris onto the vehicle
below.

The applicant has indicated that the proposed lifts fully comply with this requirement.

(7) All lifts must be designed so that power is required to lift the car, but that no power is
required to lower the car, in order to ensure that the lift can be lowered and the top vehicle can
be accessed in the event of a power outage.

The applicant has indicated that the proposed lifts fully comply with this requirement.

(8) All parking lifts must be designed to prevent lowering of the lift when a vehicle is parked
below the lift.

The applicant has indicated that the proposed lifts fully comply with this requirement.

(9) Ceiling heights of any parking level with parking lifts shall be a minimum of 14 feet 4 inches
and sufficient to accommodate all types of passenger vehicles. Such required height shall be
proposed in the traffic queuing study and approved by the town manager. There shall be no
beams, plumbing, or sprinklers that lower or otherwise interfere with this clearance across the
entire span of the parking space.

The height of the parking garage is proposed to be 19 feet which has been determined to be
enough height for the parking lifts and associated vehicles. Howovor, Staff has reviewed the
TrafTic Analyeic Report and hoe concorno related to the limitod vohicubr ctoging area being
propOGOd which only pormitc throe vohicloe at a time.

(10) Noise and vibration barriers shall be utilized to ensure that surrounding walls decrease
sound and vibration emissions outside of the parking garage.

The applicant has indicated that the parking garage with the lifts is below grade thus minimizing
noise. They have not indicated if any other noise or vibration barriers wiii be utilized.

In addition to the standards set forth in this zoning code for the particular use, all proposed
Conditional Uses shall meet each of the following standards. The responses to the criteria are in
italics below:



(1) The proposed use shall be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Code;

The proposed use of the property as a hotel with parking lifts and pools is consistent with
the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code.

(2) The establishment, maintenance or operation of the proposed use shall not be detrimental
to or endanger the public health, safety, or general welfare;

AH parking for the buiiding will be provided via 24'hour valet service therefore limiting the
possibility for public endangerment. The appHcant has supplied information on the safe
operation and continued maintenance of the proposed lifts. Howovor, the limited otacking
continuoG tojcroato concomc regarding stacking and the potontiai for spillover into the
street. Tho parldng lift conditional uso would allow for a sito plan that only has spaco for
throo vohiclos at tho pickup and drop off area, whilo utilizing a triple lift systom for parking.
This system stacks vohiclos throo high and is providing one lift for ingress and one for
ogross. This has caused staff to bo concernod about potontiai oncroaohmont into tho right
of way for excess vehicles.

A pool is consistent with other properties within the zoning district and is not expected be
a detriment to pubiic health, safety or welfare.

(3) The proposed use shall be compatible with the community character of the immediate
neighborhood. In addition to compatibility there must be congruity between the subject
development and neighboring improvements and surroundings including but not limited to
form, spacing, heights, setbacks, materials, color, rhythm and pattern of architectural or
aesthetic interest or value as well as with any overlays and other development schemes
or legislation.

The proposed building characteristics and pooi are compatible with the community
character of the immediate neighborhood. However, the site improvements being
proposed are not congruent with other surrounding properties since the applicant is
proposing to utilize the Town's right-of-way to meet site development standards for
landscaping and access ways.

(4) Adequate provisions shall be included for safe traffic movement, both vehicular and
pedestrian, both internal to the use and in the area which will serve the use;

It is staff's intorprotation that thoro is not adoquato aroa availablo at tho drop off and pick
up drivoway for the ingress and ogross of vohiclos on the proporty. Staffs concom is if
moro than throo vohiclos arc oithor arriving or departing, thero would bo spillovor of cars
into tho riaht-of-wav. The aoplicant has revised their valet operations plan and staff is

satisfied with the analvsis. However, the operations shail be analvzed after one vear. Staff

has provided a methodoloav for that evaiuation.

(5) Adequate measures exist including landscaping or other buffering measures or shall be
taken to mitigate any adverse effects of noise, light or other potential nuisances; and

The application inciudes two landscape variances. The code requires specific quantities
of landscaping to be planted onsite. There is not adequate space from the existing building
to the right of way iine to plant the required iandscaping. The alterations of the building
wili increase the non-conformity; therefore the project loses Its non-conforming status and



will not be vested for the current landscaping. The applicant Is proposing to permit off-site
landscape Improvements, Immediately adjacent to the property In the surrounding public
right-of-way. The quality and materials of the proposed landscaping would meet the code
requirements If they were Installed onslte. The parking lifts proposed are located In a
subterranean garage structure and will not be visible from the exterior. This will limit noise,
light and other potential nuisances. The hotel pool will be adequately landscaped and Is
not expected to negatively Impact neighboring properties.

(6) The establishment of the Conditional Use shall not impede the development of
surrounding properties for uses permitted in the zoning district; and

The other surrounding properties are developed or under construction. Therefore, granting
the conditional use will not Impede the development potential of the neighboring
properties.

(7) Any other condition imposed by the Design Review Board and/or the Development Impact
Committee.

This Is at the discretion of the Board.

Recommendation: Denial



VARIANCE REPORT



Request

The applicant's request is for three variances which are needed in order to bring the property into
compliance with the Town's Code while retaining the existing building lines of the architectural
significant building. The applicant is also requesting approval of a Site Plan, Conditional Use, and an
encroachment agreement for the property.

The following is a iisting of the variances requested by the applicant:

A. Section 90-82. - Off-street loading requirements (Loading Space Size).
Two spaces are required for a condominium or hotel. Only one full size (12-feet by 30-feet) off-street
loading space is provided. A second off-street loading space is provided but is 9-feet by 25-feet which
does not meeting the space size requirement.

B. Section 90-91.2. - Required buffer landscaping adjacent to streets and abutting properties
(Landscape Buffer).
A ten foot buffer is required with three trees every 50 linear feet. On the 90^ Street side of the property
the required buffer and trees are not able to be completely located within the applicant's property.
Several of the required trees and portions of the buffer are provided off-site in the Right-of-Way which
the applicant is requesting an encroachment agreement with the Town in order to maintain.

C. Section 90.93(1 b). - Open Space (Open Space Trees).
One large tree (35 feet) for buildings over 75 feet in height is required per 25 linear feet of the building
per each side for scaling and softening. All of the required large trees are not able to be completely
located within the applicant's property. Several of the required large trees are provided off-site in the
Right-of-Way which the applicant is requesting an encroachment agreement which would include also
require the applicant to maintain the landscaping and trees in the Right-of-Way.

Variance Criteria

(1) Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or

building involved, and which are not applicable to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same
zoning district;

The existing building was constructed in 1966. The code requirements have been modified since

that time resulting in a non-conforming structure. The non-conforming code section states that a
non-conformity may remain but cannot be enlarged or altered, unless the enlargement or
alteration is conforming. The Town's Design Review Board has approved the existing building as
Architecturaily Significant under the terms of Town Code Section 90-33(3) which allows for the
expansion to existing buildings in the HI20 Zoning District based on previously established

setbacks for the building. However, the Architecturaily Significant designation does not exempt
the building and property from other Code requirements such as parking, buffers and landscaping.
The applicant is requesting to expand the existing building with three additional floors and
increasing the number of units which does not meet the requirements or intent of the non-

conforming code section. Pursuant to the requirements of the non-conforming section of the
Town Code, alterations of the magnitude proposed by the applicant require that the site be

brought into conformance with the Town Code. Thus, the applicant is requesting variances for the

three items.



A. Section 90-82. - (Loading Space Size). The applicant is choosing to expand the non-conforming
building so therefore the Code requirement for two loading spaces (12' x 30') must be met. The site
plan includes one space at 12'x30' and another at (9'x25') which does not meet the size requirement
of the Code. The lack of a second full size loading space could result in on-street loading and unloading.
Other properties within the same zoning district would be required to meet the requirement.

B. Section 90-91.2. - (Landscape Buffer). The setback on the 90''' Street side of property is 10 feet.
The Code requires a 10-foot buffer with three trees every 50 linear feet. However, the applicant is
choosing to relocate the entrance to the building and vaiet parking to the OO''' Street side of the property
thus resulting in the required buffer and trees not being completely located within the applicant's
property. Several of the required trees and portions of the buffer are provided off-site in the Right-of-
Way which the applicant is requesting an encroachment agreement with the Town in order to maintain.
However, these areas, landscaped or othenA^ise, do not count toward the applicant's Landscape Buffer
Code requirement. Other properties within the same zoning district would be required to meet the
requirement on their property.

C. Section 90.93(1 b). - (Open Space Trees). One large tree (35 feet) for buildings over 75 feet in height
is required per 25 linear feet of the building per each side for scaling and softening. However, the
applicant is choosing to relocate the entrance to the building and valet parking to the 90'" Street side of
the property thus resulting in all of the required trees not being able to be completely located within the
applicant's property. Several of the required iarge trees are provided off-site in the Right-of-Way which
the applicant is requesting an encroachment agreement with the Town in order to maintain. However,
these areas, trees located in the Right-of-Way, do not count toward the applicant's required trees.
Other properties within the same zoning district would be required to meet the requirement on their
property.

(2) The special conditions and circumstances do not resuit from the actions of the applicant or a

prior owner of the property;

The existing structure was developed under a different code, which is not the resuit of the

applicant. However, as discussed under Variance Criteria (1) the applicant is choosing to make

additions and alterations to the building which trigger a loss of the building's non-conforming

status and thus the project must meet the requirements of the Town Code.

A. Section 90-82. - (Loading Space Size). The applicant is choosing to expand the non-conforming
building so therefore the Code requirement for two loading spaces (12' x 30') is required. Therefore,
the request is the result of the applicant.

B. Section 90-91.2. - (Landscape Buffer). The setback on the 90'" Street side of the property is 10 feet.
The Code requires a 10-foot buffer with three trees every 50 linear feet. However, the applicant is
choosing to relocate the entrance to the building and valet parking to the 90*" Street side of the property
thus resulting in the required buffer and trees not being completely located within the applicant's
property. Therefore, the request is the result of the applicant.



C. Section 90.93(1 b). - (Open Space Trees). One large tree (35 feet) for buildings over 75 feet in height
is required per 25 linear feet of the building per each side for scaling and softening. However, the
applicant is choosing to relocate the entrance to the building and valet parking to the 90^ Street side of
the property thus resulting in all of the required trees not being able to be completely located within the
applicant's property. Therefore, the request is the result of the applicant.

(3) Literal Interpretation of the provisions of the Town Code deprives the applicant of rights
commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under the terms of the Town
Code and results In unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant;

The existing structure does not meet current Code requirements for setbacks. The building was
found to be Architecturally Significant by the Design Review Board allowing expansion of the
building with historic setbacks but not exempting the property from other Code requirements.

(4) The hardship has not been deliberately or knowingly created or suffered to establish a use
or structure which is not otherwise consistent with the Town of Surfside Comprehensive Plan or
the Town Code;

The original structure was built in 1966. It was not deliberately developed to be inconsistent with
the Town. It was developed prior to the current Town Code requirements. The proposed project
is to add three stories to the existing structure while maintaining the existing setbacks. The
hardship has not been deliberately or knowingly created to establish an inconsistent project.

(5) An applicant's desire or ability to achieve greater financial retum or maximum financial retum
from his property does not constitute hardship;

The applicant is requesting to add three stories to the existing structure. This will allow renovation
as well as additional units. This will result in greater financial return.

(6) Granting the variance application conveys the same treatment to the applicant as to the
owner of other lands, buildings, or structures in the same zoning district;

The original structure was built in 1966 under different Code provisions which allow for a greater
floor area then is permitted by the current Code. Granting of the variances would provide the
Applicant with special treatment then other owners of lands, buildings, or structures in the same

zoning district.

(7) The requested variance is the minimum variance that makes possible the reasonable use of
the land, building, or structure; and

The requested variances are not excessive and appear to be the minimum variance needed to

accommodate the proposed site plan; however the property can be utilized as is and therefore
the variances are a result of the proposed addition.

(8) The requested variance is in harmony with the general Intent and purpose of the Town of
Surfside Comprehensive Plan and the Town Code, is not injurious to the neighborhood or
othen/vise detrimental to the public safety and welfare, is compatible with the neighborhood, and

will not substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.



The requested variances are generally in harmony with the intent and purpose of the Town of
Surfside Comprehensive Plan and the Town Code, however the requests do not meet the Town
Code requirements for approval and the variances would be injurious to the neighborhood and
potentially detrimental to the public safety and welfare.

Recommendation: Denial



APPLICATION, LETTER OF INTENT
AND APPENDIX



^OlSd^nS do N?;cj
'c.CRFSIOi

g WdS0H, %Ayi.fi °
^  Application/Plans Due / /20
g; j ^ ' ■ » —

2  S J TOWN OF SURFSIDE
0  idULTtFAMILY AND NON-RESIDENTIAL SITE-PLAN APPLICATION

ORB Meeting

Application / Plans Due

3

A Somplete- submittal Includes all Items on tfie "Multifamily and Non-Residential Site-Plan Application
Submission Checklist" document as well as completing this application in full. The owner and agent must sign
the application with the appropriate supplemental documentation attached. Please print legibly in Ink or type
on this application form.

OWNER'S NAME

PHONE/FAX

AGENTS NAME

ADDRESS

PHONE/FAX

Surf House Condominium Association, Inc.

see agent

Graham Penn

200 S. Biscavne Blvd.. Suite 850 Miami PL 33131

305 377 6229

PROPERTY ADDRESS 8995 Collins Avenue

ZONING CATEGORY

DESCRIPTION OF

PROPOSED WORK

H-120

Site plan approval for expansion to existing multi-family building.

INTERNAL USE ONLY

Date Submitted

Report Completed

Fee Paid

Project Number

Date

ZONING STANDARDS

Plot Size

Setoacks (F/R/S)

Lot Coverage

Height

Pervious Area

Required

X

I^AXUR

Ice Pre lurf 1House

^onaomimium MŜ Cllauon.

a 17

Provided

X



Affidavit of Ownership

I, Jason Haipem, am over the age of 21 and otherwise am suijuris, and being duly sworn,
allege and state:

1. I am the Vice President of the Surf House Condominium Association, Inc.

2. Surf House Condominium Association. Inc. (the "Owner") owns the Common
Areas of the "Surf House" site identified by Miami Dade County Folio Reference
Number 14-2235-022-0001 (the "Properly").

3. The Property Is located at the northeast and southeast comers of the
intersection of 90 Street and Collins Avenue within the Tovwi of Surfside,
specificaliy identified by the address 8995 Collins Avenue.

4. The proposed redevelopment includes an expansion to the existing building
and the creation of a new parking structure.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Jasonhjafpem, Vic^resi(^nt of Surf House Condominium Association, Inc.
STAfkoFliEW YORK

COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Jason Haipem, Vice President
of Surf House Condominium Association, Inc., who is personally known to me or has
produced as identification.

.  h
My commission expires k j IK Notary Public, State of New York

BRIAN G. BROWN
Itotaiy Pobfio, State of New Yoik

lto.01BR6161227
QuallSed In Suttelk County

Conuntoilon Bxirtres August 14,20^



n

Bercow Radell Fernandez & Larkin
ZONING, LAND USE AND ENVIRONr^lENTAL LAW

DIRECT UNE (305)377-6229
E-MAIL: gpenn6bizoninglaw.com

w\srw.bizoning)aw.com

May 8,2018

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL AND HAND DELIVERY

Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Town of Surfside

9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, FL 33154

Re; Second Amended Letter of Intent for Site Plan, Coiiditional Use
Approval for Automated Parking, Variances, and Vehicular Access
Encroachment Agreement for 8995 Collins Avenue.

Dear Ms. Sinatra:

Our firm represents Surf House Condominium Association (the "Applicant")
in connection with ttie redevelopment of 8995 Collins Avenue (the "Property"). As
you know, the Property is currently developed with the Miami Modem-designed
Surf House condominium. The Applicant proposes to expand the building under the
terms of the newly adopted "architectural significance" criteria for existing buildings
in H-120 zone. Please consider this letter the Applicant's amended letter of intent in
support of its application seeking site plan approval, conditional use approval,
variance approvals, and Town approval of a vehicular acce^ agreement Attached
hereto is our Appendix, which includes back up matericds to this letter.

The Property. The building was constructed in 1966 and was designed as
the Surf House condominium by Robert Jerome Filer Architect in the
"International Style," an architectural style that was one of the strains of the
"MiMo" - Miami Modem movement. Three sides of the building contain a grid of
repetitive window patterns in a structural concrete frame which is expressed on
the exterior. The fourth or south facade is practically a blank wall. It appears to
have been constructed to anticipate a future adjacent building height of at least the
same height and width as 8995 Collins Avenue. Parldng for the building has been
located in the basement and across the street on a surface lot The surface lot is not



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

TownofSurfside

May 8,2018
Page 2

a part of the instant application.

Recently, the Town's Design Review Board approved the building as the
Town's first recognized ''architecturally significant" building under the terms of
Section 90-33(3). This section of the Town Code allows for expanaons to existing
buildings in tte H-120 zone that rdy on historic setbacks. The code does not,
however, exempt architecturally significant buildings fixnn landscaping
requirements. B^use of the constraints of the existing site, including narrow
sefi)ack areas, full compliance with the Town's landscaping requirements is not
possible.

The building has been used as a residential condominium since its original
construction. Vehicular access to the building has historically eifiier been from
drop off in the travel lane of 90th (where the main pedestrian entrance to the
building is located) or tiirough Collins Avenue (where the entrance to the
imderground parking area is located). The building has become surrounded by
newer development in recent years - including the larger Surf Qub project to ttie
north and a new residential tower under construction at 8955 Collins Avenue to

the south.

Amended Development Plan. The Applicant proposes to develop a
condominium hotd development of 55 units on the Property. The building is not
proposed to include food or beverage uses at this time, so it will remain a low-
impact use, generating minimal traffic or noise.

In response to comments from the Town's architectural consultant and the
Design Review Board, the Applicant has made several changes to the design and
operation of the development plan. Specifically, the Applicant has: (1) adjusted the
proposed new balconies and made ofiier arddtectural revisions to better reflect
and emphasize the hallmark elements of the buildingf s dedgn; (2) modified the
vehicul^ access plan to reduce the amount of 90tti Street impacted by the
proposed driveways; (3) added a second vehide elevator to provide access to the
basement parking proposed for the building; and (4) proposed an expanded and
improved public pedestrian corridor along 90th Stre^ designed to provide access
to the beach from Harding Avenue to the beadiwalk. Tab E attadied hereto
indudes an analysis of the development's consistency with the requirements of
Section 90-33(3) oi fiie Town's regulations.

Ill Amendments to the Architecture. In re^onse to comments by the
Design Review Board, fiie Applicant has revised the dedgn in two major ways. In
areas whoe the earlier presentation may have not fully conveyed the positive
attributes of the existing building's design, fiie team has provided additional



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Town of Surfade

May 8,2018
Page 3

enhancements to bring those elements to the fore. In response to die concerns of
the Design Review Bc»rd regarding the original cornice of the building we have
redesigned elements of die fagade to even more closely align with the observations
of the Town's architectural consultant Balconies and their respective gaps have
been aligned to stress the verticality of the building and its columns, leading the
eye to iiie powerful arches and vaults of the cornice. The balconies themsdves
have been deemphasized thought the use of a low-iron glass balustrade free of
metal supports (die ability of this ultra-dear glass, used in diis manner, to recede
from view can seen on a recently completed building in Sunny Isles).

Amended Parking/Access. As widi die previous design, die
building will provide a dedicated parking entrance and drop od area along 90th
Street limiting vehicular impacts on Collins Avenue. The 90th Street drop cS area
will also provide loading space for daily delivery vdiides. Because of die
constraints, the main load^g area will need to be retained on Collins Avenue, but
has been redesigned to limit its impacts by udng turfblodc and installing extensive
landscaping. Because vehides will be in the loading areas only sporadically, we
believe that die proposed design is consistent with the goal of improving the
Collins Avenue frontage while still providing die needed loading capadty.

Parking for the site will be provided underneath the building. Parking will
be exdusivdy through a 24-hour valet service. The Applicant is proposing to
access the subterranean parking through a car elevator ̂ stem and provide the
parking using "triple stacker" vehide Bfls. The lifts wiU be completely
subternmean and therefore will create no noise of vibration audible outside of the

building.

The introduction of a second vehide devatm: (See No. 3, below) has
permitted a more coherent flow of inbound and outbound cars. The proposed
elevators will separated from each other and aligned with their respective curb
cuts. The design creates effident loading and unloading of the devators and
ensures that the vehicular movements related to one do not interfere with those of
tiie other. As noted below, the Applicant has managed to make these changes
while significantly reducing tiie impact on the public right of way, improving the
pedestrian experience and enhandng safety.

r31 Second Elevator for Improved Functionalitv and Safety. As noted in

the submitted traffic analysis, the parking system will allow for the effident
functioning of the operation and will not result in external impacts. The Applicant
has revised the development plan so that two car devators will serve the
subterranean parking system.



Sarah Sinatra/ AICP
Town Planner

Town of Suifside

May 8/2018
Page 4

This change has three major benefits: (1) it will provide additional capacity
for file ̂ sfem in instances of hi^ demand; (2) it will ̂ ow for redundancy in
event of a mechanical issue wifii one of the ̂ vators; and (3) most important, it
will recue the potential impact on fiie public In order to create a superior
pedestrian experience/ it is in^rtant to reduce the number of potential vehicular
or pedestrian interactions as much as possible. The amended parking system for
file site will meet that goal

(4) Expanded Proposed Pedestrian Corridor. As before/ the Applicant is
proposing improvements to the beachwalk (the area from the street-end to the
hardpack) and the 90th Street Bight of Way. The latter is amended here to include
small but important improvements to the section east of Collins and more
substantial improvements to the section between Harding and Collins Avenues.
The eastern leg sees the addition of landscaping on bofii sides of fiie sidewalk with
trees planted along fiie street The western leg takes the recent one-way test of this
block and makes it a new streetscaped feature of the Towru Both legs will provide
a substantial improvement to pedestrian access along 90th Street-

Parking Conditional Use Approval. As provided by Section 90-77(f)/
parking lifts are permitted in the Town subject to multiple operational conditions.
The Code permits tradition two-vehide tandem lifts "as of right;" but requires all
ofiier parldng systems to obtain conditional use approved. The Applicant is
proposing to use a stacker ̂ stem that allows for vertical stacking of three vehides.
Other than accommodating three vehideS/ the proposed lifts have the identical
function to traditional tandem lifts. The lifts also comply with all of the Town's
codified requirements. The various standards are as follows:

(1) A triffic ijueuing analysts shall be submitted by &ie owner cfOte buUding
for patking areas using parking lifts, for review and approval by Ute Town
Manager, to ensure ̂ dent processing times and queue lengflis. The
numlir of parking lifts permitted to be counted as required parking spaces
shall be determined by Bie approval queuing arudysis; and

The Applicant has submitted the required traffic analysis.

(2) All parking Ufts shall be located within a fully enclosed parking garage and
shall not be xnsible from exterior view. No outside parldng lifts shall be
permitted; and

All lifts will be located in a subterranean garage structure and will
not be visible from the exterior.



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
TownFlaiiner

Town of Suifside

May 8,2018
Page 5

(3) Parking lifts shall be permitted only when operated by an attendant or a
licensed and insured valet parking company on a 24-hour/seven-days-ar
week basis, to be confirmed by restrictive covenant to be recorded by die
owner/applicant prior to establishment qfUte use; and

All parking for the building will be provided via 24-hour valet
service.

(4) No resident, guest, patron or customer of the building dudl be permitted to
operate the parking lift, A physical bonier shall be placed in the parking
area to prohibit access to die parking lift area by residents, guests, patrons
or customers ofdte buUding; and

No physical access to the basement will be available to residents/
guestS/ or patrons.

(5) All parking lifts shall be maintained and kept in good toorking order; and

The Applicant will be entering into a maintenance agreement with
the manufacturer of the lifts prior to installation.

(6) The parking lift plaJ^brm must be sealed and of a sufficient width and length
to completely cover the bottom cf the xrdnde on the platform to prevent
dripping liquids or debris onto the vehicle bdow; and

The proposed lifts fully comply with this requirement

(6) All lifts must be designed so diat power is required to lift the car, but that
no power is requir&l to lower the car, in order to ensure diat die lift can be
lowered and die top vehide can be accessed in the event of a power outage;
and

The proposed lifts fully comply with this requirement

(7) All parking lifts must be designed to prevent lowering of die lift when a
vdiide is parked below the lift; and

The proposed lifts fully comply with this requirement

(8) Ceiling heights of any parking level with parking Iffts shall be a minimum
of 14 feet 4 indies arid sufficient to accommodate all types cf passenger



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Townof Surfeide

May 8,2018
Page 6

vdtides. Such mptiredhei^ shall be proposed in Ihetn^ queuing study
and approved by tite town manager. There shall be no beams, plumbing, or
sprinlders thai lower or oBierwise interfere with dtis dearance across the
entire span of dm parking space; and

The height of the parking level meets and exceeds this requirement

(10) Noise and vibration barriers shall be utilized to ensure dtat surrounding
walls decrease sound and vibraHon emissions outside ofthe parking garage.

Noise from the system will be minimized as it will be completely
subterranean.

Ih sum, the proposed lifts meet all of the Town's requirements for a parking
lift system. The location of the lifts below ground will render them invisible and
inaudible from neighboring properties and the public ii§^t of way. The proposed
system will allow for the provision of adequate parking within the ccmstraints of
the Property.

Conditional Use Criteria. In addition to the specific requirements for
mechanical parking ̂ tems, fiie proposed lifts are consistent wifii the standard
conditional use criteria of Section 90-23.2 as follows:

(1) The proposed use dudl be consistent with die Comprdiensive Plan and die Zoning
Code;

The proposed parking Ufts will support a use permitted by both the Town's
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code.

(2) The establidment, maintenance or operation of the proposed use dudl not be
detrimental to or endanger the public heeddi, safky, or general wdfixre;

The proposed lifts will allow for the efficient and safe parking of the
building in a manner that will reduce risk to the public by limiting all
parking activity to the Property. The amended ̂ tem goes farther in
reducing fiiese impacts through the addition of a second car elevator.

(3) The proposed use diall be compatible widt the community character cf die
immediate neighborhood. In addition to compatibility there must be congruity
between the subject deodopmentand nd^tboring improoementsand surroundings
htduding but not limit^ to form, spadng, hdghts, setbacks, materials, color,
rhydtm and pattern of architectural or aesdiedc interest or value as wdl as wi^



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Town of Surfslde

May 8,2018
Page 7

any overlays and other development schemes or legislation.

The proposed lifts, located within the buildingr will be invisible to other
properties or the public

(4) Adequate provisions shaU be induded for parking and st^ traffic movement, both
rxhicular and pedestrian, bodi internal to die use and in die area whidi zoiU serve
die use;

As noted above, the lift and devator system has been designed to safdy and
effidendy move vehides in and out of the building. The amended plan
represents a significant improvement in pedestrian safety.

(5) Adequate measures exist including landscaping or other buffering measures or
shall be taken to mitigate any averse eff^ of noise, light or other potential
nuisances; and

The impact of the lifts has been mitigated in the best way possible, by
locating them xmderground.

(6) The estaiblidtment of the conditional use shall not impede die development of
surrounding properties for uses permitted in the zoning district.

The use of parking lifts will in no way limit the development of
surrounding properties.

Operational Plan and Voluntary Additional Conditions Rdated to Parking
and Loading. Attached to this letter is the Applicants Valet Operational Plan,
which indudes narrative and illustrative descriptions of the proposed parking and
valet ̂ tem. The Operational Plan depicts the manner in which parking system
will integrate within the existing devdopment in the area. Spedd attention has
been paid to the interaction of &e proposed parking ̂ stem with the Surf Qub
development, which shares 90di Street with tiie Property. As you will see from the
Plan and the Applicant's assodated traffic materials, we antidpate that the
development will not create any issues with die functioning of 90di Street for both
vehicular and pedestrian access. The Operational Plan also notes that the
Applicant has agreed to the following additional conditions to be imposed on die
operation:

(1) The building owner or condominium association must maintain a service



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

TownofSurfeide

May 8,2018
Page 8

contract widi die manufacturer or inanu£actuxer<-approved sovice
company at all times to ensure continued operation of die lifts and car
elevator. Proof of the service contract must be provided to the Town
aimually.

(2) The parking ̂ stem must be staded by the number of personnel of a
licen^ and insured valet parking company adequate to accommodate
demand at all times. Proof of die valet service ccmtract must be provided to
the Town annually.

(3) Maintenance on the car devators or Hfls shall take not place between 7:00
AM and 7:00 PM on weekdays and between 9:00 AM and 7:00 PM on
Saturdays and Sundays.

(4) The Applicant shall store replacement mechanical parts for the elevator
^stem on the Property and shall retain a contract with an devator repair
company ensuring 24/7 service. Proof of the devator service contract must
be provided to the Town annually.

Within 365 days of the sale and/or lease of all of the units in the renovated
building, the applicant shall provide the Manager with a report on the
functioning of the parking ̂ tem. If the report determines that the ̂ stem
is causing unacceptable negative impact on the safety of pedestrians and/or
the reasonable flow of traffic on 90th Street because of die queuing of
vehides entering or exiting the ̂ stem, the applicant shall be required to
undertake modifications to the system or stading to resolve the issue. These
modifications may indude the utilization of the existing parking lot at the
NW comer of Collins Avenue and 90th Street for additional vehicular

queuing. If the Town Manager determines, after reviewing the report, that
no excessive vehicular queuing is occurring at the time of the report, no
further reports will be required.

(6) All mechanical parking lifts and/or the car devators must be maintained
and kept in good working order and must be inspected by a licensed
mechanical engineer at least once annually.

(7) No delivery or moving truck servicing the Property may be larger than a
single unit truck.

Vehicular Access Encroachment Agreement As noted above, the building
has historically had limited vehicular access. Cars were obligated to enter ard exit
the site from Collins Avenue. That access may have been workable in the mid-



Sarah Sinatra/ AlCP
Town Planner

Town of Surfeide

May 8,2018
Page 9

1960s but current conditions (and the Town's standards) demand that improved
access, including a drop off area and loading space, be provided.

The Applicant has designed a revised vehicular entrance and stacking area
along 90th Street That design should result in a reduction in traffic issues along
ColHxts Avenue and improve pedestrian safety. Because the building was designed
with a very limited setback along 90th Street and the Applicant intends to keep
that existing building line, designing the drop off area has been complicated. 90th
Street may be a low-trafBc "dead end" road, but the Apfdicant understands that
queuing of vehicles in the street is unaccq)table to the Town.

The Applicant had proposed that the Town accept an agreement permitting
the use of a small sliver of right of way (1,288 square feet) for purposes of
providing additional room for vehicle queuing and loading. Since the first hearing
on the development, the Applicant has been able to significantly reduce the
amount of 90th Street right of way impacted by the development to just 3^ square
feet

Included in Tab A are drawings explaining fiie proposed agreement Ihe
drawing labded "Vehicular Access Encroachment Area" depicts fiie portion of
tight of way that the Applicant proposes to utilize to accommodate a portion of
the project's vehicular stacking and loading. This thin strip of land is the minimum
necessary to allow for a code compliant vehicular drive aisle in front of the
building given its historical sefi)acks. The driveway access for the Property would
simply not function without the use of the propos^ strip.

We understand that the proposed agreement is a new concept in fiie Town.
Similar agreements are used throughout South Florida. In our experience, fiiese
agreements are especially useful in situations such as the instant application,
where existing building setbacks do not permit sufficient room to accommodate
more modem access standards.

New Pedestrian Corridor. As noted above, the Applicant is proposing a
series of off-site improvements, focused on creating a superior p^estrian
experience for Town residents accessing the beach. The Applicant is proposing the
creation of a pedestrian corridor from Harding Avenue to the beach fiiat will
indude widened sidewalks, more parking, and new landscaj^g along the 90th
Street roadway. The proposed design is attached as Tab B.

The south side of 90th Street between Collins and fiie street end has been

redesigned to favor the Town's pedestrians, wifii an improved sidewalk that will
be bufiered on both sides by landscainng. The ultiinate goal of the design is to



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Town of Suifside

May 8/2018
Page 10

provide Town residents with an attractive and safe pedestrian accessway to and
from the beach.

As with amilar beach-fadng street ends in the Town (96tfa, 95dv 94th
Streets), the revised design of 90th Street would reduce the roadway to 24 feet to
allow for additional room for pedestrians and landscaping. The Town has
historically recognized that re-focusing these street ends horn cars to pedestrians
benefits the public and has used redevelopment of adjacent H-120 sites as a
mechanism to reach fids end. The proposed modifications to 90th Street takes that
efiort one step further, providing a p^estrian-focused experience from Harding
to the hardpack.

As you will note, file proposed pedestrian corridor design assumes that
90th Street will be reduced to a ''one way" road between Harding and Collins
Avenues. That change will have several significant benefits to the public (1) it will
allow for the creation of a genoous landscape strip on the south side of the road
(which now cannot be accommodated); (2) it will provide for the introduction of a
sidewalk on the north side of the road (where none exists); (3) it will establish
sufficient room for public paralld parki^ on both sides of &e road, providing
spaces for both immediatdy adjacent residents and for beachgoers; and (4) it will
provide a significant public safety benefit (by both protecting pedestrians and
encouraging vehicles to slow down).

If approved by the Town and following the issuance of all necessary
governmental approvals, the Applicant will construct the new pedestrian corridor
improvements. The Applicant has further agreed to perpetually fund the
maintenance of the newly installed improvements within the right of way east of
Collins Avenue and fiie landscape improvements within the rî t of way west of
Collins Avenue. The Applicants commitment to fund the maintenance of the
newly instafled landscaping between Harding and Collins will relieve the aci^acent
property owners of firat responsibility and ensure that the entire pedestrian
corridor is well landscaped in perpetuity.

Variances. Retaining the existing building lines of the architectural
significant building has come at some cost to the flexibility of design for the
Ftpperly. In fiict, it has resulted in the need for several technical variances of the
Town Code. As shown on the "Variance Summary" (Tab Q, the existing building
line of the architecturally significant building is simply too close to the northern
property line to accommodate the modem loading and landscaping requirements
of the Town on the site.

The Applicant has attempted to mitigate fiie impact of each variance.



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Town of Snrfside

May 8,2018
Page 11

including by planting trees that cannot ''count^ for zoning purposes and
providing a loading area for daity delivery v^des diat wtule effective/ does not
meet the Town's technical size requirements. ̂  of the required trees are being
provided/ with trees located both within die Property and in the 90th Street right
of way.

The Applicant has recognized the following variances:

(1) Sec. 90-82. - Off-street loading requirements.

Two spaces are required for a condo/hoteL One full size space is provided;
a second provided space does not meet the Town's size requirements.

As noted above/ the Applicant has induded one very large space that will
allow for "move in" and garbage pidc-up/ and one daily d^very space. The
daily ddivery space is sized at 9^ by 25' and does not meet the Town's size
requirements, "niat space is further partially located within the Vehicular
Access Encroachment Area, hence the need for the requested variance.

(2) 90-91.2 Required buffer landscaping adjacent to streets and abutting properties.

Three trees are required for each 50 linear feet under the terms of Section
90-91.2. Because of the narrowness of the setback of die building footprint/
there is sinqply not enough planting room for all of the required trees along
90th Street within die Proper^. The Applicant is proposing to provide all
three of the required trees, udng both the Property and portions of the right
of way. Therefore, the benefits of the requir^ tree planting to the public
will still be provided.

A minimum ten-foot-wide landscape strip is also required/ not induding
overhands or awnings around all die buildings. There is simply not enough
room to fit the full ten-foot-wide strip along the 90th Street property line
while still providing for access to the building. The Applicant will stiU be
providing more than suffident op>en space in the design and adjacent
parcels will stdl be buffered thanks to the pedestrian corridor landscaping.

(3) Sec. 90-93. - Open Space

One large (35* foot) tree per 25 linear feet cfeadi building on all sides far scaling
and sqf^ing.

There is simply not enough room to fit all of these large required trees on
the Property in a manner diatwiU allow the trees to readi their natural size.



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Townof Suifside

May 8/ 2018
Page 12

The Applicant is proposing to provide all eight of the required treesy using
both the Proper^ and the trees proposed for the 90th Street pedestrian
corridor.

Variance Standards. Section 90-36(8) of the Town Code provides that
variances may be approved based on a showing that:

a. Special amditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to die land,
structure, or building involved, and which are not applicable to odter lands,
structures, or buildings in die same zoning district;

All of the requested variances are created by the need to accommodate
a modem development on a narrow site while still complying with the
spirit of Section 90-33. Development of the Property under both the
architecturally significant building regulations and the Town's
modem zoning requirements is essentially impossible widiout the
modest variances requested herein.

b. The special conditions and circumstances do not resultfrom the actions of die
applicant or a prior owner of die property;

The special conditions and circumstances presented here are due to the
confluence of several factors - die size of the Property, the existing
development on the site, the terms of Section 90-33 as applied to
architecturally significant buildings, and the Town's current
regulations.

c. Literal interpretation of the provisions of the zoning code deprives die
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by o^er properties in die same zoning
district under die terms of die zoning code and results in unnecessary and
undue hardship on the applicant;

See below for full discussion of the hardship issue.

d. The hardship has not been deliberately or knowingly created or suffered to
establish a use or structure whidi is not otherwise consistent with the town

comprdiensiveplan or the zoning code;

As noted above, the hardship at issue here was not created by the
Applicant; it was further not knowingly created by the Town. The
proposed use of the Property will be consistent with die



Sarah Sinatra, AICP

Town Planner

Town of Surfside

May 8,2018
Page 13

comprehensive plan and all other requirements of the zoning code.

e. An applicanVs desire or ability to achieve greater financial return or
maximum finandal return from his property does not constitute harddtip;

The hardship created in the instant application is not economic.

f. Granting the variance application conveys the same treatment to the applicant
as to the owner cfotiter lands, buildings, or structures in die same zoning
district;

The approval of the requested variances will allow the Property to be
developed in die same manner as similarly-situated parcels in the H-
120 zone. The Applicant is not obtaining a special benefit

g. The requested variance is the minimum variance that makes possible tiie
reasonable use of the land, building, or structure; and

Development of the Property under the terms of Section 90-33 would
simply be impossible without the requested variances.

h. The requested variance is in harmony with tite general intent and purpose of
the town comprdtensive plan and the zoning code, is not injurious to the
nei^iborhood or otherwise detrimental to die public safety and welfdre, is
compatible with the neighborhood, and will not substantially diminish or
impair property values within the neighborhood.

As explained above, the proposed variances would not lead to the "real
world" reduction in open space, loading capacity, or landscaping. The
requested variances will therefore create no negative impact on the
public interest and will allow for development that is in harmony with
the surrounding neighborhood.

Undue Hardship. When reviewing the hardship issue in this case, it is
important to remember diat this site is in a unique drcumstance. Not only is the
site unusually narrow, it is developed wititi a building that the Town has deemed
to be architecturally significant Under the terms of Section 90-33 of the Town's
regulations, the Applicant may retain the existing building lines of fiie structure.
Unfortunately, Section 90-33 does not exempt the Applicant fix>m the Town's
modem landscaf^g or loading requirements, bofii of which are very different



Sarah Sinatra, AICP
Town Planner

Town of Surfside

May 8,2018
Page 14

from the standards in place when the existing building was designed and
constructed. As explained abover there is simply not enough room between die
existing northern building line of the structure and the nordiem property line to
fully aocranmodate all of the trees and a second full size loading space.

The conclusion that this site and application represent a hardship that can
suppOTt the requested minor variances is consistent with other major examples in
variance law. Courts have also concluded that the unique limitations on parcels
imposed historic preservation regulations can support a finding of undue
hardship. ̂  the seminal case of United Unions Inc. v. District of Columbia Board
of Zoning Adjustment the District of Columbia Court of Appeals concluded that
tiie historic nature of a property and/or the structures on tiie property may alone
create a hardship upon which a variance may properly be support. 554 A.2d 313
(D.C. Appeals 1989).

The United Unions case centered on a development application filed for an
expansion to the Corcoran Gallery of Art a designated historical landmark in tiie
District of Columbia. In order to augment the Gallery's revenues, the Trustees of
the Corcoran filed an application to develop a new seven-^tory office addition to
the building on adjacent vacant land. The development of the new addition
necessitated the approval of variances. In reviewing a diallenge to the variance
approval filed bv adjacent property owners, the Uni^ Unions court held that tiie
fact that the Corcoran Gallery was a historic structure created special conditions
that supported the finding that unnecessary hardship would created by tiie
failure to grant the variances.

The instant application presents an analogous situation to the example dted
above. The requested variances have been necessitated by the Town's
determination tl»t tiie existing building lines should be maintained in order to
encourage the adaptive redevdopment of a building that has architectural value
to the Town. Development within the existing building lines simply does not leave
sufficient room for the trees and loading space on the Property. In order for Section
90-33 to have any reasonable application on the Property, these minor variances
will be needed.

Green Building. As contemplated by Section 90-33 of the Town's
regulations, the proposed redevelopment is being designed to meet the
requirements of tiie "Florida Green HighrRise Residential Building Standard." The
Applicanfs worksheet is attached as Tab D.

Additional Off-Site Improvements. The Applicant has been in active
discussions with the Town administration regarding a package of potential off-site



Sarah Sinatra, AICP

Town Planner

Town of Surfeide

May 8,2018
Page 15

improvements b^ond the 90di Street pedestrian corridor. We expect diose
discussions to continue. At minimum, however, die Applicant has already
committed to a value of improvements and direct financial mitigation to the Town
in the amount of $850,000.

Conclusion. We look forward to your review. If you have any questions or
concerns regarding this letter, please do not hesitate to phone my direct line at
(305) 377-6229 or send me an email at gpezm@brzoninglaw.com.



Bercow Radell Fernandez & Larkin
ZONIMG, LAND USE AND ENVIRONh/lENTAL LAW

APPENDIX TO LETTER OF INTENT FOR 8995

COLLINS AVENUE



MATERIAL TAB

Draft Vehicular and Pedestrian Access Agreement
and Exhibits A

Additional Proposed Off-Site Improvements B

Variance Summary C

Draft Florida Green Checklist for Development D

Analysis for Architectural Significance E



VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made on this day of , 2018, between the Town

of Surfside (the 'Town'') and the Surf House Condominium Association, Inc. (the "Owner").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the common areas of the Surf House Condominium

residential property (the "Property") located at 8995 Collins Avenue, Surfside, Florida, which is

legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and abuts the 90 Street right of way; and

WHEREAS, the Owner has proposed to develop vehicular and pedestrian access

improvements, as well as landscaping, within a portion of the right of way of 90*^ Street (the

"Improvement Area") depicted in Exhibit "B" hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Owner has proposed to utilize a portion of the Improvement Area,

described as the "Vehicular Access Area" and depicted on Exhibit "C" hereto, for non-exclusive

vehicular and pedestrian access to the Property and for loading purposes; and

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on , 2018, the Mayor and Town

Commission approved Resolution No. 2018-XXXX granting a Revocable Permit to Owner to retain

the aforestated improvements on the Town property; said Resolution attached and incorporated

as Exhibit "C" hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Owner and the Town desire to memorialize the Owner's commitments to

install and maintain the improvements within the Improvement Area; and



WHEREAS, the Owner and the Town desire to memorialize the terms under which the

improvements within the Vehicular Access Area will be required to be removed; and

WHEREAS, the Town, for and in consideration of the restrictions and covenants herein

contained, hereby permits the use of the Vehicular Access Area as described herein.

NOW THEREFORE, Town and Owner, in consideration of the mutual covenants and

agreements herein contained, agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

IMPROVEMENTS BY OWNER IN IMPROVEMENT AREA

Subject to the issuance of the appropriate approvals from all responsible government

agencies, the Owner shall install the following improvements within the Improvement Area:

1. Lighting;

2. Landscaping;

3. Pedestrian sidewalk;

4. Town-approved street signage, directional signage, beach access signage, and

similar signs (excluding private signage); and

5. Vehicular drives and loading as described in Article II.

The Owner shall have sole responsibility for obtaining all regulatory approvals, permits or

licenses required for the placement of the improvements upon the Improvement Area. The

improvements shall be installed and open for use prior to the issuance of a certificate of

occupancy for the first new residential unit on the Property.



ARTICLE II

USE OF VEHICULAR ACCESS AREA BY OWNER/ IMPROVEMENTS

Subject to the issuance of the appropriate approvals from all responsible government

agencies, the Owner shall use that portion of the Improvement Area designated as the Vehicular

Access Area for the installation, maintenance, and construction of vehicular drop-off areas,

drives, and a single loading space as depicted on Exhibit "C." These improvements shall serve the

Property.

No other Improvements(s) of any kind shall be made to the Vehicular Access Area without

the prior written consent of the Town. Parking for the Property shall be served by valet at all

times. At no time will vehicles be permitted to block public pedestrian access. No vehicles from

the Property will be permitted to park on any portion of the Improvement Area outside of the

Vehicular Access Area. The vehicular drop off areas and drive installed by the Owner shall be

removed from the Improvement Area at the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Removal by the Town of the improvements serving the Property made by the Owner or portions

thereof shall be at the sole expense of the Owner and governed by Article IX hereunder.

ARTICLE III

CONDITION OF PREMISES AND MAINTENANCE

The Owner, at its own expense, shall cause the improvements within the Improvement

Area to be in a state of good condition from the date of the installation of the Improvements.

The Owner shall maintain and keep the improvements and the Improvement Area in a safe, clean

condition, free of refuse and debris. Determination of the condition of the improvements and of

the Improvement Area shall be made by the Town.

ARTICLE IV

INDEMNIFICATION



Owner agrees that it will indemnify, hold and save the Town, their officers, agents,

contractors and employees whole and harmless and at Town's option defend same, from and

against ail claims, demands, actions, damages, loss, cost, liabilities, expenses and judgments of

any nature recovered from or asserted against Town on account of injury or damage to person

or property to the extent that any such damage or injury may be incident to, arise out of, or be

caused, either proximately or remotely, wholly or in part, by any act, omission, negligence or

misconduct on the part of Owner or any of its agents, servants, employees, contractors, guests,

licensees or invitees or of any other person entering upon the Improvement Area used hereunder

with the express or implied invitation or permission of Owner, or when any such injury or damage

is the result, proximate or remote, of the violation by Owner or any of its agents, servants,

employees, contractors, guests, licensees or invitees of any law, ordinance or governmental

order of any kind, or when any such injury or damage may in any other way arise from or out of

the use by Owner, its agents, servants, employees, contractors, patrons, guests, licensees or

invitees of the Improvement Area used hereunder, or arises out of any action challenging the

granting or legality of the Town's Revocable Permit. Owner covenants and agrees that in case

Town shall be made party to any litigation against Owner, or in any litigation commenced by party

against any party other than Owner, it shall and will pay ail costs and expenses, including

reasonable attorney's fees and court costs, incurred by or imposed upon Town by virtue of any

such litigation, including appeals.

ARTICLE V

NO LiABiLITY FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY

Ail personal property placed or moved on the Improvement Area shall be at the risk of

the Owner or the owner thereof. The Town shall not be liable to the Owner or owner for any

damage to said personal property.

ARTICLE VI

4



TOWN'S RIGHT OF ENTRY

The Town or any of its agents, shall have the right to enter upon the Improvement Area

at any time for the purpose of inspecting the Improvements and/or the Improvement Area, or to

gain access to or repair any utilities located within any Town easement. Such right of entry shall,

likewise, exist for the purpose of removing structures, improvements, alterations or landscaping

that do not conform to this Agreement. Any removal of the above, or damage to the allowed

improvements made by the Town and necessitated by the Owner's use of said Improvement

Area, shall be at the sole expense of the Owner. Further, the Town shall not be responsible for

the restoration of the Improvement Area, its fixtures, fences, walls, or landscaping, in the event

such are damaged or removed by the Town in order to inspect, repair or gain access to its utilities

located on the land which is the subject of this Agreement. Additionally, any expenses incurred

by the Town, but not paid by the Owner, in removing such improvements or landscaping shall

become a lien upon the Property, which may be foreclosed within one year of its filing.

ARTICLE VII

NOTICES

All written notices transmitted between Town and Owner shall be addressed to:

To Owner: Surf House Condominium Association, Inc.

Attn: President

8995 Collins Avenue

Surfside, PL 33154

with copies to:

To Town: Town of Surfside

Attn: Town Manager

9293 Harding Avenue

Surfside, PL 33154

(305) 861-4863 - telephone

(305) 861-1302 - facsimile



with copies to: Town of Surfside

Attn: Town Attorney

9293 Harding Avenue

Surfside, FL 33154

(305) 861-4863 - telephone
(305) 861-1302-facsimile

All notices mailed to either party shall be deemed to be sufficiently transmitted if sent by certified

mail, return receipt requested and shall constitute sufficient notice to the Town to comply with

the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VIII

RECORDING AND TERM

This Agreement shall be recorded in the Public Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida,

at the cost of the Owner. The Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding

upon the parties, their successors in interest and assigns for an initial period of thirty (30) years

from the date this instrument is recorded in the public records, and shall be automatically

extended for successive periods often (10) years, unless modified, amended or released prior to

the expiration thereof.

ARTICLE IX

TERMINATION

The Owner's use of the Vehicular Access Area will terminate upon the earliest of the

following:

1. The Town Council determines, after a public hearing, that the Owner's use of the

Vehicular Access Area is causing an unacceptable negative impact on the safety of

pedestrians and/or the reasonable flow of traffic on 90^^ Street.



2. The Town Council determines, after a public hearing, that the Owner Is In breach

of the maintenance requirements of Article III of this Agreement.

3. The Owner notifies the Town that, due to changes In the use or development of

the Property, that the Vehicular Access Area is no longer necessary for the

appropriate functioning of the Property. The Owner shall provide evidence to the

satisfaction of the Town Manager that the Property can be properly and safely

accessed without the encroachment.

Prior to setting a public hearing on termination, the Town shall give written notice of any

alleged default to the Owner. The Owner shall have a period of thirty (30) days following receipt

of such notice In which to remedy the default (or such longer time as may be necessary and

reasonable, provided the Owner shall have commenced a cure within said thirty (30) day period and

is diligently and continuously prosecuting same to completion).

ARTICLE X

SURRENDER OF PREMISES

At the termination of this Agreement, the Owner shall, without demand, quietly and

peaceably deliver possession of the Vehicular Access Area free of any walls, fences or other like

fixtures or Improvements. The Owner shall be responsible for the expenses of putting the

Vehicular Access Area in said condition. If said Premises are not in such condition, at the

expiration or cancellation of this Agreement, the Owner hereby agrees that the Town shall have

the right to restore the Vehicular Access Area to such condition. The Owner agrees to reimburse

the Town for all such expenses within thirty (30) days of mailing of a statement to the Owner at

the address indicated in Article VII. If not so paid, the expenses incurred by the Town in so doing

shall become a lien upon the Owner's abutting property and/or leasehold and may be foreclosed

within one year from the filing of such a lien, or the Town, at its option, may seek such other

remedies as may be allowable by law. Upon the termination of the Agreement and the

restoration of the Vehicular Access Area, the Owner shall have no further obligations under this



Agreement, including, but not limited to, the maintenance of any improvements in the

Improvement Area.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto executed this Agreement for the

purposes herein expressed the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: TOWN OF SURFSIDE

Sandra Novoa, Town Clerk Daniel Dietch, Mayor

OWNER

Witness

Print Name

Signature

Print Name

Witness

Print Name



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description - Residentiai Tract

Lots 1 and 2, Block 1-A of the Second Amended Plat of Normandy
Beach Subdivision, Plat Book 16, Page 44 of the Official Records of
Miami-Dade County, Florida

AND

A Parcel of land lying Easterly of and adjacent to Lots 1 and 2, Block
1-A, SECOND AMENDED PLAT OF NORMANDY BEACH, according
to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 16, Page 44 of the Public
Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida and Westerly of the Erosion
Control Line as shown on the "Erosion Control Line" according to the
plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 105 at Page 62 of the Public
Records of Miami Dade County, more particularly described as
follows:

Begin at Northeast Corner of said Lot 1 and 2, thence run North
86°50'51" East along the Easterly extension of the North Line of said
Lots 1 and 2 for a distance of 93.90 feet to a point on the Erosion
Control Line as shown on said Plat Book 105 at Page 62; thence run
South 05°37'30" East, along said Erosion Control Line, for a distance
of 72.83 feet to a point on the Easterly extension of the South line of
said Lots 1 and 2; thence run South 86°50'51" West, along the
aforesaid Easterly extension of said Lots 1 and 2, for a distance of
93.40 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lots 1 and 2; thence run

North 06°00'58" West, along the Easterly line of said Lots 1 and 2, for
a distance of 72.85 feet to the Point of Beginning.



8
9
9
5
 C
ol
li
ns
 -
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
 A
re
a

90
tt
i 
S
t
r
e
e
t

,
 M
«
-
 

w
r
,
_

f
t-

:,
 ■

:

E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

l^
tc

ts
rk

{i-
 a

cv



8
9
9
5
 C
ol
li
ns
 -
 V
e
h
i
c
u
l
a
r
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 A
r
e
a

E
X
H
I
B
I
T
 B

g 3i V
I
 

'
C

 V

3
0
m
 s
t
r
e
e
t

M
-
.
l
-

'
«
•
 
.
 

i
r
r
 

:,
l.
»r

^
 ~
A
'

1
2
8
8
.
6
9
 S
F

m
a

M
T
T
u
m
r
 

ij
*A
'i
'A
<i

s
s
s
-
s
n
^
-
.
 '



V  ■

mm,

/l^fellfi



8995 COLLINS AVENUE

CONDO HOTEL
tmnujmnBiut

SURFHOUSE

OCEAN VIEWS. LLC

»TH STREET IMPROVEMENTS



8
9
9
5
 C
ol
li
ns
 -
 L
an
ds
ca
pe
 a
n
d
 S
ur
fa
ce
 V
ar
ia
nc
e 
Pl

an

- 
4'
^-
.

H
i
a
i
 t
v
r
-
r
 c
M
i
w
o
t
t
T
u
o
Q

U
l
A
O
K
e
M
l

C
W
U
K
H
T
M
C
W
*

T
i
n
o
u
o
M
i
w
a

U'
lt
ir
?

Va
ri
an
ce
 1
:2
12
' 
x3

0'
 of

f-
st
re
et
 l
oa
di
ng
 s
pa
ce
s 
re

qu
ir

ed
, 1
 p
ro
wd
ed
. 
2n
d 
9
x
2
5
'
 sp
ac
e 
pr

ov
id

ed
.

Va
ri
an
ce
 2
: L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 s
ha
ll
 i
nc
lu
de
 a
 1
0'
 bu

ff
er
 a
nd

 3
 tr

ee
s 
pe

r 
5
0
 o
f f

ro
nt
ag
e.
 Bu

ff
er
 a
nd

 2
 re

qu
ir

ed
 t
re
es
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
ou

ts
id

e 
pr
op
er
ty
 li

ne
. [
90
-9
1.
2 (

1)
]

Va
ri

an
ce

 3
; 
On
e 
35
' 
tr
ee
 p
er
 2
5
 li

ne
al

 f
ee
t 
of
 f
ac

ad
e.

 B
 r
eq
ui
re
d.
 8
 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 5
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
tr
ee
s 
ar

e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 o
ut

si
de

 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
li
ne
 [
90
-9
3 (

1)
 b
]



Fl
or
id
a 
G
r
e
©
n
 H
i
g
h
-
R
i
s
e
 R
es

id
en

ti
al

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d

Vc
rs
ir
)n
 

6
/
7
/
2
n
i
 G

Fi
na

l 
Ap
pl
ic
at
io
n 
F
o
r
m

I
S
H
f
f
i
C
S
H
S
S
H
r

P
r
o
^
N
a
m
e
:

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
;

Ci
ty
& 
Zi
p:

C
o
u
n
t
y
;

S
i
z
e
 (
S
F
)
;

Pr
oj
ec
t 
De
sc
ri
pt
io
n

B
u
l
l
d
l
n
a

Na
me
:

Co
mp

an
y;

Ad
dr
es
s:

Ci
ty

/Z
ip

:

Pt
io

fi
e:

F
a
x
:

N
e
w
 O
f
 E
id
Ml
nf
l:

N
u
m
b
e
r
 o
f
 F
l
o
o
r
s
:

N
u
m
b
e
r
 o
f
 U
n
i
t
s
:

W
e
b
s
i
t
e
;

E
-
m
a
i
:

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
;

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
:

Ci
ty

/Z
ip

:

T
o
t
a
l
 F
e
e
 O
r
e

De
po

si
t 
Pa

id

A
m
o
u
n
t
 D
u
e

Re
fe

r 
to
 'I

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
s*

 t
ab

 f
or

 A
pp
ii
ca
bo
n 
F
e
e
s

B
a
l
a
n
c
e
 D
u
e
 M
u
s
t
 B
e
 S
ub
mi
tt
ed
 w
it
ti
 F
in

al
 A
pp
li
ca
ti
on
.

Pr
oj
ec
t 
Po
in
t 
S
u
m
m
a
r
y

P
l
e
a
s
e
 r
ef
er
 t
o
 S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 a
n
d
 G
r
e
e
n

C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 G
u
i
d
e
 f
or
 a
dd

it
io

rk
al

ir
tf
or
ma
ti
ot
t.

R
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
 M
i
n

5
 P
o
i
n
t
s

I
S
 P
oi

nt
s (
7
S
 p
oi

nt
 m
a
x
)

1
0
 P
o
i
n
t
s

Mi
ni
mu
m 
Po

in
ts

 l
o 
Qu
al
if
y (
m
a
y
 t
ie
 o
ve
r 
10

0 
if 
a 
ca

te
go

ry
 m
in
im
um
 s

mi
ss

ed
) 
Cu
rr
en
tl
y 
th
is
 p
mi
ec
t 
n
e
e
d
s

Y
o
u
r
 S
c
o
r
e

1
0

3
5

2
3

2
S

3
4 4 6

c
s
t
e
|
o
r
v

C
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 1
: 
Pr
oj
ec
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

C
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 2
:
 E
n
e
r
g
y

Ca
te

go
ry

 3
:
 W
a
t
e
r

C
a
t
e
g
o
r
v
4
:
 S
it

e

Ca
te

go
ry

 5
: 
He
al
th

Ca
te

go
ry

 6
:
 M
at

er
ia

ls

Ca
te

go
ry

 7
:
 D
is

as
te

r 
Mi

ti
ga

ti
on

T
o
t
a
l

S
 P
o
 n
t
s

1
0
 P
o
i
n
t
s

5
 P
o
i
n
t
s

2
 P
o
i
n
t
s

T
o
t
a
l
 N
e
e
d
e
d

C
e
r
t
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 L
e
v
e
l

T
o
 Q
ua

li
fy

 y
o
u
r
 p
ro

je
ct

 m
u
s
t

po
in

ts
 o
ve

r 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t'
s 
ad
ju
st
ed
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m

po
in

ts
 o
ve

r 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t'
s 
ad
ju
st
ed
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m

po
in

ts
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t'
s 
ad
ju
st
ed
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m

po
in

ts
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t'
s 
ad
ju
st
ed
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m



C
U
R
R
E
N
T
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 S
C
O
R
E

.
j
u
w
r
v
c

To
ia
l 

T^
TA
i 

T
t
i
 

Ad
di

ti
on

al
S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 

C
r
e
d
i
t
s
 

T
o
t
a
l
 N
A

_
 ,,
 

AW
.'

i:
r)

r.
i>

 
Ac
hi
ev
ed
 

_ 
..
.

C
r
e
d
i
t
s
 

P
o
s
s
i
b
l
e

C
r
e
d
i
t
s

P
o
s
s
i
b
l
e

C
E
R
T
I
F
I
C
A
T
I
O
N

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 (R

eq
ui

re
d 
Ca

te
go

ry
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 5
)

C
R
E
D
I
T
S

T
O
T
A
L

A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E

A
C
H
I
E
V
E
D
 

P
O
S
S
I
B
L
E
 

N
A

1
0
 

1
0

Po
in

ts
 R
e
i
o
w
 C
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m

I P
RO

JE
CT

 M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T

P
R
E
R
E
Q
U
I
S
I
T
E
S

R
E
Q
U
I
R
E
M
E
N
T
S

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 E
V
A
L
U
A
T
O
R
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S

P
M
P
l
 

Rc
ni

iM
c^

l

P
M
P
2
 

P'
^C

JU
if

CT
l

C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g

St
af

f T
ra

in
in

g

Gr
ee
n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Me

et
ln

g/
Ch

ar
re

tt
e

O
w
n
e
r
 a
n
d
 p
ro

je
ct

 t
e
a
m
 d
ec
is
io
n 
m
a
k
e
r
s
 m
u
s
t

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
e 
in

 a
 4
-
h
o
u
r
 g
r
e
e
n
 d
es
ig
n 
ch
ar
re
tt
e 
w
h
e
r
e
 a
n

F
G
B
C
 D
es

ig
na

te
d 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 d
et
ai
ls
 e
ac
h 
li

ne
 i
te

m

a
n
d
 r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
 o
f
 t
he
 F
G
B
C
 H
ig
h 
Ri

se
 R
es
id
en
ti
al

Bu
il

di
ng

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
Ch

ec
kl

is
t.

 T
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g 
m
u
s
t
 b
e

pr
oj
ec
t 
sp
ec
if
ic
; 
ge
ne
ra
l 
gr
ee
n 
ed

uc
at

io
n 
co

ur
se

s 
d
o

n
o
t
 C
O
m
D
i
v
.

Pr
ov

ld
ec

op
y 
of

 t
he
 m
ee
ti
ng
 a
ge
nd
a,
 ou
tl
in
e 
of
 n
ot
es
,

d
a
t
e
d
 s
ig

n 
In
 s
he

et
, 
a
n
d
 a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
h
e
 F
G
B
C
 C
he

ck
li

st

t
h
a
t
 r
e
s
u
l
t
e
d
 f
r
o
m
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
r
r
e
t
t
e

G
r
e
e
n
 D
es

ig
na

te
d 
Pr
of
es
si
on
al

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
ct
 t
e
a
m
 i
nc

lu
de

s 
a 
ce
rt
if
ie
d 
F
G
B
C
 G
r
e
e
n

De
si

gn
at

ed
 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l.

C
o
p
y
 o
f 
F
G
B
C
 G
re
en
 D
e
s
^
n
a
t
e
d
 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l

Ce
rt
if
ic
at
e.

IJ
MH
 -
 E
mi
r 
be
ca
me
 ce

rt
if
ie
d 
pr
of
es
si
on
al

Co
mp

re
he

ns
iv

e 
De

si
gn

 C
ha
rr
et
te
/D
es
lg
n 
T
e
a
m
 T
ra

in
in

g 
O
w
n
e
r
a
n
d
 d
es
ig
n 
t
e
a
m
 d
ec

is
io

n 
ma

ke
rs

 m
u
s
t
 

Pr
ov

ld
ec

op
y 
of

 t
he
 t
ra

in
in

g 
ou
tl
in
e 
an

d 
da
te
d 
si

gn
-I

n 
J
M
H
 t
o 
se
nd
 a
ll

 d
es
ig
n 
t
e
a
m
 t
o 
a
 c
ou
rs
e

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
e 
In
 a
n
 8
-h

ou
r 
gr

ee
n 
pr
oj
ec
t 
tr
ai
ni
i^
 n
o
 l
at
er
 

sh
ee

t

t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 d
es
ig
n 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 p
h
a
s
e
 o
f
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
ct
.

A
t
t
e
n
d
e
e
s
 m
u
s
t
 i
nc
lu
de
 a
 p
ar
ti
ci
pa
nt
 f
r
o
m
 a
il

di
sc

ip
li

ne
s 
cu

rr
en

ti
yu

nd
er

co
nt

ra
ct

 f
or

 t
he
 p
ro

je
ct

.

Pr
ov
id
e 
c
o
p
y
o
f
 t
he
 t
ra

in
in

g 
ou
tl
in
e 
an

d 
da
te
d 
si
gn
 I
n 

G
C
/
S
u
b
 R
eq
ui
re
me
nt

s
h
e
e
t

O
w
n
e
r
,
 de
si
gn
 t
e
a
m
 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

, g
en
er
al

co
nt
ra
ct
or
, a
nd

 s
ub

s 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 
un
de
r 
co
nt
ra
ct
 f
or

 t
he

pr
oj
ec
t 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
e 
in
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
2-
ho
ur
so
f 
gr

ee
n

pr
oj
ec
t 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 I
s a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

pr
io

r t
o 
w
o
r
k
 o
n
 t
he

jo
bs

lt
e.

 A
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 t
he
 s
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

wi
th

 t
he
 f
ol

lo
wi

ng
 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e
 t
ra
in
ed
 p
ri
or
 t
o

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
i
n
g
 w
o
r
k
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
it

e:
 G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 C
on
tr
ac
to
r,

M
E
P
,
 H
V
A
C
,
 ir

ri
ga
ti
on
, a
nd

 i
nt
er
io
r 
fi
ni
sh
es
.

Op
er

al
io

na
i 
st

af
f,

 in
cl
ud
in
g 
fa
ci
li
ty
 m
an
ag
er
, l

ea
si

ng
 

Pr
ov

id
e 
co
py
 o
f 
th
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 o
ut
li
ne
 a
nd
 d
at
ed
 s
ig

n 
In
 

J
M
H
 t
o 
ha
ve
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
en
gi
ne
er
 a
nd
 s
al

es
 t
ea
m 
to
 h
av
e

ag
en
t,
 sa

le
s 
st

af
f,

 o
r 
a
n
y
 i
nd

iv
id

ua
i 
th

at
 w
or
ks
 o
ve
r 
2
0
 

sh
ee

t 
2-

ho
ur

 t
ra
in
in
g

ho
ur
s 
a 
w
e
e
k
 i
n 
a
 c
ap

ac
it

y 
m
a
n
a
g
i
n
g
 o
r 
ma

in
ta

in
in

g 
t
h
e

bu
il
di
ng
 m
u
s
t
 a
tt
en
d 
a 
2-

ho
ur

gr
ee

n 
tr
ai
ni
ng
. 
Tr

ai
ni

ng

m
u
s
t
 I
nc

lu
de

 a
n
 e
xp
la
na
ti
on
 o
f 
th
e 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n,
 cr

it
er
ia

pu
rs

ue
d/

ac
hi

ev
ed

, a
nd

 i
nf
or
ma
ti
on
 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 g
re

en

op
er
at
io
n 
an

d 
ma

in
te

na
nc

e 
of
 t
he
 b
uf
ld
ln
g.



H
o
m
e
o
w
n
e
r
 T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g

Bu
il

di
ng

 i
nf

or
ma

ti
on

 M
o
d
e
l
i
n
g

1
 p
oi

nt
 f
or
 A
rc

hi
te

ct

3
 p
oi

nt
s 
fo

r 
Ar
ch
it
ec
t,
 St

ru
ct
ur
al
 a
nd

 M
E
P

5
 p
oi
nt
s 
fo
r 
Ar
ch

it
ec

t,
 M
E
P
,
 C
on
tr
ac
to
r,
 M
e
c
h
a
n
K
a
i
,

El
ec

tr
ic

al
, P
l
u
m
b
i
n
g
,
 a
n
d
 F
ir
e 
S
u
b
s

S
m
a
l
l
 U
n
i
t
 C
r
e
d
i
t

1
0
 P
oi
nt
s 
fo

r 
w
e
i
g
h
t
e
d
 a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 <
 1
5
0
0
 S
F

I
S
 P
oi
nt
s 
fo

r 
w
e
i
g
h
t
e
d
 a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 <
 1
2
0
0
 S
F

2
0
 P
oi
nt
s 
fo

r 
w
e
i
g
h
t
e
d
 a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 <
 9
0
0
 S
F

Pr
ov
id
e 
h
o
m
e
o
w
n
e
r
s
 w
it
h 
"g
re
en
 m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
* 

Pr
ov
id
e 
a
 c
o
p
y
o
 t
he
 t
ra

in
in

g 
ou
tl
in
e 
an

d 
bi
o 
of
 t
he

tr
ai

ni
ng

 l
as
ti
ng
 a
t
 l
ea
st
 1
 h
ou

r.
 B
ui
ld
er
 m
u
s
t
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 t
ra
in
er
s.

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 
pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
a
n
d
 t
he
 t
ra

in
in

g 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
 b
y
 a

k
n
o
w
l
e
d
g
e
a
b
l
e
 J
ob
st
te
 s
up
er
in
te
nd
en
t,
 s
al
es

re
pr
es
en
ta
ti
ve
, c
u
s
t
o
m
e
r
 s
en
/i
ce
 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l,

 o
r 
ot

he
r

ap
pr
op
ri
at
e 
in
di
vi
du
al
. 
T
h
e
 t
ra
in
in
g 
m
a
y
 b
e 
a
n
y

c
o
m
b
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 o
f
 o
ff
ic
e 
in
st
ru
ct
io
ns
 o
r
 h
o
m
e
 w
a
l
k
-

Pr
ov
id
e 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
o
n
 t
he
 p
ro

je
ct

 w
eb
si
te
 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 

Pr
ov
id
e 
th
e 
w
e
b
 a
dd

re
ss

 a
n
d
 c
it

ie
s 
of

 t
he
 c
on

te
nt

.

th
e 
F
G
B
C
 g
re

en
 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 o
f 
th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t,
 a
 l
in

k 
to

 t
he

pr
oj

ec
t 
sc
or
e 
sh

ee
t,

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 
o
n
 g
r
e
e
n
 o
pe
ra
ti
on

a
n
d
 m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 f
or
 h
o
m
e
o
w
n
e
r
s
,
 a
n
d
 h
el
pf
ul
 l
in

ks
 f
or

h
o
m
e
o
w
n
e
r
s
 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 F
G
B
C
,
 e
ne

rg
y 
ef

fi
cl

en
cv

, w
at
er

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
, 
a
n
d
 h
ea

tt
hy

 h
o
m
e
s
.

De
si

gn
 t
e
a
m
 a
nd

 c
on
st
nj
ct
io
n 
t
e
a
m
s
 u
se
 B
i
M
 p
ro

ce
ss

 
Re

nd
er

in
gs

 a
n
d
 r
ep
or
t 
s
u
m
m
a
r
i
e
s
 f
r
o
m
 B
i
M
 s
of

tw
ar

e 
6
C
 R
eq
ui
re
me
nt

to
 o
pt
im
iz
e 
th
e 
ef
fi
ci
en
ci
es
 r
el
at
ed
 t
o 
de

si
gn

,

es
ti
ma
ti
ng
, 
ma

te
ri

al
s 
or

de
ri

ng
, 
a
n
d
 c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n.

Co
st
-B
en
ef
rt
 A
na

ly
si

s
F
G
B
C
 p
ro
je
ct
 t
e
a
m
 m
e
m
b
e
r
 s
ha
ll
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 t
he

 c
os

t 
T
h
e
 p
ro
je
ct
 m
u
s
t
 s
ub
mi
t 
a 
co
py
 o
f 
th
e 
F
G
B
C
 C
he

ck
li

st

i
m
p
a
c
t
 o
f
 e
a
c
h
 e
n
e
r
g
y
 a
n
d
 w
a
t
e
r
 c
re
di
t 
t
h
e
 p
ro
je
ct
 i
s 

f
r
o
m
:

pu
rs

ui
ng

 f
or

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
. 
An

al
ys

is
 s
ha
ll
 i
nc
lu
de
 a
 

1.
 T
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 k
ic

ko
ff

 m
ee

ti
ng

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 t
w
o
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
ai
te
ma
ll
ve
s 
co
ns
id
er
ed
 t
o
 

2
.
 I
DO

tt
 C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 P
h
a
s
e

a
c
h
i
e
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
re
di
t,
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t
 a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 w
i
t
h
 e
a
c
h
 

3
.
 F
in
al
 F
G
B
C
 S
u
b
m
i
t
t
a
i

al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
a
n
d
 c
al

cu
la

te
d 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 k
W
h
,
 ga
ll

on
s 
o
f
 

In
cl

ud
e 
a
s
s
u
m
p
t
i
o
n
s
 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 i
nt

er
es

t 
ra

te
s,

 li
fe
 o
f

w
a
t
e
r
,
 a
n
d
 c
os

t 
sa
vi
ng
s.
 

ma
te

ri
al

s,
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
th

er
 a
s
s
u
m
p
t
i
o
n
s
 m
a
d
e
 f
or
 t
h
e

an
al

ys
is

. 
A
 s
ho
rt
 n
ar

ra
ti

ve
 m
u
s
t
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 e
a
c
h
 c
re
di
t

ex
pl
ai
ni
ng
 t
h
e
 o
pt
io
ns
 r
e
v
i
e
w
e
d
,
 e
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l

be
ne

fi
ts

, 
a
n
d
 r
ea
so
ni
ng
 f
or
 f
in
al
 s
el
ec
ti
on
 f
or
 i
nc
lu
si
on

in
 t
he
 p
ro

je
ct

.

De
si

gn
 a
n
d
 c
on

st
nj

ct
 s
ma
ll
 u
ni

ts
. 
Po

in
ts

 a
re

 a
wa

rd
ed

 
Ar
ch
it
ec
tu
ra
l 
dr
aw
in
gs
 s
ho

wi
ng

 f
lo

or
pi

an
s 
a
n
d
 u
ni

ts
, a

b
a
s
e
d
o
n
 t
he
 w
ei

gh
te

d 
av

er
ag

e 
un

it
 s
iz

e 
fo

r 
th
e 

li
st

 o
f 
th

e 
ty
pe
so
f 
un

it
s,

 sq
ua
re
 f
oo

ta
ge

 o
f 
th
e 
un

it
s,

pr
oj
ec
t.
 

a
n
d
 a
 w
e
i
g
h
t
e
d
 a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 c
at

ai
ia

ti
on

.

E
N
E
R
G
Y
 (R

eq
ui

re
d 
Ca

te
go

ry
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 1
5,
 A
ll
ow
ed
 C
at

eg
or

y 
M
a
x
i
m
u
m
 7
5)

Po
in

ts
 B
e
l
o
w
 C
at
eg
or
y 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m

I E
N
E
R
G
Y

C
R
E
D
I
T

R
E
Q
U
I
R
E
M
E
N
T
S

S
U
B
M
i
H
A
L

D
E
S
I
G
N
A
T
E
D
 P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S

P
R
E
R
E
Q
U
I
S
I
T
E
S

O
P
R

O
w
n
e
r
 d
es
ig
na
te
d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

ti
ve

 m
u
s
t
 d
e
v
e
l
o
p
 a
 l
is
t o
f

o
w
n
e
r
 p
ro
je
ct
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
s 
re
la
te
d 
to

 e
ac
h 
of
 t
he

ca
te
go
ri
es
 o
f
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h-
ri
se
 s
ta
nd
ar
d.
 T
h
e
 O
P
R
 s
ho
ul
d

in
di

ca
te

 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 g
oa
ls
 f
or

 e
a
c
h
 c
at

eg
or

y 
a
n
d
 a
n
y

sp
ed
fl
c 
cr
ed
it
s 
t
h
e
 O
w
n
e
r
 w
i
s
h
e
s
 t
o
 t
ar

ge
t.

S
u
b
m
i
t
 a
 n
ar
ra
ti
ve
 e
xp
la
in
in
g 
t
h
e
 O
P
R
 f
or
 t
he
 p
ro

je
ct

.
J
M
H
 t
o
 g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
 a
s
 p
er

 F
ES

's
 r
ev
ie
w

B
O
O

D
e
s
i
g
n
 t
e
a
m
 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 d
e
v
e
b
p
 a
n
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t

h
o
w
 t
h
e
 d
es
ig
n 
wi
ll
 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h
e
 O
w
n
e
r
 P
ro

je
ct

Re
qu
ir
em
en
ts
. 
T
b
e
 B
as
is
 o
f 
De

si
gn

 s
ho
ul
d 
in
cl
ud
e

sp
ec
if
ic
al
ly
 h
o
w
 t
he

 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 d
es
ir
es
 o
f 
th
e 
O
w
n
e
r

wi
ll
 b
e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d
es

ig
n.

T
h
e
 d
e
s
i
g
n
 t
e
a
m
 m
u
s
t
 s
u
b
m
i
t
 a
 n
ar

ra
ti

ve
 t
h
a
t
 e
x
p
l
a
i
n
s

h
o
w
 t
he
ir
 d
es
ig
n 
de
ci
si
on
s 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 t
h
e
 O
w
n
e
r
 p
ro

je
ct

r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
.

F
E
S
 t
o
 c
o
n
t
r
i
b
u
t
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
a
r
r
a
t
i
v
e



Te
st
in
g 
a
n
d
 B
al

an
ci

ng

E
 P
3
 

f!
f(
iu
ir
"t
l

C
F
C
 R
ed
uc
ti
on
 I
n 
H
V
A
C
 E
qu

ip
me

nt

E
P
4
 

Re
ti

iJ
ir

ed

Me
ch
an
ic
al
 E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Pl
um
bi
ng
 (
M
E
P
)
 En

gi
ne
er
in
g 
Fi

rm
 
C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th

e 
te
st
in
g 
an

d 
ba

la
nc

in
g 
re

po
rt

w
o
r
k
s
 w
it

h 
t
h
e
 A
rc

hi
te

ct
 o
r
 d
es
ig
n 
t
e
a
m
 l
ea

de
r 
t
o

ve
ri

fy
 f
ie
ld
 I
ns

ta
ll

ed
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 m
e
e
t
 O
P
H
,
 B
O
D
 a
n
d
 I
s

In
st

al
le

d 
a
n
d
 o
pe

ra
ti

ng
 c
or
re
ct
ly
. 
Te

st
in

g 
a
n
d

ve
ri

fi
ca

ti
on

 m
u
s
t
 I
n
c
l
u
d
e
 a
ll
 c
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
o
n

ar
ea

s,
 a
me

ni
ty

 a
re

as
, a
n
d
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
o
n
e
 o
f 
ea
ch

di
st
in
ct
iv
e 
re
si
de
nt
ia
l 
un

it
 t
y
p
e
.
 T
h
e
 T
es

ti
ng

 a
n
d

ve
ri

fi
ca

ti
on

 s
ha
ll
 I
nc
lu
de
d,
 at

 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
.
 H
ea
ti
ng
,

Ve
nt
il
at
io
n,
 A
ir

 C
on

di
ti

on
in

g 
a
n
d
 R
ef
ri
ge
ra
ti
on

(
H
V
A
C
&
R
)
 sy
st
em
s 
&
 c
on

tr
ol

s,
 li

gh
ti

ng
 s
ys

te
ms

 a
nd

co
nt
ro
ls
, r
e
n
e
w
a
b
l
e
 e
n
e
r
g
y
 s
y
s
t
e
m
s
,
 h
o
t
 w
a
t
e
r
 s
y
s
t
e
m
,

a
n
d
 f
l
o
w
 r
a
t
e
 v
e
r
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
.

Re
qu

ir
es

 t
ha

t 
al

l 
bu
il
di
ng
 H
V
A
C
&
R
 s
ys
te
ms
 b
e 
fr
ee
 o
f 

Me
ch
an
ic
al
 e
ng
ln
ee
rw
il
l 
su
bm
it
 a
 s
ig
ne
d 
le

tt
er

C
TO
s
 a
nd

 H
al
on
s 

de
cl

ar
in

g 
th

at
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g'
s 
n
e
w
 H
V
A
C
&
R
 s
ys
te
ms
 d
o

n
o
t
 u
s
e
 C
F
C
-
b
a
s
e
d
 r
ef
ri
ge
ra
nt
s 
a
n
d
 a
 m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l

sc
he

du
le

 s
ho

wi
ng

 H
V
A
C
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t

FE
S 
to
 r
ev

ie
w 
T/

B 
re
po
rt
s 
as

 c
re
at
ed
 a
nd

 s
ub
mi
tt
ed
 b
y

o
t
h
e
r
 p
ar

ti
es

FE
S 
- 
ea

si
ly

 a
ch
ie
va
bl
e

P
B
f
f
e
m
a
n
c
e
 I
mp
ro
ve
mc
ii
t

E
n
e
r
g
y
 P
e
r
f
o
r
m
a
n
c
e
 I
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t

2
 p
oi

nt
 f
or

 e
ac
h 
pe

rc
en

t 
lo

we
r 
th
an
 c
o
d
e

Li
gh
ti
ng
 P
o
w
e
r
 D
en

si
ty

 O
.B
W/
sf

f
o
r
 I
nd

iv
id

ua
l 
U
n
i
t
s

F
o
r
 E
nt

ir
e 
Bu

il
di

ng

P
r
e
K
r
i
p
t
t
v
e
 E
n

E
n
e
r
g
y
 s
ta
r 
Re

fr
ig
er
at
or

E
n
e
r
g
y
 S
ta

r 
D
i
s
h
w
a
s
h
e
r

E
n
e
r
g
y
 S
ta

r 
Cl
ot
he
s 
W
a
s
h
e
r

En
er
gy
 S
ta

r 
Ce

il
in

g 
Fa
ct
s

A
c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th

e 
Fl

or
id

a 
En
er
gy
 C
o
d
e
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
s a
n
d

i
n
p
u
t
 s
u
m
m
a
r
y

F
E
S
 s
ta
te
s 
th
at
 l
ev

el
 o
f
 a
c
h
i
e
v
e
m
e
n
t
 d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o
n
 g
la

ss

t
y
p
e

FE
S 
wi
ll
 n
ee
d 
to

 c
on
su
lt
 w
it

h 
b
n
 a
nd

 h
ea
t 
p
u
m
p
m
f
g

T
h
e
 d
es
ig
ne
d 
bu
il
di
ng
 w
il
l r

ec
ei

ve
 c
re
di
t 
fo

r 
en

er
gy

p
e
r
f
o
r
m
a
n
c
e
 t
ha
t 
is

 m
o
r
e
 e
ff
tc
ie
nt
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 c
ur

re
nt

Fl
or

id
a 
En
er
gy
 C
od
e.
 R
ef

er
 t
o 
th

e 
Fl

or
id

a 
En
er
gy
 C
o
d
e

Ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 a
rv

d 
th
ei
r 
pr

ov
id

ed
 s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 c
o
m
p
a
r
i
n
g

th
e 

ba
se

ll
tt

e 
a
n
d
 d
es
ig
n 
bu
il
di
ng
s.

Al
l t
hr

ee
 p
h
a
s
e
 p
u
m
p
 m
o
t
o
r
s
 1
 h
o
r
s
e
p
o
w
e
r
 o
r 
la
rg
er
 

P
l
u
m
b
i
n
g
 p
la
ns
 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
in

g 
lo

ca
ti

on
 o
f
 p
u
m
p
s
,
 c
u
t

sh
al
l 
m
e
e
t
 o
r 
ev
ce
ed
 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 
st

an
da

rd
s 
fo
r 
N
E
M
A
 

sh
ee
ts
 a
nd

 p
ho

to
s 
of
 c
om
pl
yi
ng
 p
u
m
p
s

P
r
e
m
i
u
m
 "
3
 m
o
t
o
r
s
.
 N
o
t
e
:
 M
o
t
o
r
s
 t
ha
t 
ar
e 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
d

as
 a
n
 I
nt

eg
ra

l 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
 o
f 
me

ch
an

ic
al

 e
qu

ip
me

nt
,

fi
re
 p
u
m
p
 m
o
t
o
r
s
,
 a
n
d
 b
oo

st
er

 p
u
m
p
 m
o
t
o
r
s
 a
re

e
x
e
m
p
t
 f
r
o
m
 t
hi
s 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t

De
si
gn
 t
he
 I
ns

ta
ll

ed
 l
ig

ht
in

g 
In
 e
ac
h 
un
it
 s
uc

h 
th
at
 t
he
 

El
ec
tr
ic
al
 p
la
ns
 s
ho
wi
ng
 f
ix
tu
re
 l
oc
at
io
n 
an

d 
ty
pe
, 

TJ
H 
LE

D 
us
e.
 Li

gh
ti

ng
 d
es

ig
ne

r 
to
 d
et

er
mi

ne
 b
as
ed
 o
n

to
ta
l 
W
a
t
t
 p
er

 s
qu
ar
e 
fo

ot
 d
oe

s 
no
t 
ex
ce
ed
 0
.8
. 

s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 o
f 
th
e 
un

it
s,

 to
ta
l 
Wa

tt
s 
an

d 
sq
ua
re
 f
ee

t 
wi
th
 
FE

S 
re

vi
ew

De
si
gn
 t
he
 I
ns

ta
ll

ed
 l
ig
ht
in
g 
fo

r 
th
e 
co

nd
it

io
ne

d 
sp
ac
es
 
Fl
or
id
a 
Bu
il
di
ng
 C
om

mi
ss

io
n 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 E
ne

rg
y 
Co

de
 

TJ
H 
LE

D 
us
e.
 Li

gh
ti
ng
 d
es

ig
ne

r 
to
de
te
rm
ln
e 
ba
se
d 
on

o
f
 t
h
e
 
bu

il
di

ng
, t
o
 I
nc

lu
de

 c
on

di
ti

on
ed

 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

pn
'n

to
ul

, s
ig

ne
d 
b
y
 l
ig
ht
in
g 
d
e
s
^
n
e
r
 o
r
 M
E
P
 w
it

h 
F
E
S
 r
ev
ie
w

{
c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
r
e
a
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri

va
te

 r
es
id
en
ce
s)
 s
u
c
h
 t
ha
t 
t
h
e
 

li
gh
ti
ng
 p
o
w
e
r
 d
en

si
ti

es
,

to
ta
l 
W
a
t
t
 p
er

 s
q
u
a
r
e
 f
oo
l 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 0
.8

E
n
e
r
g
y
 S
ta

r 
C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
r
e
a
 A
pp
li
an
ce
s

In
st
al
l 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 S
ta
r 
qu
al
if
ie
d 
Re

fr
ig

er
at

or
s 
In

 e
a
c
h
 u
ni

t

In
st
al
l 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 S
ta
r 
qu

al
if

yi
ng

 d
i
s
h
w
a
s
h
e
r
s
 I
n 
e
a
c
h
 u
ni

t

In
st
al
l E

ne
rg
y 
St

ar
 q
ua
li
fy
in
g 
cl
ot
he
s 
wa

sh
er

s 
In
 e
ac
h

In
st
al
l 
En
er
gy
 S
ta

r 
qu
al
if
ie
d 
ce

ll
in

g 
fa

ns
 l
oc
at
ed
 I
n 
th
e

m
a
i
n
 l
iv
in
g 
a
r
e
a
 a
rv
d 
e
a
c
h
 b
e
d
r
o
o
m
 o
f
 e
a
c
h
 u
ni

t

In
st
al
l 
ai
l 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 S
ta

r 
ap
pl
ia
nc
es
 I
n 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
re
as
 t
o

In
cl

ud
e:

 r
ef

ri
ge

ra
to

r,
 d
is

hw
as

he
r,

 cl
ot
he
s 
wa
sh
er
, a
n
d

v
e
n
d
i
n
g
 m
a
c
h
i
n
e
s
.

C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th

e 
ap
pl
ia
nc
e 
pa
ck
ag
e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 s
ub
ml
tt
al
, c
ut

 
TJ
H

sh
ee

t 
Id
en
ti
fy
in
g 
m
o
d
e
l
 n
u
m
b
e
r
 a
nd

 p
ho
to
 o
f 
In
st
al
le
d

a
p
p
l
i
a
n
c
e

C
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
he
 a
pp
li
an
ce
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 s
ub
ml
tt
al
, 
cu

t 
T
J
H

sh
ee

t 
Id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
m
o
d
e
l
 n
u
m
b
e
r
 a
nd

 p
ho
to
 o
f 
in

st
al

le
d

a
p
p
l
i
a
n
c
e

C
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
he
 a
pp
li
an
ce
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 s
ub
ml
tt
al
, c
u
t
 
T
J
H

sh
ee

t 
id

en
ll

fy
ln

g 
m
o
d
e
l
 n
u
m
b
e
r
 a
nd

 p
ho
to
 o
f 
In
st
al
le
d

a
p
p
l
i
a
n
c
e

C
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
h
e
 e
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
pl
an
 s
h
o
w
i
n
g
 f
an
 l
oc
at
io
ns
 a
n
d

ty
pe

, a
pp

li
an

ce
 p
ac
ka
ge
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
su

bm
lt

ta
l,

 c
ut

 s
he

et

C
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 s
ub
ml
tt
al
, c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 I
de
nt
if
yi
ng
 

T
J
H

m
o
d
e
l
 n
u
m
b
e
r
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
t
o
 o
f
 i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 a
pp
li
an
ce



A
u
t
o
m
a
t
e
d
 L
ig
ht
in
g 
Co
nt
ro
ls

Ex
te

ri
or

 L
ig

ht
in

g

ir
ts
ul
at
e 
h
o
t
 w
a
t
e
r
 p
i
p
e
s

O
u
c
t
w
o
r
l
i
 s
e
a
l
e
d
 w
i
t
h
 m
a
s
t
i
c

P
w
f
6
i
i
n
a
n
«
Ve
ri
fi
ca
ti
on

C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g

Ba
si

c 
C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g

Al
l 
no
n-
ap
ar
tm
en
t 
sp

ac
es

, 
ex

ce
pt

 t
ho

se
 I
nt

en
de

d 
fo

r 
24
-

h
o
u
r
 o
pe
ra
ti
on
 o
r
 w
h
e
r
e
 a
u
t
o
m
a
t
i
c
 s
hu

to
ff

 w
o
u
l
d

en
da

ng
er

 t
he
 s
af

et
y 
of

 o
cc
up
an
ts
, 
m
u
s
t
 h
av

e

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 s
e
n
s
o
r
s
 o
r
 a
u
t
o
m
a
t
i
c
 b
l-

le
ve

l 
li
gh
ti
ng

c
o
n
t
r
o
l
s
.

C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 s
ub

ml
tt

al
, c
ut

 s
he

et
 I
de
nt
if
yi
ng

m
o
d
e
l
 n
u
m
b
e
r
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
t
o
 o
f
 In

st
al
le
d 
ap
pl
ia
nc
e

Fi
xt
ur
es
 m
u
s
t
 i
nc
lu
de
 a
u
t
o
m
a
t
i
c
 s
wi
tc
hi
ng
 o
n
 t
im

er
s,

ph
ot

oc
el

ls
, o
r 
mo

ti
on

 s
en
so
r 
co

nt
ro

ls
, O
R
 p
ro
vi
de
 >
 9
S
 '

hi
me
ns
/w
at
t,
 O
R
 b
e 
so

la
r 
p
o
w
e
r
e
d
 -
 e
xc

ep
t 
fi
xt
ur
es

in
te
nd
ed
 f
or

 2
4
-
h
o
u
r
 o
pe
ra
ti
on
, 
re

qu
ir

ed
 f
or

 s
ec

ur
it

y,

o
r
 l
oc
at
ed
 o
n
 a
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 b
al
co
ni
es
.

C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 s
ub

ml
tt

al
, c
ut

 s
he

et
 id

en
ti

fy
in

g

m
o
d
e
l
 n
u
m
b
e
r
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
t
o
 o
f
 i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 a
pp

li
an

ce

Fh
pi
ng
 c
a
r
r
y
i
n
g
 l
iq

ui
d 
w
i
t
h
 t
e
m
p
e
r
a
t
u
r
e
s
 g
r
e
a
t
e
r
 t
h
a
n

l
O
S
'
F
 m
u
s
t
 h
a
v
e
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 1
*
 o
f
 I
ns
ul
at
io
n.
 P
ip

es

o
v
e
r
 1
.
5
"
 i
n 
d
i
a
m
e
t
e
r
 m
u
s
t
 h
a
v
e
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 1
.
5
'
 o
f

In
su
la
ti
on
. 
Ex
te
nt
 a
n
d
 l
oc

at
io

n 
t
o
 b
e
 d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 b
y

A
S
H
R
A
E
 9
0
.
1
-
2
0
0
7
 S
ec

ti
on

 7
.4

.3
 o
r
 l
oc
al
 c
o
d
e
.
 A
ll

 p
ip
es

ov
er
 3
/4
' 
In
 d
ia
me
te
r 
co
nv
ey
in
g 
ho

t 
wa
te
r 
m
u
s
t
 b
e

I
n
s
u
l
a
t
e
d
.

P
h
o
t
o
s
 o
f
 I
ns

ul
at

ed
 h
ot
 w
a
t
e
r
 p
ip

es
, 
pl
an
 d
et

ai
l,

 o
r

ap
pr

ov
ed

 s
ub
ml
tt
al
 o
f 
se

le
ct

ed
 I
ns
ul
at
io
n 
si
gn
ed
 b
y

a
r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
.

S
e
a
l
 a
ll
 d
u
c
t
 c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 w
i
t
h
 m
a
s
t
i
c
.
 T
h
i
s
 I
n
c
l
u
d
e
s

ri
gi

d 
a
n
d
 f
le

x 
du

ct
 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 t
o 
ai
r 
ha

nd
le

rs
 a
nd

ju
nc

ti
on

 b
o
x
e
s

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 d
et
ai
l 
a
n
d
 p
h
o
t
o
s

'y
i'

. 
••

L'
.'

' 
.
v
.
-
.
-
s
-
.
'
^
T
.
r
i
p
M
n
a
a
e
s
a
r
i
a

F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
t
a
l
 B
ui

ld
in

g 
S
y
s
t
e
m
s
 C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
:

I
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 o
r
 h
a
v
e
 a
 c
on
tr
ac
t 
In
 p
la
ce
 t
o
 i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 al

l

of
 th

ef
ol
lo
vr
in
g 
fu
nd
am
en
ta
l 
be

st
 p
ra

ct
ic

e

c
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 p
r
o
c
e
d
u
r
e
s
 C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 I
nc
lu
de
s

ve
ri

fy
in

g 
In

st
al

la
ti

on
, f
un
ct
io
na
l 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
a
n
c
e
 t
es
ti
ng
,

tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd

 d
oc
um
en
ta
ti
on
 f
or
 E
A
C
H
 o
f 
th
e

c
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
e
d
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 o
r 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
s
 a
s
 c
o
m
p
a
r
e
d
 t
o

t
h
e
 d
es
ig
n 
In

te
nt

, 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o
f
 o
wr

re
r 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 O
&
M

pr
of
es
si
on
al
 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 
of
 t
he

 o
pe
ra
ti
on
 a
nd

m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
u
a
l
s
.

FE
S 
Is

 o
k
 w
it
h 
th

is
 b
ut

 h
ot

 w
at
er
 b
ra

iK
h 
pi
pi
ng
 t
o

f
h
t
u
r
e
s
 w
il
l 
a
l
s
o
 n
e
e
d
 I
ns

ul
at

io
n

M
i
d
p
o
i
n
t
 I
n
s
p
e
c
t
i
o
n
s

T
h
e
r
m
a
l
 B
y
p
a
s
s
 I
ns
pe
ct
io
ns

C
o
p
y
 o
f
 s
ig
ne
d 
co
nt
ra
ct
 e
xp
la
in
in
g 
s
c
o
p
e
 o
f
 w
o
r
k

(c
on

tr
ac

t 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 m
a
y
 b
e
 e
xc

lu
de

d)
 a
n
d
 a
 l
et
te
r f
r
o
m

th
e 
C
x
A
 o
r 
th
e 
bu
il
di
ng
 o
w
n
e
r
 s
ta
tl
r^
 al

l C
x
A
 d
ut
ie
s

w
e
r
e
 c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
.
 S
u
b
m
i
t
 a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
he
 O
P
R
.
 B
O
D
,

C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 P
la
n 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 R
ep

or
t.

 T
h
e

c
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 P
la
n 
sh

ou
ld

 I
nc
lu
de
 a
n
 o
v
e
r
v
i
e
w
 o
f
 t
h
e

c
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 p
ro
ce
ss
, a
 l
is
t 
o
f
 s
y
s
t
e
m
s
 a
n
d
 f
ea
tu
re
s,

t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 p
ar
ti
ci
pa
nt
s 
a
n
d
 t
he
ir
 r
ol

es
, 
a

co
mm
un
ic
at
io

n 
an

d 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 p
la
n,
 a
n
 o
ut
li
ne
 o
f

th
e 
sc
op
e 
of

 c
om
mi
ss
io
ni
ng
 t
as
ks
, a

r>
d 
sc

he
du

le
.

W
h
e
r
e
 p
os
si
bl
e.
 I
nc
lu
de
 c
op
ie
s 
o
f
 t
he
 s
ta

rt
 u
p

ch
ec
kl
is
ts
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 r
ep
or
t 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

ta
in

t
h
e
 a
na
ly
si
s 
o
f
 w
h
e
t
h
e
r
 e
a
c
h
 c
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
e
d
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 o
r

c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
 m
e
e
t
s
 t
he
 d
es

ig
n 
in
te
nt
, 
sp

ec
if

ic
at

io
ns

, 
w
a
s

pr
op

er
ly

 I
ns
ta
ll
ed
, 
p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
he
 f
un
ct
io
na
l 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
a
n
c
e

te
st
s,
 w
a
s
 p
ro

pe
rl

y 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
e
d
 I
n 
t
h
e
 O
&
M
 m
a
n
u
a
l
s
,

a
n
d
 w
a
s
 c
o
v
e
r
e
d
 i
n 
t
h
e
 o
pe

ra
to

r 
tr
ai
ni
ng
.

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 B
ui

ld
in

g 
S
y
s
t
e
m
s
 C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
:
 I
n 
ad

di
ti

on
 
S
u
b
m
i
t
 a
ll
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 f
or
 B
as

ic
 C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
i
n
g
 a
n
d
 
F
E
S

to
 f
un
da
me
nt
al
 c
om

mi
ss

io
ni

ng
, 
re

ta
in

 a
 C
x
A
 p
ri

or
 t
o 

a 
co
py
 o
f 
th
e 
si
gn
ed
 c
om
mi
ss
io
ni
ng
 c
on

tr
ac

t 
an

d 
da
te
d

co
mp
le
ti
ng
 t
he

 d
es
ig
n 
ph

as
e 
of

 t
he
 p
ro

je
ct

. 
pl
an
s 
to
 v
er
if
y 
C
x
A
 w
a
s
 c
on

tr
ac

te
d 
pr

io
r 
to

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
.
 S
u
b
m
i
t
 a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
h
e
 D
es
ig
n

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 r
ev

ie
w,

 ar
ch

it
ec

t 
a
n
d
 o
w
n
e
r
 r
es
po
ns
es
.

C
o
n
d
u
c
t
 a
 t
h
e
r
m
a
l
 b
y
p
a
s
s
 I
ns

pe
ct

io
n 
o
f
 t
h
e
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
 t
o
 A
 t
h
e
r
m
a
l
 b
yp

as
sc

he
ck

li
st

 a
lo

ng
 w
it

h 
a
n
 s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 o
f
 

F
E
S

e
n
s
u
r
e
 t
h
e
 i
nt

eg
rl

ty
of

 t
h
e
 a
ir

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
r
m
a
l
 b
ar

ri
er

s 
o
f
 

de
fk
ie
nc
ie
s,
 p
ho
to
s,
 co

rr
ec

ti
ve

 a
ct

io
ns

 a
n
d
 c
or

re
ct

ed

t
h
e
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
p
h
o
t
o
s

F
E
S
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
,
 th
is
 I
s 
a 
c
o
d
e
 r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t



S
m
o
k
e
 T
es

t 
D
u
c
t
s
 i
f I

n 
Un
co
nd
it
io
ne
d 
S
p
a
c
e

D
u
c
t
 t
es
ti
ne
/l
ea
ka
ee

A
C
 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 
or
 S
m
o
k
e
 T
es
ti
ng
 p
er

so
nn

el
 a
dm

in
is

te
r 

IP
ho

to
so

f 
du
ct
 te

st
in
g 
in

 p
ro
gr
es
s 
an
d 
a 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y

B
l
o
w
e
r
 D
o
o
r
 T
e
s
t
 U
n
i
t
s

3
 p
oi

nt
sf

or
 <
7
 A
C
H
S
O

4
 p
oi
nt
s 
fo
r 
<
 6
 A
C
H
S
O

5
 p
oi
nt
s 
fo

r 
<
5
 A
C
H
S
O

s
m
o
k
e
 t
es

t,
 i
de

nt
if

y 
le

ak
s,

 a
n
d
 v
er
if
y 
le

ak
s 
ar
e 
se
al
ed
.

Ve
ri

fy
 l
ea
ks
 a
re
 s
ea
le
d 
b
y
 v
is

ua
l 
In

sp
ec

ti
on

. 
S
m
o
k
e

id
en
ti
fi
es
 l
ea
ks
 v
is

ua
ll

y.
 L
ea
ks
 a
re

 s
ea
le
d 
w
h
e
n
 t
he
re
 I
s

n
o
 m
o
r
e
 s
m
o
k
e
 c
o
m
i
n
g
 f
r
o
m
 l
ea

ks
. 
A
C
 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 
m
u
s
t

b
e
 p
re

se
nt

 t
o
 s
ea
l 
le

ak
s.

 S
m
o
k
e
 t
es

ti
ng

 p
ro

to
co

l 
a
s

f
o
l
l
o
w
s
:

1.
 Al

l 
b
o
o
t
s
 a
re
 t
em
po
ra
ri
ly
 s
ea
le
d 
b
y
 e
it
he
r 
t
h
e
 A
C

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o
r 
S
m
o
k
e
 T
es

ti
ng

 p
er

so
nn

el
.

2
.
 P
ot

ab
le

 s
m
o
k
e
r
 o
r 
d
u
c
t
 t
es

te
r/

fo
gg

er
 I
s 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
e
d
 t
o

th
e 
su

pp
ly

 a
n
d
 r
et
ur
n 
se

ct
io

ns
 o
f
 t
h
e
 d
u
c
t
 w
o
r
k
.
 A
ll

d
a
m
p
e
r
s
,
 If

 i
ns
ta
ll
ed
, t
o
 b
e
 v
er

if
ie

d 
o
p
e
n
 b
y
 A
C

R
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
.

3.
 A
C
 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

is
 p
re

se
nt

 d
ur

in
g 
S
m
o
k
e
 T
es
ti
ng

t
o
 s
ea
l 
o
b
s
e
r
v
e
d
 l
ea
ka
ge
s 
wi

th
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 m
at

er
ia

ls
.

4
.
 S
m
o
k
e
 T
es
ti
ng
 p
er
so
nn
el
 n
ot
e 
se

ve
ri

ty
 a
n
d
 l
oc
at
io
n

o
f
 l
ea
ka
ge
s.

5.
 S
m
o
k
e
 T
es

ti
ng

 p
er

so
nn

el
 v
er
if
y 
th
at
 a
ll
 l
ea

ks
 h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n
 s
ea
le
d 
at
 r
ou
gh
-i
n 
a
n
d
 s
up

pl
y 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

e 
t
o
 c
li
en
t

at
te

st
in

g 
to

 t
ha

t 
fa

ct
 w
it
h 
da
te
 a
n
d
 s
ig
na
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e

S
m
o
k
e
 T
e
s
t
e
r
,

To
ta
l 
du

ct
 l
ea

ka
ge

 f
or

 I
n-
un
it
 s
ys
te
ms
 sh

al
l 
be
 s
 8

C
F
M
2
5
 p
er

 1
0
0
 s.

f.
 o
f 
co

nd
it

io
ne

d 
fl
oo
r 
ar

ea
. 
Al
l 
un

it
s

m
u
s
t
 b
e
 t
es

te
d 
b
y
 a
 R
E
S
N
E
T
 o
r 
BP
I 
e
n
e
r
g
y
 r
at
er

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
R
E
S
N
E
T
 p
ro
to
co
l.

Po
st
-c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n,
 m
ul

ti
-p

oi
nt

 b
lo
we
r 
do

or
 t
es

ti
ng

 o
f

un
it
s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e
 p
e
r
f
o
r
m
e
d
 b
y
 a
 R
E
S
N
E
T
 o
r 
B
P
!
 e
n
e
r
g
y

ra
te
r 
fo
ll
ow
in
g 
R
E
S
N
E
T
 p
ro
to
co
l.
 A
ll
 u
ni
ts
 m
u
s
t
 p
as

s 
at

o
n
e
 o
f
 t
h
e
 l
ev

el
s 
li
st
ed
 I
n 
t
h
e
 C
r
e
d
i
t
 c
o
l
u
m
n
.

P
o
i
n
t
s
 a
r
e
 a
w
a
r
d
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 w
o
r
s
e
-
c
a
s
e
 t
e
s
t
 r
es
ul
ts
.

re
po
rt
 o
f 
fi
nd
in
gs
 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

io
ns

.

S
u
m
m
a
r
y
 r
ep
or
t 
or
 e
ac
h 
un
it
 l
ea

ka
ge

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

iv
e

ac
ti

on
 t
a
k
e
n
 I
f r
eq

ui
re

d

C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e 
te

st
 r
es
ul
ts

Co
mp
le
te
 T
es
ti
ng
 a
n
d
 B
al

at
vd

ng
 i
n 
al

l r
es
id
en
ti
al
 u
ni

ts
 

Me
ch
an
ic
al
 E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Pl
um
bi
ng
 (
M
E
P
)
 En

gi
ne
er
in
g 
fi
rm
 
C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e 
te
st
in
g 
an

d 
ba
la
nc
in
g 
re
po
rt

wo
rk

s 
wi
th
 t
he

 A
rc
hi
te
ct
 o
r 
de

si
gn

 t
e
a
m
 l
ea

de
r 
to

ve
ri
fy
 f
ie
ld
 I
ns

ta
ll

ed
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 m
e
e
t
 O
P
R
,
 B
O
D
 a
n
d
 i
s

In
st
al
le
d 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 
co
rr
ec
tl
y.
 I
n 
ad

di
ti

on
 t
o 
th
e

re
qu

ir
ed

 p
re

re
qu

is
it

e 
te

st
in

g 
a
n
d
 v
er

if
ic

at
io

n,
 te

st
ir
tg

a
n
d
 v
er

if
ic

at
io

n 
o
f
 A
L
L
 o
f
 t
h
e
 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 u
n
i
t
s
 s
ha

ll
 b
e

p
e
r
f
o
r
m
e
d
 b
y
 a
 l
ic

en
se

d 
en
gi
ne
er
 o
r
 a
 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l

ce
rt
if
ie
d 
b
y
 t
h
e
 N
al
io
rr
al
 E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 B
a
l
a
n
d
i
^

B
u
r
e
a
u
 (
N
E
B
S
)
,
 t
h
e
 A
ss
oc
ia
te
d 
Ai
r 
Ba
la
nc
e 
Co
un
ci
l

(
A
A
B
C
)
,
 o
r
 o
t
h
e
r
 r
ta

tl
on

al
ly

 a
cc
re
di
te
d 
or

ga
ni

za
ti

on
.



W
a
s
h
e
r
 a
n
d
 d
ry
er
 o
u
t
 o
f
 c
on

di
ti

on
ed

 s
p
a
c
e

Lo
ca
te
 w
as

he
r 
an

d 
dr

ye
r 
ou

ts
id

e 
of
 c
on

di
ti

on
ed

 s
pa
ce
 

Fl
oo
rp
la
n 
Id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
lo
ca
ti
on
 o
f 
la
un
dr
y 
r
o
o
m

—
g
a
r
a
g
e
,
 u
nc
on
di
ti
on
ed
 u
ti
li
ty
 r
o
o
m
,
 et

c.
 T
h
e
 l
oc

at
io

n

m
u
s
t
 b
e
 s
ep

ar
at

ed
 f
r
o
m
 t
he
 t
rs

ai
n 
co

nd
it

io
ne

d 
s
p
a
c
e
 o
f

th
e 
bu

il
di

ng
. 
T
h
e
 u
nc
on
di
ti
on
ed
 u
ti
fi
ty
 r
o
o
m
 m
u
s
t

m
e
e
t
 t
h
e
 f
ol

lo
wi

ng
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
s;

•
 In

su
la
te
 t
he

 w
al

ls
 b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 t
he

 u
ti
li
ty
 r
o
o
m
 a
rt
d

co
nd

it
io

ne
d 
s
p
a
c
e
 (
s
h
a
r
e
d
 w
al

ls
).

•
 Fi
ni
sh
 t
he
 s
ha
re
d 
wa

ll
s 
an

d 
ce
il
in
g (

if
 b
el
ow

co
nd

it
io

ne
d 
sp

ac
e)

 wi
th
 d
ry
wa
li
.

•
 Se
al
 a
ll
 h
ol

es
 a
n
d
 a
ir

 l
ea
ka
ge
 p
a
t
h
w
a
y
s
 t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e

wa
ll

s,
 fl

oo
r,
 a
nd

 c
el
li
ng
 t
ha

t 
ca
n 
co
nn
ec
t 
th
e 
ut
il
it
y

r
o
o
m
 t
o 
th
e 
co

nd
it

io
ne

d 
sp

ac
e (
pl
um
bi
ng
, g
as
 li

ne
s,

wi
ri
ng
, a
n
d
 b
ot

to
m 

pl
at
e)
.

•
 in

st
al
l a
 n
on
-l
ou
ve
re
d 
do

or
th

at
 is

 w
ea
th
er
-s
tr
ip
pe
d

a
n
d
 e
q
u
i
p
p
e
d
 w
it

h 
a 
pr

op
er

ly
 a
dj

us
te

d 
th

re
sh

ol
d.

Li
gh

t 
co
lo
re
d 
in

te
ri

or
 f
in

is
he

s

1
 p
oi
nt
: 
li

gh
t 
co
lo
re
d 
wa
il
s/
ce
ll
in
g 
in

 m
a
i
n
 l
iv
in
g

1
 p
oi

nt
; 
li

gh
t 
co
lo
re
d 
wa

il
s 
In

 b
e
d
r
o
o
m
s

C
o
m
p
a
c
t
 h
o
t
 w
a
t
e
r
 d
is
tr
ib
ut
io
n

Al
l 
b
e
d
r
o
o
m
s
 a
nd

 a
ll

 m
aj

or
 li

vi
ng

 s
pa
ce
s 
in
 t
he

 h
o
m
e

h
a
v
e
 l
ig
ht
-c
ol
or
ed
 w
al

l 
a
n
d
 c
ei

li
ng

 s
ur

fa
ce

s 
wi

th
 a

re
fl
ec
ta
nc
e 
o
f
 a
t 
le
as
t 
S
O
K
 (
or

 L
ig
ht
 R
ef

le
ct

an
ce

 V
a
l
u
e

(
L
R
V
)
 >
 S
O)

. 
Bo

nu
s 
po

in
t 
aw

ar
de

d 
If

 ai
l 
ma

jo
r 
li
vi
ng

s
p
a
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
d
r
o
o
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 l
ig

ht
 c
ol
or
ed
 f
lo

or
in

g,
 i
f a

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
e
d
 r
ef
le
ct
iv
it
y 
is

 n
o
t
 a
va
il
ab
le
, 
th

is
 c
re
di
t 
c
a
n

on
ly

 b
e 
gi

ve
n 
to

 "
wh

it
e'

 or
 "
of
f 
wh

it
e.

'

in
st
al
l 
c
o
m
p
a
c
t
 h
ot
 w
a
t
e
r
 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
s
y
s
t
e
m
.
 F
o
r
 a

co
nv
en
ti
on
al
 s
ys
te
m,
 n
o
 b
ra
nc
h 
li

ne
 f
r
o
m
 t
he

 w
at
er

he
at

er
 t
o 
an
y 
fi
xt
ur
e 
m
a
y
 e
xc
ee
d 
2S
 f
ee
t.
 B
ra

nc
h 
li
ne
s

f
r
o
m
 t
h
e
 c
e
n
t
r
a
l
 h
e
a
d
e
r
 t
o
 e
a
c
h
 f
ix
tu
re
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 a

m
a
x
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 I
t-

In
ch

 d
i
a
m
e
t
e
r
.
 O
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 I
s 
al
so

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
us
e 
of

 a
 m
an

if
ol

d 
sy

st
em

 o
r 
a
 r
ec

ir
oi

la
tl

on

lo
op
 w
it
h 
a
n
 o
n
-
d
e
m
a
n
d
 c
on

tr
ol

 w
it

h 
au

to
 p
u
m
p
 s
hu
t-

of
f 
in

 t
h
e
 k
i
t
c
h
e
n
 a
n
d
 e
a
c
h
 f
ul

l 
b
a
t
h
r
o
o
m
.

P
h
o
t
o
 o
f
 c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
 p
ro

je
ct

 I
nt

er
io

r,
 p
ai
nt
 s
el
ec
ti
on
 a
n
d
 T
J
H

L
R
V

Fl
oo
rp
la
n 
s
h
o
w
i
n
g
 l
oc

at
io

n 
o
f
 h
o
t
 w
a
t
e
r

he
at
er
s/
di
st
ri
bu
ti
on
 s
y
s
t
e
m

T
J
H
 -
 W
/
D
 a
re
 w
it

hi
n 
un
it
s

Re
n«
vn
i>
le
;E
n<
Bi
Ky

If
. 

" 
.

E
5
.
1
 

8

R
e
n
e
w
a
b
l
e
 E
n
e
r
g
y
 P
ro
du
ct
io
n

1
 p
oi

nt
 p
er

 I
K
 o
f
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
p
o
w
e
r
 p
ro
vi
de
d

Su
pp
ly
 a
 f
ra
ct
io
n 
of
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g'
s 
to
ta
l 
en
er
gy
 u
se
 (a
s

e
x
p
r
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 f
ra
ct
io
n 
o
f
 a
n
n
u
a
l
 e
n
e
r
g
y
 c
os

t)
 t
h
r
o
u
g
h

th
e 
us
e 
of
 on

-s
it
e 
re
ne
wa
bl
e 
en

er
gy

 s
ys

te
ms

.

Pl
an

 d
et

ai
l 
hi

gh
li

gh
ti

r^
 In

st
al
le
d 
re
ne
wa
bl
e 
en
er
gy

s
y
s
t
e
m
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
t
o
s

N
/
A

m
m

G
r
e
e
n
 P
o
w
e
r

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
5
0
%
 f
or

 1
 y
e
a
r

2
 p
oi
nt
s;
 l
O
O
K
 f
or
 1
 y
e
a
r

3
 p
oi
nt
s;
 l
O
O
K
 f
or
 2
 y
ea
rs

Pr
ov

id
e 
a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g'
s 
el

ec
tr

ic
it

y f
r
o
m

re
it
ew
ab
le
 s
ou

rc
es

 b
y 
en

ga
gi

ng
 I
n 
at

 l
ea
st
 a
 o
ne

-y
ea

r

r
e
n
e
w
a
b
l
e
 e
n
e
r
g
y
 c
on

tr
ac

t 
t
o
 p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 g
r
e
e
n
 p
o
w
e
r
.

Ea
rn

 o
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 b
y
 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 
g
r
e
e
n
 p
o
w
e
r
 f
or

 S
D
K
 o
f

th
e 
bu
il
di
ng
 t
ot
al
 a
nn

ua
l 
en

er
gy

 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
ro

m 
ce

rt
if

ie
d

g
r
e
e
n
 p
o
w
e
r
 g
e
n
e
r
a
t
o
r
 f
or
 o
n
e
 y
ea

r,
 2
 p
oi

nt
s 
ar
e

av
ai
la
bl
e 
fo

r 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

 l
O
O
K
 l
or

 1
 y
ea

r 
a
n
d
 3
 p
oi

nt
s

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
pu
rc
ha
si
ng
 l
O
O
K
 f
or

 3
 y
ea

rs
.

Pr
ov
id
e 
a
n
 e
xe

cu
te

d 
co
py
 o
f 
th
e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 f
or

 t
he

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f 
re
ne
wa
bl
e 
en

er
gy

 I
nd

ic
at

in
g 
th
e 
ty
pe
s 
of

re
ne
wa
bl
e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 
an

d 
th

e 
to
ta
l 
k
W
h
 o
f 
en

er
gy

pr
od

uc
ti

on
 c
ap

ad
ty

.

N
/
A

S
o
l
a
r
 H
o
t
 W
a
t
e
r

Ea
ch

 u
ni
t 
is

 s
er
vi
ce
d 
by

 a
 s
ol

ar
 h
ot

 w
at
er
 s
ys

te
m

Pl
an
 d
et
ai
l 
hi

gh
li

gh
ti

ng
 d
es

ig
n,

 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t

an
d 
ph

ot
os

 o
f 
in

st
al

le
d 
eq
ui
pm
en
t.

F
E
S

in
st
al
l 
so

la
r 
p
o
o
l
 h
ea
te
r

Pl
an

 d
et

ai
l 
hi
gh
li
gh
ti
ng
 d
es

ig
n,

 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 c
ut

 s
he

et

a
n
d
 p
h
o
t
o
s
 o
f
 In

st
al
le
d 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
.

W
A
T
E
R
 (R

eq
ui

re
d 
Ca

te
go

ry
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 1
0)

C
R
E
D
I
T
S

T
O
T
A
L

A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E

A
C
H
I
E
V
E
D
 

P
O
S
S
I
B
L
E
 

N
A

2
3
 

1
0

Po
in

ts
 B
e
l
o
w
 C
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 B
iA

ln
lm

um

R
E
Q
U
I
R
L
M
E
N
T
S

D
E
S
I
G
N
A
T
E
D
 P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S



I
n
s
t
i
D
c
d
 L
a
n
d
s
a

Pl
an
tV
lf
ee
s 
fr

om
 d
ro

ug
ht

-t
ol

er
an

t 
li
st
:

1
 P
oi
nt
 -
 6
0
%
 d
r
o
u
g
h
t
 t
ol
er
an
t

2
 P
oi
nt
s 

■ 
8
0
%
 d
r
o
u
g
h
t
 t
ol

er
an

t

3
 P
oi
nt
s 
-
1
0
0
%
 d
r
o
u
g
h
t
 t
ol
er
an
t

1
 p
oi

nt
: 

In
st
al
l o

nl
y 
dr
ou
gh
t 
to

le
ra

nt
 t
ur
f 
<
 5
0
%

2
 p
oi
nt
s:
 In

st
al
l o

nl
y 
dr
ou
gh
t 
to

le
ra

nt
 t
ur

f 
<
 d
O
%

3
 p
oi
nt
s:
 I
ns
ta
ll
 o
nl

y 
d
r
o
u
g
h
t
 t
ol
er
an
t 
tu

rf
 <
 3
0
%

4
 p
oi
nt
s:
 I
ns
ta
ll
 o
nl

y 
dr

ou
gh

t 
to

le
ra

nt
 t
ur

f <
 2
0
%

5
 p
oi

nt
s:

 I
ns
ta
ll
 o
n
l
y
 d
r
o
u
g
h
t
 t
o
l
e
r
a
n
t
 t
ur
f 
<
 1
0
%

N
o
n
-
C
y
p
r
e
s
s
 m
u
l
c
h

Pr
op
er
ly
 I
ns
ta
ll
ed
 I
rr
ig
at
io
n

O
n
l
y
 d
ri

p 
Ir

ri
ga
ti
on
 I
s 
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 s
it

e

N
o
 p
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 I
ns

ta
ll

ed
 i
rr
ig
at
io
n

S
o
l
 
M
o
i
s
t
u
r
e
 S
e
n
s
o
r
s

m
r
s
E
E
:
'
 

■
Re

cl
ai

me
d 
W
a
t
e
r
 f
or
 I
rr

ig
at

io
n

Us
e 
of

at
 l
ea
st
 6
0
%
 o
f 
th
e 
pl

an
ts

 a
nd

 t
re
es
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 P

la
nt
 li

st
 I
de
nt
if
yi
ng
 d
ro

ug
ht

 to
le
ra
nt
 v
eg
et
at
io
n,

in
to
 t
he
 l
an
ds
ca
pe
 a
re

 f
ro

m 
a 
lo

ca
l 
dr

ou
gh

t 
to

le
ra

nt
 li

st
; 
la
nd
sc
ap
e 
pl

an
, a
n
d
 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 
of

 d
ro

ug
ht

 t
ol

er
an

t

2
 p
oi

nt
s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 
If
 8
0
%
 a
re

 f
ro

m 
su

ch
 a
 l
is
t;
 a
n
d
 3
 

ve
ge
ta
ti
on
 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

.

po
in

ts
 a
re
 a
va
il
ab
le
 I
f 1
0
0
%
 o
f
 t
h
e
 p
la

nt
s 
a
n
d
 t
re

es
 a
re

f
r
o
m
 s
u
c
h
 a
 l
is
t.
 A
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 1
2
 t
ot
al
 p
la

nt
s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e

pr
es

en
t 
In
 t
he
 l
an
ds
ca
pe
 t
o 
qu

al
if

y 
fo

r 
th
e 
cr
ed
it
.

Pl
an

ts
 s
ha
ll
 b
e 
li
st
ed
 w
it
h 
hi

gh
 o
r 
mo
de
ra
te
 d
ro

ug
ht

to
le

ra
nc

e 
b
y
 F
lo

ri
da

 F
ri

en
dl

y 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
,
 W
a
t
e
r
W
I
s
e

(w
at

er
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 d
is

tr
ic

t)
 or

 l
oc
al
 d
ro
ug
ht
 t
ol

er
an

t

li
st
.

If
 s
od

 i
s 
In
st
al
le
d,
 d
o
 n
ot
 I
ns
ta
ll
 t
ur
f I

n 
de

ns
el

y 
sh
ad
ed
 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
pl
an
, a
n
d
 p
ho

to
s 
of
 t
he

 c
om
pl
et
ed
 p
ro

je
ct

. 
U
H

ar
ea
s (
<
6
0
%
 s
ha
de
 o
n
 J
un

e 
21

) 
an

d 
on

ly
 u
se
 B
ah

ia
,

Zo
ys
ia
, 
or
 B
e
r
m
u
d
a
 g
ra

ss
.

Ap
pl
y 
3-

4"
 of

 m
ul
ch
 a
ro

un
d 
pl

an
ts

 a
nd

 t
re
es
 (e

xt
en
di
ng
 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 
pl
an
s 
an
d 
ph

ot
os

 o
f 
In

st
al

le
d 
ve

ge
ta

ti
on

 
L)

R
ou

t 
to
 d
ri
p 
li

ne
) a
nd

 I
n 
la
nd
sc
ap
ed
 b
ed

s 
av
oi
di
ng

vo
lc

an
o 
mu
lc
hi
ng

U
R
 h
as
 9
5
%
 o
f 
sp

ec
if

ie
d 
tr
ee
s 
li

st
ed

 o
n
 t
he
 d
ro
ug
ht

to
le

ra
nt

 li
st

 {
2
 p
oi
nt
s)
 U
R
 c
a
n
 c
ha

ng
e 
3
 o
f 
th

e 
no
n-
li
st
ed

pl
an

ts
 f
or
 1
0
0
%
 (
3
 p
oi
nt
s)
 if

 n
e
e
d
e
d

U
R
 s
u
g
g
e
s
t
e
d
 t
ha
t 
I
t
e
m
 8
5
 c
a
n
 e
b
 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
If
 J
M
H

wa
nt

s,
 b
y 
co
ll
ab
or
at
in
g 
wi

th
 t
he
 I
rr
ig
at
io
n 
co
ns
ul
ta
nt
.

J
M
K
 c
o
n
f
i
r
m
e
d
 t
o
 h
ir
e 
a
 c
on
su
lt
an
t 
t
o
 c
o
m
p
l
y

1.
 S
ep

ar
at

e 
to
rt
es
 f
or
 t
ur
f a

nd
 l
an
ds
ca
pe
 b
ed

s 
- 
mu

lt
l-

 
C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th

e 
ir
ri
ga
ti
on
 d
es
ig
n,
 p
ho
to
s 
of
 In

st
al
le
d

pr
og

ra
m 
co

nt
ro

ll
er

 
ir
ri
ga
ti
on
, a
nd

 a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e 
In
st
ru
ct
io
ns
.

2.
 H
i
g
h
-
V
o
l
u
m
e
 i
rr
lg
at
la
n 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 6
0
%
 o
f
 t
he

la
nd
sc
ap
ed
 e
re

a

3.
 H
e
a
d
 t
o 
he
ad
 c
ov
er
ag
e 
fo

r 
ro
to
r/
sp
ra
y 
he
ad
s

4.
 C
or
re
ct
ly
 I
ns
ta
ll
 m
ic

ro
-I

rr
ig

at
io

n 
in
 l
an
ds
ca
pe
 b
ed

s

a
n
d
 n
a
r
r
o
w
 a
r
e
a
s

5.
 P
ro
vi
de
 f
ac

ll
lt

v 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
 I
ns
ta
ll
ed
 i
rr
sa
ti
on
 p
la
n,
 o
n

si
te

 t
ra
in
in
g 
an

d 
wr

it
te

n 
In
st
ru
ct
io
ns

Se
e 
F
G
B
C
 gu

id
el

in
es

 f
or

 i
rr
ig
at
io
n 
as
 s
ta
te
d 

in
 t
he

In
st

al
l 
on

ly
 d
ri
p 
Ir
ri
ga
ti
on
 s
ys

te
ms

 t
o 
se

rv
ic

e 
In

st
al

le
d 

Co
py
 o
f 
th
e 
Ir

ri
ga

ti
on

 d
es
ig
n,
 an

d 
ph

ot
os

 o
f 
in

st
al

le
d 

U
R
 c
an
 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 
to
 c
om
pl
y 

If
 n
ee
de
d

l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 

ir
ri

ga
ti

on
.

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
co
nt
ai
ns
 n
o 
pe

rm
an

en
tl

y 
In

st
al

le
d 
ir

ri
ga

ti
on

 
Pr
ov
id
e 
a 
si
gn
ed
 l
et
te
r f
ro
m 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t o
wn

er
. 

U
R
 -
 N
/A

s
y
s
t
e
m
.

Se
ll
 m
oi
st
ur
e 
se

ns
or

s 
or

 o
th
er
 w
ea

th
er

-b
as

ed
 i
rr

ig
ai

lo
n 
Cu

t 
sh

ee
t 
of
 in

no
va

ti
ve

 e
qu
ip
me
nt
 

U
R
 -
 c
an
 i
nc
lu
de
 s
oi
l s

en
so

rs
 if

 n
ee

de
d

Is
 i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 t
o 
co
nt
ro
l 
ir
ri
ga
ti
on
 a
t 
gr
ou
nd

le
ve

l 
a
n
d
 f
o
r
 o
u
t
d
o
o
r
 a
m
e
n
i
t
i
e
s
.

l!
S8

Pr
oj

ec
t I

s s
up
pl
ie
d w

it
h m

un
id
pa
l r

ec
bi

me
d w

at
er
 fo

r 
jLe

tte
r f

ro
m m

un
kl

pa
li

ty
 In

dic
ati

ng 
re

cl
ai

me
d w

at
er
 is

 
N/

A
s
u
D
p
l
i
e
d
 a
rK

f 
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
r
o
i
e
c
t



1
 p
oi

nt
: 

Si
mp

le
 C
ol

le
ct

io
n

3
 p
oi
nt
s:
 
Co

ll
ec

ti
on

 w
it
h 
de

di
ca

te
d 
u
s
e
 f
or

 I
rr
ig
at
io
n.

Co
ll
ec
te
d 
ra

in
wa

te
r 
m
u
s
t
 s
up

pl
y 
a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
2S
ti
ol

t
h
e
 w
a
t
e
r
 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f
or
 i
rr
ig
at
io
n.

S
 p
oi
nt
s:
 
Co
ll
ec
ti
on
 f
or
 t
oi
le
t/
ur
in
al
 fl
us

hi
ng

.

Co
ll
ec
te
d 
ra

in
wa

te
r 
m
u
s
t
 s
up

pl
y 
a 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
2S

t<
 o
f

th
e 
wa
te
r 
re

qu
ir

ed
 f
or

 t
oi
le
t/
ur
in
al
 f
lu

sh
in

g.

1
0
 p
oi
nt
s:
 R
a
i
n
w
a
t
e
r
 I
s 
co

ll
ec

te
d 
a
n
d
 t
re
at
ed
 t
o

po
ta
bl
e 
st

an
da

rd
s 
fo

r 
us
e 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 t
he

 b
ui
ld
in
g.

R
a
i
n
w
a
t
e
r
 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 m
u
s
t
 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 2
S
%
 o
f

t
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g'
s 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 w
a
t
e
r
 u
se

.

Co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 d
r
a
w
i
n
g
s
 i
nd
ic
at
in
g 
de

si
gn

 a
n
d
 l
oc

at
io

n 
o
f

s
y
s
t
e
m

In
st
al
l 
ra

in
wa

te
r 
ha
rv
es
ti
ng
 c
ol
le
ct
io
n 
a
n
d
 s
to

ra
ge

s
y
s
t
e
m
.
 T
h
e
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 f
or
 t
hi

s 
cr
ed
it
 i
s 
a

si
mp
le
 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 
s
y
s
t
e
m
,
 w
h
i
c
h
 f
or
 a
ll
 I
nt

en
ts

 a
n
d

pu
rp

os
es

 w
ou
ld
 b
e 
fo

r 
de

mo
ns

tr
at

io
n.

 A
ch
ie
ve

ad
di
ti
on
al
 p
oi
nt
s,
 p
er

 t
he
 b
re
ak
 d
o
w
n
 b
e
l
o
w
,
 a
s
 t
h
e

ra
in
wa
te
r 
co

ll
ec

ti
on

 s
y
s
t
e
m
 I
nc

re
as

es
 I
n 
fu
nc
ti
on
al
 u
s
e

to
 r
ep
la
ce
 b
ot
h 
po
ta
bl
e 
an

d 
n
o
n
 p
ot
ab
le
 w
at

er
.

1.
 S
i
m
p
l
e
 C
ol
le
ct
io
n:
 U
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 I
rr

ig
at

io
n 
a
n
d

fo
r 
de
rr
so
ns
tr
at
io
n 
pu

rp
os

es
.

2
.
 D
ed
ic
at
ed
 u
s
e
 f
or

 i
rr

ig
al

lo
n:

 H
a
r
v
e
s
t
e
d
 R
a
i
n
w
a
t
e
r
 I
s

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
up

pl
y 
Ir

r^
at

io
n 
t
o
 l
an
ds
ca
pe
.

3
.
 R
a
i
n
w
a
t
e
r
 i
s 
co

ll
ec

te
d 
a
n
d
 u
s
e
d
 I
n 
li

eu
 o
f
 p
ot
ab
le

w
a
t
e
r
 f
or
 f
lu
sh
in
g 
to

ii
et

s 
a
n
d
 u
ri

na
ls

: 
R
a
i
n
w
a
t
e
r
 I
s

co
ll
ec
te
d 
a
n
d
 f
ed

 t
o 
du
al
 p
ip

in
g 
sy

st
em

 a
sg
re
yw
at
er
to

r
e
d
u
c
e
 p
ot
ab
le
 w
a
t
e
r
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 I
ns

id
e 
th
e 
bu

il
di

ng
,

A.
 Co

ll
ec
te
d 
a
n
d
 t
re

at
ed

 t
o 
po
ta
bl
e 
st

an
da

rd
s 
fo

r

w
h
o
l
e
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
us

e:
 W
a
t
e
r
 i
s 
tr
ea
te
d 
t
o
 p
ot
ab
le

st
an

da
rd

s 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
s
 w
h
o
l
e
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
w
a
t
e
r
 u
s
e

Gr
ey
wa
te
r 
sy
st
em
 i
s 
In
st
al
le
d 
to

 r
ed
uc
e 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 d
ra

wi
ng

s 
in

di
ca

ti
ng

 d
es

ig
n 
an

d 
lo
ca
ti
on
 o
f

3
 po

in
ts

: 
Co
ll
ec
ti
on
 w
it

h 
de
di
ca
te
d 
us

e 
fo

r 
Ir

ri
ga

ti
on

. 
Ip
ol
ab
le
wa
te
r.
 S
ys

te
m 
mu
st
 h
av
e 
a 
sp

ec
if

ic
 co

ll
ec
ti
on
 
[s

ys
te

Co
ll
ec
te
d 
a
n
d
 t
re
at
ed
 g
r
e
y
w
a
t
e
r
 m
u
s
t
 s
up

pl
y 
a

1 s
ou

rc
e 
at
>d
 a
 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 u
se
. 
Gr

ey
wa

te
r 
sy
st
em
 is

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
2S

S(
of

 t
he
 w
at
er
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 f
or

 I
rr

ig
at

io
n,

 
in

st
al

le
d 
to

 r
ed
uc
e 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 p
ot
ab
le
 w
at

er
. 
Sy
st
em

S
 p
oi
nt
s:
 
Co

ll
ec

ti
on

 f
or
 t
oi
le
t/
ur
in
al
 fl
us

hi
ng

.

Co
ll
ec
te
d 
a
n
d
 t
re
at
ed
 g
r
e
y
w
a
t
e
r
 m
u
s
t
 s
up
pl
y 
a

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 

of
 t
he
 w
at
er
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r 
to
il
et
/u
ri
na
l

fl
us

hi
ng

.

1
0
 p
oi
nt
s:
 G
re
yw
at
er
 Is

 c
ol
le
ct
ed
 a
nd

 t
re

at
ed

 t
o

po
ta
bl
e 
st

an
da

rd
s 
fo

r 
us
e 
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 t
he

 b
ui
ld
in
g.

G
r
e
y
w
a
t
e
r
 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 m
u
s
t
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 2
SS

i

of
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 a
nn
ua
l 
wa
te
r 
us

e.

m
u
s
t
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
co

ll
ec

ti
on

 s
ou

rc
e 
a
n
d
 a
 d
ed

ic
at

ed

L
o
w
 F
l
o
w
 T
oi

le
ts

W
a
t
e
r
 c
lo
se
ts
 I
n 
t
h
e
 i
nd
iv
id
ua
l 
un

it
s

1
 p
oi

nt
; 
S
 1
.2
8 
g
p
f

2
 p
oi
nt
s:
 D
u
a
l
 F
lu

sh

3
 p
oi
nt
s:
 S
 1
.0
 g
p
f

1 
B
o
n
u
s
 p
oi

nt
 I
s a

va
il

ab
le

 I
f a

ll
 w
at

er
 c
lo

se
ts

 I
n 
th
e

c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
r
e
a
s
 a
r
e
 l
o
w
 f
l
o
w

L
o
w
 F
l
o
w
 L
av
at

or
y 
Fa

uc
et

s 
in

 u
ni
ts

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
s
 1
.5
 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 m
i
n
u
t
e
 (
g
p
m
)

2
 p
oi
nt
s:
 S
 1
.0

 g
p
m
 O
R
 M
ot
io
n 
Se
ns
or
 s
el

f-
do

si
ng

fa
uc

et
 (0
.2
5 
ga
l/
me
te
rl
ng
 c
y
d
e
 M
a
x
)

1
 B
o
n
u
s
 p
oi
nt

 I
s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 
if

al
l 
o
f
 t
h
e
 l
av
at
or
y 
fa
uc
et
s

In
st
al
le
d 
In
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
r
e
a
s
 a
re
 S
 1
.5

 g
p
m

Al
l 
in

st
al

le
d 
to

il
et

s 
m
u
s
t
 c
o
m
p
l
y
 w
it

h 
th
e 
lo

w-
fl

ow

cr
it

er
ia

 A
N
D
 h
av

e 
a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 M
a
P
 (
M
a
x
i
m
u
m

P
e
r
f
o
r
m
a
n
c
e
)
 ra

ti
ng

 o
f
 6
0
0
 O
R
 a
re
 W
a
t
e
r
S
e
n
s
e

Ce
rt

if
ie

d.
 F
o
r
 D
ua
l-
Fl
us
h 
to

il
et

s 
t
o
 r
ec

ei
ve

 o
n
e
 p
oi
nt
,

O
N
E
 o
f 
th
e 
t
w
o
 f
lu
sh
 o
pt
io
ns
 m
u
s
t
 b
e 
S
 l
.l
gp
f.

Al
l i

ns
ta

ll
ed

 l
av
at
or
y 
fi

xt
ur

es
 m
u
s
t
 c
o
m
p
l
y
 w
it
h 
th
e 
lo
w-
 P
ho

to
 o
f 
In
st
al
le
d 
lo
w 
fl

ow
 f
ix

tu
re

s 
an

d 
cu

t 
sh
ee
ts

f
l
o
w
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
s.

P
h
o
t
o
 o
f
 I
n
s
t
a
k
d
 l
o
w
 f
lo
w
 f
ix
tu
re
s 
a
n
d
 c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
s



W
4
.
4
 

3

L
o
w
 F
l
o
w
 K
i
t
c
h
e
n
 F
a
u
c
e
t
s
 I
n 
un

it
s

1
 p
oi
nt
: 

£
2
.
0
 g
al
lo
ns
 p
er

 m
in
ut
e (
g
p
m
)

2
 p
oi
nt
s:
 £
 l
.S
 g
p
m
 O
R
 W
at

er
Se

ns
e 
Ce

rt
if

ie
d

1 
B
o
n
u
s
 p
oi

nt
 I
s a

va
il

ab
le

 if
 al

l o
f 
th
e 
ki

tc
he

n ̂
u
c
e
t
s

In
st
al
le
d 
In
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
re
as
 a
re
 £
 2
.0
 g
p
m

L
o
w
 F
l
o
w
 S
h
o
w
e
r
 h
e
a
d
s
 I
n 
un

it
s

2
 p
oi
nt
: 

£
2
.
0
 ga

ll
on
s 
pe

r 
mi
nu
te
 (
g
p
m
)

1 
B
o
n
u
s
 p
oi

nt
 I
s a

va
il

ab
le

 If
 al

l o
f 
th

e 
s
h
o
w
e
r
 h
ea
ds

In
st

al
le

d 
In
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
re
as
 a
re
 £
 2
.
0
 g
p
m

Al
l 
In
st
al
le
d 
ki

tc
he

n 
fi

xt
ur

es
 m
u
s
t
 c
o
m
p
l
y
 w
it

h 
th
e 
lo
w-
 
Ph
ot
o 
of
 In

st
al
le
d 
lo
w 
fl
ow
 f
ix
tu
re
s 
an

d 
cu

t 
sh
ee
ts

fl
ow
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
s.

Al
l 
In
st
al
le
d 
s
h
o
w
e
r
 h
ea
ds
 m
u
s
t
 c
om
pl
y 
wi
th
 t
he
 l
ow
 

Ph
ot
o 
of
 i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 l
ow
 f
lo
w 
fi

xt
ur

es
 a
nd

 c
ut

 s
he
et
s

fl
ow
 r
eq

ui
re

me
nt

s.
 A
 m
a
x
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
1
 s
h
o
w
e
r
 h
ea
d 
pe

r

IS
sf

 o
f
 s
h
o
w
e
r
 c
o
m
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 I
s 
al

lo
we

d

i
i
i
U
j
i
-
t
e
t
r
m
M
X
 .

Ae
ol
ia
nc
es
 a
h
d

Hi
gh
 E
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 
Wa
te
r-
Sa
vi
ng
 C
lo
th
es
 W
as

he
r

2
 P
o
i
n
t
 f
o
r
 W
a
t
e
r
 F
a
c
t
o
r
 £
 6

3
 P
o
i
n
t
s
 f
o
r
 W
a
t
e
r
 F
a
c
t
o
r
 £
 4

1
 B
on

us
 p
oi

nt
 Is

 a
va

il
ab

le
 I

f a
ll

 o
f 
th
e 
cl
ot
he
s 
wa

sh
er

s

In
st

al
le

d 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
r
e
a
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
 W
a
t
e
r
 F
a
c
t
o
r
 £
 6

Al
l I

ns
ta

ll
ed

 c
lo

th
es

 w
as

he
rs

 m
us
t 
co
mp
ly
 w
it
h 
th
e 

Ph
ot
o 
of
 in

st
al

le
d 
lo
w 
fl
ow
 f
ix

tu
re

s a
nd
 c
ut
 s
he

et
s 

TJ
H 
to
 s
pe
c

st
at

ed
 W
a
t
e
r
 F
ac

to
r 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
.

W
5
.
2

2
 j

Ta
nk

le
ss

, 
bo

il
er

, o
r 
re
ci
rc
ul
at
in
g 
ho

t 
wa
te
r 
he
el
er
s

In
st
al
l 
o
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 t
a
n
k
l
e
s
s
 h
o
t
 w
a
t
e
r
 h
e
a
t
e
r
s
 o
r
 h
o
t

w
a
t
e
r
 r
ec

lr
cu

la
tl

on
 s
y
s
t
e
m

P
h
o
t
o
 o
f
 I
ns
ta
ll
ed
 t
a
n
k
l
e
s
s
 w
a
t
e
r
 h
e
a
l
e
r
s
 a
n
d
 c
u
t

sh
ee
ts
 o
r 
sc
he
ma
ti
cs
 o
f 
re

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 
sy

st
em

1
 2 

1 
1 

1 
2
 

1 
1F
lo

ri
da

 W
a
i
e
r
S
t
a
r
*
*
'
C
e
r
t
i
n
c
a
t
l
o
n

1 M
ee
t 
or
 e
xc

ee
d 
Fl
or
id
a 
Wa
te
rS
ta
r*
* s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
1IC
op

v 
of

 Fl
or
id
a 
Wa
le
rS
ta
r"
 Ce

rt
rT
ic
at
e

If
ES
 n
ot
 fa

mi
li
ar
 w
/
 st

an
da

rd

S
I
T
E
 (R

eq
ui

te
d 
Ca

te
go

ry
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 S
)

C
R
E
D
I
T
S

T
O
T
A
L

A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E

A
C
M
I
E
V
E
O
 

P
O
S
S
I
B
L
E
 

N
A

2
4
 

8
Po
in
ts
 B
e
l
o
w
 C
at

eg
or

y 
Ml
nl
mu
tT
t

C
R
E
D
I
T

R
E
Q
U
I
R
E
M
E
N
T
S

S
U
B
M
I
T
T
A
L

P
R
E
R
E
Q
U
I
S
I
T
E
S

S
P
l
 

S
t
O
i
J
I
P
c
D

E
r
o
s
i
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
e
d
i
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 C
o
n
t
r
o
l

S
P
2
 

R
E
Q
I
I
I
R
E
O

Co
py
 o
f 
St
or
mw
al
er
 P
ol
lu
ti
on
 P
re
ve
nt
io
n 
Pl
an
 (
S
W
P
P
P
)
 K
ee
p 
co
py
 o
f 
S
W
P
P
P
 &
 F
DE
P 
Na

ti
on

al
 P
ol
lu
ta
nt
 

Co
py
 o
f 
No

ti
ce

 o
f 
In

te
nt

an
d 
Fl

or
id

a 
De
pa
rt
me
nt
 o
f 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 
Di
sc
ha
rg
e 
El

im
in

at
io

n 
Sy
st
em
 (
N
P
D
E
S
)
 No

ti
ce

 o
f 
In
te
nt

(F
DE

P)
 No

ti
ce

 o
f 
In
te
nt
 (N
Oi
) o

ns
it
e 

(N
OI
) o

ns
lt
e 
fo

r 
co
nt
ra
ct
or
 t
o 
Im
pl
em
en
t 
&
 m
ai

nt
ai

n
S
W
P
P
P
 B
es

t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 (
B
M
P
)
 as
 d
es
ig
ne
d

b
y
 c
iv
il
 e
ng

in
ee

r 
or

 S
W
P
P
P
 d
es
lg
tw
r.

D
E
S
I
G
N
A
T
E
D
 P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S

lO
ce

an
 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 t
o 
pr

ov
id

e 
S
W
P
P
P
 &
 E
ro

si
on

 C
on
tr
ol

De
si

gn
 a
 s
ed

im
en

t 
an
d 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l 
pl
an
, s

pe
ci
fi
c t

o 
Co
py
 o
f 
er

ts
si

on
 c
on

tr
ol

 p
la
n,
 si

te
 d
et
ai
ls
 a
nd
 p
ho
to
s 

Oc
ea

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
to
 p
ro

vi
de

 S
W
P
P
 6
 Er

os
io

n 
Co
nt
ro
l

t
h
e
 s
it

e 
t
h
a
t
 c
o
n
f
o
r
m
s
 t
o
 U
n
i
t
e
d
 S
t
a
t
e
s
 E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l

Pr
ot

ec
ti

on
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 (
E
P
A
)
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 N
o
.
 E
P
A
 8
32

/R
-9

2-

C
O
S
 (S
ep

te
mb

er
 1
99

2)
, S
to
rm
 W
a
t
e
r
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 f
or

Co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 A
ct
iv
it
ie
s,
 C
ha

pt
er

 3
. O
R
 l
oc

al
 e
ro
si
on
 a
n
d

se
di
me
nt
at
io
n 
co
nt
ro
l 
st

an
da

rd
s 
a
n
d
 c
o
d
e
s
,
 w
h
i
c
h
e
v
e
r

Is
 m
o
r
e
 s
tr
in
ge
nt
. 
Th

e 
pl
an
 s
ha
ll
 n
se

et
 t
he

 f
ol
lo
wi
ng

ob
je
ct
iv
es
;

•
 Pr
ev

en
t 
lo
ss
 o
f 
so
il
 d
ur

in
g 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 b
y

s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 r
un
of
f 
at
td
/o
r 
w
i
n
d
 e
ro
si
on
. 
In
cl
ud
in
g

pr
ot
ec
ti
ng
 t
op
so
il
 b
y 
st

oc
kp

il
in

g 
fo
r 
re

us
e.

•
 P
re

ve
nt

 s
e
d
l
m
e
n
t
a
t
l
o
n
o
f
 s
t
o
r
m
 s
e
w
e
r
 o
r
 r
ec
ei
vi
ng

st
re

am
s 
an
d/
or
 a
ir

 p
ol
lu
ti
on
 w
it

h 
du

st
 a
n
d
 p
an
ic
ul
at
e



Se
le

ct
 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 S
it

e
D
o
 n
o
t
 d
e
v
e
b
p
 o
n
:
 P
r
i
m
e
 f
a
r
m
l
a
n
d
,
 fl

oo
d 
p
r
o
n
e
 a
re
as
. 

Si
te

 s
u
r
v
e
y
 a
n
d
 G
o
o
g
l
e
 e
ar

th
 m
a
p

ha
bi
ta
t 
fo
r 
th
re
at
en
ed
 s
pe

ci
es

, 
w
K
h
I
n
 1
0
0
 f
ee

t 
o
f

we
tl
ar
td
s,
 p
ub
li
c 
pa
rk
la
nd

Bu
il

d 
wi

th
in

 a
n
 F
G
B
C
 c
er
ti
fi
ed
 G
r
e
e
n
 L
oc
al
 G
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
N
a
m
e
 o
f
 l
oc

al
 g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t

Bu
il

d 
wi

th
in

 a
n
 F
G
B
C
 c
er
ti
fi
ed
 G
r
e
e
n
 l
a
n
d
 

N
a
m
e
 o
f
 l
an
d 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t

D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t

Pr
oj

ec
t 
ha

s 
a 
mi
ni
mu
m 
of

 3
0
 dv

re
ll
in
g 
un
it
s 
pe
r 
ac

re
. 

iN
um
be
r 
of

 un
it
s 
pe
r 
ac

re

K
K
/
G
r
a
h
a
m
 t
o
 c
on

fi
rm

K
K
 -
 r
ef
er
 t
o
 t
on

in
g 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 s
h
e
e
t
 A
l
.
O
O

Gr
ey
fi
el
d 
Re

de
ve

lo
pn

>e
nt

Lo
ca
te
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
o
n
 a
 s
it

e 
th

at
 h
as

 e
xt

sl
in

g

h
a
r
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o
r 
ot

he
r 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
th
at
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 r
ep

la
ce

d.
 T
o

ac
hi
ev
e 
th
is
 c
re
di
t,
 t
he
 s
it

e 
m
u
s
t
 h
av

e 
ut

il
it

v

co
nn

ec
ti

on
s 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
wi

th
in

 1
/
S
 m
il
e 
b
o
u
n
d
a
r
y
.

C
o
p
y
 o
f 
a 
si
te
pl
an
 w
it

h 
th
e 
ex

is
ti

ng
 c
on
di
ti
on
s

S
c
o
t
t
 t
o
 R
e
v
i
e
w

Br
ow

nf
le

ld
 R
e
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t

D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 o
f
 a
n
y
 E
P
A
 o
r
 f
ed

er
al

/s
ta

te
/l

oc
al

g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 cl

as
si
fi
ed
 b
ro

wn
fl

el
d 
a
n
d
 p
ro
vi
de

re
me
di
at
io
n 
a
s
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
b
y
 E
P
A
'
s
 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

R
e
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 o
f
 B
ro

wn
fi

el
ds

 P
r
o
g
r
a
m
.

Pr
ov

id
e 
a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
h
e
 P
h
a
s
e
 1
1 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 S
it

e

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
 O
R
 a
 l
et

te
r 
f
r
o
m
 a
 l
oc
al
, s
ta

te
 o
r 
fe
de
ra
l

re
gu

la
to

ry
ag

en
cy

co
nf

ir
ml

ng
 t
ha
t 
t
h
e
 s
it

e 
Is

 c
la
ss
if
ie
d

a
s
 a
 b
r
o
w
n
f
l
e
l
d

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 B
as

ic
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
{C
on
ne
ct
iv
it
y)

1
 p
oi
nt
 a
w
a
r
d
e
d
 f
or
 e
a
c
h
 3
 u
n
i
q
u
e
 s
er
vi
ce
s

Pu
bl

ic
 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 
A
c
c
e
s
s

M
m
l
m
l
t
e
 S
it
e 
D
i
s
t
u
r
b
a
n
c
e

Lo
ca
te
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
on
 a
 s
it

e 
th
at
 is

 w
it

hi
n 
1/

2 
mi
le
 o
f,

 
Ae

ri
al

 c
on

te
xt

 m
a
p
 w
it

h 
bu

il
di

ng
 l
oc

at
io

n,
 an

d 
lo
ca
ti
on
 
KK

 ■
 r
ef

er
to

 z
on
in
g 
pa

ck
ag

e 
sh

ee
t 
A1

.0
2

a
n
d
 h
a
s
 s
af
e 
a
n
d
 w
al

ka
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o,
 b
as

ic
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
{t

hi
s 
a
n
d
 t
yp

e 
o
f
 b
as

ic
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
wi

th
in

 K
 m
il

e.

ca
n 
be
 m
ea

su
re

d 
as
 t
he
 c
ro
w 

fl
ie
s)
. 
Ea

ch
 t
yp

e 
of

se
rv
ic
e 
m
a
y
 o
nl

y 
b
e
 c
o
u
n
t
e
d
 o
n
c
e
.
 I.

e.
 I
f t
he
re
 a
re
 3

ba
nk

s,
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o
f 
th

is
 C
he

ck
li

st
 t
ha

t 
Is

 e
qu
al
 t
o

O
N
E
 s
er

vi
ce

, 
P
l
e
a
s
e
 r
ef
er
 t
o
 t
h
e
 R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 G
u
i
d
e
 f
o
r
 a

li
st
 o
f
 s
er

vi
ce

s.

Si
te

 I
s 
lo
ca
te
d 
wi

th
in

 l
/
2
m
l
l
e
o
f
 a
n
 e
xi

st
in

g 
o
r
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

Re
gi
on
al
/l
oc
al
 d
r
a
w
i
n
g
 o
r
 t
ra

ns
it

 m
a
p
 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
in

g 
t
h
e
 

K
K
 c
o
n
f
i
r
m
e
d

ra
il
 n
od

e 
O
R
 w
it

hi
n 
1/
4 
of

 m
il

e 
sa
fe
 a
nd

 w
al

ka
bl

e 
bu
il
di
ng
 l
oc
at
io
n 
a
n
d
 t
he
 f
ix

ed
 r
ai
l 
st

at
io

ns
 a
nd

 b
us

ac
ce

ss
 t
o
 m
a
s
s
 t
ra
ns
it
 o
f
 a
t
 l
ea

st
 1
 a
ct

iv
e 
b
u
s
 s
to

p,
 

li
ne
s,
 a
n
d
 i
nd

ic
at

e 
t
h
e
 d
is

ta
nc

es
 b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 t
h
e
m
.
 I
nc

lu
de

tr
ol
le
y 
or

 r
id
e 
s
h
a
r
e
 (
th
is
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m
e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
r
o
w
 

a 
sc

al
e 
ba

r 
fo
r 
di
st
an
ce
 m
e
a
s
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
.

fl
ie
s)
,

T
r
e
e
 P
r
e
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n

Pr
ot

ec
t 
ex

is
ti

ng
 t
re
es
 d
ur

in
g 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 o
f 
pr

oj
ec

t 
by

 J
Tr

ee
/n

at
iv

e 
pl
an
t 
Id
en
ti
fi
ca
ti
on
 s
ur

ve
y 
an
d 
ph

ot
o 
or

e
m
p
l
o
y
i
n
g
 t
he
 f
ol

to
wi

ng
 t
ec
hn
iq
ue
s 
t
o
 a
t 
le
as
t 
3
6

In
ch

es
 o
f 
tr
ee
 c
al

ip
er

 m
ea
su
re
d 
at
 c
he
st
 h
ei
gh
t 
{i
.e
.

nl
ne
d-
in
ch
 t
re
es
, t
hr

ee
 1
2-
in
ch
 t
re
es
, 
et

c.
] 
p
e
r
 a
cr
e.

R
e
f
e
r
 t
o
 F
G
B
C
 R
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 G
u
i
d
e
 f
o
r
 a
ll
 a
e
d
l
t

r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
.

o
t
h
e
r
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 o
f
 e
a
c
h
 t
ec

hn
iq

ue
. 
Fo
r 
mu

lt
i-

fa
mi

ly
 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 tr

ee
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
sh
al
l 
be
 s
h
o
w
n
 o
n
 t
he

si
te

 p
la
n 
o
r
 o
n
 a
 t
re

e 
s
u
n
/
e
y
 w
it

h 
de
ta
il
s 
o
n
 t
h
e

dr
aw
in
gs
 o
ut

li
ni

ng
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
st
ra
te
gi
es
, 
ba

rr
ic

ad
es

,

fe
nc

in
g,

 a
n
d
 a
r
e
a
s
 o
f
 p
ro

te
ct

io
n.

Si
te
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e

Bi
cy

cl
e 
S
t
o
r
a
g
e

T
h
e
 m
a
x
i
m
u
m
 s
qu
ar
e 
fo

ot
ag

e 
of
 t
he
 s
it

e 
th

at
 m
a
y
b
e
 

C
o
p
y
o
f
 p
ro
je
ct
 s
it

e 
In

di
ca

ti
ng

 b
ui
ld
in
g 
fo

ot
pr

in
t,

 s
qu
ar
e 
KK

 -
 r
ef
er
 t
o 
zo

ni
ng

 p
ac
ka
ge
 A
l.

Ol
A,
 Al

.O
O,

 A
2.

00
,

di
st
ur
be
d,
 ex

cl
ud
in
g 
th

e 
bu
il
di
ng
 f
oo
tp
ri
nt
, 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 
le
ss
 f
oo

ta
ge

of
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
fo

ot
pr

in
t 
an

d 
ou
tl
in
in
g 
si

te
 c
le
an
in
g 

A2
.0

0A

t
h
a
n
 o
r
 e
q
u
a
l
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
u
l
U
i
r
^
 f
oo
tp
ri
nt
. 

op
er
at
io
n 
bo
un
da
ri
es
 a
n
d
 s
ta

gi
ng

 a
re

as
. 
Pr

ov
id

e

p
h
o
t
o
s
 o
f
 s
it

e 
d
e
m
o
n
s
t
r
a
t
i
n
g
 m
i
n
i
m
a
l
 s
it

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e.

Ex
ce

ed
 m
in
im
um
 z
on

in
g 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 fo

r o
pe

n 
sp
ac
e |
 

Pr
ov

id
e 
a 
si
te
 p
la

n 
wi
th
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g f

oo
tp

ri
nt

, s
qu
ar
e 

Ik
k •

 re
fe
r t

o z
on

in
g 
pa
ck
ag
e 
A2

.0
0 (

li
st
 of

 tr
ee

s-
TB

D)
f
o
o
t
a
g
e
 o
f
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
fo

ot
pr

in
t (
or
 a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
h
e
 l
oc

al

zo
ni

ng
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
)
 th
at
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
e

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o
p
e
n
 s
pa

ce
 a
nd

 l
an
ds
ca
pe
 p
la
n.
 A
ls
o

pr
ov
id
e 
a
 l
is
t o
f
tr

ee
s 
a
n
d
 t
he
ir
 p
ro
je
ct
ed
 c
a
n
o
p
i
e
s
 a
ft

er

1
0
 y
e
a
r
s
.

Pr
oj
ec
t 
m
u
s
t
 p
ro
vi
de
 s
ec

ur
in

g 
lo
ca
ti
on
s 
fo
r 
bi

cy
de

s 
fo
r 

Pr
ov
id
e 
si

te
 p
la
n 
id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
bi

ke
 s
to
ra
ge
, c
ut

 s
he

et
 o
f 

TJ
H 
be

li
ev

es
 t
he

re
 is

 s
pa

ce
 f
or
 s
to
ra
ge
 I
n 
b
a
s
e
m
e
n
t

S
K
 o
f 
to
ta
l o
cc

up
an

ts
 

bi
ke

 r
ac

k,
 a
n
d
 p
ho
to
 o
f 
In
st
al
le
d 
bi

ke
 s
to
ra
ge



Al
le
ma
th
/e
 F
ue

l 
Re

fu
el

in
g 
St
at
io
ns

P
a
r
k
i
n
g
 C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y

A
u
t
o
m
a
t
e
d
 P
ar
ki
ng

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
2
0
K
 r
oo
f 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e

2
 p
oi

nt
: 
A
O
S
 r
oo
f 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e

3
 p
oi

nt
: 
6
0
%
 r
oo
f 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e

4
 p
o
i
n
t
:
 8
0
%
 r
o
o
f
 c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e

Sh
ad
ed
, C

ov
er
ed
, 
or
 H
ig
h 
Al

be
do

 H
ar

ds
ca

pe

2
 p
oi

nt
: 
4
0
%
 h
ar
ds
ca
pe
 c
ov

er
ag

e

3
 p
oi

nt
: 
6
0
%
 h
a
r
d
s
c
a
p
e
 c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e

4
 p
oi

nt
: 
8
0
%
 h
ar

ds
ca

pe
 c
ov
er
ag
e

'r
ov
ld
e 
pr
ef
er
re
d 
pa
rk
in
g 
fo

r 
3
%
 o
f 
th

e 
pa
rk
in
g

ca
pa

ci
ty

 f
or

 t
he
 u
se
 o
f 
lo
w-
em
it
ti
ng
, f

ue
l-
ef
fi
ci
en
t 
a
n
d

si
gh
 o
cc
up
an
cy
 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 P
re
fe
rr
ed
 p
ar
ki
ng
 s
pa
ce
s 
m
a
y

al
so

 i
nc
lu
de
 c
ha

rg
in

g 
st

at
io

ns
 f
or
 el

ec
tr

ic
 v
eh

ic
le

s.

Pl
an
 i
de

nt
if

yi
ng

 l
oc

at
io

n 
o
f
 p
re
fe
rr
ed
 p
ar

ki
ng

,

de
sc

ri
pt

io
n 
of
 c
ha

rg
in

g 
ap

pa
ra

tu
s 
an

d 
ph

ot
os

 o
f

in
st

al
le

d 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t

'a
rk

in
g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o
n
 s
it

e 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 
eq
ua
l 
to
 o
r 
le
ss
 t
ha
n

re
qu
ir
ed
 b
y
 l
oc
al
 j
ur
is
di
ct
io
n.
 D
e
s
i
g
n
 t
e
a
m
 m
u
s
t
 w
o
r
k

wi
th

 t
he
 l
oc

al
 Ju

ri
sd
ic
ti
on
 t
o 
re

du
ce

 t
he
 t
yp

ic
al

ly

re
qu

ir
ed

 p
ar
ki
ng
 b
y 
pr

op
os

in
g 
sh

ar
ed

 p
ar
ki
ng
 o
ro

th
er

m
u
l
t
i
m
o
d
a
l
 t
ra
ns
po
rt
at
io
n 
m
e
t
h
o
d
s
.

Pr
ov

id
e 
a
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
 o
f
 t
h
e
 z
on

in
g 
re

qu
ir

ed
 p
ar

ki
ng

sp
ac

es
, a
 l
et
te
r f
r
o
m
 t
he
 l
oc

al
 Ju

ri
sd
ic
ti
on
 i
nd

ic
at

in
g 
th
e

pr
oj

ec
ts

 p
ar
ki
ng
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
s 
a
n
d
 a
 s
it

e 
pl

an
 w
it

h 
a

to
ta
l 
pa

rk
in

g 
c
o
u
n
t
.

A
u
t
o
m
a
t
e
d
 p
ar

ki
ng

 S
y
s
t
e
m
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
s
 i
nc
lu
de
 e
le
va
to
rs
,

if
ts
, o
r
 ]
t
>
0
%
 v
a
l
e
t
 p
a
r
k
i
n
g
.

D
e
t
a
S
 a
n
d
 d
es
cr
ip
ti
on
 o
f
 p
la

n 
a
n
d
 s
y
s
t
e
m

^
^ 

_
J

K
K
 •
 r
ef
er
 t
o
 t
on

in
g 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 A
l
.
O
O

KK
 •
 r
ef
er
 t
o 
to

ni
ng

 p
ac
ka
ge
 -
 li

ft
 s
ys

te
m

U
s
e
 E
N
E
R
G
Y
 S
T
A
R
 r
oo
f-
co
mp
li
an
t,
 h
^h

-r
ef

le
ct

an
ce

 
Pr
ov
id
e 
a
 r
oo
f 
dr

aw
in

g 
wi

th
 a
re
a 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns
 a
nd

 c
ut

A
N
D
 h
ig

h 
em
is
si
vl
ty
 r
oo
fi
ng
 (
fo
r 
lo
w 
sl
op
e 
ro

of
s:

 in
it
ia
l 

sh
ee
ts
 f
or

 t
he
 m
at
er
ia
ls
 u
se

d,

re
fl

ec
ta

nc
e 
of
 a
t 
le
as
t 0

.6
5 
an

d 
3-
ye
ar
-a
ge
d 
re

fl
ec

ta
nc

e

o
f
 a
t
 l
e
a
s
t
 O
.
S
 w
h
e
n
 t
e
s
t
e
d
 I
n 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 w
i
t
h
 A
S
T
M

E
9
0
3
a
n
d
 e
mi

ss
iv

lt
y 
of
 a
t 
le
as
t 0

.9
 w
h
e
n
 t
es
te
d 
in

a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 w
i
t
h
 A
S
T
M
 4
0
8
;
 f
o
r
 s
t
e
e
p
 s
l
o
p
e
 r
oo
fs
: 
in

it
ia

l

re
fl

ec
ta

nc
e 
o
f
 a
t 
le
as
t 
0
.
2
5
 a
n
d
 3
-y
ea
r-
ag
ed
 r
ef
le
ct
an
ce

o
f
 a
t
 l
ea
st
 0
.
1
5
 w
h
e
n
 t
e
s
t
e
d
 I
n 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 w
i
t
h
 A
S
T
M

£
9
0
3
 a
n
d
 e
mi
ss
iv
it
y 
o
f
 a
t 
le
as
t 
0
.
9
 w
h
e
n
 t
es
te
d 
in

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
it

h 
A
S
T
M
 4
08
).
 A
lt

er
na

ti
ve

ly
 r
oo

f

ma
te

ri
al

s 
m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
 L
R
V
 i
 S
O)

; 
O
R
 I
ns
ta
ll
 a
 '
g
r
e
e
n
'

(v
eg

et
at

ed
) 
ro
of
 O
R
 c
om

bi
na

ti
on

s 
of

 h
ig

h 
al
be
do
 a
nd

ve
ge
ta
te
d 
ro

of
 c
an
 b
e 
us

ed
 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 t
he
y 
co

ll
ec

ti
ve

ly

co
ve
r 
th
e 
ro

of
 a
re

a.
 (
Am
en
it
y 
de
ck
s 
an

d 
fi

ni
sh

ed
 r
oo
f

t
e
r
r
a
c
e
s
 s
ha
ll
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r
 C
r
e
d
i
t
 4
.
2
:

H
a
r
d
s
c
a
p
e
)

•
 i
.
7
>
m

KK
 -
 r
ef
er
 t
o 
to

ni
ng

 p
ac
ka
ge
 S
he

et
 A
3.

05
. 
A3

.0
7

Sh
ad
e,
 c
ov
er
 o
r 
us
e 
hi

gh
 a
lb
ed
o 
ha
rd
sc
ap
e 
fo

r 
a

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 4
0
%
 o
f
 t
he
 s
it

e 
ha
rd
sc
ap
e.
 F
or

 t
he

pu
rp
os
e 
of

 th
is
 c
re
di
t 
si

te
 h
ar
ds
ca
pe
 i
nc
lu
de
s 
ro

ad
s,

si
de
wa
lk
s,
 c
ou
rt
ya
rd
s,
 a
m
e
n
i
t
y
 d
ec
ks
, 
a
n
d
 p
ar

ki
ng

 l
ot
s.

A
r
e
a
s
 s
q
u
a
r
e
 f
oo
ta
ge
 t
ha
t 
m
a
y
 b
e
 i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 t
hi

s

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n 
ar
e 
h
a
r
d
s
c
a
p
e
 s
ha
di
ng
 b
y
 t
re

es
 (w
it

hi
n 
1
0

ye
ar

s,
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 w
it
h 
ro
of
 m
at
er
ia
ls
 w
it
h 
a 
SR
I 
2
 7
8
 o
r

a
 L
R
V
 2
 5
0
,
 st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 o
r
 h
a
r
d
s
c
a
p
e
 w
it

h 
a 
SR

I 
>

3
5
.
 T
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
fo
ot
pr
in
t,
 i
.e

..
 s
q
u
a
r
e
 f
oo

ta
ge

 o
f
 r
oo
f.

Is
 N
O
T
 c
on
si
de
re
d 
ha

rd
sc

ap
e 
un
le
ss
 u
se
d 
as

 a
 r
oo
ft
op

te
rr
ac
e 
a
m
e
n
i
t
y
.
 
Ha
rd
sc
ai
se
 s
h
a
d
e
d
 b
y
 p
ho

to
vo

lt
ai

c

pa
ne
ls
 o
ro

th
er

 s
ys
te
ms
 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
ge
ne
ra
ti
ng
 e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

c
a
n
 b
e
 I
tK

hi
de

d 
in

 t
h
e
 s
h
a
d
e
 s
q
u
a
r
e
 f
oo
ta
ge
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on

a
n
d
 a
re

 e
x
e
m
p
t
 f
r
o
m
 m
ee
ti
ng
 t
ti
e 
SR
I 
2
 7
8

r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
.

Pr
ov

id
e 
a 

si
te

 p
la

n 
id
en
ti
fy
in
g 
al

l t
he
 s
it

e f
ea

tu
re

s 
an
d 
a 

UR
- 
w
e
 h
av
e 
mo
re
 C
ha
n 
6
0
%
 c
ov
er
ag
e 
by

 s
ha

de
/c

an
op

y

cu
t 
sh

ee
t 
fo

r a
ny

 r
ef
le
ct
iv
e 
ma

te
ri

al
s 
us
ed
 t
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 

ba
se

d 
o
n
U
R
.
 T
he
y 
su
gg
es
t 
w
e
 c
an
 a
ch
ie
ve
 8
0
%
 b
y 
th
e

th
is

 c
re
di
t.
 

se
le
ct
io
n 
o
f
 t
h
e
 a
rt
if
ic
ia
l 
w
o
o
d
 f
in

is
h 
co

lo
r 
t
o
 b
e
 h
ig

h

a
l
b
e
d
o

U
n
d
e
r
 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Pa
rk
in
g

Bu
il

di
ng

 E
xt
er
io
T

A
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
5
0
%
 o
f 
th

e 
pa
rk
in
g 
sh
al
l 
be
 l
oc
at
ed
 

Pl
an

 d
et

ai
ls

 f
or
 p
ro

je
ct

 p
ar
ki
ng

u
n
d
e
r
 (
h
e
 b
ui

ld
in

g

To
qu

al
if

y 
fo

r 
th

is
 c
re

di
t,

 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
o
f
 8
0
%
o
f
 t
he
 

Pr
ov
id
e 
a
 c
ut

 s
he

et
 o
f 
th
e 
ex

te
ri

or
 w
al

l 
co
at
ln
g/
pa
in
t

ex
te
ri
or
wa
ll
 su

rf
ac
e 
ar
ea
 m
in

us
 t
he
 g
la

zi
ng

 m
us
t 
ha

ve
 
an
d 
an

y 
sh
ad
in
g 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns
 o
f c

la
im

ed
.

a
 L
R
V
 >
 6
0
 f
or
 s
tu

cc
o 
a
n
d
 p
ai
nt
ed
 a
ll
 f
in

is
he

s,
 a
 S
RI

 2
 2
9

fo
r 
me
ta
l 
an

d 
vi

ny
l.

 N
at

ur
al

 a
n
d
 m
a
n
 m
a
d
e
 s
to

ne
pr
od
uc
ts
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 l
ig

ht
 I
n 
co

lo
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
a
r
a
b
l
e
 t
o
 L
R
V

>
6
0
 p
a
l
m
.

iL
ig

ht
 P
ol
lu
tl
ot
r 
Re

du
et

io



Bu
il

di
ng

, s
me
nl
tv
 d
ec
k,
 an
d 

si
te

 l
ig

ht
in

g 
ar

e 
da

rk
 s
ky

c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
t

D
o
 n
o
t
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
ig

ht
 l
ev

el
s 
a
n
d
 u
ni

fo
rm

it
y 
ra

ti
os

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
sp

ec
if

ic
at

io
ns

, c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
de
ta
il
 a
n
d
 l
ig
ht
in
g 

U
R
 b
el
ie
ve
s 
th

is
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
b
y
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e

r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y 
th

e 
Il

lu
mi

na
ti

ng
 E
ng
in
ee
ri
ng
 S
oc
ie
ty
 

cu
t 
sh
ee
ts
 i
nd

ic
at

in
g 
da

rk
 s
ky
 c
om
pl
ia
nc
e.
 

re
gu

la
ti

on
s 
fo

r 
th
e 
fi

sh
 &
 w
il

dl
if

e 
fo

r 
tu
rt
le
 l
ig

ht
in

g

o
f
 N
o
r
t
h
 A
m
e
r
i
c
a
 (
i
E
S
N
A
)
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 P
ra
ct
ic
e

M
a
n
u
a
l
:
 L
ig
ht
in
g 
fo

r 
Ex

te
ri

or
 E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
s
 (
RP

-3
3-

99
).

De
si
gn
 e
xt

er
io

r 
li
gh
ti
ng
 s
u
c
h
 t
ha
t 
ai
l 
ex

te
ri

or
 l
um
in
ai
re
s

wi
th

 m
o
r
e
 t
h
a
n
 I
CX

X)
 In
Ri

al
 l
a
m
p
 l
u
m
e
n
s
 a
re
 s
hi
el
de
d

a
n
d
 a
ll
 l
um
in
ai
re
s 
wi

th
 m
o
r
e
 t
h
a
n
 3
5
0
0
 in

it
ia
l 
l
a
m
p

l
u
m
e
n
s
 m
e
e
t
 t
h
e
 F
ul
l 
C
u
t
o
f
f
 I
E
S
N
A
 C
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n,

 if
 t
h
e

bu
lb

 e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 2
6
W
 t
h
e
 l
ig
ht
s 
sh
al
l 
b
e
 f
ul

l 
cu

t-
of

f

lu
mi

na
ir

es
 s
o 
th

at
 n
o
 l
^h

t 
or
 b
ri
gh
tn
es
s 
f
r
o
m
 t
ho

se

lu
mi

na
ir

es
 c
ro

ss
es

 t
he
 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
b
o
u
n
d
a
r
y
.

R
f
f
i
S
T
i
f
U
Z
:
 r.

Vr
 

11

Ra
te

 a
n
d
 Q
ua

nt
it

y
N
o
 n
et
 I
nc

re
as

e 
In
 S
to

rm
wa

te
r 
ru

no
ff

 f
ro

m 
pr
e-
 

i

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

on
di
ti
on
s t

o 
po
st
-d
ev
el
op
me
nt
 

1Ci
vi
l 
En
gi
ne
er
in
g 
s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
s 
a
n
d
 n
ar
ra
ti
ve

ex
pl
ai
ni
ng
 h
o
w
 t
he
 d
es
ig
n 
Im
pr
ov
es
 t
he
 w
at
er
 q
ua
li
ty

O
c
e
a
n
 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 -
 c
on
fi
rm
ed

Li
tt

or
al

Ve
ge

ta
tl

on

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 
S
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 D
et
en
ti
on
: 
Ra
in
 G
a
r
d
e
n
s
,

In
fi
lt
ra
ti
on
 T
ei
tc
he
s,
 R
a
i
n
w
a
t
e
r
 f
fa
rv
es
ti
ng
, a
n
d

In
je

ct
io

n 
We

ll
s.

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
S
O
K
 o
f
 s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 u
si

ng
 U
D

2
 p
oi

nt
s:

 
of
 s
to

rm
wa

te
r 
co
ll
ec
te
d 
us
in
g 
LI
D

3
 p
oi
nt
s:
 I
O
C
S
 o
f
 s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 c
o
D
e
c
t
e
d
 u
si

ng
 L
ID

Pe
rv
io
us
 H
a
r
d
s
c
a
p
e

Tr
ea
t 
St

or
mw

at
er

 f
ro

m 
Ad

ja
ce

nt
 S
it

es

H
E
A
L
T
H
 (
Re

qu
ir

ed
 C
at

eg
or

y 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 1
0)

T
O
T
A
L

A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E

A
C
H
I
E
V
E
D
 

P
O
S
S
I
B
L
E
 

N
A

3
4
 

1
2

Pr
ov
id
e 
on

sl
te

 t
re

at
me

nt
 o
f 
st

or
mw

at
er

 t
o 
r
e
m
o
v
e
 

Ci
vi
l 
en
gi
ne
er
in
g 
st

or
mw

at
er

 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

s 
an

d 
na

rr
at

iv
e

SO
tf
 o
f
 (
T
S
S
)
 To

ta
l 
S
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 S
ol
id
s 
a
n
d
 d
O
K
 o
f
 

ex
pl
ai
ni
ng
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 d
es

ig
n 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
s
 t
h
e
 w
a
t
e
r
 q
ua
li
ty

(
T
P
)
T
o
t
a
l
 P
h
o
s
p
h
o
r
o
u
s

U
s
e
 l
it

to
ra

l 
ve
ge
ta
ti
on
 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 p
o
n
d
s
 -
 
Pl
an
t 

li
st
 a
n
d
 d
et

en
ti

on
 p
o
n
d
 d
es

ig
n,

a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
7S

?i
 o
f 
th
e 
sh
or
el
in
e 
(c
al
cu
la
te
d 
ba

se
d

o
n
 p
e
r
c
e
n
t
a
g
e
 o
f
 l
in

ea
r 
fe

et
 o
f
 s
ho
re
li
ne
) 
sh

al
l 
b
e

ve
ge
ta
te
d 
wi
th
 l
it

to
ra

l 
pl
an
ts
.

U
s
e
s
 l
o
w
 I
m
p
a
c
t
 D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 (
LI

D)
 al

te
rn
at
iv
es
 t
o
 

Si
te

 d
e
s
^
n
.
 s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
s 
a
n
d
 c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n

co
ll
ec
t 
ai
>d
 t
re
at
 s
to

rm
wa

te
r.

 A
lt
er
na
ti
ve
 s
ys
te
ms
 t
ha

t 
de
ta
il
s 
of
 l
ow
 I
mp

ac
t 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 
de

s^
ns

.

qu
al
if
y 
in
cl
ud
e 
ra

in
 g
a
r
d
e
n
s
,
 b
lo

-r
et

en
tl

on
 R
Lt

ra
tl

on

sy
st
em
s,
 in

ri
lt
ra
ti
on
 t
re

nc
he

s,
 ve

ge
ta
te
d 
ro

of
in

g 
an

d

in
je

ct
io

n 
we
ll
s.
 A
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 S
D
K
 o
f
 t
h
e
 s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r

co
ll

ec
ti

on
 a
n
d
 t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 m
u
s
t
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
 I
m
p
a
c
t

d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 t
o
 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
hi
s 
cr
ed
it
.

E
a
r
n
 o
n
e
 p
o
i
n
t
 i
f 5
0
%
 o
f
t
h
e
 s
it

e 
s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 i
s

c
o
B
e
c
t
e
d
 u
si

ng
 l
o
w
 U
D
 t
ec
hn
iq
ue
s.
 E
ar

n 
a
n
 a
dd
it
io
na
l

po
in

t 
fo

r 
ea
ch
 a
dd
it
io
na
l 
2
5
%
 o
f 
to
ta
l 
si

te
 s
to
rm
wa
te
r

th
at
 is

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 u
si
ng
 U
D
 t
ec
hn
iq
ue
s.

In
st
al
l 
pe
rv
io
us
 h
ar
ds
ca
pe
 f
or
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
2
5
%
 o
f 
th

e 
Si

te
 d
ra

wi
ng

 w
it
h 
pe
rv
io
us
 h
ar
ds
ca
pe
 i
de

nt
if

ie
d 
an

d 
cu

t 
U
R
 c
an
 i
nc
lu
de
 h
ar
ds
ca
pe
 t
o 
be
 p
er
me
ra
bl
e.
 U
R

ha
rd
sc
ap
e.
 S
it

e 
ha
rd
sc
ap
e 
in
cl
ud
es
 r
oa

ds
, s

id
ew
al
ks
, 

sh
ee

t 
or
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 
pe
rc
ol
at
io
n 
or
 

be
li
ev
es
 t
ha

t 
th
e 
w
o
o
d
 d
ec
k 
wo
ul
d 
be
 c
on
si
de
re
d

co
ur
ty
ar
ds
, a
nd

 p
ar
ki
ng
 l
ot

s.
 H
ar
ds
ca
pe
 m
a
y
 b
e 
po

ro
us

 p
er
vl
ou
sn
es
s.
 

pe
rm

ea
bl

e 
an

d 
ad
ds
 It

se
lf

 a
 4
7
%
 o
f 
th

e 
to
ta
l 
ha

rd
sc

ap
e

pa
ve

rs
 (
o
p
e
n
 g
ri

d 
pa

ve
rs

) o
r
 p
e
r
m
e
a
b
l
e
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
t

(
m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 p
er

co
la

ti
on

 r
at

e 
o
r
2
 g
al

/m
in

/S
F 
a
n
d
 a

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 6
 I
nc
he
s 
o
f
 o
p
e
n
 g
r
a
d
e
d
 b
a
s
e
 b
e
l
o
w
.

Co
ll

ec
t 
a
n
d
 t
re
at
 s
to

rm
wa

te
r 
fr

om
 a
dj

ac
en

t 
pr

op
er

ti
es

 
Ci
vi
l e

ng
in
ee
ri
ng
 s
to

rm
wa

te
r 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns

to
 a
ss
is
t 
In
 c
on
tr
ol
li
ng
 b
ot
h 
th

e 
qu

an
ti

ty
 a
n
d
 q
ua

li
ty

 o
f

st
or

mw
at

er
 i
n 
th

e 
co
mm
un
it
y.
 E
ar
n 
1
 p
oi

nt
 f
or

 e
ac
h

ad
di
ti
on
al
 1
0
%
 o
f
 s
t
o
r
m
w
a
t
e
r
 v
o
l
u
m
e
 t
he
 p
ro

je
ct

 s
it

e

c
a
n
 r
et
ai
n 
a
n
d
 t
re
at
.

Po
in

ts
 B
e
l
o
w
 C
at
eg
or
y 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m

R
E
Q
U
I
R
E
M
E
N
T
S

D
E
S
I
G
N
A
T
E
D
 P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S



H
P
l
 

n
r
n
u
i
f
i
f
o

H
P
2
 

R
r
O
U
I
R
F
l
J

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
To
ba
cc
o 
S
m
o
k
e
 (E
TS
) C

on
tr
ol

N
o
 s
mo

ki
ng

 a
ll

ow
ed

 I
n 
th

e 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
re
as
 o
f 
th
e

bu
il
di
ng
 a
n
d
 o
n
l
y
 I
n 
ou
ts
id
e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
r
e
a
s
 t
ha
t 
ar
e

lo
ca
te
d 
2S
 f
ee

t 
or
 m
o
r
e
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro

m 
al

l d
oo
rs
, o

pe
ra

bl
e

w
i
n
d
o
w
s
,
 H
V
A
C
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
,
 ar

td
 f
re

sh
 a
ir

 i
nt

ak
es

.

Si
te

 p
la
n 
in

di
ca

ti
ng

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 
sm
ok
in
g 
ar

ea
.

Co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 1
A
Q
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 P
la

n,
 D
u
r
i
n
g

C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n

i
n
d
o
o
r
 E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 Q
u
a
l
i
t
y
 s
ha
ll
 b
e
 p
r
o
t
e
c
t
e
d
 d
u
r
i
n
g

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 a
cc
or
di
ng
 t
o
 S
M
A
C
N
A
 g
ui

de
li

ne
s.

Pr
ov

id
e 
c
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
he
 s
pe

ci
fi

ca
ti

on
s 
in
di
ca
ti
ng
 u
s
e
 o
f

S
M
A
C
N
A
 g
ui

de
li

ne
s 
a
n
d
 l
et

te
r 
f
r
o
m
 t
he
 c
on

tr
ac

to
r

si
gn
ed
 b
ot
h 
by

 t
he

 p
ro
je
ct
 m
a
n
a
g
e
r
 a
nd

 H
el
d

su
pe

ri
nt

en
de

nt
 I
nd

ic
at

in
g 
th

ey
 h
av

e 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d 
th
e

S
M
A
C
N
A
 E
ul

de
ii

ne
s,

K
K
 ■

 s
it

e 
h
a
s
 n
o
 s
m
o
k
i
n
g
 a
r
e
a
 {
fu
ll
y 
n
o
 s
m
o
k
i
n
g
 t
o
n
e
)

C
a
r
b
o
n
 D
io
xi
de
 (
C
0
2
)
 M
on

it
or

in

A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 A
r
e
a
s

A
l
 
C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
r
e
a
s

In
di
vi
du
al
 U
n
i
t
s

I
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
d
 V
en
ti
la
ti
on
 E
ff
ec
ti
ve
ne
ss

En
tr

y 
f
r
o
m
 P
r
i
m
a
r
y
 P
ar

ki
ng

Ht
eh

-E
ff

ic
ie

ne
v 
Ai
r 
Fi
lt
ra
ti
on
 S
y
s
t
e
m

C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
r
e
a
s

S
y
s
t
e
m
s
 s
ha

ll
 b
e
 d
e
s
i
g
n
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
i
t
o
r
 c
a
r
b
o
n
 d
io

xi
de

(
C
0
2
}
 w
it

hi
n 
th
e 
bu

il
di

ng
 a
n
d
 a
ct

iv
at

e 
a
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 w
/

co
rr

ec
ti

ve
 a
ct

io
n 
pl

an
 s
u
c
h
 t
ha
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 a
ir

co
nd
it
io
ni
ng
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 c
a
n
 i
nt
ro
du
ce
 t
re
at
ed
 f
re

sh
 a
ir

 a
s

n
e
e
d
e
d
.

S
y
s
t
e
m
s
 s
ha

ll
 b
e
 d
e
s
i
g
n
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
i
t
o
r
 c
a
r
b
o
n
 d
io

xi
de

(
C
0
2
)
 wi
th

in
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
a
n
d
 a
ct

iv
at

e 
a
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 w
it

h

co
rr

ec
ti

ve
 a
ct

io
n 
pl

an
 s
u
c
h
 t
ha
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 a
ir

co
nd
it
io
ni
ng
 s
ys
te
m 
ca
n 
in
tr
od
uc
e 
tr

ea
te

d 
fr

es
h 
ai

r 
as

n
e
e
d
e
d
.

S
y
s
t
e
m
s
 s
ha

ll
 b
e
 d
e
s
i
g
n
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
i
t
o
r
 c
a
r
b
o
n
 d
io

xi
de

(
C
0
2
)
 wi
th

in
 t
he

 b
ui
ld
in
g 
an

d 
ac

ti
va

te
 a
 s
ys
te
m 
wi
th

co
rr

ec
ti

ve
 a
ct

io
n 
pl

an
 s
u
c
h
 t
ha
t 
m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 a
ir

co
nd
it
io
ni
ng
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 c
a
n
 i
nt
ro
du
ce
 t
re
at
ed
 f
re

sh
 a
ir

 a
s

n
e
e
d
e
d
.

Bu
il

di
ng

 s
ys

te
m 
sh
al
l 
be
 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 c
re

at
e 
a
n
 a
ir

ch
an

ge
 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 g
re
at
er
 t
ha
n 
or
 e
qu
al
 t
o 
0.

9 
as

d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 b
y
 A
S
H
R
A
E
 6
2.
1-
20
04
 .
 T
hi

s 
cr
ed
it
 s
ha
ll
 b
e

av
ai
la
bl
e 
fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 i
ns

ta
ll

in
g 
de
hu
mi
di
fi
ca
ti
on

s
y
s
t
e
m
s
.

Co
ns

tr
uc

ti
on

 d
et
ai
l 
o
f
 C
0
2
 m
on
it
or
in
g 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 o
n
 

F
E
S

m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 p
la
ns
 a
n
d
 c
ut

 s
h
e
e
t
 o
f
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t

Co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 d
et

ai
l 
of

 C
0
2
 m
on
it
or
in
g 
sy

st
em

 o
n

m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 p
la

ns
 a
n
d
 c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 o
f
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t

Co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 d
et

ai
l 
of

 C
0
2
 m
on
it
or
in
g 
sy

st
em

 o
n

m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 p
la
ns
 a
n
d
 c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 o
f
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t

Pr
ov

id
e 
de
ta
il
s 
o
n
 m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 p
la
ns
 a
n
d
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 d
es

ig
n

G
C
 t
o
 p
ro

vi
de

Bu
il

di
ng

 E
nt

ra
nc

e 
- 
Ou

td
oo

r 
Po
ll
ut
an
ts

Pr
oj

ec
t 
sh
al
l 
e
m
p
i
o
v
 m
ea
su
re
s 
su

ch
 a
s 
pe
rm
an
en
t 
wa
lk
-

of
f 
gr
at
es
 o
r
 m
a
t
s
 l
oc
at
ed
 a
t
 t
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
m
a
i
n
 e
nt
ra
nc
e

t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 p
ol
lu
ta
nt
 c
o
n
t
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 o
f
 t
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g

en
tr

an
ce

s.
 B
ui

ld
in

g 
en
tr
an
ce
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
r
 c
ov
er
 o
r

m
a
t
s
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
I
m
m
e
d
i
a
t
e
l
v
 i
ns

id
e 
t
h
e
 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
a
n
d
 a

m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 p
la

n 
m
u
s
t
 b
e
 i
nc

lu
de

d 
t
o
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
t
h
e

In
te

gr
it

y 
o
f
 t
he
 s
y
s
t
e
m
.

Pr
ov

id
e 
c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 a
n
d
 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
de
ta
il
 o
f
 t
h
e
 s
y
s
t
e
m

i
n
s
t
a
l
l
e
d

T
J
H

Bu
ik
ll
ns
 E
nt
ra
nc
e-
Co
ve
re
d 
En

tr
y 

1 
1 

1
M
a
i
n
 E
n
t
r
y

M
a
i
n
 e
nt
ra
nc
e 
of
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
sh
al
l 
be
 c
ov

er
ed

 w
it

h 
n
o

le
ss
 t
h
a
n
 S
O
 s
q
u
a
r
e
 f
ee

t 
o
f
 r
oo
f 
t
o
 p
ro

te
ct

 e
nt
ra
nc
e

f
r
o
m
 r
ai

n.

Pr
ov
id
e 
a 
c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th

e 
di

me
ns

io
ne

d 
pl

an
 i
nd

ic
at

in
g 
th

e

co
ve

re
d 
en
tr
an
ce
 a
nd

 t
he

 s
qu
ar
e 
fo

ot
ag

e 
of

 t
he

e
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 c
o
v
e
r
.

T
J
H

IC
ov
er
ed
 p
at

h 
fr
om
 p
ac

ki
ng

 t
o 
th
e 
m
a
m
 e
nt
ra
nc
e 
or

 a
 

I P
ro
vi
de
 a
 c
op
y 
of
 t
he
 d
im

en
si

on
ed

 p
la

n 
in
di
ca
ti
ng
 t
he
 
IT

JH

P
o
r
t
e
 c
o
c
h
e
r
e
 a
l
 t
h
e
 m
a
i
n
 e
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
.

De
si

gn
 a
 m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l 
ve

nt
il

at
io

n 
sy
st
em
 t
o 
in
cl
ud
e 
a

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 M
E
R
V
 8
 a
ir

 f
il
te
r.

De
si

gn
 a
 m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l 
ve

nl
il

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 t
o 
in
cl
ud
e 
a

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 M
E
R
V
 B
 a
ir

 f
il
te
r.

co
ve

re
d 
en
tr
an
ce
 a
n
d
 t
he

 s
qu
ar
e 
fo

ot
ag

e 
of

 t
he

e
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 c
o
v
e
r
.

IC
ut

 s
he

et
 o
f 
ai

r f
il

te
r s
ys
te
m.

C
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 o
f
 a
ir
 f
il
te
r 
s
y
s
t
e
m
.



Ch
em
ic
al
 a
n
d
 C
le

an
in

g 
Pr

od
uc

t 
St

or
ag

e

T
h
e
r
m
a
l
 C
o
m
f
o
r
t
,
 C
o
m
p
l
v
 w
it

h 
A
S
H
R
A
E
 S
S
-
1
9
9
2

T
h
e
r
m
a
l
 C
o
m
f
o
r
t
,
 D
eh
um
id
if
ic
at
lo
n 
S
y
s
t
e
m

A
n
y
r
o
o
m
f
s
)
 co

nt
ai
ni
ng
 c
he
mi
ca
ls
 o
r 
cl
ea
ni
ng
 p
ro
du
ct
s 

le
tt

er
 f
r
o
m
 m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l 
en

gi
ne

er
 i
nd

lc
al

in
g 
th
e 
de
si
gn
 

FE
S 
- 
po

ss
ib

le

fo
r 
bu
il
di
ng
 O
&
M
 i

s 
ve

nt
il

at
ed

 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
r
 n
eg
at
iv
e 

ac
hi
ev
es
 a
n
 a
ir
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
ne

ss
 o
f
 0
.9
 o
r
 g
re

at
er

 i
n

pr
es

su
re

 w
it

h 
re

sp
ec

t 
t
o
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 T
h
e
 r
o
o
m
 m
u
s
t
 

e
a
c
h
 v
en

ti
la

te
d 
z
o
n
e
 o
r
 t
ha
t 
th
e 
de

si
gn

 c
o
m
p
l
i
e
s
 w
it

h

al
so
 h
av
e 
a 
do

or
 i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 t
ha

t 
wi
ll
 a
ut
om
at
ic
al
ly
 c
lo
se
, 

th
e 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 d
es

ig
n 
ap
pr
oa
ch
es
 I
n 
A
S
H
R
A
E
 2
0
0
1

Fo
r 
me
ch
an
ic
al
ly
 v
en

ti
la

te
d 
bu
il
di
ng
s,
 d
es

ig
n 

Fu
nd
am
en
ta
ls
 C
ha

pt
er

 3
2,

 Sp
ac

e 
Ai
r 
Di

ff
us

io
n.

ve
nt
il
at
io
n 
s
y
s
t
e
m
s
 t
ha
t 
re

su
lt

 I
n 
a
n
 a
ir
 c
h
a
n
g
e

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
gr

ea
te

r 
th
an
 o
r 
e
q
u
a
l
 t
o 
0.
9 
a
s

d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 b
y
 A
S
H
R
A
E
 1
2
9
-
1
9
9
7
.

C
o
m
p
l
v
 w
it
h 
A
S
H
R
A
E
 S
U
n
d
a
r
d
 S
S
-
1
9
9
2
,
 A
d
d
e
n
d
a
 1
9
9
S
,

fo
r 
th
er
ma
l 
co
mf
or
t 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
hu
mi
di
ty

c
o
n
t
r
o
l

S
y
s
t
e
m
 I
ns

ta
ll

ed
 t
o
 c
on
tr
ol
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
hu

mi
di

ty
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
 

le
tt

er
 f
r
o
m
 t
h
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 e
ng
in
ee
r 
a
n
d
 C
ut
 s
h
e
e
t
 o
f
 

F
E
S

de
sk

ca
nt

 s
ys
te
m,
 en
th

al
py

 w
he
el
, h

ea
t 
pi

pe
s,

 or
 d
ua
l 

de
hu
mi
di
fi

ca
tl
on
 e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t

p
a
t
h
 s
y
s
t
e
m
.
 T
h
e
 d
eh
um
id
iT
ic
at
io
n 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 s
ha
ll
 b
e

ce
nt

ra
ll

y 
lo

ca
te

d 
an

d 
pe
rm
an
en
t 
se

rv
ic

in
g 
th
e 
c
o
m
m
o
n

a
r
e
a
s
 a
n
d
 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l 
un

it
s 
o
f
 t
h
e
 b
ui

ld
in

g.

C
o
m
b
u
s
t
i
o
n
:
 N
o
 G
a
s
 W
a
t
e
r
 H
ea
ti
ng
 E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 L
oc
at
ed
 O
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 i
s 
al
so
 a
va

il
ab

le
 f
or
 u
s
e
 o
f
 a
 s
ea
le
d 

M
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 S
c
h
e
d
u
l
e

In
si
de
 C
on

di
ti

on
ed

 A
r
e
a
-
O
r
 U
s
e
 o
f
 E
le

ct
ri

c 
c
o
m
b
u
s
t
i
o
n
 w
a
t
e
r
 h
ea
te
r,
 o
r
u
s
e
 o
f
 a
n
 e
le
ct
ri
c 
w
a
t
e
r

h
e
a
t
i
n
g
 s
v
s
t
e
m
.

C
o
m
b
u
s
t
i
o
n
:
 N
o
 G
a
s
 H
ea

ti
ng

 E
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 i
ns
id
e 
O
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 i
s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 
fo

r 
u
s
e
 o
f
 a
 s
ea

le
d 
c
o
m
b
u
s
t
i
o
n

Co
nd

it
io

ne
d 
Ar
ea
 -
 O
r
 U
se

 o
f 
El

ec
tr

ic
 

fu
rn

ac
e,

 or
 u
se
 o
f 
a
n
 e
le

ct
ri

c 
he

at
in

g 
sy
st
em
, 
su
ch
 a
s 
a

h
e
a
t
 p
u
m
p
.

Ki
tc

he
n 
H
o
o
d
 V
e
n
t
e
d
 t
o
 E
xt

er
io

r 
H
o
m
e
 e
q
u
i
p
p
e
d
 w
it
h 
a 
ra
ng
e 
h
o
o
d
 v
e
n
t
e
d
 t
o
 t
he
 

S
c
h
e
m
a
t
i
c
 o
f
 v
en
t,
 p
h<

ex
te

ri
or

 o
f
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 N
o
n
-
v
e
n
t
e
d
 o
r
 d
uc

tl
es

s 
ra
ng
e 

r
a
n
g
e
 v
e
n
t

h
o
o
d
s
 a
r
e
 n
o
t
 e
li

gi
bl

e 
fo

r 
t
h
e
 p
oi

nt
. 
H
o
o
d
 d
uc

ti
ng

 m
u
s
t

b
e
 o
f
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
c
o
d
e
-
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a
n
d
 c
om
pl
et
el
y

se
al

ed
 t
o
 p
r
e
v
e
n
t
 l
ea
ka
ge
. 
Ex

te
ri

or
 o
f
 v
e
n
t
 m
u
s
t
 a
ls
o

co
nt
ai
n 
bu
il
di
ng
 c
o
d
e
 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
co

ve
r.

Sc
he

ma
ti

c 
of

 v
en
t,
 p
ho

M
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 S
c
h
e
d
u
l
e

to
s 
of

 ro
ug

h 
In
 a
nd
 c
ut
 s
he

et
 fo

r 
I

De
si

gn
 -
 O
c
c
u
p
a
n
t
 E
xp
er
le
iv
ce

Da
yl
ig
ht

2
 p
oi
nt
s:
 S
D
K

3
 p
oi

nt
s:

 7
5
%

Vi
ew

s:
 V
i
e
w
s
 f
or

 7
S
%
 o
f
 S
p
a
c
e
s

B
e
t
w
e
e
n
 I
nd
iv
id
ua
l 
U
n
i
t
s

B
e
t
w
e
e
n
 U
n
i
t
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
r
e
a
s

Ex
te

ri
or

 W
al

l 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y

Cl
ea

na
bi

li
ty

: 
N
a
r
r
o
w
 G
r
o
u
t
 l
in
es

P
r
o
v
l
d
e
n
a
t
u
r
a
l
d
a
y
 l
ig
ht
in
g 
t
o
 5
0
%
 o
f
 In

te
ri
or
 s
pa

ce
s.

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
pl
an
s 
sp
ec
if
yi
ng
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 l
it
 a
r
e
a
s
 a
n
d
 d
a
y

A
c
h
i
e
v
e
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 D
ay
li
gh
t 
Fa

ct
or

 (
th
e 
ra
ti
o 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
ll
gh
ti
i^
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
s 
fo

r 
o
c
c
u
p
i
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
s

th
e 
me
as
ur
ed
 i
nt
er
io
r a
n
d
 e
xt

er
io

r 
li

gh
t l

ev
el
s 
In

(
u
m
e
n
s
)
 o
f
 2
%
 f
or

 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 2
5
%
 o
f
 t
h
e
 o
cc
up
ie
d

s
p
a
c
e
s
 o
f
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 (
N
o
t
e
:
 O
c
c
u
p
i
e
d
 S
p
a
c
e
 r
ef
er
s 
t
o

al
l a

re
as

 e
xc

ep
t 
ha

Hw
ay

s,
 b
at

hr
oo

ms
, 
la
un
dr
y 
r
o
o
m
s

a
n
d
 c
lo
se
ts
.)

Pr
ov
id
e 
vi
ew
s 
to

 v
is

io
n 
gl
az
in
g 
fo
r 
7
5
%
 o
f 
al

l o
cc
up
an
ts
, 
Pr
ov
id
e 
pl
an
s 
sh
ow
in
g 
li

ne
 o
f 
si

te
 f
or
 o
cc
up
ie
d 
ar
ea
s.
 

K
K
-
 R
ef

er
 t
o 
zo

ni
ng

 p
ac
ka
ge
 S
he
et
 A
2.

D0

Oc
cu

pa
nt

s 
m
u
s
t
 h
av
e 

li
ne
 o
f 
si

gh
t f
ro

m 
oc
cu
pi
ed

sp
ac
es
 t
o 
th
e 
ex
te
ri
or
. 
(N
ot
e:
 O
cc
up
ie
d 
Sp

ac
e 
re
fe
rs
 t
o

al
l a
re

as
 e
xc

ep
t 
ha
it
wa
ys
, 
ba

th
ro

om
s,

 la
un
dr
y 
r
o
o
m
s

a
n
d
 c
lo
se
ts
.)

Pr
ov
id
e 
wa

ll
 a
ss

em
bl

y 
wi
th
 a
 S
T
C
 r
at

in
g 
2
 4
5
 

Pr
ov
id
e 
cu

t 
sh
ee
ts
 f
or
 t
he
 w
al

l 
as

se
mb

ly
 a
nd

fe
ne
st
ra
ti
on
 I
nd

ic
at

in
g 
t
h
e
 S
T
C
 r
at
in
gs
.

Pr
ov
id
e 
wa

ll
 a
ss

em
bl

y 
wi
th
 a
 S
T
C
 r
at

in
g 
2
 S
O
 

Pr
ov
id
e 
cu

t 
sh
ee
ts
 f
or
 t
he
 w
al

l 
as

se
mb

ly
 a
nd

f
e
n
e
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
 I
n
d
k
a
t
i
n
e
 t
h
e
 S
T
C
 r
at
in
es
.

Pr
ov
id
e 
wa

ll
 a
ss

em
bl

y 
wi
th
 a
 S
T
C
 r
at

in
g 
2
 S
O

Pr
ov

id
e 
fe
rr
es
tr
at
lo
n 
S
T
C
 r
at
in
g 
2
 3
0
 

Pr
ov

id
e 
c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
s
 f
or

 t
h
e
 f
er
re
st
ra

ti
on

 I
rt

dk
at

in
g 
t
h
e

S
T
C
 r
at
in
es
.

Pr
ov

id
e 
fe
ne
st
ra
ti
on
 S
T
C
 r
at
in
g 
2
 3
0

I A
ll

 gr
ou
t l

in
es

 b
et
we
en
 ti

le
s m

us
t 
be

 le
ss

 th
an
 3
/1
6'
 

IS
pe
cl
fl
ca
ti
on
an
d 
ph
ot
o o

f i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 ti

le

Pr
ov
id
e 
w
a
U
 a
ss

em
bl

y 
wi
th
 a
 S
T
C
 r
at

in
g 
2
 5
5
 

Pr
ov
id
e 
cu

t 
sh
ee
ts
 f
or
 t
he
 w
al

l 
as

se
mb

ly
 a
nd

f
e
n
e
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
 i
n
d
k
a
t
i
n
e
 t
h
e
 S
T
C
 r
at
in
es
.

K
K
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
 U
L
 a
s
s
e
m
b
l
y

KK
 t
o 
sp
ec
 U
L
 a
ss

em
bl

y

KK
 t
o 
sp
ec
 U
L
 a
ss

em
bl

y

IK
K 
to
 s
pe
c 
UL
 a
ss
em
bl
y

Ik
K 
to
 s
pe
c 
UL
 a
ss
em
bl
y



1
5
%
 o
f
 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Un

it
s 
a
n
d
 A
ll

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
r
e
a
s

De
si
gn
ed
 t
o 
M
e
e
t
 A
D
A
 S
ta

nd
ar

ds

A
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
1
5
%
 o
f 
th

e 
un
it
s 
in
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
m
u
s
t
 

Fl
oo
rp
la
n 
sh

ow
in

g 
A
D
A
 u
ni

ts
, c

ut
 s
he
et
s 
an

d 
si
gn
ed

co
mp
ly
 w
it

h 
th

e 
fo
ll
ow
in
g 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
: 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 s
ub

ml
tt

al
 o
f 
A
D
A
 p
ro
du
ct
s,
 p
ho

to
s 
of

•
 A
m
p
l
e
 c
le

ar
 f
lo

or
 s
p
a
c
e
 (
5
x
5
 f
oo

t 
tu
rn
in
g 
ra
di
us
) 
t
o
 

In
st

al
le

d 
fe

at
ur
es
, 
a
n
d
 p
la
n 
de

ta
il

s

e
n
s
u
r
e
 m
an
eu
ve
ra
bi
li
ty
 a
t 
la

va
to

ri
es

, t
oi
le
ts
, 
a
n
d

t
u
b
s
/
s
h
o
w
e
r
s

•
 T
h
e
 b
at

hr
oo

m 
wa

ll
s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 
re

in
fo

rc
ed

 f
or

 g
ra
b 
ba

rs

th
at
 a
re
 i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 a
t 
c
o
m
m
o
d
e
,
 tu
b,
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
w
e
r
 {
F
G
B
C

r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 fo

ll
ow
in
g 
th

e 
A
O
A
A
G
 f
or
 h
ei
gh
t 
an

d 
si

te

sp
ec

if
ic

at
io

ns
),

•
 3
2
 I
nc

h 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 d
o
o
r
 w
id

th
; 
3
6
 I
nc
he
s 
pr
ef
er
re
d

•
 2
4
 I
nc

h 
s
p
a
c
e
 o
n
 l
at
ch
 s
id

e 
o
f
 d
o
o
r
s
 o
r 
a
u
t
o
m
a
t
i
c

d
o
o
r
 o
p
e
n
e
r

•
 Li
gh

t 
sw
it
ch
es
 a
 m
a
x
i
m
u
m
 h
ei

gh
t 
o
f
 4
6
*
 f
r
o
m
 t
h
e

fl
oo
r 
to

 t
he
 t
op

 o
f 
th
e 
sw
it
ch

•
 E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
ou

tl
et

s 
a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 1
5
"
 f
r
o
m
 t
h
e
 f
lo
or
 t
o

t
h
e
 b
o
t
t
o
m
 o
f
 t
h
e
 o
u
t
l
e
t

•
 L
e
v
e
r
 h
a
n
d
l
e
s
 o
n
 d
o
o
r
s
 o
r
 d
o
o
r
s
 w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 l
a
t
c
h
e
s

•
 R
o
c
k
e
r
 o
r
 t
o
u
c
h
 s
w
i
t
c
h
e
s

A
N
D

In
cl

ud
e 
at
 l
ea
st
 o
n
e
 o
f
 t
h
e
 f
ol

lo
wi

ng
 o
pt
io
ns
:

•
 St
an

da
rd

 t
u
b
 w
it

h 
a 
fo

ld
-u

p 
s
e
a
t

•
 T
u
b
 w
i
t
h
 a
 t
ra

ns
fe

r 
s
e
a
t

•
 Wh
ir
lp
oo
l 
t
u
b

•
 3
 X
 3
 f
o
o
t
 t
ra

ns
fe

r 
s
h
o
w
e
r

•
 5
 X
 S
 f
o
o
t
 r
ol

l-
In

 s
h
o
w
e
r

l
A
Q
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 D
ur

in
g 
Co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on

Pr
ot

ec
t 
Du

ct
s,

 R
a
n
g
e
 H
o
o
d
,
 a
n
d
 B
a
t
h
 E
x
h
a
u
s
t
 F
a
n
s

D
u
r
i
n
g
 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 M
E
R
V
1
3
 D
ur

in
g 
Co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on

C
o
m
n
s
o
n
 A
r
e
a
s

P
r
e
-
O
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 l
A
Q
 T
e
s
t
i
n
g

I L
ow

-E
mi

tt
in

g 
Ma

te
na

ls
/H

ea
lt

hy
 F
in
is
he
s

Al
l 
d
u
c
t
 r
eg

is
te

r 
b
o
x
e
s
,
 su
pp

ly
 p
l
e
n
u
m
s
,
 r
a
n
g
e
 h
o
o
d
.
 

P
h
o
t
o

th
e 
ba
th
 e
xh
au
st
 f
an

s (
ho
us
in
g 
or
 f
an
) a
nd

 l
in
er
 b
ox
es

a
r
e
 s
ea
le
d 
of

f 
wi

th
 c
ar
db
oa
rd
, 
ri

gi
d 
d
u
c
t
 b
o
a
r
d
,
 o
r
 o
th

er

su
it
ab
le
 m
e
t
h
o
d
 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
fo
ll
ow
in
g 
me

ch
an

ic
el

 r
ou
gh
 i
n.

T
h
e
 t
e
m
p
o
r
a
r
y
 t
a
p
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 s
ea
l 
th
e 
re
gi
st
er
s 
du

ri
ng

 a

s
m
o
k
e
 l
es

t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t
 c
o
m
p
l
y
.
 D
u
c
t
s
 m
u
s
t
 r
e
m
a
i
n
 s
ea
le
d

un
ti

l 
H
V
A
C
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 s
ta

rt
-u

p.
 T
hi
s 
st

ep
 p
re

ve
nt

s

co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 d
us

t 
an

d 
po
ll
ut
an
ts
 f
ro

m 
ac

cu
mu

la
ti

ng
 i
n

th
e 
d
u
c
t
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 a
n
d
 b
ei

ng
 r
el

ea
se

d 
in
to
 t
h
e
 a
ir
 w
h
e
n

th
e 
sy

st
em

 I
s t

ur
ne
d 
on
. 
If
 i
nt
er
io
r 
fi

ni
sh

 w
o
r
k
 (p

ai
nt
in
g,

et
c.
) c
on
ti
nu
es
 a
ft
er
 H
V
A
C
 s
ta

rt
 u
p
,
 d
uc

ts
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 r
e-

se
al

ed
 u
nt
il
 w
o
r
k
 I
s 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e

Du
ri

ng
 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in
st
al
l 
a 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 a
 M
E
R
V
 1
3
 a
ir
 
C
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 o
f
 a
ir

 f
il
te
r 
s
y
s
t
e
m
,

fi
ll
er
.

Du
ri

ng
 c
on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
In
st
al
l a

 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
a
 M
E
R
V
 1
3
 ai

r 
Cu

t 
sh

ee
t 
of
 ai

r 
fi

lt
er

 s
ys
te
m,

n
i
t
e
r
.

Te
st

 a
nd

 r
em

ed
ia

te
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
pr

io
r 
to

 o
cc
up
an
cy
 u
si
ng
 

C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e 

IA
tt
es
ti
ng
 r
es
ul
ts
 I
nd
ic
at
in
g 
th

at
 t
he

pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
co
ns
is
te
nt
 w
it
h 
th

e 
Un
it
ed
 S
ta
te
s 

m
a
x
i
m
u
m
 c
he
mi
ca
l 
co

nt
am

in
an

t 
co

nc
en

tr
at

io
n

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 A
ge

nc
y'

s 
cu
rr
en
t 
Pr
ot
oc
ol
 f
or

 
re
qu
ir
em
en
ts
 a
re

 n
ot
 e
xc

ee
de

d.

E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 R
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
,
 B
as

el
in

e 
l
A
Q
 a
n
d

Ma
te
ri
al
s,
 fo

r 
th
e 
Re

se
ar

ch
 T
ri

an
gl

e 
Pa
rk
 C
a
m
p
u
s
,

S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 0
1
4
4
5
,

Cu
rr

en
t 
la
yo
ut
s 
d
o
 n
ot
 c
om
pl
y 
wi
th
 t
hi

s 
It

em
 b
as

ed
 o
n

T
J
H
 r
e
v
i
e
w

G
C
 r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 b
y
 J
M
H

I
G
C
 r
eq

ui
re

me
nt

 b
y 
J
M
H

I
G
C
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
 b
y 
J
M
H



A
d
h
e
s
l
v
e
s
 &
 S
e
a
l
a
n
t
s

C
o
m
p
o
s
i
t
e
 W
o
o
d

M
I
n
l
m
l
t
e
 C
a
r
p
e
t
 U
s
e

1
0
0
%
 H
a
r
d
 F
lo

or
in

g 
In

st
al

le
d 
In
 I
nd
iv
id
ua
l 
Un

it
s

C
a
r
p
e
t
 T
il

es
 U
s
e
d
 I
n 
C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
r
e
a
s

Gr
ee
n 
Cl

ea
ni

ng
 -
 E
nv

ir
on

me
nt

al
ly

 F
ri

en
dl

y

M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 -
 G
r
e
e
n
 C
le

an
in

g 
Pr

od
uc

ts
 I
n 
C
o
m
m
o
n

He
al

th
y 
Po
ol
- 
No

n-
Ch

lo
ri

ne
 S
ys
te
m

Al
l 
ad
he
sl
ve
s 
a
n
d
 s
ea

la
nt

s 
sh
al
l 
b
e
 l
o
w
 V
ol

at
il

e 
Or

ga
ni

c

C
o
m
p
o
u
n
d
 (
V
O
C
)
 an
d 
m
e
e
t
 t
he

 V
O
C
 li

mi
ts
 b
el
ow
 t
ha

t

w
e
r
e
 e
st

ab
li

sh
ed

 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
t
h
 C
o
a
s
t
 A
ir

 Q
ua
li
ty

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 D
is
tr
ic
t (
S
C
A
Q
M
D
)
 R
ul

e (
)1

16
8 
A
N
D
 a
ll

s
e
a
l
a
n
t
s
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 f
il

le
rs

 m
u
s
t
 m
e
e
t
 o
r
e
i
t
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e

re
qu
ir
em
en
ts
 o
f 
th
e 
B
a
y
 A
re
a 
Ai
r 
Qu
al
it
y 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Di
st

ri
ct

 R
e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 8
.
 R
u
l
e
 5
1
,

In
te
ri
or
 p
ai

nt
s 
a
n
d
 c
oa
ti
ng
s 
sh

al
l 
b
e
 l
es
s 
t
h
a
n
 1
0
0
 g
/l

fo
r 
no
n-
fl
at
 p
ai

nt
 a
nd

 l
es
s 
th
an
 S
O
 g
/l
 f
or

 f
la

t 
pa

in
t.

Ex
te

ri
or

 p
ai

nt
s 
a
n
d
 c
oa
ti
ng
s 
sh
al
l 
b
e
 l
es
s 
t
h
a
n
 2
0
0
 g
/l

fo
r 
no
n-
fl
at
 a
nd

 l
es
s 
th
an
 1
0
0
 g/

1 f
or

 f
bt

.

Co
nt
ra
ct
or
 s
ha

ll
 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
al
l 
Ma

te
ri

al
 S
af
et
y 
D
a
t
a
 S
h
e
e
t
 K
K
 -
 T
6
D

(
M
S
D
S
)
 hi

gh
li

gh
ti

ng
 t
he
 s
ta

te
d 
V
O
C
 e
mi
ss
io
ns
 f
or
 e
ac
h

pa
in

t 
a
n
d
 c
oa
li
ng
 u
s
e
d
 i
n 
t
h
e
 b
ui

ld
in

g.

Co
nt
ra
ct
or
 s
ha
ll
 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
al

l 
Ma

te
ri

al
 S
af

et
y 
Da
ta
 S
he
et
 T
JH

 t
o 
sp
ec

(
M
S
D
S
)
 hi

gh
li

gh
ti

ng
 t
he
 s
ta
te
d 
V
O
C
 e
mi
ss
io
ns
 f
or
 e
a
c
h

ad
he

si
ve

 a
nd

 s
ea

la
nt

 u
se

d 
in
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g.

Al
l 
ca
rp
et
 a
n
d
 c
ar
pe
t 
pr

od
uc

ts
 S
ha
ll
 m
e
e
t
 t
h
e
 C
a
r
p
e
t
 &
 
Pr

ov
id

e 
ca
rp
et
 c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
s
 o
r 
t
h
e
 V
O
C
 l
im
it
s 
fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 

T
J
H
 t
o
 s
p
e
c

Ru
g 
In

st
it

ut
e 
G
r
e
e
n
 L
ab
el
 C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
on
 P
ro

gr
am

. 
ca
rp
et
 p
ro
du
ct
 u
se

d 
in
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g.

Al
l 
c
o
m
p
o
s
i
t
e
 w
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 a
gr
lf
lb
er
 p
ro

du
ct

s 
wi
ll
 c
on

ta
in

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 
ma
nu
fa
ct
ur
er
s 
ca

ta
lo

g 
c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 f
or
 e
a
c
h
 

T
J
H
 t
o 
s
p
e
c
-
G
C
 R
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t

n
o
 a
d
d
e
d
 u
re

a-
fo

rm
al

de
hy

de
.

Al
l i

ns
ul

at
io

n 
pr
od
uc
ts
 w
il
l 
be
 f
re
e 
of

 f
or

ma
ld

eh
yd

e.

c
o
m
p
o
s
i
t
e
 w
o
o
d
 o
r
 a
gr
if
ib
er
 p
r
o
d
u
c
t
 u
s
e
d
 I
n 
t
h
e

bu
il
di
ng
 I
nd

ic
at

in
g 
th
at
 t
he
 b
a
n
d
i
n
g
 a
g
e
n
t
 u
s
e
d
 I
n 
e
a
c
h

p
r
o
d
u
c
t
 c
on
ta
in
s 
n
o
 a
d
d
e
d
 u
r
e
a
-
f
o
r
m
a
l
d
e
h
y
d
e
.

T
h
e
 f
lo
or
in
g 
In
st
al
le
d 
sh
al
l 
be
 c
la
ss
if
ie
d 
as

 h
ar
d 
or
 

Cu
t 
sh
ee
ts
 o
f 
fl
oo
ri
ng
 s
el
ec
ti
on
s,

re
si

li
en

t 
e
n
d
 c
o
m
p
l
y
 w
it

h 
G
r
e
e
n
G
u
a
r
d
 o
r
 s
im

il
ar

 h
ea

lt
h

re
la
te
d 
ce
rt
if
ic
at
io
n.

If
 c
ar
pe
t 
is

 I
ns

ta
ll

ed
 i
n
c
o
m
m
o
n
a
r
e
a
s
,
 c
a
r
p
e
t
 t
il

es
 m
u
s
t
 
Pr

ov
id

e 
ca
rp
et
 c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
s
 o
r
 t
h
e
 V
O
C
 l
im
it
s 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h

be
 u
se
d.
 Al

l c
ar
pe
t 
an

d 
ca
rp
et
 p
ro
du
ct
s 
sh
al
l 
m
e
e
t
 t
he
 

ca
rp
et
 p
ro
du
ct
 u
se

d 
In
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g.

Ca
rp

et
 &
 R
ug
 I
ns

ti
tu

te
 G
re
en
 L
ab

el
 C
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
on

O
w
n
e
r
 s
ha
ll
 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
o
r
 c
on
tr
ac
t 
a 
cl
ea
ni
ng
 s
er
vi
ce
 t
o
 

Pr
ov

id
e 
a 

li
st
 o
f
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 c
le

an
in

g 
pr

od
uc

ts
 f
or

 t
he

ma
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
us
in
g 
on

ly
 n
on

-t
ox

ic
 c
le
an
in
g 

bu
il
di
ng

su
pp

li
es

 I
n 
th
e 
re
gu
la
r 
ma

in
te

na
nc

e 
of
 t
he
 b
ui
ld
in
g.
 A

li
st
 o
f
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 s
up

pl
ie

s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e
 p
os

te
d 
In
 J
an
it
or

cl
os
et
s 
a
n
d
 I
n 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
r
e
a
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 b
r
e
a
k
 r
o
o
m
s
 a
n
d

re
st

ro
om

s.
 N
on
-T
ox
ic
 I
s 
de
fi
ne
d 
a
s
 h
av
in
g 
a 
z
e
r
o

He
al

th
 H
a
z
a
r
d
 r
at
in
g 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
du
ct
's
 M
at
er
ia
l 
Sa

fe
ty

Da
ta
 S
he
et
 (
M
S
D
S
)
 an
d 

li
st
ed
 a
s 
'n
on
-t
ox
ic
* 
fo

r 
Ac
ut
e

To
xk
lt
y 
un
de
r 
"S
ec
ti
on
 V
 -
 H
ea
lt
h 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n'
 o
n
 t
he

M
S
D
S
.
 A
lt

er
na

th
/e

ly
 t
h
e
 p
ro

du
ct

s 
m
a
y
 b
e
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 b
y

th
e 
EP
A'
s 
De

si
gn

 f
or

 E
nv
ir
on
me
nt
 p
ro
gr
am
 o
r 
Gr
ee
n

Se
al
.

In
st
al
l 
a
n
d
 u
s
e
 a
 p
oo
l 
sa

ni
ta

ti
on

 s
y
s
t
e
m
 t
ha
t 
r
e
d
u
c
e
s
 

C
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
 o
r
 p
h
o
t
o
 o
f
 s
an

it
at

io
n 
s
y
s
t
e
m

t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f
 c
hl
or
in
e.

J
M
H
 t
o 
co

nt
ac

t 
cl
ea
ni
ng
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 I
n 
re

ga
rd

s 
to
 t
ox
ic

fr
ee

 s
up

pl
ie

s

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Pr
oh

ib
it

 S
rT

to
ki



R
e
d
u
c
e
 S
m
o
k
e
 E
xp

os
ur

e 
an

d 
Tr
an
sf
er

Pr
oh

ib
it

 S
mo
ki
ng
 T
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 
th
e 
Bu

il
di

ng

In
te

gr
at

ed
 P
es
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

1.
 Pr

oh
ib

it
 s
ns

ok
in

g 
in
 a
ll

 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
re
as
 o
f 
th
e 
bu
il
di
ng
. 
C
o
p
y
 o
ft

he
 c
ov

en
an

ts
 a
rt
d 
re

st
ri

ct
io

n,
 p
la

n 
sh

ow
in

g

T
h
e
 p
ro

hi
bi

ti
on

 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
e
d
 i
n 
bu

il
dm

g 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 s
m
o
k
i
n
g
 a
re

a,
 c
o
p
y
 o
f
 s
ig

rt
ag

e

re
nt
al
/l
ea
se
 a
gr
ee
me
nt
s 
or
 c
on

do
/c

oo
p 
as

so
ci

at
io

n

c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
s
 a
n
d
 r
es
tr
ic
ti
on
s,
 a
n
d
 p
ro
vi
si
on
s 
fo

r

e
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
.

2.
 L
oc
at
e 
a
n
y
 e
xt

er
io

r 
de
si
gn
at
ed
 s
m
o
k
i
n
g
 a
re
as
,

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ba
lc
on
ie
s 
w
h
e
r
e
 s
mo

ki
ng

 I
s 
pe
rm
it
te
d,
 at

le
as
t 
2
5
 f
e
e
t
 f
r
o
m
 e
nt

ri
es

, 
o
u
t
d
o
o
r
 a
ir

 i
n
t
a
k
e
s
 a
n
d

op
er

ab
le

 w
i
n
d
o
w
s
 o
p
e
n
i
n
g
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
re

as
.

3.
 P
ro

hi
bi

t 
on
-p
ro
pe
rt
y 
sm

ok
in

g 
wi

th
in

 2
5
 f
ee

t 
of

en
tr
ie
s,
 o
u
t
d
o
o
r
 a
ir

 i
nt
ak
es
 a
n
d
 o
pe

ra
bl

e 
w
i
n
d
o
w
s
.

P
r
o
v
i
d
e
 s
i
g
n
a
g
e
 t
o
 a
l
l
o
w
 s
m
o
k
i
n
g
 i
n 
d
e
s
i
g
n
a
t
e
d
 a
r
e
a
s
,

pr
oh

ib
it

 s
mo
ki
ng
 i
n 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
re
as
 o
r 
pr

oh
ib

it

s
m
o
k
i
n
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
nt

ir
e 
pr
op
er
ty
.

1.
 P
ro

hi
bi

t 
sm
ok
in
g 
wi

th
in

 l
iv

in
g 
un
it
s.
 T
h
e
 p
ro

hi
bi

ti
on

 
C
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e 
co

ve
na

nt
s 
an

d 
re
st
ri
ct
io
n,
 p
la

n 
sh

ow
in

g

m
u
s
t
 b
e 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
e
d
 i
n 
bu
il
di
ng
 r
en
ta
l/
le
as
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 s
mo

ki
ng

ar
ea

, c
o
p
y
 o
f 
si
gn
ag
e

ag
re
em
en
ts
 o
r 
co

nd
o/

co
op

 a
ss
is
ci
at
io
n 
co

ve
na

nt
s 
a
n
d

re
st
ri
ct
io
ns
, 
a
n
d
 p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
 f
o
r
 e
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 m
u
s
t
 b
e

i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
.

2.
 Pr

oh
ib

it
 s
mo

ki
ng

 I
n 
al

l c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
re

as
 o
f 
th
e 
bu

il
di

ng
.

T
h
e
 p
ro

hi
bi

ti
on

 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
e
d
 i
n 
bu

il
di

ng

re
nt
al
/l
ea
se
 a
gr
ee
me
nt
s 
or
 c
on

do
/c

oo
p 
as

so
ci

at
io

n

c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
s
 a
n
d
 r
es
tr
ic
ti
on
s,
 a
n
d
 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 
fo

r

e
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
.

3.
 A
n
y
 e
xt

er
io

r 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 s
mo
ki
ng
 a
re
as
 m
u
s
t
 b
e

lo
ca
te
d 
at
 l
ea
st
 2
5
 f
ee

t 
a
w
a
y
 f
r
o
m
 a
ll
 e
nt

ri
es

, o
u
t
d
o
o
r

ai
r 
in

ta
ke

s,
 a
n
d
 o
pe
ra
bl
e 
w
i
n
d
o
w
s
.

Wo
rk

 w
it

h 
a 
sk

il
le

d 
pe
st
 c
on

tr
ol

 p
ro
fe
ss
io
na
l t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
I P
ro
vi
de
 a
 c
op
y 
of
 t
he
 p
es
t 
ma

na
ge

me
nt

 p
la
n 
In

cl
ud

in
g 
IJ
MH
 t
o 
hi
re
 P
es
t 
Co
nt
ro
l 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

 c
om

pa
ny

a
n
 I
nt
eg
ra
te
d 
Pe
st
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 P
la
n 
th

at
 a
dd

re
ss

es

t
h
e
 f
ol

lo
wi

ng
 f
ou
r 
It

em
s:

•
 M
on

it
or

in
g 
a
n
d
 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 
o
f
 p
es
t 
po

pu
la

ti
on

s.

» 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
o
f
 p
es
ti
ci
de
s 
on

ly
 '
a
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
"
 a
ft

er

pr
ev
en
ti
on
 a
n
d
 p
hy

si
ca

l 
co
nt
ro
ls
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n

I
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
e
d
.

•
 Se
le

ct
in

g 
th

e 
le
as
t 
ha
za
rd
ou
s 
pe
st
ic
id
es
 f
or
 c
on
tr
ol
 o
f

ta
rg

et
ed

 p
es
ts
.

•
 Pr
ec

is
io

n 
ta

rg
et

in
g 
o
f
 p
es
ti
ci
de
s 
t
o
 a
re
as
 n
o
t

co
nt
ac
te
d 
or

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 
t
o
 t
h
e
 o
c
c
u
p
a
n
t
s

•
 P
r
o
v
i
d
e
 I
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
r
r
t
e
o
w
n
e
r
s
 o
n
 (
t
o
n
 t
o
x
k

p
e
s
t
 m
a
r
t
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
.

Id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 o
f
 t
h
e
 p
es
ts
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
i
t
o
r
 p
ro
ce
ss
, a

ct
io

n

th
re

sh
ol

ds
, 
pr

ev
er

tt
io

n 
ac

th
rl

tl
es

, a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

m
e
c
h
a
n
i
s
m
s
.

M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 (R

eq
ui

re
d 
Ca

te
go

ry
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 5
)

CR
ED
IT
S 

^ i
'

Po
in
ts
 B
e
l
o
w
 C
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 
1

M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S

m
m

C
R
E
D
I
T

Bu
il

di
ng

 R
eu

se

R
E
Q
U
I
R
E
M
E
N
T
S

D
E
S
I
G
N
A
T
E
D
 P
R
O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S

Re
ha
bi
li
ta
te
 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu
il
di
ng
. 
Ma
in
ta
in
 5
0
%
 o
ft

he

ex
is

ti
ng

 s
he
ll
 (e
xt
er
io
r 
sk
in
 a
nd

 f
ra

mi
ng

, e
xc
lu
di
ng

w
i
n
d
o
w
 a
ss

em
bl

ie
s)

 an
d 
n
o
n
 s
tr
uc
tu
ra
l 
ro
of
in
g

ma
te

ri
al

.

Fl
oo

r 
pl
an
 o
f
 e
xi
st
in
g 
bu

il
di

ng
, d
em

ol
it

io
n 
pl

an
, a
n
d

n
e
w
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
fl

oo
r 
pl
an
.



Re
cy
cl
ed
 C
o
n
t
e
n
t

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
>
5
K
-
1
0
H

2
 p
oi

nt
s:

 >
1
0
«
-
1
S
«

3
 p
oi
nt
s:
 >
l
S
K
-
2
C
n
«

4
 p
o
i
n
t
s
 >
 2
0
%

Re
cy
ct
ef
al
e 
Ma

te
ri

al
s

Ra
pi

dl
y 
R
e
n
e
w
a
b
l
e
 >
3
K

B
i
o
-
b
a
s
e
d
 >
3
%

Re
so

ur
ce

 E
ff

ic
ie

nt
 o
r 
Pa
ne
ll
ze
d 
Wa

ll
 S
ys

te
ms

S
u
b
m
i
t
 r
ec

yc
le

d 
c
o
n
t
e
n
t
 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

s.
 R
ef
er
 t
o
 t
h
e

'
M
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 W
o
r
i
i
s
h
e
e
l
"
 f
o
r
 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

s.

In
co

rp
or

at
e 
re

cy
cl

ed
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 (
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 m
at

er
ia

ls

co
st
).
 U
s
e
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 w
it

h 
re

cy
cl

ed
 c
o
n
t
e
n
t
 s
u
c
h
 t
ha
t

po
st
-c
on
su
me
r 
an
d/
or
 p
os

t-
In

du
st

ri
al

 r
ec
yc
le
d 
co

nt
en

t

co
ns
ti
tu
te
s 
a 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
5
%
 o
f 
th

e 
to
ta
l 
pr
oj
ec
t 
co

st
.

Ea
rn

 o
n
e
 a
dd
it
io
na
l 
po

in
t 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 a
dd
it
io
na
l 
S
%
 o
f

re
cy

cl
ed

 c
o
n
t
e
n
t
 m
at

er
ia

ls
. 
T
h
e
 v
al
ue
 o
f
 t
h
e
 r
ec

yc
le

d

co
nt

en
t 
po
rt
io
n 
of
a
 m
at

er
ia

l 
or
 f
ur
ni
sh
in
g 
sh
al
l 
be

d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 b
y
 d
iv
id
in
g 
t
h
e
 w
e
i
g
h
t
 o
f
 r
ec

yc
le

d 
c
o
n
t
e
n
t

In
 t
h
e
 i
t
e
m
 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
ot
al
 w
e
i
g
h
t
 o
f
 al

l 
ma

te
ri

al
 i
n 
t
h
e

it
em
, t
he
n 
mu

lt
ip

ly
in

g 
th
e 
re
su
Hi
ng
 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 
by
 t
he

to
ta
l 
v
a
l
u
e
 o
f
 t
h
e
 i
t
e
m
.

M
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
a
l
 a
n
d
 e
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
s
 s
ha
ll
 n
o
t
 b
e

in
cl

ud
ed

 I
n 
th

is
 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

. 
Re
cy
cl
ed
 c
o
n
t
e
n
t
 m
at

er
ia

ls

sh
al
l 
b
e
 d
e
f
i
n
e
d
 i
n 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 w
i
t
h
 t
h
e
 F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 T
r
a
d
e

C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
,
 G
u
i
d
e
 f
or
 t
he
 U
s
e
 o
f

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Ma
rk
et
in
g 
Cl

ai
ms

. 1
5
 C
F
R
 2
60

.7
 (e
),

av
ai
la
bl
e 
a
t

ww
w.

ft
c.

go
v/

bc
p/

gr
nr

ul
e/

gu
ld

es
98

04
27

.h
tm

.

Us
e 
ma
te
ri
al
s 
th

at
 a
t 
th
e 
e
n
d
 o
f 
th
ei
r 
us
ef
ul
 li

fe
cy
cl
e 

Su
bm

it
 r
ec

yc
la

bl
e 
ma
te
ri
al
s 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns
. 
Re

fe
r 
to

 t
he

ca
n 
be
 r
ec
yc
le
d 
by

 C
he

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r 
In

to
 t
he
 r
a
w
 

"M
at
er
ia
ls
 W
or
ks
he
et
" 
fo

r 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
,

ma
te
ri
al
s 
st
re
am
 o
f 
an

ot
he

r 
pr
od
uc
t.
 T
h
e
 v
al

ue
 o
f 
su
ch

pr
od
uc
ts
 w
il
l c

on
st
it
ut
e 
a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
l
O
K
 o
f 
th
e 
to
ta
l

va
lu
e 
o
f
 t
h
e
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 I
n 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t

In
co

rp
or

at
e 
ra
pi
dl
y 
r
e
n
e
w
a
b
l
e
 (p

la
nt
 t
o
 h
ar
ve
st
 c
y
d
e

<
1
0
 y
ea

rs
) f

or
 3
%
 o
f 
th
e 
to
ta
l 
va
lu
e 
of
 al

l 
bu
il
di
ng

ma
te

ri
al

s 
a
n
d
 p
ro
du
ct
s 
u
s
e
d
 i
n 
t
h
e
 p
ro
je
ct
.

W
o
o
d
 p
ro

du
ct

s 
ar
e 
FS

C,
 S
FI

 o
r 
C
S
A
 c
er

ti
fi

ed
. 
U
s
e
 a

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 S
O
S
 o
f
 w
o
o
d
-
b
a
s
e
d
 m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 a
n
d

pr
od

uc
ts

, 
ce

rt
if

ie
d 
In
 a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 w
it

h 
t
h
e
 F
or

es
t

S
t
e
w
a
r
d
s
h
i
p
 C
ou

nc
il

 (
F
S
C
)
 G
ui
de
li
ne
s,
 fo
r 
w
o
o
d
 b
ui
ld
in
g

c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
s
.
 In

cl
ud
in
g 
bu
t 
no

t 
li

mi
te

d 
to
, s

tr
uc
tu
ra
l

f
r
a
m
i
n
g
 a
n
d
 g
en
er
al
 d
im

en
si

on
al

 f
ra

mi
ng

, 
fl
oo
ri
ng
,

fi
ni
sh
es
, f
ur
ni
sh
in
gs
 a
nd

 n
on
-r
en
te
d 
te
mp
or
ar
y

co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 a
pp

li
ca

ti
on

s 
su

ch
 a
t 
br

ac
in

g,
 co

nc
re

te

S
u
b
m
i
t
 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
s 
d
e
m
o
n
s
t
r
a
t
i
n
g
 t
ha
t 
t
h
e
 p
ro

je
ct

in
co
rp
or
at
es
 t
he
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
a
g
e
 o
f
 r
ap
id
ly

re
ne
wa
bl
e 
pr
od
uc
ts
. 
Re

fe
r 
to

 t
he
 "
Ma
te
ri
al
s

W
o
r
k
s
h
e
e
t
"
 f
o
r
 c
al

cu
la

ti
on

s.

S
u
b
m
i
t
 a
 c
op
y 
of
 t
he

 w
o
o
d
 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

on
 a
nd

 t
he

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 s
ho

wi
ng

 S
0
%
 (b

as
ed
 o
n
 c
os
t)
 of
 t
he

 w
o
o
d

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
fo

r 
th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t 

is
 c
er
ti
fi
ed
. 
Re

fe
r 
to

 t
he

"
M
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 W
o
r
k
s
h
e
e
t
"
 f
o
r
 c
a
l
c
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
.

Ea
rn

 o
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 rf

 3
%
 o
f 
th
e 
ma

te
ri

al
s,

 b
as

ed
 o
n
 c
os
t,
 a
re

 C
ut

 s
he
et
s 
of

 m
at
er
ia
ls
 u
se

d 
a
n
d
 t
he

 c
al
cu
la
ti
on
s

bi
o-
ba
se
d 
su
ch
 a
s 
so

li
d 
w
o
o
d
,
 en
gi
ne
er
ed
 w
o
o
d
,
 

sh
ow
in
g 
3
%
 (b
as
ed
 o
n
 c
os
t)
 of
 t
he
 m
at
er
ia
ls
 p
ur
ch
as
ed

b
a
m
b
o
o
,
 wo

ol
, 
co
tt
on
, 
co
rk
, a

gr
ic
ul
tu
ra
l 
fi
be
rs
, o
r 
ot
he
r 
fo
r 
th

e 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 a
re

 b
lo
-b
as
ed
. 
Re
fe
r 
to
 t
he

 '
Ma
te
ri
al
s

bl
o-
ba
se
d 
ma
te
ri
al
s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
t 
le
as
t 
S
0
%
 b
lo
-b
as
ed
 

Wo
rk
sh
ee
t"
 fo

r 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns
,

c
o
n
t
e
n
t
.

In
st
al
l 
a 
m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 8
0
%
 o
f
 t
he
 n
on

-s
tr

uc
tu

al
 e
xt

er
io

r 
P
h
o
t
o
,
 de

ta
il

ed
 p
la

ns
, o
r
 m
at
er
ia
l 
c
u
t
 s
he

et
s.

 R
ef
er
 t
o

wa
ll

s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 
Au

to
cl

av
ed

 A
er

at
ed

 C
on
cr
et
e (
AA
C)
. 

th
e 
"M
at
er
ia
ls
 W
or

ks
he

et
* 
fo

r 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns
.

In
su

la
te

d 
C
o
n
c
r
e
t
e
 F
o
r
m
s
 (I
CF

),
 o
rS
tn
ic
tu
ra
l 
In
su
la
te
d

Pa
ne

ls
 (S
IP
s)
 o
r 
a 
co
mb
in
at
io
n 
th
er
eo
f.

Ef
fi

ci
en

t 
Dr

yw
al

l 
In

st
al

la
ti

on
: T
 W
al

ls
 w
it
h 
Dr

yw
al

l 
Cl
ip
s,

2-
St

ud
 C
or

ne
rs

 o
r 
La
dd
er
 F
ra
mi
ng

U
s
e
 2
-s

tu
d 
c
o
m
e
r
s
,
 l
ad

de
r 
T-

wa
il

 f
ra

mi
ng

, a
n
d
 d
rv
wa
ii

cl
ip

s 
in

 a
ll
 i
xj
ss
lb
le
 l
oc

at
io

ns
.

iM
at
er
fa
lE
fn
ci
e

a
n
d
 G
l
o
b
a
l
 R
e
s



Re
cy

cl
in

g 
fo

r 
Re
si
de
nt
s

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a
n
 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 
ar
ea

2
 p
oi
nt
s:
 I

ns
ta
ll
 a
n
 I
nt
eg
ra
te
d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 
tr
as
h 
ch

ut
e

C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 W
a
s
t
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
,
 D
i
v
e
r
t
 W
a
s
t
e

2
 p
o
i
n
t
:
 2
 S
m
 <
 7
S
K

3
p
o
i
n
t
s
:
 >
7
5
%
<
9
0
K

4
 p
o
i
n
t
s
:
 >
9
0
%

(
M
t
t
e
r
l
a
l
*

Lo
ca
l/
Re
gi
on
al
 M
at

er
ia

ls

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
2
1
(
m
<
l
S
K

2
 p
oi

nt
s;

 >
 1
5
«
 <
 2
0
H

3
 p
oi

nt
s:

 >
 2
0
«
 <
 2
5
«

4
 p
oi

nt
s;

 >
 2
5
K

Pr
ov

id
e 
a
n
 a
cc
es
si
bl
e 
ar
ea
 t
ha
t 
se
rv
es
 a
ll
 o
f
 t
h
e
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
Co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 d
et

ai
l,

 c
u
t
 s
he

et
, 
a
n
d
 p
h
o
t
o

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
t
s
 t
ha
t 

Is
 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
ol

le
ct

io
n,

se
pa

ra
ti

on
, a
nd

 s
to
ra
ge
 o
f 
re
cy
cl
ab
le
s.
 R
ec

yc
li

ng

r
o
o
m
s
 I
n 
t
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 s
ha
ll
 b
e
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 O
.
I
K
 o
f

t
h
e
 t
ot
al
 c
on

di
ti

on
ed

 s
q
u
a
r
e
 f
o
o
t
a
g
e
 o
f
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g

wh
il
e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 
a
r
e
a
s
 o
ut
si
de
 t
h
e
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
 s
ha
ll

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
t
e
 a
 r
ec

yc
li

ng
 d
u
m
p
s
t
e
r
 e
q
u
a
l
 I
n 
si

ze
 (I

n 
C
Y
]

to
 ((
# 
of

 u
ni

ts
 X
 O
.S
 X
18

)/
17

3.
57

) 
ro

un
de

d 
u
p
 t
o 
th
e

ne
ar
es
t 
e
v
e
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r
 O
R
 I
ns
ta
ll
 a
n
 I
nt

eg
ra

te
d 
re

cy
cl

in
g

tr
as

h 
sh
oo
ts
 t
ha

t 
al
lo
w 
th

e 
oc
cu
pa
nt
s,
 w
h
e
n
 d
is
po
si
ng

of
 w
as
te
, 
to

 s
el
ec
t 
ei

th
er

 r
ec

yc
li

ng
 o
r 
wa
st
e 
th

at
 I
s

se
n/
Ic
ed
 b
y
 a
 r
ec

yc
li

ng
 w
a
s
t
e
 h
au
le
r.

Lo
ca

l/
Re

gi
on

al
 M
at

er
ia

ls
, 
o
f
 t
h
e
 P
e
r
c
e
n
t
a
g
e
 C
l
a
i
m
e
d

A
b
o
v
e
,
 S
O
K
 H
ar
ve
st
ed
 L
oc

al
ly

1
 p
oi

nt
: 
2
S
K
<
1
0
K

2
 p
oi

nt
s:

 >
 l
O
K
 <
 I
S
K

3
 p
oi
nt
s:
 >
 1
5
K
 <
 2
0
K

4
 p
oi

nt
s:

 >
 2
0
K

Ta
bu
la
te
 t
he
 t
ot
al
 w
as
te
 m
at

er
ia

l,
 qu

an
ti

ti
es

 d
iv

er
te

d 
I
M
H
 /
 G
C
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt

an
d 
th
e 
m
e
a
n
s
 b
y 
wh
ic
h 
di

ve
rt

ed
.

R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
 R
e
u
s
e
 2
 5
%

D
e
v
e
l
o
p
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 a
 w
a
s
t
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 p
la

n,

qu
an

ti
fy

in
g 
ma

te
ri

al
 d
iv

er
si

on
 g
oa

ls
. 
Re
cy
cl
e 
an

d/
or

sa
lv
ag
e 
a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f 
S
D
K
 o
f 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
, d

em
ol

it
io

n

a
n
d
 l
ar
sd
 c
le
ar
in
g 
w
a
s
t
e
.
 C
ak

ut
at

lo
ns

 c
a
n
 b
e
 d
or

se
 b
y

w
e
i
g
h
t
 o
r
 v
o
l
u
m
e
,
 b
u
t
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 c
on

si
st

en
t 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
.

Ea
rn

 a
dd
it
io
na
l 
po

in
ts

 f
or

 I
nc
re
as
ed
 d
iv
er
si
on
 o
f 
wa

st
e.

Us
e 
sa
lv
ag
ed
, 
re

fu
rb

is
he

d 
or
 r
eu

se
d 
ma

te
ri

al
s,

 p
ro
du
ct
s 
Pr
ov
id
e 
a 

li
st
in
g 
of

 e
ac
h 
ma

te
ri

al
 o
r 
pr
od
uc
t 
an

d 
th
e

an
d 
fu
rn
ls
hl
ng
sf
or
 a
t 
le
as
t 
S
K
 o
f 
bu
il
di
ng
 m
at
er
ia
ls
 

or
ig

in
al

 s
ou
rc
e 
of
 t
he

 m
at

er
ia

l 
us

ed
 t
o 
m
e
e
t
 t
he

 c
re
di
t,

(b
as
ed
 o
n
 c
os

t)
. 

Re
fe

r 
to

 t
he

 '
Ma
te
ri
al
s 
Wo
rk
sh
ee
t"
 fo

r 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
.

Ea
rn

 o
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 b
y
 u
si

ng
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 l
O
K

lo
ca

l/
re

gi
on

al
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 (
b
y
 c
os

t)
 th
at
 a
re

m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
e
d
 w
it
hi
n 
a 
70

0-
ml

le
 r
ad

iu
s 
o
f
 t
h
e
 p
ro

je
ct

si
te

 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
ot
al
 p
ro

je
ct

 c
os

t 
o
f
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
ma

te
ri

al
s

an
d 
pr
od
uc
ts
. 
Ea

rn
 o
n
e
 a
dd
it
io
na
l 
po

in
t 
fo
r 
ea
ch

a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 5
K
 o
f
 m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 t
h
a
t
 a
r
e
 m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
e
d

wi
th

in
 7
0
0
 m
il

es
 o
f 
th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t 
si
te
.

(
M
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 r
ef
er
s 
t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in

al
 a
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 o
f

c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
s
 I
nt

o 
th
e 
bu
il
di
ng
 p
ro
du
ct
 t
ha

t 
Is

 f
ur
ni
sh
ed

a
n
d
 i
ns

ta
ll

ed
 b
y
 t
h
e
 t
r
a
d
e
s
m
a
n
.
 F
or

 e
x
a
m
p
l
e
.
 If

 t
h
e

h
a
r
d
w
a
r
e
 c
o
m
e
s
 f
r
o
m
 D
al
la
s,
 T
ex

as
, 
th
e 
l
u
m
b
e
r
 f
r
o
m

V
a
n
c
o
u
v
e
r
,
 B
ri
ti
sh
 C
o
l
u
m
b
i
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ru
ss
 I
s 
a
s
s
e
m
b
l
e
d

In
 K
en
t,
 W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
;
 t
h
e
n
 t
he
 l
oc

at
io

n 
o
f
 t
h
e
 f
in

al

a
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 I
s 
K
e
n
t
.
 W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
.
)

O
f
 t
h
e
 r
eg

io
na

ll
y 
m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
e
d
 m
at

er
ia

ls
, 
u
s
e
 a

m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 5
K
 (
b
y
 c
os
t)
 o
f 
bu
il
di
ng
 m
at
er
ia
ls
 a
nd

pr
od
uc
ts
 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
ex

tr
ac

te
d,

 h
ar

ve
st

ed
 o
r 
re

co
ve

re
d

wi
th

in
 t
h
e
 f
ol

lo
wi

ng
 s
ta

te
s:

 F
lo
ri
da
, G
eo
rg
ia
, 
A
l
a
b
a
m
a
,

Mi
ss

is
si

pp
i,

 S
o
u
t
h
 C
ar

ol
in

a,
 N
o
r
t
h
 C
ar

ol
in

a,
 o
r

T
e
n
n
e
s
s
e
e
.

Pr
ov

id
e 
ca

lc
ul
at
io
ns
 d
e
m
o
n
s
t
r
a
t
i
n
g
 t
ha
t 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t

In
co

rp
or

at
es

 t
he
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 
re

gi
on

al

ma
te
ri
al
s/
pr
od
uc
ts
. S
h
o
w
 t
he
ir
 c
os

t,
 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f

re
gi

on
al

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s,

 di
st

an
ce

 f
ro
m 
pr
oj
ec
t 
to

ma
nu

fa
ct

ur
er

, 
an

d 
th
e 
to
ta
l 
co

st
 o
f 
al

l 
ma
te
ri
al
s 
fo

r 
th

e

pr
oj

ec
t.

 R
ef
er
 t
o 
th
e 
'M
at
er
ia
ls
 W
or
ks
he
et
' 
fo

r

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

.

Pr
ov

id
e 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns
 d
e
m
o
n
s
t
r
a
t
i
n
g
 t
ha
t 
th
e 
pr

oj
ec

t

in
co
rp
or
at
ed
 t
he
 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f
 r
eg

io
na

l

ma
te
ri
al
s/
pr
od
uc
ts
 a
nd

 s
h
o
w
 t
he
 c
os

t 
a
n
d
 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f

re
gi

on
al

 c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
s
,
 d
is
ta
nc
e 
f
r
o
m
 p
ro

je
ct

 t
o

ma
nu

fa
ct

ur
er

, 
a
n
d
 t
he
 t
ot
al
 c
os

t 
o
f
 a
ll
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 f
or
 t
h
e

pr
oj
ec
t.
 R
ef
er
 t
o
 t
h
e
 'M

at
er

ia
ls

 W
o
r
k
s
h
e
e
t
'
 fo

r

ca
lc
ul
at
io
ns
.

D
I
S
A
S
T
E
R
 M
I
T
I
G
A
T
I
O
N
 A
N
D
 D
U
R
A
B
I
L
I
T
Y
 (R

eq
ui

re
d 
Ca

te
go

ry
 M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 2
) Po

in
ts
 B
e
l
o
w
 C
at

eg
or

y 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m

D
I
S
A
S
T
E
R
 M
I
T
I
G
A
T
I
O
N
 A
N
D
 D
U
R
A
B
I
L
I
T
Y

.
 '•
 

• D
is
as
te
r 
MI

tt
ea

tl
on



Hu
rr
ic
an
e,
 I
mp

ac
t 
Re

si
st

an
ce

 o
f 
Op
en
in
gs

F
l
o
o
d
,
 S
l
a
b
 E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

Wi
ld
fi
re
. 
Fi

re
 R
es

is
ta

nt
 E
xt

er
io

r 
Fi
ni
sh
es

T
e
r
m
i
t
e
 p
r
e
v
e
n
t
i
o
n

I A
LL
 In

st
al

le
d 
gl
ar
in
g 

Is
 i
mp
ac
t 
re
si
st
an
t.

Pr
ov

id
e 
th
e 
ma

nu
fa

ct
ur

er
's

 c
u
t
 s
h
e
e
t
s
 f
or

 t
h
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t
 

T
J
H

re
si
st
an
t 
pr

od
uc

ts
 I
nd
ic
at
in
g 
th
e 
re

qu
ir

ed
 a
pp
ro
va
ls

a
n
d
 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

.

Pr
ov

id
e 
a 
d
o
o
r
 a
n
d
 w
i
n
d
o
w
 s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 l
is
ti
ng
 i
mp
ac
t-

re
si
st
an
t 
pr
od
uc
ts
 u
se

d 
o
n
 t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

.

FF
E 
mu
st
 b
e 
12

" 
ab
ov
e 
10
0-
ye
ar
 fl

oo
d 
pl
ai
n 
or
 fi

ni
sh
ed
 [

Pr
ov
id
e 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
dr
aw
in
gs
 il

lu
st

ra
ti

ng
 t
he

gr
ad
e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t
o 
bu

il
di

ng
, 
wh
ic
he
ve
r 
is

 h
ig
he
r.
 A

ll

gr
ad
es
 a
ro

un
d 
bu
il
di
ng
 m
u
s
t
 s
lo
pe
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro

m 
th

e

f
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 6
"
 a
t
 1
0
'
-
O
"
 d
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
.
 T
h
e

10
0-

ye
ar

 f
lo
od
 p
la
in
 i
s d

et
er
mi
ne
d 
by
 F
E
U
A
.

fo
un

da
ti

on
 d
es

ig
n,

 fl
oo

r 
el
ev
at
io
n 
a
n
d
 g
ra

di
ng

re
qu
ir
em
en
ts
. 
In

cl
ud

e 
a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f
 t
he
 N
F
I
P
 E
le
va
ti
on

Ce
rt
if
ic
at
e 
ce

rt
if

ie
d 
by
 t
he

 s
un

/e
yo

r,
 en

gi
ne
er
 o
r

ar
ch

it
ec

t 
s
h
o
w
i
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
OO

-y
ea

r 
fl
oo
d 
pl

ai
n 
el
ev
at
io
n 
o
r

gr
ad

e.

IS
O 
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
 o
f
 w
h
e
t
h
e
r
 t
hi

s 
Is

 f
o
r
 F
F
E
 f
o
r
 f
ir
st
 h
a
b
i
t
a
b
l
e

le
ve
l 
o
r
 l
o
w
e
s
t
 l
ev

el

Pr
oj
ec
t 
m
u
s
t
 ut

il
it

e 
fi
re
-r
es
is
ta
nt
 e
xt

er
io

r 
wa

ll
 c
la
dd
in
g.
 P

ro
vi
de
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 d
ra
wi
ng
s 
ar
)d
 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r'
s 
cu

t 
TJ
H

r
o
o
f
 c
ov

er
in

g 
or

 s
ub

-r
oo

f,
 so

fT
n 
a
n
d
 v
e
n
t
 m
at

er
ia

ls
. 
A
n
 
s
h
e
e
t
s
 i
ll

us
tr

at
in

g 
t
h
e
 f
ir
e 
re

si
st

an
ce

 o
f
 t
h
e
 e
xt

er
io

r

ex
te

ri
or

 c
la
dd
in
g 
ot
he
r 
th
an
 w
o
o
d
 o
r 
vi

ny
l 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 

fi
ni

sh
 m
at

er
ia

ls
.

u
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
ll
 e
xt

er
io

r 
wa
ll
s.
 A
 r
oo

f 
co

ve
ri

ng
 o
th

er
 t
h
a
n

as
ph
al
t 
sh

in
gl

es
 o
r 
w
o
o
d
 s
ha
ke
s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 
us

ed
 o
n
 t
he

en
ti
re
 r
oo
f.
 C
re
di
t 
is

 a
ls

o 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

if
 t
h
e
 s
ub

-r
oo

f (
ro
of

de
ck

) 
is

 o
f 
a 
fi
re
-r
es
is
ta
nt
 m
at

er
ia

l,
 in
st
ea
d 
of

 t
he

co
ve
ri
ng
. 

So
ff

it
 a
n
d
 v
e
n
t
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 o
th

er
 t
h
a
n

w
o
o
d
 o
r 
vi

ny
l.

 W
h
e
n
 t
he
se
 p
ar

ts
 o
f 
th
e 
bu
il
di
ng
 a
re

c
o
m
p
r
o
m
i
s
e
d
,
 e
m
b
e
r
s
 f
r
o
m
 n
e
a
r
b
y
 f
ir
es
 c
a
n
 e
nt
er
 i
nt

o

t
h
e
 a
tt
ic
.

Pr
ov

id
e 
a 
p
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 s
ig

n,
 p
os

te
d 
n
e
a
r
 t
h
e
 w
a
t
e
r

he
at

er
or

 e
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
pa

ne
l.

 I
de
nt
if
yi
ng
 t
he
 t
er
mi
te

t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 p
ro
vi
de
r,
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
or
 r
e-
in
sp
ec
ti
on
 a
n
d

tr
ea

tm
en

t 
co

nt
ra

ct
 r
en

ew
al

. 
A
 s
in

gl
e 
sl
ab
 m
u
s
t
 b
e

p
o
u
r
e
d
 m
on
ol
it
hi
ca
ll
v 
o
r
 m
u
s
t
 h
a
v
e
 a
re
a 
tr
ea
te
d 
fo
r

te
rm
it
es
 b
ef
or
e 
e
a
c
h
 p
or
ti
on
 o
f 
sl
ab
 i
s 
po
ur
ed
. 
Af

te
r

t
h
e
 s
la

b 
h
a
s
 s
ub

st
an

ti
al

ly
 c
u
r
e
d
,
 a
n
y
 p
en
et
ra
ti
on

t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
la

b 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 p
ip

in
g 
o
r
 c
on

du
it

 s
ha
ll
 b
e

se
al
ed
 a
ro

un
d 

It
s 
pe

ri
me

te
r 
wi

th
 a
n
 e
la
st
om
er
ic
 s
ea

le
r.

A
n
y
 f
o
a
m
 i
ns

ul
at

io
n 
m
u
s
t
 t
er
mi
na
te
 a
b
o
v
e
 g
r
o
u
n
d
 s
u
c
h

th
at

 n
on

e 
of

 it
 e
xt
en
ds
 b
el

ow
 g
ra

de
. T
h
e
 e
xt

er
io

r

cl
ad
di
ng
 o
f
 t
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
m
u
s
t
 t
er

mi
na

te
 a
t 
le
as
t 
8
'

a
b
o
v
e
 g
ra

de
. 

Al
l 
w
o
o
d
 p
ro
du
ct
s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 
tr

ea
te

d 
wi
th

Bo
ra
te
 o
r 
A
C
Q
.
 R
ai
n 
gu
tt
er
s 
m
u
s
t
 b
e 
In
st
al
le
d 
to

 c
ol
le
ct

w
a
t
e
r
 f
r
o
m
 a
ll

 r
o
o
f
 s
l
o
p
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
v
e
y
 I
t 
a
t
 l
ea
st
 3
 f
e
e
l

a
w
a
y
 f
r
o
m
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g 
fo

un
da

ti
on

. 
Al

l 
K
V
A
C

c
o
n
d
e
n
s
a
t
e
 l
ii

te
fs

) 
m
u
s
t
 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 a
t
 l
ea
st
 3
 fe
et

 a
w
a
y

fr
om

 t
he

 b
ui
ld
in
g.
 A
ll
 p
la

nt
s 
an

d 
Ir
ri
ga
ti
on
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 a
t

le
as
t 
3
 f
ee

t 
f
r
o
m
 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 F
lo

ri
da

 l
a
w
 r
eq
ui
re
s 
th
at
 a

c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 b
e
 i
ss

ue
d 
w
h
e
n
e
v
e
r
 a
 t
e
r
m
i
t
e
 t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 I
s

co
nd

uc
te

d.
 T
h
e
 w
ar
ra
nt
y 
sh
al
l 
In

cl
ud

e 
th
e 
pe
st
 c
on

tr
ol

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 r
es

to
re

 a
n
y
 p
ro
pe
rt
y 
d
a
m
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 w
o
o
d
-

de
st
ro
yl
i^
 o
rg
an
is
ms
 d
ur

in
g 
a 
sp

ec
if

ie
d 
pe
ri
od
 a
ft
er

t
h
e
 t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
.

Pr
ov
id
e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ph
ot
os
, c
op
y 
of

 w
ar
ra
nt
ee
, 
an

d

ap
pr
op
ri
at
e 
co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 d
et

ai
ls

TJ
H 
be

li
ev

es
 r
eq

ui
re

me
nt

s 
fo

r 
cl
ad
di
ng
 a
nd

 p
la

nt
in

g 
d
o

no
t 
ap
pe
ar
 t
o 
co
mf
or
t 
wi
th
 c
ur
re
nt
 d
es

ig
n



T
e
r
m
i
t
e
,
 N
o
n
 T
o
x
i
c
 T
e
r
m
i
t
e
 P
r
e
t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t

D
M
D
1
,
S
 

2

Du
ra

bl
e 
Ma
te
ri
al
s,
 Ex

te
ri

or
 F
lr

tl
sh

 M
at
er
ia
ls

Le
ve
r-
St
yl
e 
Cl
ot
he
s 
W
a
s
h
e
r
 W
a
t
e
r
 S
hu

to
ff

W
a
t
e
r
 S
en

so
rs
/S
hu
to
ff
 s
y
s
t
e
m

T
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
us
es
 a
n
 a
lt
er
na
ti
ve
 t
o 
tr
ad
it
io
na
l 
so
il
 

Pr
ov
id
e 
ap
pr
op
ri
at
e 
dr
aw
in
gs
 a
nd

 s
pe
ci
fi
ca
ti
on
s,

po
ls

on
fo

r 
te
rm
it
e 
tr
ea
tm
en
t.
 S
ys

te
ms

 n
ta

y 
In
cl
ud
e 
th

e 
il
lu
st
ra
ti
ng
 c
om
pl
ia
nc
e 
to
 a
ll

 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
s,

u
s
e
 o
f
 b
or
at
e 
o
r
 A
lk

al
in

e 
C
o
p
p
e
r
 Q
u
a
t
e
r
n
a
r
y
 (
A
C
Q
)

tr
ea
te
d 
l
u
m
b
e
r
 o
r 
te

rm
it

e 
ba
it
 s
y
s
t
e
m
s
.
 T
o
 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
hi

s

cr
ed
it
 a
n
y
 a
n
d
 a
ll
 p
la
nt
s,
 tu

rf
 a
n
d
 I
rr
ig
at
io
n 
li

ne
s 
m
u
s
t

b
e
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 3
' 
f
r
o
m
 t
he
 f
ou

nd
at

io
n.

 A
dd
it
io
na
ll
y,

a
n
y
 f
o
a
m
 I
ns
ul
at
io
n 
m
u
s
t
 t
er

mi
na

te
 a
bo
ve
 g
ro
un
d.
 T
h
e

ex
te

ri
or

 c
la
dd
in
g 
o
f
 t
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
m
u
s
t
 a
ls
o 
te
rm
in
at
e 
a

le
as
ts
' 
ab
ov
e 
gr

ad
e.

 R
ai
nw
at
er
 f
r
o
m
 t
he

 r
oo
f 
m
u
s
t

al
so
 b
e
 d
is

pe
rs

ed
 a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 3
' 
f
r
o
m
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g

fo
un
da
ti
on
 (
b
y
 t
he
 u
se
 o
f 
d
o
w
n
s
p
o
u
t
s
 o
r 
sc
up
pe
rs
 a
n
d

ex
te

ns
io

ns
 o
r 
sp
la
sh
 b
lo

ck
s)

. 
Ai

l 
A
C
 c
o
n
d
e
n
s
a
t
e
 l
in
es

m
u
s
t
 a
ls
o 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 
a
 m
i
n
i
m
u
m
 o
f
 3
'
 f
r
o
m
 t
he
 b
ui

ld
in

g.

TJ
H 
be

li
ev

es
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
s 
fo
r 
cl
ad
di
ng
 a
n
d
 p
la

nt
in

g 
d
o

no
t 
ap
pe
ar
 t
o 
co
mf
or
t 
wi
th
 c
ur
re
nt
 d
es
ig
n

U
s
e
 f
in

is
h 
s
y
s
t
e
m
s
 a
n
d
 m
at

er
ia

ls
 c
ap

ab
le

 o
f

wi
th

st
an

di
ng

 t
he

 m
oi
st
ur
e 
an

d 
he

at
 i
mp
ac
ts
 o
f 
th
e

lo
ca

l 
cl
im
at
e 
fo
r 
a
 p
er
io
d 
o
f
 3
0
 y
ea
rs
 o
n
 l
O
O
K
 o
f
 t
h
e

Pl
an
 d
et

ai
l 
Id
en
ti
fy
in
g 

al
l t
he
 s
ys

te
ms

 a
nd

 m
at
er
ia
ls

us
ed
 f
or

 t
he
 e
xt
er
io
rf
ln
ls
ho
f t

he
 b
ui
ld
in
g.
 A
tt

ac
h

co
pi

es
 o
f
 t
h
e
 N
O
A
 f
or
 M
l
a
m
l
-
D
a
d
e
.
 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r'
s

ex
po

se
d 
ex

te
ri

or
 s
ur
fa
ce
s.
 S
tr
uc
tu
re
 s
ha
ll
 b
e 
T
y
p
e
 l
A,
 

wa
rr

an
ti

es
 o
r 
do
cu
me
nt
at
io
n 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 t
he

ex
te

ri
or

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 s
ha
ll
 b
e
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 b
y
 M
i
a
m
i
-
D
a
d
e

C
o
u
n
l
v
.
 o
r
 h
a
v
e
 a
 3
0
 y
e
a
r
 w
a
r
r
a
n
t
y
.

In
st
al
l 
a 
le

ve
r 
st

yl
e 
sh
ut
of
f 
va

lv
e 
th

at
 o
nl

y 
re

qu
ir

es
 a

9
0
o
 t
ur

n 
t
o
 s
h
u
t
 o
ff

 w
a
t
e
r
 s
up
pl
y

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 
hi

st
or

y 
fo

r 
a
n
y
 m
at

er
ia

l 
wi
th
ou
t 
a
 w
ri

tt
en

T
J
H
/
K
X
 t
o 
sp

ec
if

y

Re
ce

iv
e 
o
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 If

 a
 s
en

so
r/

sh
ut

of
f 
sy
st
em
 I
s 
in

st
al

le
d 

Co
ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 d
et
ai
l,
 cu

t 
sh
ee
t,
 a
nd

 p
ho

to
 o
f 
sy

st
em

t
o
 c
ut

 o
ff

 w
a
t
e
r
 s
up
pl
y 
t
o
 a
 c
lo

th
es

 w
a
s
h
e
r
 a
n
d
 w
a
t
e
r
 

In
st

al
le

d

he
at
er
 l
oc
at
ed
 I
ns
id
e 
co

nd
it

io
ne

d 
sp
ac
e.
 A
lt

er
na

ti
ve

ly
,

o
n
e
 p
oi

nt
 I
s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 
fo
r 
a 
w
h
o
l
e
-
h
o
u
s
e
 s
y
s
t
e
m
 t
ha
t

de
te

ct
s 
an
y 
si

gn
 o
f 
wa
te
r 
le

ak
ag

e 
a
n
y
w
h
e
r
e
 i
ns
id
e 
th
e

co
nd

it
io

ne
d 
sp

ac
e,

 a
n
d
 c
ut
s 
of

f 
t
h
e
 m
a
i
n
 w
a
t
e
r
 s
up

pl
y

t
o
 t
h
e
 u
ni
t.

Du
ra

bi
li

ty
: 
Us

e 
Ar

mo
re

d/
Me

ta
l 
Ho
se
s 
f
r
o
m
 S
er
vi
ce
 t
o 

In
st
al
l a

rm
or
ed
, 
br
ai
de
d,
 p
ex

, o
r 
ot

he
rw

is
e 
re
in
fo
rc
ed
 

Cu
t 
sh
ee
t,
 co

ns
tr
uc
ti
on
 d
et

ai
l,

 s
ig
ne
d 
ap

pr
ov

ed

Al
l 
Fi

xt
ur

es
/A

pp
li

an
ce

s 
ho

se
s 
to

 al
l 
wa
te
r 
us
in
g 
Tt

xl
ur

e 
or
 a
pp
li
an
ce
s.
 

su
bm

lt
ta

i.
 si

te
 p
ho

to
s

Pr
ov

id
e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 d
et

ai
l,

 si
gn
ed
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 s
ub
ml
tt
ai
, 
F
E
S

an
d 
ph

ot
os

 o
f 
In
st
al
le
d 
va
lv
es

F
E
S
-
w
a
t
e
r
 d
et

ec
ti

on
 s
y
s
t
e
m
s
 a
re
 a
va

il
ab

le
 b
u
t

co
ve
ra
ge
 t
o 
be
 d
et
er
mi
ne
d

L
o
w
-
M
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 F
in
is
he
s

Us
e 
ma
te
ri
al
s (
o
n
 t
he
 f
lo
or
s,
 w
al

ls
 a
n
d
 c
ei

li
ng

s)
 t
ha

t 
ca
n 

Pr
ov
id
e 
a 
c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th

e 
ma
nu
fa
ct
ur
er
s 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d

be
 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

In
 a
 s
er
vi
ce
ab
le
 c
on
di
ti
on
 u
si
ng
 g
re

en
 

ma
in

te
na

nc
e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, t
he

 t
yp

e 
an

d 
ar

ea
 o
f

cl
ea
ni
ng
 p
ro

du
ct

s 
fo
r 
T
O
O
K
 o
f
 t
h
e
 I
nt
er
io
r 
fi

ni
sh

es
 o
f
 

ma
te

ri
al

s 
th
at
 c
o
m
p
l
y
,

t
h
e
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
a
n
d
 S
Ot
i (
b
y
 s
ur
fa
ce
 a
re
a)
 o
f
 t
h
e
 e
xt
er
io
r

f
i
n
i
s
h
e
s
.

T
I
H
/
K
K
 t
o
 s
pe

ci
fy



REPORT ON COMPATIBILITY

of

PROPOSED DESIGNS

with the

CRITERIA for ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

per

TOWN of SURFSIDE ORDINANCE #16-1655

8995 COLLINS AVENUE
SURFSIDE. FLORIDA 33154

LElr-D F;

ARTHUR J. MARCUS ARCHITECT RA.

1800 NORTH ANDREWS AVENUE #7F

FORTLAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33311

JMH DEVELOPMENT. LLC

184 KENT AVENUE

BROOKLYN. NEW YORK 11249

TOWN of SURFSIDE

9293 HARDING AVENUE

SURFSIDE. FLORIDA 33154

JANUARY 1.2018



COMPATIBILITY of PROPOSED DESIGNS
with the

CRITERIA for ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE
per

TOWN of SURFSIDE ORDINANCE #16-1655

8995 COLLINS AVENUE

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 33154

The proposed architectural plans and elevations for 8995 Collins
Avenue call for a respectful re-interpretation of this Mid-Century
Modern building w/hich has stood at this site since 1966. This re
view is based upon the features of architectural significance as de
fined by the Town of Surfside Ordinance No. 16-1655 as well as
comments on additional issues affecting historic elements..

The re-interpretation of these existing significant architectural fea

tures looks toward maintaining the essential architectural character
of this historic building. There is a rationale for each of these archi
tectural decisions as they affect the significant architectural ele
ments of the building - as elaborated below.

SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS:

* OVERHANGING ROOF

The overhanging roof is proposed to be raised up to the new roof
level of the building above the 12th floor. Currently the building
is 8 floors tali. From an architectural viewpoint it seems more ap
propriate to raise the roof to the new taller scale of the building -
rather than to build new above the roof-top in place. This relo
cated location still serves to celebrate this arched overhanging
roof as a detail of architectural significance. This particular over
hanging roof in a mid-building location would be an awkward
design challenge quite difficult to design around.

* ARCHES @ OVERHANGING ROOF

The existing arches at the overhanging roof are proposed to be
raised up to the new roof level of the building. As with the over

hanging roof it does seem more appropriate to raise these arches
- rather than to build new above the roof-top in place. The arches

at the overhanging roof are a significant architectural feature.

* CURVED CONCRETE COLUMN BASES

The curved concrete column bases for the vertical concrete col

umns running the height of the building are a significant architec

tural feature. These curved concrete column bases are typical at
the beginning of each vertical column. These curved concrete
column bases comprise a significant architectural feature.

TOP PHOTO; OVERHANGING ROOF & ARCHES @ 8995 COLLINS AVENUE.

LOWER PHOTO: CURVED CONCRETE COLUMN BASES @ 8995 COLLINS AVE.



SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS:

* REPETITIVE MOTIFS

One of the major design elements of this building is the window
fenestration pattern. The Architects have re-interpreted the basic
building structure as the rationale for fenestration and for re
interpreting this building to work in the 21st century.

The repetitive motif in both the existing and proposed facades
provides distinctive elevations. An overall pattern for a building is
a typical feature of Mid-Century / MiMo architecture. This repeti
tive structural grid on the major elevations has became the point
of inspiration for the Architects.

The original facades of this building have become hidden over
the years with storm shutter frames in place on the elevations.
These storm shutter systems provide hurricane protection for ap
proximately 50% of the building's windowed elevations. On one
hand there is the original irregular motif pattern with some win
dow bays and some blank walls or on the other hand there is the
storm shutter system gridded to the elevations and the de-facto
viewed elevation for generations of Surfsiders.

The repetitive motif of the facades - especially with the storm
shutters - actually masks different conditions throughout the build
ing. Sometimes there are windows and sometimes there are

walls. The storm shutter system has gone a long way to morph
the view of the building into a geometric grid.

* EXEMPLIFIES REGIONAL STYLE OF ARCHITECTURE

In the original Architectural Significance Report for 8995 Collins
Avenue completed by this author and dated March 3, 2017 - this
was one of the qualifying significant architectural features.

There is a common design thread of tall columns topped by
arches in mid-century architecture - especially in Surfside with
8801 Collins Avenue completed in 1965 and 8995 Collins Ave
nue completed in 1966. Also in 1966 this regional style made its
debut at Lincoln Center in New York City in 1966. Yet it was the
301 Arthur Godfrey Road office building in Miami Beach by Char

les Giller Architect that actually began this regional style in 1963.

This thoughtful re-interpretation for 8995 Collins Avenue respects
and reflects the historic significant architectural elements of the
building - and celebrates their significance in its proposed re
design. At the same time 8995 Collins Avenue continues to high
light the architecturally significant elements of this regional

architectural style.

TOP PHOTO; TYPICAL PARTIAL ELEVATION @ 8995 COLLINS AVENUE

MIDDLE PHOTO: ROOFTOP @ 301 ARTHUR GODFREY RD. IN MIAMI BEACH.

LOWER PHOTO: 8801 COLLINS AVENUE WHEN COMPLETED IN 1963

BY CHARLES GILLER ARCHITECTS



ADDITIONAL IMPROVEMENTS :

OPENING UP of REAR (SOUTH) FACADE

The provision of new windows Into the formerly forbidding 8-
story blank walled south elevation - is a great improvement
both for the surrounding neighborhood who must look at the
building - as well as opening up the interior of the building to
daylight.

The proposed south elevation responds to the surrounding
neighborhood with a much improved neighborhood-friendly
building elevation. This will definitely be a great improvement
over the existing overwhelming blank wall. These new window

openings also respect the historic repetitive structural motif of
the building and tie In with adjacent building elevations.
A building is meant to be read from all four elevations.

NEW TERRACES

The addition of new terraces has been achieved within the exist

ing horizontal architectural building lines. The light-well open
ings between terraces provides a kinetic visual relief from the
overall horizontality on the facade.

The glass railings further reinforce the existing lines of the build
ing by essentially disappearing when viewing the building.
These new terraces respect the existing structural lines of the
building and strive to blend with the existing structural lines.

RELOCATION OF GARAGE ENTRANCE

FROM

COLLINS AVENUE TO 90 STREET

The garage entrance has always been accessed directly from
Collins Avenue. With the steady increase in the volume of

traffic over the years this garage entrance creates traffic back
ups into oncoming traffic.

Thus the developer has worked with the Town of Surfside to
provide an improved solution for garage access from 90th
Street.

CONCLUSION

As the author of this report I believe that the proposed plans
for 8995 Collins Avenue meet the standards for Architectural

Significance as described in the Town of Surfside Ordinance

No. 16-1655.

TOP PHOTO: REAR (SOUTH) ELEVATION of 8995 COLLINS AVENUE

courtesy KOBI KARP ARCHITECTURE

LOWER PHOTO: RENDERING OF PROPOSED NEW 8995 COUINS AVENUE

courtesy KOBI KARP ARCHITCCTURE



TRAFFIC ENGINEERING STAFF

REVIEW COMMENTS & CONFLICT

POINT GRAPHICS



.^jr^ ^ n

Discipline:

Reviewed by:

Date:

Phone No.:

Fax No.:

TOWN OF SURFSIDE

PLANNING COMMENTS

SITE PLAN REVIEW COMMENTS

Traffic Engineering
Eric Czerniejewski, P.E., ENV SP

May 19, 2018

(954)921-7781

(954) 921-8807

Application No.: 08-1763.33
Project Name: 8995 Collins

Comments Based on Plan Submittal: 2"'^ submittal (revised plan)

No comments

X  Comments as followed or attached

1. Projects that have direct or immediate access or is within one-half block of Collins Avenue,
Harding Avenue or 96th Street shall be subject to the review and approval by FOOT for
compliance with FOOT standards. Please provide an approval letter from FDOT as part of your
resubmittal. (Town of Surfside Code Section 90-81.11)

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: The Permits Section of the Florida Department of

Transportation's District VI office does not provide "Pre-App" letters in the manner of

District IV. Therefore, it is not possible to provide the requested letter until the time that

a Driveway Permit is applied for. As soon as the Driveway Permit is obtained, a copy will

be provided to the Town.

CGA response: Addressed.

2. The pavement marking and signage plan needs to show the existing driveway connection
details for the Surf Club on the north side of 90'^ Street.

Ocean Engineering, Inc. 04/23/18 Response: The pavement marking and signage plans

have been revised to show the existing driveway along the north side of 90th Street.

(WL)



EXIST DETECTABLE WARNING AND
DEWALK CURB RAMP TO REMAI

PROP. 24 SOUD W

STOP BAR (T).

PROP. 6 DBL. YELLOW

SOUD STRIPES (T).

:table warning and

RB RAMPS PER FOOT

INDEX NO. 304 (TYP)
rrxi ST. i)Rr^WAY

CONNECTIONS
FOR SURF CUJB

PROP. 6" SaiD 25.0 I to
WHITE STRIPING (T). "

PROP. R1-1. R3-5L

& R5-1

0th Stree

Y/ALK

REMAIN.

JAST ARM TO BEI
=ER PROP. CON

TECTABLE WARNING
K CURB RAMP TO REMAI if PROP. lO'XIO SIGHT 1

TRIANGLE (TYP.)

PROP. 24 SOUD WHITE

STOP BAR
PROP. R1-1 & R3-5R

J-PROP. SOUD WHITE RIGHT
^ TURN ARROW MARKING

PROP. SOLID WHITE LEFT
TURN ARROW MARKING.

3.

4.

CGA response: Addressed. Applicant updated pavement marking and sianaae plans

and provided a supplemental narrative that discusses the number of trips using the Surf Club

entrance on to 90^ Street

Please update the pavement marking and signage plan to include the complete linework for
the proposed sidewalk infrastructure. There is linework not shown on this plan that is shown in
the proposed site plan drawing. Please include the proposed ADA handicap ramps for the
north south crosswalk proposed on 90^ Avenue just east of Collins Avenue.

Ocean Engineering, inc. 04/23/18 Response: The pavement marking and signage plan

has been revised to show the same linework as the proposed site plan and the proposed

ADA handicap ramp for the north south crosswalk on 90th St (WL)

CGA response: Addressed. Applicant updated pavement marking and sianaae plans

that shows the additional sidewalk infrastructure and the proposed handicap ramps for the

north south crosswalk proposed on 90^ Avenue.

Please confirm if paver bricks will be reinstalled at the proposed north south crosswalk
proposed on 90^ Avenue Just east of Collins Avenue. The paving, grading and drainage plan
calls out for 90^ Street to be milled and resurfaced.

Ocean Engineering. Inc. 04/23/18 Response: The paver bricks will be reinstalled at the

north/south crosswalk on 90th St (WL)

CGA response: Addressed.

5. The location of the proposed stop sign, left turn only and do not enter signs are not shown on
the pavement marking and signage plan at the egress only driveway connection on 90^^ Street.
Please show location of the proposed signs that match the labels.

Ocean Engineering, inc. 04/23/18 Response: The proposed signs are shown on the

pavement marking and signage plan. (WL)

CGA response: Addressed.



6. The proposed solid white left turn arrow marking should be positioned perpendicular and set
back to the proposed stop bar at the egress only driveway connection on 90^^ Street.

Ocean Engineering, Inc. 04/23/18 Response: The proposed turn arrow has been modified

to be perpendicular and set back to the stop bar. (WL)

CGA response: Addressed.

7. Please either label the directional arrows that are shown on the pavement marking and signage
plan as "informational only" or remove the symbols from the plans. It is unclear from the design
plans if these are to be installed as part of the project.

Ocean Engineering, Inc. 04/23/18 Response: the directional arrows have been removed

from the pavement marking and signage plan. (WL)

CGA response: Addressed.

8. A Fire Staging area is being proposed in both the Collins Avenue and 90th Street public right-
of-way. Please confirm that Fire Rescue and FOOT have reviewed and approved these two
locations.

Ocean Engineering, Inc. 04/23/18 Response: A fire staging area both on Collins Avenue

and 90th Street right of way have been reviewed and approved by Fire. Please refer to

the stamped drawing provided with this submittaL

i  ̂ ^

ARE DEPARTNENT 1^HKML£ AREA

P0HT5 OP EGRESS FROU BULONG

,  RRE STAGING LAYOUT

CGA response: Addressed.



9, An additional traffic analysis will be required to evaluate the proposed conversion of 90^^
Street to a one-way roadway facility between Harding Avenue and Collins Avenue. Additional
comments may be issued for these proposed off-site improvements.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: Response: The proffer of a project to make 90th Street a

one-way roadway between Collins Avenue and Harding Avenue is contingent upon

approval by the Town of Surfside for the proposed 8995 Collins Avenue redevelopment

project Once the residential project has been approved, the requested traffic analysb wili

be prepared for the proposed one-way roadway modification. It shouid be noted that the

Town has been performing its own empirical test of one-way operation on thb portion of

90th Street and has concluded that it should become permanent The Town Commbsion

unanimously agreed, on April 10, 2018, to seek all approvab necessary to make thb

happen.

CGA response: Addressed.

10. The valet parking analysis should be updated to address the following traffic operational
concerns:

•  Because the vehicles of the residents leaving the building also "arrive" at the valet
station their number needs to be added to the hourly arrival rate. The most current
study utilizes the 12 PM peak entering trips as the queue arrival rate rather than
adding the 8 exiting vehicles and expanding it to 20 vehicles. The queue to analyze
is the one that forms at the very head of the line, which is fed both by arriving
occupants waiting to turn their vehicle over to the arrivals valet, and departing
vehicles emerging from the ascending (east) lift being returned to their owners.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: As the reviewer can well imagine, the rush to
update the traffic study was done while the site plan was still being revbed.
An assumption was made that, with a mere 12 entering vehicles in the peak
hour of the day, ail 12 could be handled by entering directly into the entry lift.
Of course, it b iikely that more than one vehicle may arrive at the same time
or so closeiy behind another that the entry lift b already in use and, thus,
requires the second vehicle to have to wait in the queue storage area. A revbed
analysb b enclosed.

CGA response: Addressed. Applicant's revised traffic study dated 05/03/18 used
16 entering vehicles and 16 exiting vehicles in the revised queuing analysis to be
conservative. Peer Reviewer, Traf Tech, provided 05/04/18 letter (copy attached)
that corroborates the results of the Applicants traffic study.



Because of this, the worst-case condition is based on the entering plus exiting
hourly total, not the entering volume alone.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: The worst-case condition b some combination
of entering and exiting vehicles. However, it bn't likely to be 20 vehicles, as
asserted by the reviewer. It b expected that some entering vehicles may be
dropped off by their owner and driven straight into the entry lift. It b only
those who must wait for an entry opportunity that will be stored in the vehicle
queue storage area. The revbed anaiysb examines thb queuing probability
to estimate the combined total of vehicles expected to use the vehicle queue
storage area. See the dbcussion in the response to comments 10.D and 10.E
for the anaiysb methodology.

What b germane to comment 10.B b thb, the average queue for entering
vehicles b 17 feet, or less than one vehicle length. Thb means that, for most
of the peak hour, a single vehicle b waiting to enter the lift. Of course, the lift
may already be in use delivering another vehicle to a parking space when this
vehicle arrives, but, over the course of the three minutes required to park the
first vehicle in the lift, no other vehicle arrives so the waiting vehicle may sit
in the entrance without ever being moved to the queue storage area.
Consequently, since the vehicle enters directly into the entry lift, there b no
circular pattern of entering the queue storage area and cbcling around
through the exit lane onto 90th Street and reentering the site from westbound
90th Street. In spite of thb, and to be conservative in our anaiysb, we
increased the entering volume to 16 vehicles and added eight (8) vehicles
making the westbound-to-southbound left turn into the site (see the enclosed
Synchro intersection report).

CGA response: Applicant's revised traffic study dated 05/03/18 used 16 entering
vehicles and 16 exiting vehicles in the revised queuing analysis to be conservative.

The average service time at the valet station should appropriately reflect the mix
of service times (for arriving vs departing residents) and their proportions.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: We cannot agree with thb assertion. Exiting
vehicles are queued within the underground parking area and in no way affect
the potential queue backup on eastbound 90th Street. The only wait time for
exiting vehicles that affects the potential backup on eastbound 90th Street b
that time requbed for the valet attendant over to the owner and for the owner
to then exit the queue storage area onto westbound 90th Street.



8995 Collins

Valet / Porking Operationol Plan

CGA response; Addressed. The applicant provided a new 8995 Collins Valet
Parking Operational Plan which depicts the staged valet operation.

One hour is far too long to be an appropriate analysis interval. The result of this
type of analysis is sensitive to the choice of analysis "interval" length. For any
sufficiently short interval the most likely number of arrivals is zero and there is of
course no chance of any queue. In undersaturated conditions like this, given a

sufficiently long analysis interval, any queue buildups within the interval due to the
variable arrival rate involved are inevitably discharged.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: While the reviewer may believe an hour to be
too long an interval for estimating queues for the project, that is the method
prescribed in the Institute of Transportation Engineer's Transportation and
Land Development manual. In an effort to think through another method for

considering the random arrival of vehicles to form a queue of entering
vehicles, it occurred to us that Simtraffic could provide such an estimate. As a
microscopic simulation model, it looks at every vehicle on a random arrival
basis.

The intersection of 90th Street at the project driveway/Surf Club driveway was

treated as a signalized intersection with a ISO-second-long north-south phase

to simulate the 180 seconds assumed to be required to drop off a vehicle to
the valet attendant and have that vehicle parked in the underground garage

on a parking lift. The east-west phase was given a nominal 30 seconds for a
total cycle length of 210 seconds, or 3.5 minutes. To simulate the storage
within the project site, eastbound 90th Street was given a 75-foot-long right-
turn lane (equivalent to three vehicle lengths of queue storage in Synchro).
The eastbound right-turning vehicles were not permitted to turn right on red

so that during the 180-second time that one vehicle was being parked, no
other vehicle could leave the queue.



The Synchro network, including the new signal at the project entrance, was
then imported into Simtraffic and four, hour-long runs were completed. A
copy of both the Synchro intersection report and the average of the four
Simtraffic queue reports are enclosed.

As the reviewer can see by perusing the enclosed four-run-average Simtraffic
queue report, the maximum queue, which is the total queue, not a percentage
of the queue, is 49 feet in length. Simtraffic considers one vehicle length to be
19.5 feet in its queuing analysis so the average maximum queue observed in
the four runs, 49 feet, is equivalent to 2.51 vehicles, or for practical purposes,
three vehicles.

Surf C ub

Figure 2 - P.M. Peak Hour Traffic Couots
^5 Collins Avenue

Towm of Surfslde, Florida

CGA response: Addressed. The applicant provided a new 8995 Collins Valet
Parking Operational Plan which depicts the staged valet operation. It should be
noted that there is limited space for eastbound left turning vehicles Into the Surf
Club development to queue on 90*^ Street. The Simtraffic queue report identifies
an EBL queue of 54 LF (around 3 vehicles). The post development valet operational
analysis study will need to evaluate not only the valet operations at 8995 Collins
but also the traffic operations within 90^^ Street including the driveway operations
at the Surf Club and 90^^ Street.



The applicant needs to demonstrate that enough interval lengths have been tested
to identify the "worst" condition i.e. the interval length that produces the highest
likelihood of the queue exceeding three vehicles.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: While the reviewer may believe an hour to be
too long an interval for estimating queues for the project, that is the method
prescribed in the Institute of Transportation Engineer's Transportation and
Land Development manual In an effort to think through another method for
considering the random arrival of vehicles to form a queue of entering
vehicles, it occurred to us that Simtraffic could provide such an estimate. As a
microscopic simulation model, it looks at every vehicle on a random arrival
basb.

The intersection of 90th Street at the project driveway/Surf Club driveway was
treated as a signalized intersection with a ISO-second-iong north'south phase
to simulate the 180 seconds assumed to be required to drop off a vehicle to
the valet attendant and have that vehicle parked in the underground garage
on a parking lift. The east-west phase was given a nominal 30 seconds for a
total cycle length of 210 seconds, or 3.5 minutes. To simulate the storage
within the project site, eastbound 90th Street was given a 75-foot-long right-
turn lane (equivalent to three vehicle lengths of queue storage in Synchro).
The eastbound right-turning vehicles were not permitted to turn right on red
so that during the 180-second time that one vehicle was being parked, no
other vehicle could leave the queue.

The Synchro network, including the new signal at the project entrance, was
then imported into Simtraffic and four, hour-long runs were completed. A
copy of both the Synchro intersection report and the average of the four
Simtraffic queue reports are enclosed.

As the reviewer can see by perusing the enclosed four-run-average Simtraffic
queue report, the maximum queue, which is the total queue, not a percentage
of the queue, is 49 feet in length. Simtraffic considers one vehicle length to be
19.5 feet in its queuing anaiysb so the average maximum queue observed in
the four runs, 49 feet, is equivalent to 2.51 vehicles, or for practical purposes,
three vehicles.

CGA response: Addressed. The applicant provided a new 8995 Collins Valet
Parking Operational Plan which depicts the staged valet operation. It should be
noted that there is limited space for eastbound left turning vehicles into the Surf
Club development to queue on 90*^ Street. The Simtraffic queue report identifies
an EBL queue of 54 LF (around 3 vehicles). The post development valet operational
analysis study will need to evaluate not only the valet operations at 8995 Collins
but also the traffic operations within 90^^ Street including the driveway operations
at the Surf Club and 90^'' Street.



When an arriving vehicle has been given to the valet and is headed for the
descending lift, the valet approaching the west drive entrance will either:
1. Proceed straight into the descending lift without delay; or
2. Stop in the street because the queue has blocked access to the descending

lift.

The queue in the 2"'' condition won't discharge since the person needed to serve
it isn't at the valet station, they're at the back of the queue, blocking street traffic.
This geometry and process thus considerably exacerbates the consequence of a
queue that exceeds three vehicles from the usual (vehicle temporarily in the travel
lane) to a complete standstill. The statistical standard chosen for this situation
(likelihood should not exceed X) should probably be far stricter than the usual ten
percent. Any chosen standard (one percent, one half of one percent) could be
tested, but the inputs still need to reflect the blend of arriving and departing
vehicles as previously mentioned. This should be addressed in the section narrative.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: We disagree. With a maximum queue

requirement, even considering random arrivals, of three vehicle lengths, as
demonstrated above, there is room for every vehicle to be accommodated.
First of all, as the reviewer notes, the first arriving vehicle can simply be
loaded onto the entry lift. Those vehicles that follow may be stored in the
entrance and storage area. In effect, there is room in the east-west storage
area for three vehicles with another vehicle stored in the entrance driveway
for a combined total of five vehicles of storage (1 vehicle in the lift + 3 vehicles
in the queue storage area + 7 vehicle in the entrance driveway = 5 vehicles)
while still leaving the departure/vehicle pick-up area free to be used by a
departing vehicle.



CGA response: Addressed. The applicant provided a new 8995 Collins Valet
Parking Operational Plan which depicts the staged valet operation. It should be
noted that there is limited space for eastbound left turning vehicles into the Surf
Club development to queue on 90^^ Street. The Simtraffic queue report identifies
an EBL queue of 54 LF (around 3 vehicles). The post development valet operational
analysis study will need to evaluate not only the valet operations at 8995 Collins
but also the traffic operations within 90^'' Street including the driveway operations
at the Surf Club and 90^^ Street.

Please confirm and define the valet service position. Site plan sheet A3.01 labels
this midway of the canopy area which leaves just one queuing space behind the
service position. An exhibit needs to be provided in the Appendix that defines
this set-up. If this is in fact one, the queuing analysis for the valet needs to be
updated accordingly.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: The reviewer is right to be concerned. The site
plan sheet A3.0J doesn't really indicate the location of valet attendants. A
revised site plan sheet A3.0J has been prepared (and is enclosed) that shows
the valet attendant station for arriving vehicles being dropped off and a
second valet attendant station where departing vehicles are returned to their
owners. This sheet also shows the total number of entering vehicles that may
be stored at one time on the project site.

CGA response: Addressed. The applicant provided a new 8995 Collins Valet
Parking Operational Plan which depicts the staged valet operation.

The proposed pedestrian sidewalk path will be affected by the vehicles entering
the valet drop off area multiple times. This includes the initial arrival at the ingress,
the circulating lap across the egress opening and the crossing of the ingress to
enter the proposed intake elevator. This additional number of trips across the
entrance is a safety concern.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: It is true that vehicles entering and exiting from
the parking garage will conflict with pedestrians walking to and from the
beach along the south side of 90th Street. However, we would ask the reviewer
how this is different from any other parking lot or garage? All parking lot and
garage traffic crosses the sidewalks adjacent to the streets to which the
parking lots and garages connect. In this case, the volume of entering and
exiting vehicles in an entire day do not equal the volume in a single hour of,
for example, parking garages in any downtown setting and yet those
downtown garages are not known for their high incidences of
vehicle/pedestrian crashes or even conflicts.

CGA response: Addressed. The applicant provided a new 8995 Collins Valet
Parking Operational Plan which depicts the staged valet operation



•  The queuing analysis provided in Appendix G should provide justification for the
tabled values used in the calculation. Please provide copy of tables in the
Appendix.

Tom Hall 04/23/18 Response: A copy of the tabled values used in the queuing
analysis provided in the recent traffic impact study is enclosed per the
reviewer's request

CGA response: Addressed.

11. The 8995 Collins Valet Parking Operational Plan was submitted and I have the following
comments:

•  Proposed Operational Conditions for Parking and Loading

❖ Item #2- The parking system should be staffed with a minimum of three valet

operators and should have an additional valet operator staffed initially when
the development is opened during the first year evaluation period.

❖ Item #5- If the report determines that the system is causing unacceptable traffic
operations including but not limited to a negative impact on the safety of
pedestrians and/or the reasonable flow of traffic on 90th Street because of the
queuing of vehicles entering or exiting the system, the applicant shall be
required to undertake modifications to the system or staffing to resolve the
issue.

•  Methodology for Follow up Study

❖ Traffic Data Collection will be by video data collection. The traffic data collection
will be made at the 8995 Collins Avenue ingress and egress driveway location
on 90*^ Street Traffic counts will be collected at this driveway and the Surf Club
driveway with 90^ Street. The manual turning movement counts will be
collected during the morning and evening peak hours. Manual Turning
Movement Counts should also be collected at Collins Avenue and 90^ Street

signalized intersection.

❖ Aerial Drone video will be collected along the 90**^ Street and 8995 Collins main
driveway documenting the valet traffic operations and vehicles interactions
within 90^*^ Street during peak times on a weekday and weekend.

❖ Field calculations of the valet operations will be taken and documented in the
follow up study. This should include the processing time for arriving and
departing vehicles.

Eric Czerniejewski, P.E., ENV SP



May 4,2018

Graham Perm, Esq.
Bercow Radell Femandez & Larkin

200 S. Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 850
Miami, Florida 33131

Re: 8995 Collins Avenue - Surfside, Florida
Traffic Study Review

Dear Graham:

8995 Collins Avenue is a proposed redevelopment of an existing residential building located in
the southeast quadrant of die intersection at Collins Avenue and 90^ Street in Surfside, Florida.
The proposed development program consists of 55 residential condominium dwelling units with
108 parking spaces to be located in the basement of the building. Access to the parking area will
be provided by two (2) vehicle elevators and vehicles will be stored on lifts. As a result of the
access to the parking area and the parking operations, all vehicles will be processed by valet
personnel.

A traffic impact study and operational analysis for this project was prepared by Thomas A. Hall,
Inc. and the most recent report is dated May 3, 2018. As requested, we have conducted an
independent review of the analyses and documentation presented in this report. Specifically, we
have conducted an independent trip generation analysis, we have reviewed the trip distribution
and intersection operations, and we have conducted a separate queuing analysis with respect to
the vehicle drop-off and pick-up process. Based upon our review and independent analyses, we
generally concur with the findings presented in Mr. Hall's report.

If you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

TRAP TECH ENGINEERING, INC.

Karl B. Peterson, P.E.
Florida Registration Number 49897
Engineering Business Number 26605

Copy to: Joaquin B. Vargas



90
th
 S
tr

ee
t

W
i
d
t
h

T
r
o
c
k

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

Si
ee

rl
no

 
An
gl
e

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
A
n
g
l
e

e^
lv

in
. 
Oi

r-
ri

Li
nn

 :
• 
As
'c
pm
Ic
'?
. 
In

c.
C
O
N
F
L
I
C
T

P
O
I
N
T
S

D
I
A
G
R
A
M



L
O
A
D
I
N
G

Z
O
N
E

L.
 u
ii

ni
jc

ii
 W
 

■ 
.i

I 
ia

wr
e 
in
) 
fi

n)

90
th

 S
t
r
^
t

W
i
d
t
h

T
r
o
c
k

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
A
n
g
l
e

W
i
d
t
h

T
r
a
c
k

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
An
gl
e

=
s
e
®
S
'
:
,
^
^

R
R
E
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 A
R
E
A

Lf
lK

in
. 

o
 A
<
<
o
r
i
M
»
5
.
 f
nc
.

C
O
N
F
L
I
C
T

P
O
I
N
T
S

D
I
A
G
R
A
M



90
th
 S
tr

ee
t

W
i
d
t
h

T
r
a
c
k

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
An
gl
e

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
An
gl
e

L.
iK

if
i,

 
;•
 A
s
<
o
r
b
'
e
s
.
 f
nc

C
O
N
F
L
I
C
T

P
O
I
N
T
S

D
I
A
G
R
A
M



90
th

 S
t
r
^
t

W
i
d
t
h

T
r
o
c
k

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
An
gl
e

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
An
gl
e

Lf
ll
vr
n.
 

'•
 A
j
^
n
r
u
v
o
s
,
 I
nf

C
O
N
F
L
I
C
T

P
O
I
N
T
S

D
I
A
G
R
A
M



LO
WD

IN
G 
\
 
^
 A
l
 

1
Z
O
N
E

m
w
 

(
f 

li
t 
P
C
I
T
 
>

3
0
.
0
0

^

1
 ̂ 

j

•
 .

4
.
0
0
 

2
0
.
0
0

S
U
 

fe
et

1
9
.
0
0

3
.
0
0
 
t
l
.
O
O

P

W
i
d
t
h
 

;
 8
.
0
0

T
r
o
c
k
 

;
 8
.
0
0

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e
 
;
 6
.
0

St
ee
ri
ng
 
A
n
g
l
e
 

:
 3
1
.
8

■ 1

W
i
d
t
h

T
r
o
c
k

L
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
L
o
c
k
 
T
i
m
e

St
ee
ri
ng
 
An
gl
e

L
O
A
D
I
N
G

R
R
E
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 A
R
E
A

C
.
i
l
M
n
.
 

A
s
'
o
r
i
J
l
f
s
.
 t
nr
.

C
O
N
F
L
I
C
T

P
O
I
N
T
S

D
I
A
G
R
A
M



8995 Collins Avenue
Traffic Impact Study (Revised)

Town of Surfside, Florida

f

Prepared for

SURF HOUSE OCEAN VIEWS, LLC

Prepared by

THOMAS A. HALL, INC.

May 3, 2018



8995 Collins Avenue Traffic Impact Study
(Revised)

Town of Surfside, Florida

Prepared for:

SURF HOUSE OCEAN VIEWS, LLC

Prepared by:

THOMAS A. HALL, INC.

May 3, 2018

-  .•* ^0.39656 •. ^

%  STATE OF

'fill

Dan A. Tintnerj P,E.
fL Re^stration No. 39656
814 S.MiUtary Trail
Deeitieldi Beach, FL 33442



Table of Contents

Introduction 1

Figure 1 - Site Location 2
Data Collection 3

Figure 2 - Permitted Intersection Movements 4
Analyses 5

Adjustment Factors 5
Table 1 - Peak Hour Turning-Movement Counts 6

Existing Conditions 7
Table 2 - AM Peak-hour Queue Length, Level of Service and Delay Findings 8
Table 3 - PM Peak-hour Queue Length, Level of Service and Delay Findings 9

Background Traffic Conditions 10
Project Trip Generation 10
Project Distribution and Assignment 10

Table 4 - Daily Trip Generation 12
Table 5 - Mid-Day Peak-hour Trip Generation 12
Table 6 - PM Peak-hour Trip Generation 12
Figure 3 - Project Traffic Distribution 13
Figure 4 - Project Trip Assignment 14

Total Traffic Conditions 15

Link Capacity Analysis 15
Table 7 - Daily Roadway Capacity Analysis 15

Site Circulation/Multi-Modal Travel 16

Valet Parking Analysis 18
Conclusions 19

Appendix A - Traffic Counts 20
Appendix B - Adjustment Factors 21
Appendix C - Existing Conditions Analyses 22
Appendix D - Background Traffic Conditions Analyses 23
Appendix E - Total Traffic Conditions Analyses 24
Appendix F - Site Plan 25
Appendix G - Queuing Analysis 26



Introduction

Surf House Ocean Views Development, LLC proposes to redevelop an existing 36-unit,
multi-family residential development into a new, 55-unit Condominium Hotel in the
Town of Surfside, Florida, The proposed project is located at 8995 Collins Avenue—^and
that is also the project's name. 8995 Collins Avenue is expected to be built out in 2018.

The project previously was planned to include a cafe; however, that element has now
been deleted resulting in this traffic impact study update. In addition, comments received
from the Town of Surfside's consultant reviewers regarding the proposed valet parking
operation have been addressed in this revised report—including the addition of a second
vehicle lift system elevator to bring vehicles into and out of the basement parking garage.

Although access to the existing building is via a driveway connection to Collins Avenue
immediately south of 90^ Street, the proposed project will only use that driveway
connection to serve an on-site loading zone. Day-to-day traffic entering and exiting the
site will be via new driveway connections to 90^ Street.

Parking for 8995 Collins Avenue is to be provided in a 108-parking-space lot in the
basement of the building. All parking is to be valet assisted. A drop-off/pick-up valet
stand is proposed for the north side of the site along 90^ Street east of Collins Avenue, as
is a second loading zone that doubles as the USPS and FedEx drop off.

The purpose of this study is to analyze the impacts of trips generated by the proposed
new development on the adjacent roadway network in accordance with the requirements
of the Town of Surfside. The study area was defined in a May 18, 2017 study
methodology letter to Mr. Eric Czemiejewski, P.E., the Town's traffic consultant. The
study area includes the following intersections:

•  Collins Avenue at 90^*^ Street
• Harding Avenue at 90^*^ Street
•  90^ Street at the Project Entrance

A copy of the Study Methodology Letter and project site plan may be found in Appendix
F - Site Plan and Study Methodology.

Routes H, S and 120 - Beach Max Miami-Dade County Transit network runs along
Collins Avenue directly in front of the 8995 Collins Avenue. Although the proposed site
is well served by these local transit routes, as a conservative measure, all traffic oriented
to/from the proposed development is assumed to be personal passenger vehicles.

Figure 1 - Site Location, shows the location of the proposed development.



^
 '-
>•
 y
T
 

■ 
.

, i
-'
i-

t
*
 

''
':

t
?»
-/
..
 .

i-
^'

l
e
g
e
n
d
:

Si
gn

al
iz

ed
 I
nt

er
se

ct
io

ns

Un
sl

gn
al

iz
ed

 ln
te
rs
ec
ti
on
s|
| /
^^

Va
r;'

 ''
.'.

5

Fi
gu

re
 1
 -
 Si

te
 L
oc
at
io
n

8
9
9
5
 C
o
l
l
i
n
s
 A
v
e
n
u
e

T
o
w
n
 o
f
 S
ur
fs
id
e,
 F
lo
ri
da

T
l
t
o
m
a
s
A
.
 H
a
l
l
.
 I
n
c
.



Data Collection

Four-hour (7:00-9:00 a.m. and 4-6:00 p.m.), turning-movement counts were collected in
June 2017 at the study area intersections of:

• Collins Avenue at 90^ Street
• Harding Avenue at 90*^ Street

Copies of the traffic counts may be found in Appendix A - Traflle Counts. Figure 2 -
Permitted Intersection Movements shows both the location of the studied intersections

as well as the vehicular movements permitted at each intersection.

The turning-movement counts were collected to provide a baseline of existing traffic
operational conditions at the significant intersections within the study area.

A preliminary field review was conducted June 5, 2017 to obtain pertinent roadway
geometry, pavement markings, signing, etc. In addition to the field review, aerial maps
were consulted to verify intersection spacing, storage lane lengths and lane assignments.
Existing traffic signal timing for the intersection of Collins Avenue at 90^* Street was
obtained from Miami-Dade County Public Works Department's online database.

A description of the studied roadways follows:

Collins Avenue is a three-lane, one-way (northbound), north-south major arterial
highway. It has a posted speed limit of 30 mph.

Harding Avenue is a three-lane, one-way (southbound), north-south major arterial
hi^way. The posted speed limit is 30 mph.

90*^^ Avenue is an east-west, two-lane, undivided local roadway with a posted speed limit
of 20 mph.



$

j
.

r
"
 "'
f

^
 ft
®-
-'

V^
V-
i.
..
 .^

.-l
 
_«
i£
?i
^f
it
r

U
 L

\
m
[

L
e
g
e
n
d
:

€
 S
ig
na
li
ze
d 
In
te
rs
ec
ti
on
s

Un
si
gn
al
iz
ed
 I
nt
er
se
ct
io
ns
 '
 

^-.
;

«ii
'i|

Fi
gu
re
 2
 -
 P
er

mi
tt

ed
 I
nt
er
se
ct
io
n 
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s

8
9
9
5
 C
o
l
l
i
n
s
 A
v
e
n
u
e

T
o
w
n
 o
f
 S
ur
fs
id
e,
 F
lo
ri
da

T
h
o
m
a
s
 A
.
 H
a
l
l
.
 t
ac
.



Analyses

Adjustment Factors

The June 2017 turning-movement counts were adjusted to peak season by the application
of a Peak Season Conversion Factor (1.02) obtained from the Florida Department of
Transportation's (FDOT) 2016 Peak Season Factor CMtegory Report. Table 1 - Peak
Hour Turning-Movement Counts shows the adjusted peak season, morning and
afternoon peak-hour traffic volumes within the study area.

An Annual Growth Factor was derived from historic Annual Average Daily Traffic
(AADT) reports obtained from FDOT's 2016 Florida Online Traffic Information for
nearby count stations. A five-year growth analysis was conducted for the two nearby
count stations. A review of the count data, and a comparison of 2012 volumes to 2016
volumes, revealed that there was a significant reduction in annual growth in traffic
volumes in the study area. In spite of this, as a conservative measure, a 0.5 percent
Annual Growth Factor was assumed. Copies of the annual growth rate worksheet and
seasonal adjustment factors are provided in Appendix B - Adjustment Factors.



5 I § I £ I
I? Sfi s I?
5 I s I a| s
K ̂  S § S -o
I a ? o. g
^ £ I 2 1
8  S g

lillHI
I HIM
1 11111
41111

i-4||ill
iilil
ill!

lillH
iiin
I 111!
1 ■■
1,111
|i|ill

II
5|§I£|
ji? *" s ** S ►-s £ c u- e g -o

I g If llsu I 3 1 S I e

2 5 2 I

s  a P

I  5 E f a ^
K I " I ^ g I

-Ifililif

r|ini
^  ̂ 151 i

S  8 s

iseas i»ej;s I ssuems
1U06 )e enuaAV sugtoo ui06 le anL»Av DuipjVH I pai^s 0)06

}sej}s )MAS «9i«iiu3
LU06)>>anuBAV6inco utosie anusAv6i4P(aH OMjoid le mus (oos



Existing Conditions

Synchro 10 intersection operations analysis software was used to construct a model of the
existing roadway network in the study area. The model relied upon the peak-season,
peak-hour, tuming-movement counts shown in Table 1 and the geometric, pavement
marking and signing information obtained from field reviews. In addition, traffic signal
timing and phasing information was obtained from Miami-Dade County Public Works
Department's online database for the signalized intersection of Collins Avenue at 90^*
Street. Copies of the Synchro reports for existing weekday peak-hour, peak-season
conditions may be found in Appendix C - Existing Conditions Analyses. Note that two
runs are provided for the signalized intersection: 1) A Highway Capacity Manual (HCM),
6*^ Edition output and, 2) Synchro's own intersection analysis. The HCS, 6^^ Edition
method is the latest standard in intersection analyses, but the Synchro intersection
analysis provides a more complete record of analysis inputs.

Table 2 - AM Peak-hour Queue Length, Level of Service and Delay Findings and
Table 3 - FM Peak-hour Queue Length, Level of Service and Delay Findings,
summarize the critical elements of the analyses. As Tables 2 and 3 show, the existing
signalized intersection of Collins Avenue at 90^'' Street currently operates at Level of
Service (LOS) A during both the morning and afternoon peak hour.

The unsign^ized intersection of Harding Avenue at 90^*^ Street also operates very well
although the westbound lane operates at LOS E in the morning peak hour. In spite of the
level of service, the actual westbound queue storage required is less than two vehicle
lengths during the peak hour.

Note that the queue storage lengths shown on Tables 2 and 3 for the intersection of
Collins Avenue at 90^'' Street are from the default Synchro analysis output since the
HCM, 6* Edition doesn't rwort the 95^ percentile queue storage length. All unsignalized
intersections display the 95 percentile queue storage required per the HCM, 6^ Edition,
unsignalized intersection analyses.



T
a
b
l
e
 2

A
M
 P
e
a
k
 H
o
u
r
 Q
u
e
u
e
 L
e
n
g
t
h
,
 L
ev
el
 o
f
 Se

rv
ic

e 
a
n
d
 D
e
l
a
y
 S
u
m
m
a
r
y

8
9
9
5
 C
o
l
l
i
n
s
 A
v
e
n
u
e

I
n
t
c
r
s
c
c
f
i
(
»
n

C
o
l
l
i
n
s
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
t

9
0
t
h
 S
t
r
e
e
t

(S
ig
na
li
ze
d)

H
a
r
d
i
n
g
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
t

90
th

 S
tr
ee
t (
S
t
o
p

C
o
n
t
r
o
l
)

Pr
oj

ec
t 
Dr

iv
e 
at
 9
0
t
h

St
re
et
 (
S
t
o
p
 C
o
n
t
r
o
l
)

Tf
ii

rn

L
n
n
c

Le
ng

tl
i

■"
 fi

xi
sf

in
g^

oi
dH

id
ns

IV
fo

vc
m

ci
it

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

L

E
B

T
W

B
T

W
B

R

N
B

L
N

B
T

N
B

R

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

L
T

R

W
B

L
T

R
S

B
L

S
B

T
S

B
R

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

T
E

B
R

W
B

T
N

B
L

L
O

S
D

c
la

v
Q

ui
'u

e
Le

nj
itl

i
M

o
^'

cm
cn

t

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

L
E

B
T

W
B

T
W

B
R

N
B

L
N

B
T

N
B

R

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

L
T

R
W

B
L

T
R

S
B

L
S

B
T

S
B

R

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

T
E

B
R

W
B

T
N

B
L

Q
ui

'U
<f

M
o

v
c
in

c
n

f
D

c
la

v
L

cn
ir

d
i

Q
ue

ue
Lc

n^
di

D
cI

aV

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

L
E

B
T

W
B

T
W

B
R

N
B

L
N

B
T

N
B

R

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

L
T

R

W
B

L
T

R
S

B
L

S
B

T
S

B
R

O
v
e

ra
ll

E
B

T
E

B
R

W
B

T
N

B
L

C
.im

rk
Q

O
lO

a
; 

- 
B

W
&

 C
dH

ra
 A

w
m

 T
^
c
 S

IU
1V

30
1S

07
 0

2 
- 

T
n

ff
lc

 iT
Tv

aa
 8

kj
a

^r
a

tii
e

sa
a

tle
3

_
4

_
r 
M

l



T
a
b
l
e
s

P
M
 P
e
a
k
 H
o
u
r
 Q
u
e
u
e
 L
e
n
g
t
h
,
 L
ev

el
 o
f
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 D
e
l
a
y
 S
u
m
m
a
r
y

8
9
9
5
 C
o
l
l
i
n
s
 A
v
e
n
u
e

I
n
t
e
r
s
e
c
t
i
o
n

C
o
l
l
i
n
s
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
t

9
0
t
h
 S
t
r
e
e
t

{S
ig
na
li
ze
d)

H
a
r
d
i
n
g
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
t

9
0
t
h
 S
t
r
e
e
t
 (
S
t
o
p

C
o
n
t
r
o
l
)

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 D
r
i
v
e
 a
t
 9
0
t
h

St
re
et
 (
S
t
o
p
 C
on

tr
ol

)

T
o
r
n

L
a
n
e

Le
og

tl
i

Lh
ds

tf
ng

; C
^n

ai
Rn

ns

M
d
V
e
m
e
n
f
 

L
O
S
 

Dc
bi

.v
Q
n
e
u
e

L
e
n
g
t
h

Bf
lc

bg
ro

mn
d 
Tr
af
fi
c 
Co

nd
it

io
ns Q
u
e
u
e

D

T
o
t
a
l
 T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 C
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s

M
o
s
e
x
n
e
n
t
 

L
O
S

el
av
 

,
 

M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
 

L
O
S

L
e
n
g
t
h

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

A
6
.
3

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

1
 A
 

1 
6.
4 

1
N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

N
/
A

E
B
L

D
4
2
.
3

0
,
0

E
B
L

D
4
2
.
3

0
.
0

E
B
L

N
/
A

E
B
T

A
0
.
0

4
5
'

E
B
T

A
0
.
0

4
5
'

E
B
T

N
/
A

W
B
T

A
0
.
0

1
3
"

W
B
T

A
0
.
0

1
4
"

W
B
T

N
/
A

W
B
R

D
4
0
.
3

0
.
0

W
B
R

D
4
0
.
3

0
.
0

W
B
R

N
/
A

N
B
L

A A

5
.
8

0
.
0

N
B
L

A
6
.
0

0
.
0

N
B
L

N
/
A

N
E
T

5
. .2

 
1

2
7
8
'

N
B
T

A
5
.
4

2
9
0
"

N
B
T

N
/
A

N
B
R

A
5
.
1

0
.
0

N
B
R

A
5
.
2

0
.
0

N
B
R

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

N
/
A

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

N
/
A

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

N
/
A

E
B
L
T
R

D
3
2
.
0

0
.
4

E
B
L
T
R

D
3
4
.
4

0
.
4

E
B
L
T
R

N
/
A

W
B
L
T
R

D
2
6
.
0

0
.
7

W
B
L
T
R

D
2
7
.
7

0
.
8

W
B
L
T
R

N
/
A

S
B
L

A
0
.
0

0
.
0

S
B
L

A
 ,

0
.
0

0
.
0

S
B
L

N
/
A

S
E
T

A
0
.
0

0
.
0

S
B
T

A
0
.
0

0
.
0

S
B
T

N
/
A

S
B
R

A
0
.
0

0
.
0

S
B
R

A
0
.
0

0
.
0

S
B
R

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

O
v
e
r
a
l
l

N
/
A

E
B
T

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

E
B
T

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

E
B
T

1
0
0

E
B
R

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

E
B
R

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

E
B
R

N
/
A

W
B
T

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

W
B
T

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

W
B
T

N
/
A

N
B
L

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
B
L

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
/
A

N
B
L

D
e
l
i
i
v

Q
u
e
u
e

L
e
n
g
t
h

C
:
W
/
a
i
A
2
0
1
6
0
7
-
S
S
S
S
C
d
l
m
«
A
v
B
X
M
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S
lJ

<)
y^

2C
I1

60
7.

02
• 
Tr

af
fi

c 
M
e
»
e
t
 S
Uc

ly
Ma

U«
«\

Ta
(;

i(
»3

_-
l_

7.
xl

at



Background Traffic Conditions

Future 2018 build-out year (background) traffic volumes without the project were
obtained by applying the 0.5 percent annual growth rate to the existing peak-season,
turning-movement counts. In addition to the application of the annual growth rate,
committed development traffic information provided by the Town's traffic consultant,
Mr. Eric Czemiejewski, P.E., was also reviewed. The approved, but not yet occupied,
developments were:

•  8955 Collins Avenue

•  Surf Club I and II

•  Surf Club NW

•  9300 Collins Avenue

•  8800 Collins Avenue

As it happens, all of the committed developments were actually reducing trips on the area
roadways. However, Surf Club 1 and 11 were under construction at the time of this
report's data collection. Because this project is so large, it was assumed that it has
reduced traffic volumes on the studied area roadways. Therefore, the Surf Club I and II
project trips were added to the background traffic. Table 1 shows the peak-season
background traffic volumes expected during the future build-out year of 2018.

Appendix D - Background Traffic Conditions Analyses contains copies of the
Synchro reports for the studied intersections. As a review of Tables 2 and 3 indicate, the
existing level of service at the studied intersections is expected to continue in 2018.

Project Trip Generation

Table 4 - Daily Trip Generation, Table 5 - AM Peak-hour Trip Generation and
Table 6 - PM Peak-hour Trip Generation depict the trip generation for the project site.
Trip generation characteristics were obtained from the Institute of Transportation
Engineers' (ITE) Trip Generation manual, lO"* Edition. As the tables show, the proposed
Multifamily Housing (High Rise) development is anticipated to generate 49 net new daily
trips, 4 net new a.m. peak-hour trips and 4 net new p.mi. peak-hour trips.

Project Distribution and Assignment

Cardinal distribution information was obtained from Miami-Dade County's 2040 Long
Range Transportation Plan Direction Trip Distribution Report. A copy of the cardinal
trip distribution data for Traffic Analysis Zone (TAZ) 602 may be found in Appendix B.
Project trips were assigned in accordance with the cardinal distribution and manual
adjustments required to reflect the fact that both Collins Avenue and Harding Avenue are
one-way roadways. Figure 3 - Project Traffic Distribution shows the traffic
distribution on study area roadways.

ID



Figures 4 - Project Trip Assignment shows the peak-h^ assigned to the
study area roadway network in accordanee with the trip distribution and the permitted
inte^eetidii: moyerhents shpwn in Fi^re 2;

li



T
a
b
l
e
 4

Da
ll

y 
T
r
i
p
 G
en

er
at

io
n

8
9
9
5
 C
o
l
l
i
n
s
 A
v
e
n
o
e

■n
iS 

C
^e

.; 
Int

en
sit

y
Tr

ip
 G

eii
cn

ilio
n 

Ki
ifi

'"'
T

ot
tI 

Tr
ip

s 
In

te
rn

al
 T

rip
s

In
 

O
ut

 
T

ot
al

 
In

 
O

ut
 

T
ot

al
 

%
A

dj
us

te
d 

Tr
ip

s 
Pa

ss
-b

y 
Tr

ip
s 

N
ew

 T
rip

s
In

 
O

u
t 

T
o

ta
l 

In
 

O
u

t 
T

o
ta

l

E
xi

st
in

g
 U

se
M

ul
ti^

m
ily

 H
ou

si
ng

 (
M

id
 R

is
e)

1
 22

1 
11

 3
6

M
ul

tlf
am

ily
 H

ou
si

ng
 (

H
ig

h 
R

is
e n

1
 22

2 
1

5
5

EB
M

Q
TI

T=
5.

44
(X

) 
(5

CV
50

X
) 
(5

0
®

:

■
E

3
I

iB
B

E
E

3
E

S
i

N
e

t 
D

iff
e

re
n

ce

S
ou

rc
e:

 I
ns

tit
ut

e 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
E

ng
in

ee
rs

' 
Tr

ip
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
m

an
ua

l, 
10

th
 E

di
tio

n.

T
a

b
le

s

A
M

 P
ea

k-
ho

ur
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

iu
n

89
95

 C
o

lli
n

s 
A

ve
n

u
e

La
nd

 I
 s

e

E
xi

st
in

g
 U

se
M

ul
tif

am
llv

 H
ou

si
ng

 (
M

id
 R

is
e

To
tii

ri'
rlp

s 
liil

en
ia

l i
i i

ps
 

.A
dju

ste
d 

1 r
ip

s 
Pa

ss
-b

y T
rip

.s 
Ne

w'
Tr

ip
s

III
 

O
u

t 
T

o
ta

l 
111

 
O

il)
 

T
o

ta
l 

"/a
 

In
 

O
u

t 
T

iit
iii

 
h

i 
O

u
t 

Io
ta

!

-
''
«

r
rr

E
G

ot
le

 
In

te
ns

ity
I r

ip
 (

Ic
ru

rii
tio

n 
K

at
i

m
s
m

■
Q

 E
Z

S
^ 

H
Q

 H
E

l

M
ul

tit
am

ily
 H

ou
si

ng
 (

H
ig

h 
R

is
e)

 
I 

22
2

N
e

t 
D

if
fe

re
n

c
e

S
ou

rc
e:

 I
ns

tit
ut

e 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
E

ng
in

ee
rs

' 
Tr

ip
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
m

an
ua

l, 
10

th
 E

di
tio

n

T
a

b
le

 6

FM
 P

ea
k-

ho
ur

 T
ri

p
 G

en
er

at
io

n
8

9
9

5
 C

o
lli

n
s
 A

ve
n

u
e

Ij
im

! 
I'
s
r

n
'E

C
o

d
c
 

In
te

n
s
llv

'I'r
ip

 (•
cr

u-
r.i

tio
ii 

It;
ile

"'
To

ta
l T

rip
? 

In
te

m
al

Tr
fp

i
In

 
O

u
t 

T
o

ta
l 

In
 

O
u

t 
T

o
ta

l 
%

Ad
jiw

er
f T

rip
s 

'' 
R

i»
-B

y 
Tf

t|H
' 

Ne
w 

Ti
ip

s
In

 
O

ut
 

T
ot

al
 

.»
 

" 
. 

' 
In

 
O

ut
 

To
ta

l

M
ul

tlf
am

ily
 H

ou
si

ng
 (

M
id

 R
is

e)
22

1
1 1

 35

M
ul

tif
am

ily
 H

ou
si

ng
 (

H
ig

h 
Ri

se
0

22
2 

1 1
 55

m m

I
K

K
K

I

2
E

^3
IB

E
3

1
■

E
H

E
II
E

!
iK

!H
E

lH
E

!E
E

S
^

N
e

t 
D

iff
e

re
n

ce

So
ur

ce
; I

ns
tit

ut
e 

of
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

En
gi

ne
er

s' 
Tr

ip
 G

en
er

at
io

n 
m

an
ua

l, 
10

th
 E

di
tio

n.

rM
W

ol
A

X
nt

O
? 

- t
m

C
if
n

t l
o

m
m

 T
r«

lc
 S

n
O

M
m

W
R

 - 
'n

A
 k

ap
sl

 S
«i

iM
T<

M
n\

T'
lp

<t
eM

ut
i9

>>
 U

M
I



Si
gn

al
iz

ed
 I
nt

er
se

ai
on

s

Un
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 I
nt
er
se
ct
io
ns

A
.
 ■

■ 
■ 

■

F
ii
g
u
r
e

8
S
»
9
5
 C
o

T
c

o

c



F
i
g
u

8
9
9
5

T
o
w
n



Total Traffic Conditions

Future total traffic volumes including project traffic were obtained by adding the 2018
background traffic volumes to the project traffic volumes shown in Figure 4. The
resulting future total traffic volumes are also shown in Table 1 - Peak Hour Turning-
Movement Counts.

Appendix E - Total Traffic Conditions Analyses contains copies of the Synchro
reports for this third analysis condition. Tables 2 and 3 provide a summary of the critical
elements of these analyses and demonstrate that the studied intersections remained at the
same level of service as in the Background Conditions. However, the westbound lane at
the intersection of Harding Avenue at 90*^ Street is expected to operate at LOS E in both
the morning and afternoon peak hour under this scenario instead of just the morning peak
hour. Queue storage requirements increased by less than one car length for every
movement at the studied intersections. All intersections are expected to continue to
operate in the same manner as under Existing and Background Conditions.

Note that the project driveway on 90^** Street is across from a new driveway serving the
Surf Club. The Surf Club driveway was not analyzed as a part of this study because a)
there were no traffic estimates provided in the Surf Club traffic impact study and, b) the
driveway was still under construction when traffic data was collected.

Link Capacity Analysis

Table 7 - Daily Roadway Capacity Analysis provides a comparison of the expected
daily traffic volumes in the 2018 build-out year for the study area roadway links. As the
table shows, all studied roadways are expected to be well under the required level of
service standards per the Town of Surfside Transportation Element, which, for State
maintained roadways, is LOS E+20 and, for local roads, LOS D.

Table 7

Daily Two-Way Roadway Capacity Analysis
8995 Collins Avenue

LOSD LOS E+2(l

A»ii luil Diiil} 2018Totiil Max Mjlv
Over

Current Cnmlli 2(UK Projecl Daily Scnicc Scnicc CuiMcitY
AADT Factor AADT Traffic Vuluiza: Volume"^ Y/N

Collins A\enue 25,000 0.50% 25,021 26 25,047 N/A 36.648 N

Harding Avenue 27,000 0 50% 27,023 26 27.049 N/A 36,648 N

90th Street 0,50% 534 49 583 14,800 N/A N

'^'AADT volume derived from p.m. peak-hour count and study area K factor of 9.
'^'LOS D and E+20 maximum service volumes obtained from the Florida Department of

Transportation's 2013 Quality/LOS Handbook.



Site Circulation/Multi-Modal Travel

A review of the proposed project site plan, included in Appendix F - Site Plan, revealed
that traffic accessing the 8995 Collins Avenue development will have excellent access
from the local roadway network. One loading zone will rely upon the existing
ingress/egress driveway connection to Collins Avenue, but, of course, will be used
infrequently—^perhaps once a week—^while the other loading zone will be located on 90^
Street.

The main project access driveways are now proposed to be located on the north side of
the property along 90^^^ Street. All vehicles entering the site are expected to pull into the
west driveway's valet drop-off pick-up lane. Once the valet attendant has received the
vehicle, they will drive the vehicle into the vehicle transport system elevator that lowers
the vehicle to the basement parking area.

The site plan has been revised to permit vehicles to enter the west driveway and, if it is
already occupied, then tum east and store in the three-vehicle queue storage lane. An
analysis of the queue storage was completed using SimTraffic microscopic analysis
software. SimTraffic examines the random arrival of individual vehicles in the model. A

description of the queuing analysis follows:

Over the course of the afternoon peak hour, the highest volume hour of the day, a mere
12 vehicles are expected to arrive and eight (8) vehicles are expected to depart from the
valet drop-off/pick-up area. As shown on the enclosed site plan, a valet attendant will
receive an arriving vehicle on the east side of the west driveway and a second valet
attendant will deliver vehicles to departing drivers on the east side of the east driveway.
Because some vehicles may be stored in the east-west vehicle storage queue area and,
thus, may circle around and enter the west driveway again, the number of vehicles
entering the western driveway, and exiting the eastern driveway, was increased in the
analysis from twelve and eight vehicles, respectively, to 16 and 16.

The intersection of 90*^ Street at the project driveway/Surf Club driveway was treated as
a signalized intersection with a 180-second-long north-south phase to simulate the 180
seconds assumed to be required to drop off a vehicle to the valet attendant and have that
vehicle parked in the underground garage on a parking lift. The east-west phase was
given a nominal 30 seconds for a total cycle length of 210 seconds, or 3.5 minutes. To
simulate the storage within the project site, eastbound 90^*^ Street was given a 75-foot-
long right-turn lane (equivalent to three vehicle lengths of queue storage in Synchro). The
eastbound right-turning vehicles were not permitted to tum right on red so that during the
180-second time that one vehicle was being parked, no other vehicle could leave the
queue.

The Synchro network, including the new signal at the project entrance, was then imported
into SimTraffic and four, hour-long mns were completed. A copy of both the Synchro
intersection report and the average of the four SimTraffic queue reports are enclosed in
Appendix G - Queuing Analysis.

16



As can be seen from the enclosed four-run-average SimTraffic queue report, the
maximum queue, which is the total queue, not a percentage of the queue, is 49 feet in
length. SimTraffic considers one vehicle length to be 19.5 feet in its queuing analysis so
the average maximum queue observed in the four runs, 49 feet, is equivalent to 2.51
vehicles, or for practical purposes, three vehicles. Note that the actual vehicle queue
storage is well in excess of the maximum three vehicle demand:

The first arriving vehicle can simply be loaded onto the entry lift. Those vehicles that
follow may be stored in the entrance and storage area. In effect, there is room in the
east-west storage area for three vehicles with another vehicle stored in the entrance
driveway for a combined total of five vehicles of storage (1 vehicle in the lift + 3
vehicles in the queue storage area + 1 vehicle in the entrance driveway = 5 vehicles)
while still leaving the departure/vehicle pick-up area free to be used by a departing
vehicle.

Of course, another method for avoiding the use of 90^ Street that can be used on site is to
bring vehicles stored in the east-west queue storage area forward into the eastside exit
driveway and then back them into the second vehicle transport system elevator when it is
not needed for exiting vehicles from the parking garage. This maneuver could
substantially reduce the number of entering vehicles that must make a northbound-to-
westbound left-turn maneuver into the site.

Pedestrian access is also well laid out with a sidewalk on the north, west and east sides of
the building. There are also sidewalk connections proposed to the existing pedestrian path
that connects the end of 90^ Street to the beach. Note that the proposed narrowing of 90^
Street east of Collins Avenue will reduce the width of pavement that pedestrians must
cross when proceeding north or south across 90^ Street from 36 feet to 24 feet thus
reducing crossing times and potential pedestrian/vehicle conflicts. This pavement
narrowing is necessitated, according to the project development team, by the Town of
Surfside's requirement that an off-street valet drop-off and pick-up location be provided.

Had the project been starting with an empty lot, an off-street valet lane might have been
more easily accommodated, but the footprint of the existing building that is being
redeveloped does not leave sufficient space for vehicle stacking without narrowing the
pavement. Given the low volume of vehicles anticipated on this portion of 90th Street,
even including the traffic associated with the Surf Club on the north side of the street, the
proposed road narrowing is not expected to have a negative impact on either capacity or
roadway traffic operations.

There is an existing bicycle lane on the east side of Collins Avenue that facilitates bicycle
travel through the Town of Surfside. The existing driveway connection to Collins Avenue
requires motor vehicles to cross the bicycle lane to enter or exit the building. In the
proposed new configuration, this driveway will only be used to provide access to a
loading zone. Therefore, it is expected that the redevelopment of the project site will
improve bicyclists' travel through the project area along Collins Avenue.

17



Valet Parking Analysis

One hundred eight (108) parking spaces are to be provided for 8995 Collins Avenue in
the basement of the building. In order to have 108 parking spaces in the basement of the
building, it is proposed that a vehicle lift system be used to store up to three (3) vehicles
in each of 36 parking spaces. Two vehicle transport system elevators will be operated by
the valet staff to bring vehicles to and from the basement parking area.

Vehicles parked in the basement will default to the top slot in the parking lifts, which will
be collapsed to the floor until additional vehicles require parking. As more vehicles
require parking, the first vehicle will be raised to the middle position and, if a third
vehicle is parked, the top position on the lift. The lift mechanism specifics are shown in
Sheet A6.0 of the site plan package. That sheet may be found in Appendix F - Site Plan.

Based on field measurements at the nearby Cadillac Hotel in Miami Beach, which has a
parking system from the same supplier (although not exactly the same), arriving vehicles
are expected to require approximately 157 seconds to arrive, be handed over to the valet
attendant, be lowered down the vehicle transport system elevator, and parked in an
available parking space. Departing vehicles are expected to be turned over to the owners
in approximately 142 seconds after a request for the vehicle is received by the valet
attendants. At least one valet attendant is expected to be at the project entrance at all
times while another valet attendant will be stationed in the basement parking area and
another will deliver vehicles to departing drivers.

A queuing analysis was performed, as described previously, to determine whether the
three vehicle queue storage available in the valet pick-up/drop-off area is sufficient to
ensure that vehicles aren't backing up onto 90^ Street. As a conservative measure, the
157 second parking time was increased to 180 seconds (three minutes). The queuing
analysis relied upon Synchro and SimTraffic models. A copy of the queuing analysis
worksheet is contained in Appendix G - Queuing Analysis.

As a review of the queuing analysis reveals, a maximum queue storage length of 49 feet
is expected to be required during the p.m. peak hour of the day to accommodate vehicles
waiting to be parked by the valet attendants. This is equivalent to slightly less than three
vehicles, yet the available queue storage length is for five vehicles (1 vehicle in the lift +
3 vehicles in the queue storage area + 1 vehicle in the entrance driveway = 5 vehicles).

Note that departing vehicles will be queued in the basement parking garage and will be
delivered one by one to their owners at the valet pick-up location on the east side of the
eastern driveway.

18



Conclusions

Based on the results of this analysis, it is concluded that the proposed 8995 Collins
Avenue development will not have a significant impact on the adjacent roadway network.
All intersections will continue to operate at the same high levels of service after the
project is completed as they do at present. With the extremely low volume of traffic
anticipated to be generated by the development, the valet parking can be operated in such
a manner that it requires no vehicle to be stored on 90^ Street at the project entrance.

19



20



COLLINS AVENUE Al' 90T1I STREET

DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

COUNTED DY:

SIGNALIZED

THCWAS A. HALL, INC.

1355 ADAMS STREET

HOLLYWOOD, FL 33019

954-209-4447

Site Code: 10031

StcJit Date: 6/6/2017

File I.D.: SURFSIDE

Fage: 1

ALL VEHICLES

90TH STRF.E7 90TK STREET COLT .INS AVENUE COLLINS AVENUE

Fron WosL Fron East. Fron South From North

Uturn Leiw Thru r<: ahc Utur Lo:t: Thru Ri !jht Uturr. Iio! Tr.ru Ri qh;. ULur.'i Lelt Thru Ri qht. Total

Date 6/6/2017

7:0C 0  4 1 0 0 0 3 4 Ci 4 1 72 !) G 0 0 0 i 93

7 :1 0  8 1) 0 0 C 0 3 0 4 224 ? C) 0 0 0 24 8

7:30 0  5 5 0 0 0 1 4 0 4 262 0 Q 0 0 0 291

7:4 h Q  8 2 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 301 4 c 0 0 0 323

H r T 01 a ] 0  25 13 0 0 n 4 15 0 c 959 11 0 0 0 0 104 3

8:00 0  8 4 0 0 0 1 7 ;; 5 34 0 3 C) C! 0 0 368

8: ■ 5 0  6 5 n 0 0 O 4 0 384 0 0 0 ft 0 i(;4

8 :3Q 0  1 7 5 0 0 0 1 4 0 c 32! 0 0 0 0 0 360

8:45 0  6 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 5 38? 1 0 0 0 0 397

Hr Total 0  37 14 0 0 0 3 17 0  / 14 33 4 K 0 0 0 1529

" 9RE7vK *

11 : GO 0 n  0 0 c 0 Ci 0 G r 0 0 n G fl 0 0

11:15 G 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 G G 0 0 ;) r.i 0 0

11 :30 0 0  0 0 n 0 i:i (1 0 0 0 111 C! G I.I 0 fl

11:45 0 0  0 0 G 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 G G fl 0 (.1

Hr Total 0 C  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 G G fl 0 fl

1?.: GO G U 0 0 0 0 0 ;; 0 0 c G fl 0 I.I

1? : 15 0 0 0 c G 0 u ;; 0 11 0 G 11 (1 II

I? ; 30 r 0 0 0 c 0 II G G (1 1,1 G G 0 0 fl

1 ? ; 4.5 0 G  0 0 0 0 111 0 0 G 0 0 C G 0 0 0

Hr Total 0 n 0 0 0 0 0 G 0 fl 0 0 G n 0 0

" BRR/vK *

18: GO 0 It It
•1 !) U 2

..

569 / G 1) u 0 ri

1 6; 1 5 c u 0 0 ft ;; 24 62/ 1 G t; 111 0

18: 30 c 1 ft 0 0 1 1 0 38 i69 1 G G I I 0 .518

16:45 c ■ 0 0 c c 1 : 31 4 28 1 0 c 11 0 4 '"3

Hr "otal 3C 1 IT c 0 1 4 : 9 5 2G88 5 G c II 0 2225

17:00 c 0 0 (■; r; n ? 29 0.2 8 / G G II 0 ;>6 8

17:: 5 ? 0 0 0 1 ? ■  ■ .•.18 1 G 11 o .54 9

1 V: 30 1 V c ;; 1 3 .•;a4 / G II 0 614

1 7:45 G 0 0 G G 0 u 13 502 1 G f,i 0 o23

Hr Total 3" 3 0 0  C 3 5 '• /■ 32 8 fl 0 2 252

♦TOTAL* 1 ( 1?3 31 0 It G ■; : 41 1 204 881 2 28 fl G G 0 7fi49



COLLINS AVENUE A.'i 90'i'H STREET

DADE COUNTY, ELORIDA

COUNIED BY:

SIGNALIZED

TKOKAS A. HALL, INC.

1355 ADAMS STREET

llOLLYVWOD, EL 33019

Site Code; 10031

Start Date: 6/6/17

Kile I.D.: SURFSIDE

Page: 2

ALL VEHICLES

9fJTH STREET 90TH STREET COLT.1N.9 7\VENtJF. COT.I.INS AVF.14UE

From We-St Froirt East From South FroTti North

Ut'.irn Lett Thru RJ.gtit Uturn lie ft. Thru Bigth; U t u r n Lo f t T h r u Right Uturn Loft Thru Right Total

Date (>1^/2011

Peak Hour Analysis By Entire Ttiteiaect ion for v.lie Period: 07;00 to 09:00 on 6/6/2C 1 V

Peak start 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00

Voj uiTie 0  37 14 0 0 0  3 i 7 0  21 1433 4 0  0 0 1529

PcroG.nt 0% 7\34 2 74 0% 0% 04 15% 85% 0% 14 98% 04 ttHifffn {tfttitf# Sfrilflt?

Pk total 51 20 14 58 0

Hi gliGst fc:30 8:00: AI4 8:15 6:15

Voiume 0  17 5 0 0 0  1 7 C) 5 384 ri 0  0 0 0

Hi total 22 8 38 9 0

PHF 0.58 0.63 0.94 #ilft#tj

Peak Hour Analysis By Ent ire Iiitersection for- t l)K Period: 11:CO to 01:00 on 6/6/201 7

Peak start 12:00 12:00 12:00 12:00

Vol umti 0  2 0 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 (} 0  0 0 0 0

Percent. ftgtfflil #«ftft|? tiftSt})? Sftlfgfl ittffiitfl (ftfftSif fitfitfif HHUVa tfgftitg {tSUtJil iilffijl# HUHfflt fttfffflfl Iftfflft#

Pk tclial 0 0 0 c

Highest 12:1 5 12:4!) 12:1 5 12:30

Vol. 11 mo 0  :: G 0 0 0  C 0 0  0 0 0 0  0 0 0

Hi t.cl:a:i 0 11 0 0

PHF ft 1? (iff it fttfl?fid HlfitfUt

P<!ak Hour Aiiaiysl

Peak Htart ]7;00

Voltime 0

Percent, 0%

?k t<!l.a:i 34

Higliesl. 17:30

Voj iitno 0

Hi tclial 1?

PHF 0.71

Ry Enf.jro TrO.'

91^

11

3

'31

.sect;i<!n tor t.tu: Period: "6;

17:00

0  0 C 3 5

(>% o-t 0% 38-)> 63%

1  ;

:)0 t.o 18:00 ;

1 7:00

0  7;'

0% 33.

221 0

17 :30

f) * 3

L 9 9

0.92

2132

96%

6/6/201

C

04

:.H4

17:00

0  0 11 0

Uftftet; gtlflrl^

0  C

Ifft/llr)?

2L2



HARDING AVENUE AT 90TH STREET

DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

COUNTED BY:

UNSIGNAL12ED

THOMAS A. KALL, INC.

1355 ADAMS STREET

HOLLYWOOD, FL 33019

954-209-1 "147

Site Code; 10031

Stcirt Dace: 6/6/2017

File I.D.: SURFSIDE

Page: 3

ALL VEHICLES

gOTH STREET gOTH STREET KARD7NG AVENUE HARDTNG AVENUE

From West From East From South From North

Uturn Left Thru Ri glic Uturr. Lotr. Thru Ri cjhu Uturn Loii. Thru Ricsht Uturn Lett Thru Ri ght Total

Dace 6/3/2017

7:00 0  0 1 6 0 6 1 0 0  0 0 0 0 6 333 2 355

?:: 5 0  0 0 4 0 11 1 0 0  0 0 0 0 5 4 77 3 501

7:30 0  0 0 5 0 4 2 0 ■G 0 0 0 0 2 566 4 583

7:45 0  0 2 10 0 2 1 0 G  C 0 0 0 16 556 9 586

Hr Total 0  0 3 25 0 23 5 0 ■G 0 0 0 0 29 1932 18 2035

8:00 G  C 0 8 0 6 1 0 c: G 0 0 2 9 621 3 648
8; i 5 0  - 1 8 0 1 0 G  G 0 0 0 8 5jF 6 5.04
8:30 0  0 2 4 0 4 2 0 G  (J 0 0 0 9 4 58 2 486
8; 45 0  0 0 b 0 y. 1 0 C  G 0 0 0 7 421 8 445

K:- Total 0  1 3 31 0 23 5 0 n  0 0 0 0 33 2018 19 2133

' BREAK *

11 ; GO c 0 0 0 0 C 0 0 G 0 0 c c (.1 0 0

11:15 G G 0 0 0 G 0 G 0 0 G G Ci 0 1)

11 :30 0 G 0 0 n n G tt 0 0 c; I.I 0 n

11:45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 G 0 ri 0 0

Hr Tot.al 0 0 0 0 0 0 fi 0 0 0 0 0 G 0 0 0

'  BREAK *  __

12: CO G 0 0 y (1 0 G  :: 0 (j 0
o

0 (.1 0

12:15 C c; 0 0 G G n 0 G 0 0 0 G fi 0 0

12:30 0 G 0 0 n G II ij 0 0 0 G tj II 0 0

12:45 G G 0 0 c C 0 0 G 0 0 0 0 0 0 fl

Hr Tol:al C 0 n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 c 0 (I 0 0

' BRE7\K •>

16: GO G G 7 i •1 1 0 G  G 0 0 Q 4 397 3 418
16: : 5 C 0 3 2 G " 0 0 0 0 c 9 4 23 9 449

1 5: 30 C G 4 !> G •! 4 0 G 0 0 0 r 4 82 4 506

16:45 C " 6 4 c; G 4 0 G  :: 0 0 G 8 4 85 4 014
Hr Total 0 " 5 18 1 11 0 G  0 0 n 0 27 17 87 2 0 1887

17 ; Gu c; 2 2 G i 1 u ;; (1 1.1 Gj 4 5 14 9 540

1 7 : 5 G 1 4 G 1 G 1 0 G 0 0 0 • 5 4 57 8 496

! 7: 30 G 1 4 G ;> •- 0 G 0 .1 G 8 .5 64 2 :;82

17:45 G c; 0 2 G 2 1 0 G 0 0 G 3 6 03 4 015

Hr To 1.a ] Q 4 1/ G 22 3 0 G 0 0 3G /• 38 2 3 2233

♦tota:.- 1 G 2 5 86 1 75 2i n 0  n 0 0 I I 119 7875 80 8288



THOMAS A. HALL, INC.

HARDING AVENUii AT 9CT!i STREET 1355 ADA.MS STREET Site Codq: 10031

DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA HOLLYWOOD FL 33019 Start Date: 6/3/17

COUNTED DY: 954-283-4447 File i.D.: SURFSIDE

UNS1GNAL12ED Page: 4

ALL VEHICLES

90TH STREF.T 90TH .STRFF.T HARDING AVFN'lJF. HARDING AVENUE

Freni West. From East Frcmi Seut-h Frctr Nortli

■Jttirn Left Thru Riqtit Ulerii T.efl Tt.ru Riqr.t Uterri Lett Tlirn Riqtit Uturn Lett Thru Riqht Total

Date 6/0/201"

Peak Hour Analysis By Fiil.iri.- Tiil-tii-.ieuL i on :oi i.lu: PeiioiJ: 07:00 Lo 09:00 o;. 6/3//0-1 V

Peak start 7:30 7 :30 7:30 7:30

Volume 0 : 3 31 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 35 2261 2.2

Percent OV 3 "3 93 39V 0% 823 133 cv Iftritft# 03 2V 98V 13

Pk total 3 b 28 0 2318

Hi qhost 7:45 6:15 8:00 8;CG

Vo1ume 0 0 o 10 0 1 j " 0 0 0 0 0 G 9  621 3

Hi tol:3l 12 ■ 2 0 633

PHF 0.73 0.58 0.92

!361

Peak Hour Analysis Sy Ent ire Tnt o rjsec;L i c!n
Peak Htarl.

Volume

Percent.

Pk :.ol.al

Ki qtiO«t;
Volume

Ki tcl.aJ

PHF

12:00

C> 0 0 0

fltflfflS fUfflflt? «fl#tf»! ftftlflfft
0

1 2 :00

0  c; G U

0

fniffftii

12:01.1

icr' ■ tic Pei'iod: 11: GO to i i!;OG or.

1 2:00

0 O  0

u ifftstf tjfiftifs nneeif

0

1 2; 00

0  0 1; 0

1 1

fttftfflil

0

fttftfftfi ^HUft

0

1 2 : ."iO

O  0 0

0

it tit! ft it

6/3// 01
12:00

0

ifititn

0 0  o u

fiHtff! fltf«fti» #tfit{tif
0

12:.'»0

0

0

If/tftt?#

Peak Hour Ana : y.si .s Py Enl.ire T r.t.e r.secl: i on ior' t lie PerOotJ: "6:0u to 1B:00 otj 6/3/kOl7

Peak Ht.art.

Voj time

?e rce n I.

Pk tot.a.l

Hi qhesl.
Vo 1 iim!>

Hi tot.aJ

PHF

1  : 00

1

6%

17

1 '■ : ISO

0

0. H .'j

4

24^ 71V

1 V : 00

o

ov,

2.')

1 '•: 1

11

0..')7

2 2 3

12*

1 7 :00

0  0 0 C

HHHH triftS# ^lifftti

0

0  0 o ;;

0

Siititfi

17:00

0

03

21 91

■ 7 :4 ;>

0

61C

0.90

30 2138

1% 96 V.

3  to;

13

2 23;



F
L
O
R
I
D
A
 
D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 
O
F
 
T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
A
T
I
O
N

T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
A
T
I
O
N
 
S
T
A
T
I
S
T
I
C
S
 
O
F
F
I
C
E

2
0
1
6
 
H
I
S
T
O
R
I
C
A
L
 
A
A
D
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T

C
O
U
N
T
Y
:
 
8
7
 
-
 
M
I
A
M
I
-
D
A
D
E

S
I
T
E
:
 
0
5
2
5
 -
 S
R
 
A
l
A
/
C
O
L
L
I
N
S
 
A
V
/
O
N
E
-
W
A
Y
 
P
A
I
R
 
N
B
,
 
1
0
0
'
 
N
 
8
7
 
S
T

Y
E
A
R

A
A
D
T

D
I
R
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
1

D
I
R
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
2

*
K
 
F
A
C
T
O
R

D
 
F
A
C
T
O
R

T
 
F
A
C
T
O
R

2
0
1
6

2
5
0
0
0
C

N
2
5
0
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

7
.
8
0

2
0
1
5

2
4
5
0
0
C

N
2
4
5
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

4
.
6
0

2
0
1
4

2
1
5
0
0
C

N
2
1
5
0
0

9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

5
.
1
0

2
0
1
3

2
5
0
0
0
C

N
2
5
0
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

6
.
1
0

2
0
1
2

3
2
5
0
0
C

N
3
2
5
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

8
.
4
0

2
0
1
1

2
2
0
0
0
C

N
2
2
0
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

7
.
5
0

2
0
1
0

2
2
5
0
0
C

N
2
2
5
0
0

0
8
.
9
8

9
9
.
9
9

8
.
8
0

2
0
0
9

2
2
5
0
0
C

N
2
2
5
0
0

0
8
.
9
9

9
9
.
9
9

8
.
4
0

2
0
0
8

2
4
5
0
0
C

N
2
4
5
0
0

0
9
.
0
9

9
9
.
9
9

5
.
3
0

2
0
0
7

2
6
0
0
0
C

N
2
6
0
0
0

0
8
.
0
1

9
9
.
9
9

4
.
9
0

2
0
0
6

2
4
0
0
0
C

N
2
4
0
0
0

0
7
.
9
7

9
9
.
9
9

2
.
2
0

2
0
0
5

2
5
0
0
0
C

N
2
5
0
0
0

S
8
.
8
0

9
9
.
9
0

5
.
5
0

2
0
0
4

2
4
0
0
0
C

N
2
4
0
0
0

S
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

8
.
2
0

2
0
0
3

2
6
5
0
0
C

N
2
6
5
0
0

S
8
.
8
0

9
9
.
9
0

4
.
9
0

2
0
0
2

2
6
0
0
0
C

N
2
6
0
0
0

S
9
.
8
0

9
9
.
9
0

2
.
6
0

2
0
0
1

2
7
0
0
0
C

N
2
7
0
0
0

S
8
.
2
0

9
9
.
9
0

3
.
0
0

A
A
D
T
 
F
L
A
G
S
:
 
C
 
=
 
C
O
M
P
U
T
E
D
;
 
E
 
=
 
M
A
N
U
A
L
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
F
 =
 
F
I
R
S
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E

S
 
°
 
S
E
C
O
N
D
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
T
 
=
 
T
H
I
R
D
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
R
 
=
 
F
O
U
R
T
H
 
Y
E
3
\
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E

V
 
=
 
F
I
F
T
H
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
6
 =
 S
I
X
T
H
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
X
 
=
 
U
N
K
N
O
W
N

*
K
 
F
A
C
T
O
R
:
 
S
T
A
R
T
I
N
G
 
W
I
T
H
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
1
1
 
I
S
 
S
T
A
N
D
A
R
D
K
,
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
 
A
R
E
 
K
3
0
 
V
A
L
U
E
S



F
L
O
R
I
D
A
 
D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
 
O
F
 
T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
A
T
I
O
N

T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
A
T
I
O
N
 
S
T
A
T
I
S
T
I
C
S
 
O
F
F
I
C
E

2
0
1
6
 
H
I
S
T
O
R
I
C
A
L
 
A
A
D
T
 
R
E
P
O
R
T

C
O
U
N
T
Y
:
 
8
7
 
-
 
M
I
A
M
I
-
D
A
D
E

S
I
T
E
:
0
5
2
0
 
-
 
S
R
 
A
l
A
/
H
A
R
D
I
N
G
 
A
V
/
O
N
E
--
W
A
Y
 
P
A
I
R
 
S
B
,
1
0
0
*

N
 
8
7
 
S
T

Y
E
A
R

A
A
D
T

D
I
R
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
1

D
I
R
E
C
T
I
O
N
2

*
K
 
F
A
C
T
O
R

D
 
F
A
C
T
O
R

T
 
F
A
C
T
O
R

—
—

—

2
0
1
6

2
7
0
0
0
C

s
2
7
0
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

9
.
1
0

2
0
1
5

2
6
5
0
0
c

s
2
6
5
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

7
.
6
0

2
0
1
4

2
6
0
0
0
c

s
2
6
0
0
0

9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

5
.
4
0

2
0
1
3

2
5
5
0
0
c

s
2
5
5
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

3
.
0
0

2
0
1
2

2
6
0
0
0
c

s
2
6
0
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

3
.
8
0

2
0
1
1

2
3
5
0
0
c

s
2
3
5
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

7
.
5
0

2
0
1
0

2
4
0
0
0
c

s
2
4
0
0
0

0
8
.
9
8

9
9
.
9
9

8
.
8
0

2
0
0
9

2
3
0
0
0
c

s
2
3
0
0
0

0
8
.
9
9

9
9
.
9
9

8
.
4
0

2
0
0
8

2
4
0
0
0
c

s
2
4
0
0
0

0
9
.
0
9

9
9
.
9
9

5
.
3
0

2
0
0
7

2
4
0
0
0
c

s
2
4
0
0
0

0
8
.
0
1

9
9
.
9
9

4
.
9
0

2
0
0
6

2
4
0
0
0
c

s
2
4
0
0
0

0
7
.
9
7

9
9
.
9
9

2
.
2
0

2
0
0
5

2
7
0
0
0
c

s
2
7
0
0
0

0
8
.
8
0

9
9
.
9
0

5
.
5
0

2
0
0
4

2
7
5
0
0
c

s
2
7
5
0
0

0
9
.
0
0

9
9
.
9
0

8
.
2
0

2
0
0
3

2
6
0
0
0
c

s
2
6
0
0
0

0
8
.
8
0

9
9
.
9
0

4
.
9
0

2
0
0
2

2
7
5
0
0
c

s
2
7
5
0
0

0
9
.
8
0

9
9
.
9
0

2
.
6
0

2
0
0
1

2
8
5
0
0
c

s
2
8
5
0
0

0
8
.
2
0

9
9
.
9
0

3
.
0
0

A
A
D
T
 
F
L
A
G
S
:
 
C
 
=
 
C
O
M
P
U
T
E
D
;
 
E
 
=
 
M
A
N
U
A
L
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
F
 =
 
F
I
R
S
T
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E

S
 
=
 
S
E
C
O
N
D
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
T
 
=
 
T
H
I
R
D
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
R
 
=
 
F
O
U
R
T
H
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E

V
 =
 
F
I
F
T
H
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
6
 =
 S
I
X
T
H
 
Y
E
A
R
 
E
S
T
I
M
A
T
E
;
 
X
 
=
 
U
N
K
N
O
W
N

*
K
 
F
A
C
T
O
R
:
 
S
T
A
R
T
I
N
G
 
W
I
T
H
 
Y
E
A
R
 
2
0
1
1
 
I
S
 
S
T
A
N
D
A
R
D
K
,
 
P
R
I
O
R
 
Y
E
A
R
S
 
A
R
E
 
K
3
0
 
V
A
L
U
E
S



21



2016 PEAK SEASON FACTOR CATEGORY REPORT - REPORT TYPE: ALL
CATEGORY: 8700 MIAMI-DADE NORTH

MCCF; 0.98
WEEK DATES SF PSCF

1 01/01/2016 01/02/2016 1.02 1.04
2 01/03/2016 - 01/09/2016 1.03 1.05
3 01/10/2016 - 01/16/2016 1.04 1.06
4 01/17/2016 - 01/23/2016 1.03 1.05
5 01/24/2016 - 01/30/201,6 1.02. 1.04
6 01/31/2016 -- 02/06/2016 1.00 1.02
7 02/07/2016 -- 02/13/2016 0.99 1.01

* 8 02/14/2016 - 02/20/2016 0.97 0.99
* 9 02/21/2016 - 02/27/2016 0.97 0.99
*10 02/28/2016 - 63/05/2016 0.98 1.00
*11 03/06/2016 - 03/12/2016 0.98 1.00

*12 03/13/2016 - 03/19/2016 0.98 1.00
*13 03/20/2016 - 03/26/2016 0.98 1.00
*14 03/27/2016 - 04/02/2016 0.98 1.00
*15 04/03/2016 - 04/09/2016 0.98 1.00
*16 04/10/2016 - 04/16/2016 0.98 1-00

*17 04/17/2016 - 04/23/2016 0.98 1.00
*18 04/24/2016 - 04/30/2016 0.98 1.00
*19 05/01/2016 - O5/O7/2016 0.98 1.00
*20 05/08/2015 — 05/14/2016 0,99 1.01

21 05/15/2016 - 05/21/2016 0.99 1.01

22 05/22/2016 - 05/28/2016 0.99 1.01
23 05/29./2016 — 06/04/2016 1-00. 1-02

1 24 06/05/2016 - 06/11/2016 1.00 1.02 1

25 06/12/2016 - 06/18/2016 1.01 1.03

26 06/19/2016 - 06/25/2016 1.02 1.04

27 06/26/2016 - 07/02/2016 1.02 1.04

28 07/03/2016 - 07/09/2016 1.03 1.05

29 07/10/2016 - 07/16/2016 1,03 1.05
30 07/17/2016 - 07/23/2016 1.03 1.05

31 07/24/2016 - 07/30/2016 1.03 1.05

32 07/31/2016 - 08/06/2016 1.02 1.04
33 08/07/2016 - 08/13/2016 1.02 1.04

34 08/14/2016 - 08/20/2016 1.02 1.04
35 08/21/2016 - 08/27/2016 1.02 1.04

36 08/28/2016 - 09/03/2016 1.02 1.04

37 09/04/2016 - 09/10/2016 1.02 1.04

38 09/11/2016 - 09/17/2016 1.01 1.03

39 09/18/2016 - 09/24/2016 1.01 1.03

40 09/25/2016 - 10/01/2016 1.00 1.02

41 10/02/2016 - 10/08/2016 1.00 1.02

42 10/09/2016 - 10/15/2016 0.99 1.01

43 10/16/2016 - 10/22/2016 1,00 1.02
44 10/23/2016 - 10/29/2016 1.00 1.02
45 10/30/2016 - 11/05/2016 1.01 1.03

46 11/06/2016 - 11/12/2016 1.01 1.03

47 11/13/2016 - 11/19/2016 1.02 1.04
48 11/20/2016 - 11/26/2016 1.02 1.04

49 11/27/2016 - 12/03/2016 1.02 1.04

50 12/04/2016 - 12/10/2016 1-02 1.04

51 12/11/2016 - 12/17/2016 1.02 1.04
52 12/18/2016 - 12/24/2016 1.03 1.05
53 12/25/2016 - 12/31/2016 1.04 1.06

* PEAK SEASON

21-FEB-2017 10:54:35 830UPD 6 8700 PKSEASON.TXT



Annual Growth Factor Worksheet

8995 Collins Avenue

Count Station 2012 AADT 2016 AADT

Annual Compound

Growth

Adjusted Annual

Compound Growth

Site 870525 -

Collins Ave.

North of 871h

Avenue

32500 25000 -5.10% -5.10%

Site 870520 -

Harding Ave.

North of 87th

Avenue

26000 27000 0.76% 0.76%

Assumed Annual Compound Growth Rate 0.50%



Origin TAZ

County
TAZ

Regional
TAZ

595 3495

596 3496

596 3496

597 3497

597 3497

598 3498

598 3498

599 3499

599 3499

600 3500

600 3500

601 3501

■■■■■■■ Directional Trip Distribution Report
MIAMI-DADE LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN UPDATE TO THE YEAR 2040

Miami-Dade 2040 Directional Distribution Summary
Cardinal Directions

PERCENT

TRIPS

PERCENT

TRIPS

PERCENT

TRIPS

PERCENT

TRIPS

PERCENT

TRIPS

PERCENT

TRIPS

ESE SSE ssw wsw WNW NNW

0.0 1.5 23 15.0 20,1 23.2

29 83 178 1,090 1,230 1,046

0.6 1.7 3.6 22.1 24.9 21.2

17 84 238 1,188 2.012 1,703

0.3 1.3 3.8 18.9 32.1 27.2

1 70 74 1,022 U23 1,193

0.0 1.6 1.7 23.4 28.0 27.3

4 14 40 326 344 423

0.3 0.9 2.5 20.7 21.8 26.8

15 96 136 1,546 1,735 2,021

0.2 1.2 1.7 18.7 21.0 24.5

0 76 554 377 219 317

1
602 3502 TRIPS

602 3502 PERCENT

IHGSSI
603 3503 PERCENT

604 3504 TRIPS

604 3504 PERCENT

605 3505 TRIPS

605 3505 PERCENT

606 3506 TRIPS

606 3506 PERCENT

607 3507 TRIPS !

607 3507 PERCENT

608 3508 TRIPS

608 3508 PERCENT

609 3509 TRIPS

609 3509 PERCENT

610 3510 TRIPS

610 3510 PERCENT

611 : 3511 , TRIPS

611 3511 PERCENT

612 3512 TRIPS

612 3512 PERCENT

613 3513 TRIPS

613 3513 PERCENT

614 3514 TRIPS

614 3514 PERCENT

615 3515 TRIPS

615 3515 PERCENT

153 26 Q 223 847 558 796 522

4.9 0.8 0.0 7.1 27.1 17.9 25.5 16.7

14.544

10,8172,297 3,1541,850

EYES ON THE FUTURE 109



Afp^dix ^ Existnle ̂^ottditions-Aiialyse^

22



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

yaMdrb
Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (\^h)
Future Volume (vph)
Ideal Row (vptipl)
Lane Util. Factor

Frt

Fit Protected

Satd. Flow (prot)
Fit Peimitted

Satd. Flow (perm)
Right Tum on Red

Satd. Flow(RTOR)
Link Speed (mph)
Link Distance (ft)
Travel Time (s)

Peak Hour Factor

Heavy Vehicles (%)

Adj. Flow (vph)
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (\^h)
Enter Blocked Intersection

Lane Alignment
Median Width(ft)
Unk Offset(ft)
Crosswalk Width(ft)
Two way Left Tum Lane
Headway Factor
Tuming Speed (mph)
Number of Detectors

Detector Template
Leading Detector (ft)
Trailing Detector (ft)
Detector 1 Position(ft)

Detector 1 Size{ft)
Detector 1 T>TDe

Detector 1 Channel

Detector 1 Extend (s)

Detector 1 Queue (s)
Detector 1 Delay (s)
Tum Type
Protected Phases

Permitted Phases

Detector Phase

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s)
Minimum Split (s)
Total Split (s)
Total Split (%)
Maximum Green (s)

Existing AM.syn

07/24/2017

> > t V I

1

i

..VyililTi :-5- m
A 411^

38 14 0 0 3 17 21 1462 4 0 0 0
38 14 0 0 3 17 21 1462 4 0 0 0

1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.91 0,91 0.91 1.00 1.00 1.00

0.886

0.965 0.999

0 1798 0 0 1650 0 0 4798 0 0 0 ... .;o

0.763 0.999

0 1421 0 0 1650 0 0 4798 0 Q 0 ;  0
Yes Yes Yes Yes

25

357

9.7

0.58 0.58 0.58 0.63

2% 2% 2% 2%

66 24 0 0

0 90 0 0

No No No No

Left Left Right Left

0

0

16

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

15 9 15

1 1

Left Thru

20 30

0 0

0 0

20 30

Cl+Ex Cl+Ex

0.0 0.0

O.O 0.0

0.0 0.0

Perm NA

4

4

4 4

7.0 7.0

29.4 29.4

33.0 33.0

36.7% 36.7%

26.6 26.6

30 30

472 520

10.7 11.8

0.63 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.92 0.92 0;92

2% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%

27 22 1555 4 0 0 0

0 0 1581 0 0 0 0

No No No No No No No

Rght Left Left Right Left Left Right
0 0

0 0

16 16

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

9 15 9 15 '

Thru Left Thru

30 20 30

0 0 0

0 0 0

30 20 30

Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

NA Penn NA

8 2

2

8 2 2

7.0 7.0 7.0

29.4 24.3 24.3

33.0 57.0 57.0

36.7% 63.3% 63.3%

26.6 50.7 50.7

Synchro 10 Light Report
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/24/2017

< ̂  t A V i V

Yellow Time (s)
All-Red Time (s)
Lost Time Adjust (s)
Total Lost Time (s)
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle E)(t8nsion (s)
Recall Mode

Walk Time (s)
Flash Dent Walk (s)
pedestrian Calls (#/hr)
Act Effct Green (s)
Actuated g/C Ratio
v/c Ratio

pc»itrol Delay
Queue Delay
Total Delay
LOS

Approach Delay
Approach LOS
Queue Length 50th (ft)
Queue Length 95th (ft)
Intemal Link Dist (ft)
Tum Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph)
Starvation Cap Reductn
Spillback Cap Reductn
Storage Cap Reductn
Reduced v/c Ratio

None None C-Max C-Max

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 90

Actuated Cycle Length: 90
Offset: 66 (73%), Referenced to phase 2:NB"I1 and 6:, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 60
Control Tvpe: Actuated-Coordinated

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.53

Intersection Signal Delay: 7.3 Intersection LOS: A
Intersection Capacity Utilization 48.9% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases: 3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

re rI
57 s

 —^04
r)s



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/22/2017

V i V

il r

Approach Vol, \reh/h
Approach Delay, s/veh
Approach LOS

Itnd'-ABMgneidBft^

* HCM 6th computational engine requires equal clearance times for the phases crossing the barrier

Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Light Report
Page 1



HCM 6th TWSC

6: Harding Ave. & 90th St.

(nt Dela/, s/veh

EBT E8R WBL WBT WBR

Lane Configurations 4
Traffic Vol, 0 3 32 23 5 0

Future Vol, veh/h 0 3 32 23 5 0

Conflicting Reds, 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None

Storage Length - - - - - -

Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 -

Grade, % - 0 - - 0 -

Peak Hour Factor 73 73 73 58 58 58

Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2

Mvmt Flow 0 4 44

liiiHI Ii~r ^Ti

40

•I'a'

9 0

Conflicting Flow All - 2597 1266 1083 2609 -

Stage 1 - 2597 - 0 0 -

Stage 2 - 0 . 1083 2609 -

Critical Hdwy - 6.5 5 5 5.5 -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - 5.54 - - - -

Criticd Hdwy Stg 2 - - - 6.74 5.54 -

Follow-up Hdwy - 4.02 3.3 3.5 4.02 -

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 52 318 370 51 0

Stage 1 0 51 - - - 0

Stage 2 0 - - 219 50 0

Ratoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 52 318 300 51 -

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver • 52 - 300 51 -

Stage 1 - 51 - - - -

Stage 2 - - - 174 50 -

HCM Contit)! Del^. s
HCM LOS

edacity (vehfli)
HCM Lane V/C Ratio

HCM Control Delay (s)
HCM Lane LOS

HCM 95th %tile Q(y/eh)

221 160

0,217 0.302

25.7 36.9

D  E

0.8 1.2

NBL NBT NBR

0  0 0

0  0 0

0  0 0

Free Free Free

- None

- 16974

0

92 92 92

8  8 8

0  0 0

mMWrMm

36 2306 22

36 2306 22

0  0 0

Free Free Free

- None

92 92 92
8  8 8

39 2507 24

0  0 0

5.46^5

U

Existing AM.syn Synchro 10 Light Report
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/24/2017

Lane Configurations

Traffic Volume (>^h)
Future Volume (vpti)
Ideal Row (vphpl)
Lane Utii. Factor

Frt

Fit Protected

Satd. Row (prot)
Fit Permitted

Satd. Row (peim)
Right Turn on Red
Satd. Flow (RTOR)
Link Speed (mph)
Link Distance (ft)
Travel Time (s)
Peak H(Xir Factor

Heavy Vehicles (%)
Adj. Flow (vph)
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Row (\^h)
Enter Blocked Intersecton

Lane Alignment
Median Width(ft)

Unk Offset(ft)
Crosswalk Width(fl)
Two way Left Tum Lane
Headway Factor
Tumlng Speed (mph)
Number of Detectors

Detector Template
Leading Detector (ft)
Trailing Detector (ft)
Detector 1 Position(ft)
Detector 1 Sizefft)
Detector 1 Type
Detector 1 Channel

Detector 1 Extend (s)
Detector 1 Queue (s)
Detector 1 Delay (s)
Tum Type
Protected Phases

Permitted Phases

Detector Phase

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s)
Minimum Split (s)
Total Split (s)
Total Split (%)
Maximum Green (s)

Existing PM.syn

Cl+Ex Cl+Ex

32.9% 32.9%

Cl+Ex Ci+Ex

4
32 3 0 0 3 5 73 2175 6 0 0 0

32 3 0 0 3 5 73 2175 6 0 0 0

1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.00 0,91 0,91 0,91 1,00 1.00 1,00

0.914

0.956 0.998

0 1781 0 0 1703 0 0 4793 0 0 0

0.736 0.998

0 1371 0 0 1703 0 0 4793 0 0 p
Yes Yes Yes Yes

5 1

25 25 30 30

357 122 472 520

9.7 3.3 10.7 11.8

0.71 0,71 0.71 0.67 0.67 0.67 0.92 0.92 0.92 0.92 0.92 o;92

2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%

45 4 0 0 4 7 79 2364 7 0 0 0

0 49 0 0 11 0 0 2450 0 0 0 0

No No No No No No No No No No No No

Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

16 16 16 16

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00

15 9 15 9 15 9 15 ■9
1 1 1 1 1

Left Thru Thru Left Thru 'kd.
20 30 30 20 30

0 0 0 0 0 ■BB
0 0 0 0 0

20 30 30 20 30 MMBB

Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/24/2017

V i V

Yellow Time (s)
All-Red Time (s)
Lost Time Adjust (s)
Total Lost Time (s)
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag C^timlze?
Vehicle Extension (s)
Recall Mode

Walk Tin>e (s)
Flash Dont Walk (s)
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)
Act Effct Green (s)
Actuated g/C Ratio
v/c Ratio

Control Delay
Queue Delay
Total Delay
LOS

Approach Delay

Approach LOS
Queue Length 50th {ft)
Queue Length 95th (ft)
Internal Unk Dist (ft)
Tum Bay Length (ft)
Base Cecity (vph)
Starvation Cap Reductn
Splltback Cap Reductn
Storage Cap Reductn
Reduced v/c Ratio

4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

2.4 2.4 2.4 2.3 2.3

0.0 0.0 0.0

6.4 6.4 6.3

2.5 2.5 2.5 1.0 1.0

None None None C-Max C-Max

5.0 5.0 5.0 7.0 7.0

18.0 18.0 18.0 9.0 9.0

0 0 0 0 0

8.6 8.6 76.6

0.10 0.10 0.85

0.38 0.07 0.60

42.1 28.9 4.8

0.0 0.0 0.0

42.1 28.9- 4.8

D C A

42.1 28.9 4:8 r
D C A

27 3  ' 187
m45 13 278

277 42 392

353 442 4079

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0.14 0.02 0.60

i.iiTiu.'.. .■ •

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 90
Actuated Cycle Length; 90
Offset: 1 (1%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:, Start of Green
Natural Cycle; 80
Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.60
Intersection Signal Delay: 5.6 Intersection LOS; A
Intersection Capacity Utilization 62.8% ICU Level of Sen/ice B
Analysis Period (min) 15
m Volume for 95th percentile queue is metered by upstream signal.

Splits and Phases: 3; Collins Ave. & 90th St.

Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Page 2



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/22/2017

Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (veh/h)
Future Volume (veh/h)
Initial Q (Ob), veh
Ped-Bike Adj(Aj)bT)

Parking Bus, Adj
Work Zone On Approach
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h
Peak Hour Factor

Percent Heavy Veh. %
Cap, veh/h
Arrive On Green

Sat Flow, veh/h

Grp Volume(v). veh/h

Grp Sat Row(s),veh/h/ln
0 Serve(g_s). s
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s
Prop In Lane
Lane Grp Cap{c}, veh/h
V/C Ratio(X)
Avail Cap(G_a), veh/h
HCM Platoon Ratio

Upstream FlltertI)
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh
incr Delay (d2), s/veh
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/v^
%iie BackOfQ(50%),veh/ln
Unsig, Movement Delay, s/v^
LnGrp Delay(d).s/veh
LnGro LOS

'"-"sS£^'au,-3Stn::.v-

Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s
Change Period (Y+Rc), s

Max Green Setting (Gmax), s
Max Q Clear Time {g_c+11). s
Green Ext Time (p_c), s

* HCM 6th computational engine requires equal clearance times for the phases crossing the barrier.

Existing PM.syn S\mchro 10 Report
Page 1



HCM 6th TWSC

6: Harding Ave. & 90th St. 07/22/2017

Int Delay, s/veh

m EBT EBR

h
0  4 12

0  4 12

0  0 0

Stop Stop Stop
- None

m:

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol. veh/h
Future Vol, veh/h

Conflicting Peds. #/hr
Sign Control
RT Channelized

Storage Length
Veh in Median Storage, #
Grade, %

peak Hour Factor
Heavy Vehicles, %
Mvmt Flow

WBL WBT WBR

4
22 3 0

22 3 0

0  0 0

Stop Stop Stop
■ None

NBk NBT NBR SBL SBT SB

31 2181 23

31 2181 23

0  0 0

Free Free Free

- None

0  0 0

0  0 0

0  0 0

Free Free Free

- None

- 16974

0

92 92 9285 85 85

2  2 2

0  5 14

57 57 57

2  2 2

39 5 0

90 90 90
8  8 8

34 2423. .26

Conflicting Flow All 2504 1225 1040 2517 -

Stage 1 2504 0 0 ■

Stage 2 0 1040 2517 .

Critical Hdwy 5.5 5 5 5.5 -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.54 - - .

Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - 6.74 5.54 -

Follow-up Hdwy 4.02 3.3 3.5 4.02 -

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 58 331 386 57 0

Stage 1 0 57 - 0

Stage 2 0 - 233 56 0

Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver ' 58 331 347 57 -

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - 58 347 57 -

Stage 1 - 57 - . .

Stage 2 • - 205 56 -

HCM Control D$l^, s
HCM LOS

Mlhbf Une/Major Mvmt
Capacity (veh/h)
HCM Lane V/C Ratio

HCM Control Delay (s)
HCM Lane LOS

HCM 95th %tile Q(veh)

SBL SBT SBR

152 215

0.124 0.204

32 26

D  D

0.4 0.7

0  0 0

Existing PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Pagel



Appendix D - Background Trafilc Conditions Analyses

23



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

,

>

msm

>

msm

<

mm

t

Lane Configurations 4
Traffic Volume (vph) 38 14 0 0 3 17 22 1505
Future Volume (vph) 38 14 0 0 3 17 22 1505

Ideal Row (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1,00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.00 0.91 0.91

Frt 0.886

Fit Protected 0.965 0.999

Satd. Row (prot) 0 1798 0 0 1650 0 0 4798
Fit Permitted 0.763 0.999

Satd. Row (peim) 0 1421 0 0 1650 0 0 4798

Right Turn on Red Yes Yes

Said. Flow(RTOR) 23 1

Link Speed (mph) 25 25 30

Link Distance (ft) 357 122 472

Travel Time (s) 9.7 3.3 10.7

Peak Hour Factor 0.58 0.58 0.58 0.63 0.63 0.63 0.94 0.94

Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 8% 8%

Adj. Flow (vph) 66 24 0 0 5 27 23 1601

Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (v^jh) 0 90 0 0 32 0 0 1628

Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No

Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left

Median Width(ft) 0 0 0

Link Offset(fl) 0 0 0

Crosswalk Wldth{ft) 16 16 16

Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Tuming Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15

Number of Detectors 1 1 1 1 1

Detector Template Left Thru Thru Left Thru

Leading Detector (ft) 20 30 30 20 30

Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0

Detector 1 Position(ft) 0 0 0 0 0

Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 30 30 20 30

Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex

Detector 1 Channel

Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0,0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Turn Type Perm NA NA Peim NA

Protected Phases 4 8 2

Permitted Phases 4 2
Detector Phase 4 4 8 2 2

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0

Minimum Split (s) 29.4 29.4 29.4 24.3 24.3

Total Split (s) 33.0 33.0 33.0 57.0 57.0

Total Split (%) 36.7% 36,7% 36,7% 63.3% 63.3%

Maximum Green (s) 26.6 26.6 26.6 50.7 50.7

07/26/2017

I  V

0  0

No No

Left Right
0

0

16

1.00 1.00

Background AM.syn Synchro 10 RqDort
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/26/2017

< A A V I V

Yellow Time (s)
All-Red Time (s)
Lost Time Adjust (s)
Total Lost Time (s)
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?

Vetilcle Extension (s)
Recall Mode

Walk Time (s)
Flash Dont Walk (s)
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)
Act Effct Green (s)
Actuated g/C Ratio

v/c Ratio

Control Delay
Queue Delay
Total Delay
LOS

Approach Delay
Approach LOS
Queue Length 50th (ft)
Queue Length 95th (ft)
Internal Link Dist (ft)
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph)
Starvation Cap Reductn
Spillback Cap Reductn

Storage Cap Reductn
Reduced v/c Ratio

C-Max C-Max

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 90

Actuated Cycle Length: 90
Offset: 66 (73%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 60
Control T^e; Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.53

Intersection Signal Delay: 7.4 Intersection LOS: A
Intersection Capacity Utilizaticxi 49.7% ICU Level of Ser\rice A
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases: 3: Collins fm. & 90th St.

"^4

33a



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/22/2017

Lane Configurations
traffic Vcrfume (veh/h)
Future Volume (veh/h)
Initial Q (Qb). veh
Ped-Bike Adj(Aj)bT)
Parking Bus, Adj
Work Zone On Approacti

Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h
Peak Hour Factor

Percent Heavy Veh, %

Cap. veh/h
Arrive On Green

Sat Flow, veh/h

Grp Volume(v), veh/h

Grp Sat Row{s),veh/h/ln
Q Serve(g_s), s
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s
Prop In Lane
Lane Grp C^{c), v^/h
V/C Ratio(X)
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h
HCM Platoon Ratio

Upstream Rlter{l)
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh
Initial Q DelayldS),s/veh
%il6 BackOfQ(50%),veh/ln
Unslg. Movement Delay, s/veh

LnGip Delay(d),s/veh
LnGrp LOS

Approach Vol, veh/h
Approach Delay, s/veh
Approach LOS

I -1

A
38 14 0 0 3 17 22 1505 4
38 14 0 0 3 17 22 1505 4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1,00 1,00 100

No No No

1870 1870 0 0 1870 1870 1900 1781 1900

66 24 0 0 5 27 23 1601 4

0.58 0.58 0.58 0.63 0.63 0.63 0,94 0.94 0.94

2 2 0 0 2 2 0 8 0

148 39 0 0 23 124 53 3917 10

0.09 0.09 0.00 0.00 0,09 0.09 0.77 0.77 0.77

866 430 0 0 254 1370 69 5096 13

90 0 0 0 0 32 594 493 541

1296 0 0 0 0 1624 1778 1621 1779
4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 10.5 9.1 9.1

6.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.6 10.5 9.1 9.1

0.73 0,00 0,00 0.84 004 0.01

186 0 0 0 0 147 1367 1246 1367

0.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.22 0.43 0.40 0.40

490 0 0 0 0 480 1367 1246 1367

1.00 1.00 1.00 1,X 1,00 1,00 1,00 1,00 1.00

1.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.00

40.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 38.0 3.6 3.5 3.5

1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5 1.0 0.9 0.9

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.7 3.0 2.4 2.6

42.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 38.5 4.6 4.4 4.3

D A A A A D A A A

90 32 1628

42.0 38.5 4.5

D D A

®  ̂ «D

0  0

imer^AssignKiPhi^
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s
Change Period (Y+Rc), s
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+l1), s
Green Ext Time (p_c), s

intersection Summar

I  I iinT'i^Fi

* HCM 6th computational engine requires equal clearance times Iot the phases crossing the barrier.

Background AM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



HCM 6th TWSC

6; Harding Ave. & 90th St.

Int Delay, s/veh

8BL SBT SB8

36 2364 23

36 2364 23

0  0 0

Free Free Free

• Nona

W8L. WBT WBR

4
24 5 0

24 5 0

0  0 0

Stop Stop Stop
- None

ovement

Lane Configuratims
Traffic Vol, veti/h

Future Vol, veti/h

Conflicting Peds, #/hr

Sign Contt-oi
RT Channelized

Storage Length
Veh in Median Storage, #
Grade, %

Peak Hour Factor

Heavy Vehicles, %

Mvmt Flow

EBL EBT EBR

I*
0  3 32

0  3 32

0  0 0

Stop Stop Stop
- None

NBL NBT NBR

0  0 0

0  0 0

0  0 0

Free Free Free

- None

- 16974

0

92 92 92

8  8 8

0  0 0

58 58 58

2  2 2

41 9 0

92 92 92

8  8 8

39 2570 25

.nvy.VJ

Conflicting Flow All - 2661 1298 1108 2673 -

Stage 1 - 2661 - 0 0 -

Stage 2 • 0 • 1108 2673 -

Critical Hdwy - 5.5 5 5 5.5 -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - 5.54 - - - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - 6.74 5.54 -

Follow-up Hdwy • 4.02 3.3 3.5 4.02 -

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 48 308 361 47 0

Stage 1 0 47 - - - 0

Stage 2 0 - - 211 46 0

Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 48 308 289 47 -

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - 48 - 289 47 -

Stage 1 - 47 - - - -

Stage 2 - - - 165 46 -

0  0 0

_r,'.

HCM Control Delay, s
HCM LOS

Minor Lane/Maior Mvmt EBLnlWBLnl

0.228 0,327

27.1 39.6

Synchro 10 Report
Page 1

Background AM.syn



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/24/2017

> > < < t A

.■Mx.- . ■my ,  1 'j

Lane Configurations A h
traffic Volume (vph) 32 3 0 0 3 5 74 2218 6
Future Volume (vph) 32 3 0 0 3 5 74 2218 6
Ideal Row (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Util. Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 0,91 0.91 0.91
Frt 0.914
Fit Protected 0.956 0.998
Satd. Row (prot) 0 1781 0 0 1703 0 0 4793 0
Fit Permitted 0.736 0.998
Satd. Flow ftjerm) 0 1371 0 0 1703 0 0 4793 0
Right Tum on Red Yes Yes Yes
Satd. F!ow(RTOR} 4 1
Link Speed {mph) 25 25 30
Link Distance (ft) 357 122 472
Travel Time (s) 9,7 3.3 10.7
Peak Hour Factor 0.71 0.71 0.71 0.67 0.67 0.67 0.92 0.92 0.92
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 8% 8% 8%
Adj. Flow (vph) 45 4 0 d 4 7 80 2411 7
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Row (vph) 0 49 0 0 11 0 0 2498 0
Enter Blocked Intersection No No No No No No No No No
Lane Alignment Left Left Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
Median Width(ft) 0 0 0
Link 0ffs6t(fl) 0 0 0
Crosswalk Width(ft) 16 16 16
Two way Left Tum Lane
Headway Factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00
Turning Speed (mph) 15 9 15 9 15 9
Number of Detectors 1 1 1 1 1
Detector Template Left Thru Thru Left Thnj
Leading Detector (ft) 20 30 30 20 30
Trailing Detector (ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Positlon(ft) 0 0 0 0 0
Detector 1 Size(ft) 20 30 30 20 30
Detector 1 Type Cl+Ex Cl+Ex CI+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex
Detector 1 Channel
Detector 1 Extend (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Queue (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Detector 1 Delay (s) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Tum Type Perm NA NA Perm NA
Protected Phases 4 8 2
Permitted Phases 4 2
Detector Phase 4 4 8 2 2
Switch Phase
Minimum Initial (s) 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Minimum Split (s) 29.4 29.4 29.4 24.3 24.3
Total Split (s) 29,6 29.6 29.6 60.4 60.4
Total Split (%) 32.9% 32.9% 32.9% 67.1% 67.1%
Maximum Green (s) 23.2 23.2 23.2 54.1 54.1

V i V

0  0 0
0  0 0

1900 1900 1900
1.00 1,00 1.00

30

520
11.8

0.92 0.92 0.92
8% 8% 8%

0  0 0

1,00 1,00 1,00

15

Background PM.syn Synchro 10 R^ort
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 07/24/2017

Yellow Time (s)
All-Red Time (s)
Lost Time Adjust (s)
Total Lost Time (s)
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Vehicle Extension (s)
Recall Mode

Walk Time (s)
Flash Dont Walk (s)
Pedestrian Calls (#^r)
Act Effct Green (s)
Actuated g/C Ratio
v/c Ratio

Control Delay
Queue Delay
Total Delay
LOS

Approach Delay
Approach LOS
Queue Length 50th (ft)
Queue Length 95!h (ft)
Internal Link Dist (ft)
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph)
Starvation Cap Reductn
Splilback Cap Reductn
Storage Cap Reductn
Reduced v/c Ratio

None None C-Max C-Max

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 90
Actuated Cycle Lengfti: 90
Offset: 1 (1%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
Control Tvpe; Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.61

Intersection Signal Delay: 5.7 Intersection LOS: A
Intersection Capacity Utilization 63.7% ICU Levd of Service B
Analysis Period (min) 15

m Volume for 95th percentile queue is metered by upstream signal.

Splits and Phases: 3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

29.6 s

Synchro 10 Report
Page 2

Background PM.syn



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

Lane Configurations
traffic Volume (veh/h)
Future Volume (veh/h)
Initial Q (Qb). veh
Ped-BIke Adj(Aj)bT)

Pari<ing Bus, Adj
Work Zone On Approach

Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h
Peak Hour Factor

Percent Heavy Veh. %

Cap, veh/h
Arrive On Green

Sat Flow, veh/h

Grp Voiume(v), veh/h
Grp Sal Row(s),veh/h/ln
Q Serve(g_s), s
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s
Prop In Lane
Lane Grp Cap{c), veh/h
V/C Ratio(X)
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h •

HCM Platoon Ratio

Upstream Filter(l)
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh
Initial Q Delay(d3).s/veh
%ile BackOfQ(50%).veh/ln
Unsig. f/Iovement Delay, s/veh
LnGrp Delay(d).s/veh
LnGrp LOS

^proach Vol, veh/h
Approach Delay, s/veh

Approach LOS

imer - Assigned

Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s
Change Period (Y+Rc), s
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+l1), s
Green Ext Time (p_c}, s

Ihtersection Summa

07/22/2017

^  t V I V

6.0 5.4

A  A

249

5.

5 74 2218 6 0 0 . -0

5 74 2218 6 0 0  0

0 0 0 0

1.00 1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00

No

1.00

HCM 6th computational engine requires equal clearance times for the phases crossing the barrier.

Background PM.syn Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



HCM 6th TWSC

6: Harding Ave. & 90th St.

!nt Delay, s/veh

Wa WBT WBR

4
22 3 0

22 3 0

0  0 0

Stop Stop Stop
- None

NBL NOT NBR SBL SBT SB

31 2247 24

31 2247 24

0  0 0

Free Free Free

- None

iment.

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h

Future Vol, veh/h

Cwiflicting Peds, #/hr
Sign Control
RT Channelized

Storage Length
Veh in Median Storage, #
Grade, %

Peak Hour Factor

Heavy Vehicles, %
Mwit Row

L EBT EBR

0  4 12

0  4 12

0  0 0

Stop St(^ Stop

■ None

0  0 0

0  0 0

0  0 0

Free Free Free

- None

. 16974

0

92 92 92

8  8 6

0  0 0

90 90 90

8  8 8

34 2497 27

85 85 85

2  2 2

0  5 14

Conflicting Flow All - 2579 1282 1069 2592 -

Stage 1 2579 0 0 -

Stage 2 0 1069 2592 -

Critical Hdwy 5.5 5 5 5.5 -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.54 - - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - 6.74 5.54 -

Follow-up Hdwy 4.02 3.3 3,5 4.02 -

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 53 319 375 52 0

Stage 1 0 52 - - 0

Stage 2 0 - 224 51 0

Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 53 319 334 52 -

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver . 53 - 334 52 -

Stage 1 - 52 - - • -

Stage 2 - - - 195 51 -

Sjaaest, iif.

0  0 0

HCM Con^ol Delay, s
HCM LOS

Minor Lane/Maior Mvml

Capacity (veh/h)
HCM Lane V/C Ratio

HCM Control Delay (s)
HCM Lane LOS

HCM 95th %tile Q(veh)

EBLnlWBLnl

141 202

0.134 0,217

34,4 27.7

D  D

0,4 0,8

SBL SBT SBR

Background PM,syn Synchro 10 Report
Pagel



>^Qpendix E ̂ Toial Erafiic Conditions Analyses

24



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

tiane^u

Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph)
Future Volume (vph)
Ideal Row (vphpl)
Lane Util. Factor

Frt

Fit Protected

Said. Row (prot)
Fit Permitted

Satd. Row (perm)
Right Turn on Red
Satd. Row (RTOR)
Link Speed (mph)
Link Distance (ft)
Travel Time (s)
Peak Hour Factor

Heavy Vehicles (%)

Adj. Flow (vph)
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph)
Enter Blocked Intersection

Lane Alignment
Median Width(ft)
Link Offsetfft)
Crosswalk Width(ft)
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor

Turning Speed (mph)
Number of Detectors

Detector Template
Leading Detector (ft)

Trailing Detector (ft)
Detector 1 Positionjft)
Detector 1 Si2e(ft)
Detector 1 Type

Detector 1 Channel

Detector 1 Extend (s)

Detector 1 Queue (s)
Detector 1 Delay (s)
Turn Type
Protected Phases

Permitted Phases

Detector Phase

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s)
Minimum Split (s)
Total Split (s)
Total Split {%)
Maximum Green (s)

Total AM 2.&yn

12/30/2017

4
38 15 0 0

38 15 0 0

1900 1900 1900 1900

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

0.965

0 1798 0 0

0.765

0 1425 Q 0

Yes

25

357

9.7

0.58 0.58 o;58 0.63

2% 2% 2% 2%

66 26 0 0

0 92 0 0

No No No No

Left Left Right Left

0

0

16

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

15 9 15

1 1

Left Thru

20 30

0 0

0 0

20 30

0

0

Cl+Ex Ci+Ex

< A t A V I V

36,7% 36.7%

 1652

 1652

1505 4

1505 4

1900 1900

0.91 0.91

1900 1900

1.00 1.00

30 30

472 520

10.7 11.8

0.63 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.92 0.92 0.92

2% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%

30 23 1601 4 0 0 b

0 0 1628 0 0 0 0

No No No No No No No

Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
0 0

0 0

16 16

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Thru Left Thm

30 20 30

0 0 0

0 0 0

30 20 30

Ci+Ex Cl+Ex Cl+Ex

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0

NA Perm NA

8 2

2

8 2 2

7.0 7.0 7.0

29.4 24.3 24.3

33.0 57.0 57.0

36,7% 83.3% 63.3%

26.6 50.7 50.7

Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 12/30/2017

> < < ̂  t ^ V i V

Yellow Time (s)
All-Red Time (s)
Lost Time Adjust (s)
Total Lost Time (s)
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag C^timize?
Vehicle Extension (s)
Recall Mode

Walk Time (s)
Flash Dont Walk (s)
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)
Act Effct Green (s)
Actuated g/C Ratio
v/c Ratio

Control Delay
Queue Delay
Total Delay
LOS

Approach Delay
/Approach LOS
Queue Length 50th (ft)
Queue Length 95th (ft)
Internal Unk Dist (ft)
Tum Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (\T)h)
Starvation Cap Reductn
Spiilback Cap Reductn

Storage Cap Reductn
Reduced v/c Ratio

2.5 2.5

None None

5.0 5.0

18.0 18.0

Area Type: OUier
Cycle Length: 90
Actuated Cycle Length: 90
Offset: 66 (73%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 60
Control Tvpe: Actuated-Coordinated

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.54

Intersection Signal Delay: 7,5 Intersection LOS: A
Intersection Capacity Utilization 49.8% iCU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases: 3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.



HCM 6th Signalized intersection Summary
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 12/30/2017

Lane Configurations
Traffic V(^ume (veh^)
Future Volume (veh/h)
Initial Q (Qb), veh
Ped-Bike Adj[A_pbT)
Parking Bus, Ad]
Wo!i< Zone On Approach

Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h

Peak Hour Factor

Percent Heavy Veh, %
Cap, veh/h
AmVe On Green

Sat Flow, veh/h

Gip Volume{v). veh/h

Grp Sal Row(s),veh/h/ln
Q Serve(g_s), s
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s
Prop In Lane
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h
V/C Ratio(X)
Avail Cap(c_a), vehfli
HCM Platoon Ratio

Upstream RItertI)
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh

Incr Delay (d2), s/veh

Initial Q Delay(d3),s/v^
%ile BackOfQ(50%),v8h/ln
Unsig. Movement Delay, s/veh
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh
LnGfp LOS

Approach Vol, veh/h
Approach Delay, s/veh
Approach LOS

Ijiper-Assign^ Ph
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s

Change Period (Y+Rc), s
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+l1), s
Green Ext Time (p_c), s

intersection Summa

> <

,  : t., -

< t A

19 22 1505 4

19 22 1505 4

0 0 0 0
1.00 1,00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

No

1870 1900 1781 1900

30 23 1601 4

0.63 0.94 0,94 0.94

2 0 8 0

126 53 3902 10

0.09 0.77 0.77 0,77

1355 69 5096 13

36 594 493 541

1626 1778 1621 1779

1.8 10.6 9.2 9.2

1.8 10.6 9.2 9.2

0.83 0.04 0.01

152 1361 1241 1362

0.24 0.44 0.40 0.40

481 1361 1241 1362

1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

37.8 3.7 3.5 3.5

0.6 1.0 1.0 0.9

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.8 3.0 2.4 2.6

38.4 4.7 4.5 4.4

D A A A

V I v

HCM 6th computational engine requires equal clearance times for the phases crossing the barrier.

Total AM 2.syn Synchro 10 Report
Pagel



HCM 6th TWSC

6: Harding Ave. & 90th St. 12/30/2017

Int Delay, s/veh

IBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

h  4
0  3 32 25 5 0 0 0 0 37 2364 23

0  3 32 25 5 0 0 0 0 37 2364 23

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Stop Stop Stc» Stop Stc» Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol,veh/li 0 3

Future Vol, veh/h 0 3

Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop
RT Channelized

Storage Length
Veh in h/ledian Storage, # - 0
Grade, % - 0

-  t^one • None - None - None

. 16974

0

Peak Hour Factor 73 73 73 58 58 58 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, %
Mvmt Flow

2  2

44 43 40 2570 25

Conflicting Flow All - 2663 1298 1110 2675 -

Stage 1 - 2663 - c 0 -

Stage 2 - 0 - 1110 2675 -

Critical Hdwy - 5.5 5 5 5.5 -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - 5.54 - - - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - 6.74 5.54 -

Follow-up Hdwy - 4.02 3.3 3.5 4.02 -

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 48 308 360 47 0

Stage 1 0 47 - - . 0

Stage 2 0 - • 210 46 0

Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - 48 308 288 47 .

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - 48 - 288 47 .

Stage 1 - 47 - - -

Stage 2 - - - 164 46 •

mm ■
HCM Control Delay, s 27.1
HCM LOS D

Pnoniin&fSlajorM"^
Capacity (veh/h)
HCM Lane V/C Ratio

HCM Control Delay (s)
HCM Lane LOS

HCM 95th %tile Q(veh)

EBLnlWBLnl

210 155

0.228 0.334

27.1 39.4

D  E

0.9 1.4

0  0 0

3.18

SBL' SBT SBR.

Total AM 2.s^ Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



HCM 6th TWSC

9: Project Drive & 90th St. 12/30/2017

!nt Delay, s/veh

Movement

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veti/h

Future Vol, veh/h

EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR

^  t
18 4 0 21 13 0

18 4 0 21 13 0

Conflicting Peds, #^r 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free
RT Channelized

Storage Length
Veh in Median Storage, # 0
Grade, % 0

Peak Hour Factor 58

Heavy Vehicles, % 2

Mvmt Flow 31

Free

58

 Free Free Free Stop Stop
• None - None • None

 58 63 63 92 92

2  2 2 2 2 2

0  33 14

Conflicting Flow All
Stage 1
Stage 2

Critical Hdwy
Critical Hdwy Stg 1
Critical Hdwy Stg 2
Follow-up Hdwy
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver

Stage 1
Stage 2

Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver

Stage 1

Stage 2

HCM Control Delay, s
HCM LOS

inor Lane/Major Mvmt

Capacity (veh/h)
HCM Lane V/C Ratio

HCM Control Delay (s)
HCM Lane LOS

HCM 95th %tileQ(veh)

II || I Hi II l> >!■! —Illlll III! illl iKll I

NBLn1

937
0,015

8.9
A
0

EBT "EBR WBT

Total AM 2.syn Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

Lane Configurations
traffic Volume (vph)
Future Volume (vph)

Ideal Row (^^hpl)
Lane Util. Factor

Frt

Fit Protected

Satd, Flow(prot)
Fit Permitted

Satd. Flow (penm)
Right Turn on Red
Satd. Row (RTOR)
Link Speed (mph)

Link Distance (ft)
Travel Time (s)

Peak Hour Factor
Heavy Vehicles (%)
Adj. Flow (\^h)
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (s^^h)
Enter Blocked Intersection

Lane Alignment
Median Width(ft)
Link Offset(ft)
Crosswalk Width(ft)
Two way Left Tum Lane
Headway Factor
turning Speed (mph)
Number of Detectors

Detector Template
Leading Detector (ft)
Trailing Detector (ft)
Detector 1 Position(ft)
Detector 1 Size(ft)
Detector 1 Type
Detector 1 Channel

Detector 1 Extend (s)
Detector 1 Queue (s)
Detector 1 Delay (s)
Tum Type
Protected Phases

Permitted Phases

Detector Phase

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s)
Minimum Split (s)
Total Split (s)
Total Split (%)
Maximum Green (s)

Total PM 2.syn

12/30/2017

< ̂  t A V I V
tijMk ■ Life.

4 41^
32 4 0 0 4 6 74 2218 7 0 0 0

32 4 0 0 4 6 74 2218 7 0 0 0

1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

0.919

1.00 0.91 0.91 0.91 1.00 1.00 1,00

0.958 0.998

0  1785 0 0 1712 0 0 47^ 0 0 ,0
0.740 0.998

0  1378 0

Yes

0 1712 0

Yes

0 4793 0

Yes

0 0 '0

Yes

25

357

9.7

0,71 0.71 0.71 0.67

2% 2% 2% 2%

45 6 0 0

0 51 0 0

No No No No

Left Left Right Left

0

0

16

1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00

15 9 15

1 1

Left Thnj

20 30

0 0

0 0

20 30

Cl+Ex Cl+Ex

7.0 7.0

29.4 29.4

29.6 29.6

32.9% 32.9%

23.2 23.2

30 30

472 520

10.7 11.8

0.67 0.92 0.92 0.92 0.92 0.92 0.92

2% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%

9 80 2411 8 0 .0 0

0 0 2499 0 0 0 0

No No No No No No No

Right Left Left Right Left Left Right
0 0

0 0

16 16

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00

9 15 9 15

1 1

Left Thru -.*1!nHtm
20 30

0 0 HIHIHI
C 0

20 30 mimm
Cl+Ex Cl+Ex

■ M

0.0 0.0
m■i

0.0 0.0 HBH
0.0 0.0

Perm NA ■MHBHI
2

2 HHHI
2 2

Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 12/30/2017

Yellow Time (s)
All-Red Time (s)
Lost Time Adjust (s)
Total Lost Time (s)
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag CY^timize?
Vehicle Extension (s)
Recall Mode

Walk Time (s)
Flash Dont Walk (s)
Pedestrian Calls (#/hr)
Act Effct Green (s)
Actuated g/C Ratio
v/c Ratio

Control Delay
Queue Delay
Total Delay
LOS

Approach Delay
Approach LOS
Queue Length 50th (ft)
Queue Length 95th (ft)
Internal Link Dist (ft)
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph)
Starvation Cap Reductn
Spillback Cap Reductn
Storage Cap Reductn
Reduced v/c Ratio

C-Max C-MaxNone None

Area Type; Other
Cycle Length: 90
Actuated Cycle Length: 90
Offset 1 (1%), Referenced to phase 2:NBTL and 6:, Start of Green
Natural Cycle: 80
COTtrol Tvpe: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio; 0.61

Intersection Signal Delay: 5,9 Intersection LOS: A
Intersection Capacity Utilization 63.7% tCU Level of Service 8
Analysis Period (min) 15

m Volume for 95th percentiie queue is metered by upstream signal.

Splits and Phases: 3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

Synchro 10 Report
Page 2

Total PM 2.syn



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
3: Collins Ave. & 90th St. 12/30/2017

0

0  0 0

Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (veh^)
Future Volume (veh/h)
Initial Q (Qb), veh
Ped-BlkeAclj(A_pbT)

Pari<ing Bus, Adj
Work Zone On Approach

Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h
Peak Hour Factor

Percent Heavy Veh, %
Cap, veh/h
Arrive On Green

Sat Flow, veh/h

Grp Volume(v), veh/h
Grp Sat Row(s),veh/h/ln
Q Serve(g_s). s

Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s
Prop In Lane
Lane Grp C^(c), veh/h
V/C Ratlo(X)
Avail Cap(c_a), vehfh

HCM Platoon Ratio

Upstream Filter^l)
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh
%ile BackOfQ(50%),veh/ln
Unsig. Movement Delay, s/veh

LnGrp Delay{d),s/veh
LnGro LOS

Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s
Change Period (Y+Rc), s
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+l1), s
Green Ext Time (p_c), s

tersection Summa

* HCM 6th computational engine requires equal clearance times for the phases crossing the barrier.

Total PM 2.syn Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



HCM 6th TWSC

6: Harding Ave. & 90th St. 12/30/2017

Int Delay, sAreh

EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

4t1v
0  0 0 0 32 2247 24

0  0 0 0 32 2247 24

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol. veh/h

Future Vol. veh/h

12 24

12 24

Conflictina Pods, #flir 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Stop Stop Stop Stop Stc^ Stop Free Free Free Free Free FreeSign Control Stop Stop

RT Channelized

Storage Length
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0
Grade, % - 0

- - None - None - None None

- 16974

0

85 85 85 57 57 57 92 92 92 90 90 90Peak Hour Factor

Heavy Vehicles, %
Mvmt Flow

2  2

14 42 0  0 36 2497 27

2583 1262 1073 2596Conflicting Flow All

Stage 1
Stage 2

Critical Hdwy
Critical Hdwy Stg 1
Critical Hdwy Stg 2
Follow-up Hdwy
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver

Stage 1
Stage 2

Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver

Stage 1
Stage 2

1073 2596

53 319 332 52

53 - 332 52

51 - - -

-  193 51

HCM Control D^y, s 34.4
HCM LOS D

Inor Lane/Major Mvmt

Capacity (veh/h)
HCM Lane V/C Ratio

HCM Control Delay (s)
HCM Lane LOS

HCM 95th %tile O(veh)

EBLnlWBLnl

141 208

0.134 0.228

34.4 27.3

D  D

0.4 0.8

Total PM 2.syn Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



HCM 6th TWSC

12; Project Drive & 90th St. 03/16/2018

Int Delay, s/veh

EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SET SBR

^  t f
20 0 12 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 23
20 0 12 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 23

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop

ovement i

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h

Future Vol, veh/h

Conflicting Peds, Mir
Sign Control F
RT Channelized

Storage Length
Veh in Median Storage, #
Grade, %

- None- None - None - None

0

Peak Hour Factor 92 71 71 67 67 92 92 92 92 92 92 92

Heavy Vehicles, %

Mwnt Flow

2  2

0  25

:bf/MihoT'-

Conflicting Flow All

Stage 1
Stage 2

Criticei Hdwy
Critical Hdwy Stg 1
Critical Hdwy Stg 2
Follow-up Hdwy
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver

Stage 1

Stage 2
Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver

Stage 1

Stage 2

-  6.22

- 3.318

0 1084
0

0

1084 .

HCM COTtrol Delay, s
HCM LOS

Mrncr Lain.gM$M Mvrn

Capacity (veh/h)
HCM Lane V/C Ratio

HCM Control Delay (s)
HCM Lane LOS

HCM 95th %tjle Q(veh)

BLnl EBL EBT EBR WSBlivT
895 1622 - - - 1084

0.01 0.013 - - - 0.023

9,1 7.2 0 - - 8.4

A  A A - - A

0  0 - ^ - 0.1

Total PM 2.syn Synchro 10 Report
Page 1



iijipiillix. K j^lt



Ill

'

8995 COLLINS AVENUE
SURF HOUSE

OCEAN VIEWS. LLC
tovM or Hxvsoe. p;OKaA

FLOOR PLAN
MM MAP

UorMKCISTI



Illllil
lUUll

m

ii»wwcttxww'»rawiia

K 0 B I

K A R P

SURF HOUSE

OCEAN VIEWS, UC

FLOOR PLAN
BASEMEVT01 /BLVD LOBBY





Appendix G - Queuing Analysis

26



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
12: Project Drive & 90th St. 04/23/2018

> < < \ t A V i V

Lane Configurations
Traffic Volume (vph)
Future Volume (vph)
Ideal Flow (vphpl)
Storage Length (ft)
Storage Lanes
Taper Length (ft)
Lane Util. Factor

Frt

Fit Protected

Satd. Flow (prot)
Fit Permitted

Satd. Flow (perm)
Right Turn on Red
Satd. Flow (RTOR)
Link Speed (mph)
Link Distance (ft)
Travel Time (s)
Peak Hour Factor

Adj. Flow (vph)
Shared Lane Traffic (%)
Lane Group Flow (vph)
Enter Blocked Intersection

Lane Alignment
Median Width(ft)
Unk Offset(ft)
Crosswalk Width(ft)
Two way Left Turn Lane
Headway Factor
Tuming Speed (mph)
Turn Type

Protected Phases

Permitted Phases

Minimum Split (s)
Total Split (s)
Total Split (%)
Maximum Green (s)
Yellow Time (s)
All-Red Time (s)
Lost Time Adjust (s)
Total Lost Time (s)
Lead/Lag
Lead-Lag Optimize?
Walk Time (s)
Flash Dont Walk (s)
Pedestrian Calls (]l^r)
Act Effct Green (s)
Actuated g/C Ratio
v/c Ratio

4^

22 23

No No

13 0

No No

Left Right
0

0

16

9  0

No No

25 0

No No

Left Right
0

Left Right
0

Left Right
0

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

9  15

Perm NA

85.7% 85.7%

175.5 175.5

85.7% 85.7%

175.5 175.5

Total PM 2 Queuing.syn



Queuing and Blocking Report
Baseline

Intersection: 3: Collins Ave. & 90th St.

Movemeiit

Directions Served

Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream BIkTime (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage BIk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 6: Harding Ave. & 90th St.

04/23/2018

?^NB

LT TR LT T TR

96 56 256 226 172

35 13 110 79 39

76 44 251 197 120

325 59 443 443 443

0

0

Directions Served TR

Maximum Queue (ft) 47
Average Queue (ft) 15
95th Queue (ft) 42
Link Distance (ft) 316
Upstream BIk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage BIk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 9: Harding Ave.

Movement

Directions Served

Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)

Upstream BIk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage Bik Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

EB "WB "

LTR LT LT 1 TR

53 92 230 192 150

16 20 91 53 29

44 58 240 156 96

288 180 197 197 197

2 0 0

0 0 0

C:\Work\201607 - 8995 Collins Avenue Traffic Study\201607.02 - Traffic Impact Study\Analysis\Total PM 2 Queuing.syn
SimTraffic Report

Page 1



Queuing and Blocking Report
Baseline

Intersection: 12: Project Drive & 90th St.

04/23/2018

Directions Served

Maximum Queue (ft)
Average Queue (ft)
95th Queue (ft)
Link Distance (ft)
Upstream BIk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)
Storage Bay Dist (ft)
Storage BIk Time {%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

R  LTR LTR

49 17 22

17 4 2

45 16 10

2  81

0  0

0  0

Netw/ork wide Queuing Penalty: 1

SimTrafflc Report
C:\Work\201607 - 8995 Collins Avenue Traffic Study\201607.02 - Traffic Impact Study\Analysis\Total PM 2 Queuing.syn Page 2



Lanes, Volumes, Timings
12: Project Drive & 90th St.

Control Delay
Queue Delay
Total Delay
LOS

Approach Delay
Approach LOS

Queue Length 50th (ft)
Queue Length 95th (ft)
Internal Link Dist (ft)
Turn Bay Length (ft)
Base Capacity (vph)
Starvation Cap Reductn
Spillback Cap Reductn
Storage Cap Reductn
Reduced v/c Ratio

102.0 105.1

Intersection Summary ^ . v
Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 210
Actuated Cycle Length: 210
Offset: 0 (0%), Referenced to phase 2;EBTL and 6:WBTL, Start of Green
Natural Cyde: 45
Control Type: Pretimed

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.13

Intersection Signal Delay: 62.7 Intersection LOS: E
Intersection Capacity Utilization 23.8% ICU Level of Service A
Analysis Period (min) 15

m

Splits and Phases: 12: Project Drive & 90th St.

TTT
180 s

tos
180 s



JC	  CONSULTING	  ENTERPRISES	  INC.	  
18081	  SE	  Country	  Club	  Drive,	  Unit	  313	  
Tequesta,	  Florida	  
PH:	  (954)	  815-‐4298	  
cward@jcconsultinginc.net	  

	  
EXPERT	  OPINION	  BY	  CECELIA	  WARD,	  AICP	  

PRESIDENT	  
JC	  CONSULTING	  ENTERPRISES	  INC.	  

	  
	  

DATE	  PREPARED:	  	  	   July	  5,	  2018	  	  

CASE:	  	  	  	  	   	   Town	  Permit	  No.	  	  08-‐1763.26	  
8995	  Collins	  Avenue	  	  

	   	   	   Surfside,	  FL	  	  
	  
Applicant:	   Surf	  House	  Ocean	  Views	  LLC	  
	   	   	  
Applications	  Requested:	  
	   	   Site	  Plan	  Application	   	   Proposed	  55	  unit	  Condo-‐Hotel	  
	   	   	  
	   	   Conditional	  Use	  Review	  	  	   Three-‐Tiered	  Parking	  Lift	  System	  for	  108	  spaces	  
	   	   	   	   	   	   Hotel	  Pool	  
	   	   	  
	   	   Variance	  Requests	  	  	   	   Permit	  portion	  of	  Required	  Landscape	  Buffer	  in	  	  

	   	   	   	   	   ROW	  on	  90th	  Street	  
	   	   	   	   	   	   	  
	   	   	   	   	   	   Permit	  5	  of	  the	  8	  required	  buffer	  trees	  in	  ROW	  	  

	   	   	   	   	   on	  90th	  Street	  
	   	   	   	   	   	   	  
	   	   	   	   	   	   Permit	  one	  off-‐street	  loading	  space,	  	   	  

	   	   	   	   	   approximately	  10’	  by	  30’	  in	  size	  	  
Outline	  of	  Expert	  Opinion	  Report:	  

Part	  I	  	   	   Introduction	  	  
Part	  II	   	  	   Background	  

A. Proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  Use	  	  -‐	  Land	  Use	  and	  Zoning	  
B. Architecturally	  Significant	  Designated	  Buildings	  in	  the	  H120	  Zoning	  

District	  
C. Site	  Plan	  Request	  
D. Review	  of	  Preliminary	  Site	  Plan	  with	  Town	  Staff	  



 2	  

E. Summary	   of	   Corresponding	   Conditional	   Use	   and	   Variances	  
Applications	  

	  
	   	   	   Part	  III	  	   	   Cecelia	  Ward,	  AICP	  -‐	  Expert	  Opinion	  

A. Summary	  of	  Opinions	  
B. Detail	  of	  Opinions	  	  

a. Exhibit	  1	  –	  Request	  Consistent	  with	  2006	  Charrette,	  
2008	  EAR	  and	  2010	  Adopted	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  

b. Exhibit	  2	  –	  Table	  1-‐Site	  Plan	  Data	  Sheet	  	  
c. Exhibit	  3	  -‐	  Compliance	  of	  Proposed	  Parking	  Lift	  

Requirements	  	  
d. Exhibit	  4	  –	  Compliance	  of	  Requests	  for	  Conditional	  Use	  

for	  Three-‐	  Tiered	  Parking	  Lift	  System	  and	  Hotel	  Pool	  
e. Exhibit	  5	  –	  Compliance	  of	  Variance	  Requests	  	  
f. Exhibit	  6	  -‐	  Responses	  to	  Staff	  Comments	  Regarding	  the	  

Proposed	  Variances	  
	   	  
Part	  IV	  	   	   Sources	  of	  Information	  Reviewed	  to	  Date	   	  

	   	  
	   	  



 3	  

	  
I. Introduction	  

I,	  Cecelia	  Ward,	  President	  of	  JC	  Consulting	  Enterprises	  Inc.,	  have	  been	  retained	  by	  the	  applicant	  
for	  the	  purpose	  of	  providing	  my	  expert	  planning	  opinion	  regarding	  the	  Site	  Plan	  application	  and	  
corresponding	   Conditional	   Use	   and	   Variance	   applications	   for	   the	   proposed	   Condo-‐Hotel	   use	  
known	  as	  the	  “8995	  Collins”	  project	  [“the	  project”],	  located	  at	  8995	  Collins	  Avenue	  in	  the	  Town	  
of	  Surfside,	  Florida,	  Town	  Permit	  No.	  08-‐1763.26,	  on	  property	  that	  currently	  contains	  the	  “Surf	  
House	  Condominium”	  building.	  	  

II. Background	  	  

A.	  	  Proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  Use	  	  -‐	  Land	  Use	  and	  Zoning	  

In	  2017	  the	  applicant	  submitted	  a	  Site	  Plan	  application	  to	  the	  Town	  of	  Surfside	  proposing	  to	  
make	  alterations	  and	  additions	  to	  the	  existing	  39	  unit	  condominium	  building	  to	  allow	  for	  the	  
reuse	  of	  the	  building	  as	  a	  55	  unit	  Condo-‐Hotel.	  	  

The	   subject	   property	   is	   designated	   “High	   Density	   Residential/Tourist”	   on	   the	   Town	   of	  
Surfside	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Map,	   [FLU	  Map	  No.	  7	  dated	  November	  2008].	   	  Policy	  1.1.	  of	   the	  
Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  [FLUE]	  permits	  hotel	  use	  in	  this	  Future	  Land	  Use	  category.	  	  	  

The	   subject	   property	   is	   also	   zoned	   H120,	   as	   illustrated	   on	   the	   Town	   of	   Surfside	   Official	  
Zoning	  Map,	  dated	  February	  2013.	   	  According	  to	  Section	  90-‐41	  (c	   )	  Regulated	  Uses,	  of	   the	  
Town’s	  Chapter	  90	  –	  Zoning	  Code,	  a	  hotel	  is	  a	  permitted	  use	  under	  this	  zoning	  category.	  	  	  

B.	  	  Architecturally	  Significant	  Designated	  Buildings	  in	  the	  H120	  Zoning	  District	  

In	  2016,	   the	  Town	  of	  Surfside	  adopted	  amendments	  by	  Ordinance	  No.	  16-‐1655,	  amending	  
Section	   90-‐2	   “Definitions”	   and	   90-‐33	   “Alteration	   or	   Enlargement	   of	   Nonconforming	  
Structures”,	   to	   allow	   alternatives	   for	   the	   redevelopment	   of	   Existing	   Architecturally	  
Significant	  Buildings	  located	  in	  the	  Town’s	  H120	  Zoning	  District.	  	  	  

The	   purpose	   of	   the	   amendment	   was	   to	   address	   expansions	   to	   existing	   nonconforming	  
architecturally	  significant	  structures	  so	  as	  to	  “incentivize”	  the	  preservation,	  renovation	  and	  
enhancement	   of	   architecturally	   significant	   buildings	   existing	   on	   H120	   zoned	   lots.	   	   The	  
amendment	   provided	   for	   text	   changes	   to	   the	   provisions	   that	   governed	   nonconforming	  
structures	   to	   permit	   “alternative	   development”	   options	   for	   owners	   of	   buildings	   deemed	  
architecturally	  significant.	  1	  

The	  amendments	   included	  a	  definition	  of	   “Architecturally	   Significant	  Buildings”	   in	  Sec.	  90-‐2.	  –	  
Definitions	  of	  the	  Town	  zoning	  code,	  as	  follows:	  

“Architecturally	  significant	  building.	  A	  building	  that	  was	  constructed	  prior	  to	  1970	  that	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  See	  Town	  of	  Surfside	  –	  Ordinance	  No.	  16-‐1655	  



 4	  

was	   determined	   by	   the	   Town,	   at	   the	   request	   of	   the	   property	   owner,	   to	   possess	  
characteristics	  of	  a	  specific	  architectural	  style	  and/or	  period,	  and	  its	  architectural	  design	  
integrity	  must	   not	   have	   been	  modified	   in	   a	  manner	   that	   cannot	   be	   reversed	  without	  
unreasonable	  expense.	  The	  three	  recognized	  significant	  architectural	  styles	  in	  the	  Town	  
are	  Mediterranean	  Revival,	  Streamline	  Modem,	  and	  Miami	  Modern.”	  

The	  Town	  also	  amended	  Sec.	  90-‐33.	  -‐	  Alterations	  or	  enlargement	  of	  nonconforming	  structures,	  
to	   permit	   alteration	   or	   addition	   to	   Architecturally	   Significant	   designated	   buildings	   existing	   on	  
H120	  zoned	  lots	  with	  nonconforming	  setbacks.	  	  

The	   amendment	   provided	   that	   “setbacks	   may	   follow	   existing	   building	   lines	   as	   long	   as	   the	  
alteration	  or	  addition	  maintains	   the	  architectural	   integrity	  of	   the	  existing	  building”,	  allowing	  
the	  existing	  building	  setback	  line	  to	  be	  deemed	  to	  be	  the	  required	  setback	  line	  for	  buildings	  that	  
have	  been	  designated	  as	  architecturally	  significant.2	  

Evaluation	   criteria	   was	   also	   added,	   requiring	   that	   an	   a	   building	   proposed	   to	   be	   designated	  
“architecturally	  significant”	  must	  comply	  with	  the	  following	  criteria:	  

• Must	  comply	  with	  the	  Town's	  minimum	  finished	  floor	  elevation	  requirements;	  and,	  
• Must	   be	   designed	   in	   accordance	   with	   Leadership	   in	   Energy	   &	   Environmental	   Design	  

(LEED)	   or	   Florida	   Green	   Building	   Coalition	   (FGBC)	   building	   design	   and	   construction	  
standards;	  and,	  

• Must	  be	  limited	  to	  a	  total	  height	  of	  no	  more	  than	  twice	  the	  number	  of	  existing	  floors	  in	  
a	  building,	  up	  to	  a	  maximum	  of	  120	  feet.	  

The	   amendment	   further	   provided	   a	   process	   by	   which	   a	   property	   owner	   may	   request	   a	  
designation	  of	  architectural	  significance.	  	  

In	  2017,	  the	  applicant	  requested	  and	  received	  a	  designation	  of	  architectural	  significance	  by	  the	  
Town	   for	   the	   existing	   building	   located	   at	   8995	   Collins	   Avenue,	   otherwise	   known	   as	   the	   “Surf	  
House	  Condominium”.	  	  	  

C.	  Site	  Plan	  Request	  

In	   2017,	   the	   applicant	   proceeded	   to	  design	   the	   alternations	   to	   the	  existing	   architecturally	  
significant	  designated	  building	  in	  preparation	  for	  submission	  of	  a	  Site	  Plan	  Application	  to	  the	  
Town.	   A	   site	   plan	   application	   was	   submitted	   to	   the	   Town	   to	   allow	   for	   alteration	   and	  
additions	  to	  the	  existing	  multifamily	  condominium	  use	  to	  permit	  the	  following:	  

• A	  55	  unit	  Condo-‐Hotel	  with	  a	  pool;	  
• At	  a	  maximum	  height	  of	  120	  ft.;	  	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
2	  See	  Town	  of	  Surfside	  –	  Chapter	  90	  Zoning	  –	  Sec.	  90-‐2	  and	  90-‐33	  



 5	  

• Providing	   a	   subterranean	   3-‐stacked	   parking	   lift	   system	   to	   accommodate	   up	   to	   a	  
maximum	  of	   108	   vehicles,	  where	   such	   system	  will	   be	   located	   entirely	  within	   the	  
building	  and	  will	  provide	  for	  100%	  valet	  parking;	  	  

• Access	  to	  and	  from	  the	  site	  will	  be	  provided	  via	  a	  new	  driveway	  connection	  to	  be	  
located	  on	  the	  north	  side	  of	  the	  existing	  building,	  via	  90th	  Street;	  

• New	  loading	  space	  will	  be	  provided	  on	  90th	  Street.	  
• Existing	   driveway	   access	   located	  on	  Collins	  Avenue	  will	   also	   be	  used	   as	   a	   loading	  

space;	  and,	  	  
• A	  portion	  of	   the	   required	   landscape	  buffer	   and	   trees	   are	   proposed	   to	   be	   located	  

outside	  the	  property	  line	  on	  90th	  Street,	  within	  382	  sq.	  ft.	  of	  public-‐right-‐of-‐way,	  the	  
terms	  of	  which	  are	  addressed	  in	  a	  proposed	  encroachment	  agreement.	  	  	  

The	  applicant	  has	  also	  proffered	  significant	  funds	  to	  be	  used	  for	  off-‐site	  improvements	  
on	  90th	  Street,	  between	  Harding	  and	  Collins	  Avenue.	  	  	  

	  

Such	  improvements	  will	  result	  in	  significant	  benefit	  to	  the	  community.	  	  

D.	  	  Review	  of	  Preliminary	  Site	  Plan	  with	  Town	  Staff	  

In	   2017,	   the	   applicant	   met	   with	   Town	   staff	   in	   a	   pre-‐application	   conference	   meeting	   to	  
discuss	   “alternatives”	   proposed	   for	   the	   site,	   including	   but	   not	   limited	   to	   the	   proposed	  
loading	   and	  drop	  off	   areas,	   stacking	  of	   vehicles	   in	   the	  drop	  off	   area,	   and	   the	   three-‐tiered	  
parking	  system.3	  	  	  

In	   November	   2017	   the	   Town’s	   Development	   Impact	   Committee	   (DIC)	   reviewed	   the	  
proposed	  project,	  at	  which	  time	  the	  DIC:	  	  

• Expressed	   concerns	   regarding	   the	   encroachment	   of	   the	   required	   landscape	   buffer	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
3	  See	  Staff	  Reports,	  dated	  4.11.2018	  and	  6.12.18	  



 6	  

and	  trees	  into	  the	  90th	  Street	  right	  of	  way.	  	  
	  

• Made	  a	  determination	  that	  the	  existing	  off-‐site	  parking	  lot	   located	  west	  of	  the	  site	  
and	   currently	   providing	   for	   overflow	  parking	   of	   the	   existing	   condominium	  uses,	   is	  
not	   a	   legally	   permitted	   parking	   lot,	   and	   therefore	   could	   not	   be	   used	   to	  
accommodate	   any	   portion	   of	   the	   parking	   demand	   associated	   with	   the	   proposed	  
project,	  which	  ultimately	  led	  to	  the	  proposed	  three-‐tiered	  automated	  system.	  
	  

• Expressed	  concerns	  regarding	  the	  amount	  of	  space	  for	  vehicular	  and	  valet	  stacking	  
of	  vehicles	  on	  90th	  Street,	  even	  though	  a	  Traffic	   Impact	  Analysis	  was	  prepared	  and	  
accepted	   by	   the	   Town’s	   own	   traffic	   consultant	   demonstrating	   that	   such	   stacking	  
could	  safely	  be	  accommodated	  within	  the	  proposed	  encroachment	  area.	  	  

	  
• Expressed	   concerns	   regarding	   potential	   conflict	   between	   the	   proposed	  

improvements	  to	  90th	  street	  and	  those	  improvements	  already	  proffered	  by	  the	  Surf	  
Club	  for	  90th	  Street	  east	  of	  Collins	  	  

	  
In	  response	  to	  the	  staff’s	   traffic	  related	  comments,	  the	  applicant	  had	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall,	   Inc.,	  
the	  applicant’s	  traffic	  consultant,	  prepare	  a	  traffic	  impact	  analysis	  and	  queuing	  study,	  which	  
found	  that:	  	  

• The relocation of the entrance to 90th street is necessary to improve the negative 
access conditions that currently and historically have existed on the site.  The 
relocation removes the primary access from Collins Avenue, a major trafficway, and 
more appropriately locates it on a portion of 90th Street that is anticipated to have 
very low traffic volume due to the dead end at the beach;   

• The	   encroachment	   of	   landscaping	   into	   the	   90th	   Street	   right-‐of-‐way	   would	   not	  
change	  the	  functionality	  of	  90th	  Street;	  

• The proposed three-tiered parking system will provide efficient processing times and 
queue lengths to accommodate the required parking of 108 vehicles.4	  

• During	  the	  afternoon	  peak	  hour,	  which	  is	  the	  highest	  volume	  hour	  of	  the	  day,	  only	  
12	  vehicles	  are	  expected	   to	  arrive	  and	  8	  vehicles	  are	  expected	   to	  depart	   from	  the	  
90th	  Street	  drop	  off	  /	  pick-‐up	  lane;	  and,	  	  

• Vehicles	  accessing	  the	  8995	  Collins	  Avenue	  development	  will	  have	  excellent	   traffic	  
access	  from	  90th	  Street;	  and,	  

• There	  are	  no	  conflicts	  resulting	  from	  the	  proposed	  right-‐of-‐way	  improvements	  with	  
the	  access	  for	  Surf	  Club,	  located	  to	  the	  north.	  5	  	  

	  
The	  Mr.	  Hall’s	  traffic	  studies	  were	  reviewed	  and	  accepted	  by	  the	  Mr.	  Eric	  Czerniejewski,	  P.E.	  the	  
Town’s	  traffic	  consultant.	  	  	  

Additionally,	  the	  applicant	  agreed	  to	  no	  longer	  consider	  use	  of	  the	  west	  lot	  for	  parking	  purposes.	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
4	  See	  Traffic	  Queuing	  Analysis	  Prepared	  by	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall,	  P.E.	  
5	  See	  Traffic	  Impact	  Analysis	  –	  Prepared	  by	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall	  Inc.	  dated	  March	  2018	  



 7	  

	  
In	   April	   2018,	   the	   proposed	   site	   plan	   was	   reviewed	   by	   the	   Town	   in	   accordance	   with	   the	  
provisions	  of	  Sec.	  90-‐33	  (3)(b)	  Alterations	  to	  Architecturally	  Significant	  Buildings.	   	  The	  site	  plan	  
was	  revised	  to	  address	  the	  following	  staff	  comments:	  

• Ensure	  that	  balconies	  are	  compatible	  with	  the	  existing	  MiMo	  design	  of	  the	  building;	  
and,	  	  

• Provide	   for	   the	   continuance	   of	   the	   vertical	   voids	   between	   the	   balconies	   at	   the	  
uppermost	   level	   on	   the	   North	   and	   West	   elevations	   in	   order	   to	   emphasize	   the	  
buildings	  verticality;	  and,	  	  

• Revise	  the	  South	  elevation	  to	  include	  the	  doors	  as	  shown	  on	  the	  plan;	  and,	  	  
• To	  add	  an	  additional	  car	  elevator	  (so	  as	  to	  provide	  one	  on	  the	  north	  side	  and	  one	  on	  

the	   south	   side	  of	   the	  building)	   to	   improve	   the	   access	   to	   and	   from	   the	   automated	  
parking	  lift	  system.	  

	  
With	   these	   modifications,	   the	   project	   was	   determined	   to	   be	   in	   compliance	   with	   the	   Town’s	  
design	  standards.	  
	  
E.	  	  Summary	  of	  Corresponding	  Conditional	  Use	  and	  Variances	  Applications	  

	  
Three	  variances	  and	  two	  conditional	  use	  requests	  have	  been	  requested	  as	  follows:	  	  

Variance	  No.	  1:	  Two	  12’	  by	  30’	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces	  are	  required	  for	  a	  hotel	  use	  that	  
is	  greater	  than	  100,000	  sq.	  ft.	  in	  size.	  	  While	  two	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces	  are	  proposed	  
to	   be	   provided,	   the	   second	   off-‐street	   loading	   space	   to	   be	   located	   on	   90th	   Street	   is	  
approximately	  10’	  X	  30’	  in	  size.	  	  As	  such	  a	  Variance	  is	  required.	  

Variance	  No.	  2:	  There	  is	  insufficient	  land	  area	  to	  install	  the	  required	  10	  foot	  landscape	  
buffer	   and	   3	   trees	   per	   50	   lineal	   feet	   of	   building	   frontage	   on	   the	   north	   side	   of	   the	  
property,	  adjacent	  to	  90th	  Street:	  	  The	  Variance	  request	  proposed	  to	  include	  some	  of	  the	  
landscape	   buffer	   area	   and	   required	   trees	   within	   the	   proposed	   encroachment	   area,	  
within	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way;	  

Variance	  No.	  3:	  One	  35-‐foot	  tree	  is	  required	  for	  every	  25	  lineal	  ft.	  of	  building	  frontage,	  
which	   results	   in	   a	   requirement	   of	   8	   large	   trees	   between	   the	   property	   line	   and	   the	  
existing	  building	  setbacks.	  The	  request	  is	  to	  permit	  5	  of	  the	  required	  trees	  to	  be	  located	  
outside	  the	  property	  line,	  within	  the	  proposed	  encroachment	  area.	  	  

Conditional	  Use	  Request	  No.	  1:	   	  The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  incudes	  the	  provision	  of	  a	  
hotel	  pool	  to	  serve	  its	  guests.	  	  Per	  section	  90-‐41	  (c	  ),	  a	  hotel	  pool	  is	  required	  to	  receive	  
Conditional	  Use	  review	  and	  approval	  to	  ensure	  compatibility	  with	  adjacent	  uses.	  	  

Conditional	  Use	  Request	  No.	  2:	  The	  off-‐site	  parking	  provisions	  of	  the	  Town	  code	  permit	  
a	   parking	   lift	   system	   utilizing	   tandem	   parking.	   	   The	   Town,	   subject	   to	   Conditional	   Use	  
review	  and	  approval,	  may	  approve	  an	  alternative	  parking	  lift	  system.	  

III.	  	   Cecelia	  Ward,	  AICP	  –	  Summary	  of	  Findings	  and	  Expert	  Opinions	  



 8	  

Based	   on	   my	   review	   of	   all	   relevant	   materials,	   research,	   and	   my	   planning	   and	   zoning	  
experience,	   it	   is	  my	  professional	  opinion	  that	   the	  Site	  Plan	  Application	  and	  corresponding	  
Conditional	  Use	  and	  Variance	  requests	  are:	  	  

1. Consistent	   and	   in	   furtherance	   of	   the	   recommendations	   of	   the	   Town’s	   2006	  

Charrette.	  

2. Consistent	  and	  in	  furtherance	  of	  the	  Town’s	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan;	  	  

3. In	  Compliance	  with	  provisions	  of	  Chapter	  90	  -‐	  Town’s	  Zoning	  code;	  

a. Complies	  with	  the	  Town’s	  standards	  for	  Site	  Plan	  approval	  to	  permit	  the	  

proposed	   Condo-‐Hotel	   use,	   subject	   to	   approval	   of	   the	   requested	  

Conditional	  Use	  and	  Variances	  as	  requested;	  	  

i. Complies	   with	   the	   Town’s	   standards	   for	   the	   granting	   of	  

Conditional	  use	  approval	  for	  the	  three	  tiered	  parking	  lift	  system;	  	  

ii. Complies	   with	   the	   Town’s	   standards	   for	   the	   granting	   of	  

Conditional	  use	  approval	  to	  permit	  the	  hotel	  pool	  use;	  and,	  

iii. Complies	   with	   the	   standards	   for	   the	   granting	   of	   the	   three	  

requested	  variances.	  

4. In	  Compliance	  with	  Chapter	  163,	  Florida	  Statutes.	  

	  

The	   existing	   building	   has	   been	  designated	   as	   an	  Architecturally	   Significant	   Building,	   in	  
furtherance	  of	  the	  Town’s	  2006	  Charrette	  and	  the	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  goals,	  objectives	  
and	   policies	   (GOPs)	   that	   support	   preservation	   of	   existing	   architecturally	   significant	  
buildings	   and	   redevelopment	   east	   of	   Collins	   Avenue	   that	   provides	   for	   tourist	  
accommodations.	  	  	  
	  
The	  proposed	  alterations	  and	  additions	  to	  the	  existing	  building	  are	  enhancements	  that	  
are	   consistent	   with	   the	   provisions	   of	   the	   Town’s	   architecturally	   significant	   building	  
regulations	  (Sec.	  90-‐33).	  
	  
The	   improvements	   proposed	   for	   90th	   Street	   are	   appropriate	   and	   the	   minimum	  
necessary,	   without	   which	   the	   conversion	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   from	   a	   39	   unit	  
multifamily	  residential	  use	  to	  the	  proposed	  55	  unit	  Condo-‐Hotel	  could	  not	  otherwise	  be	  
achieved.	  	  	  
The	   applicant’s	   request	   does	   not	   materially	   alter	   the	   use,	   density	   or	   intensity	   of	   the	  
subject	   property	   in	   any	   manner	   that	   is	   inconsistent	   with	   the	   Town’s	   adopted	  
Comprehensive	  Plan.	  	  
	  



 9	  

Additionally,	  the	  information	  provided	  herein	  will	  demonstrate	  that	  the	  request	  for	  the	  
Condo-‐Hotel	   Site	   Plan	   and	   corresponding	   Conditional	   Use	   and	   Variance	   requests	   are	  
consistent	   with	   the	   Town’s	   2010	   Comprehensive	   Plan	   (“the	   Plan”)	   and	   in	   compliance	  
with	  Chapter	  90	  –	  the	  Town’s	  Zoning	  Code,	  and	  thus	  should	  be	  approved	  by	  the	  Town.	  

	   	  



 10	  

IV.	  Sources	  of	  Information	  Reviewed	  to	  Date	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  Documents	  
o 2006	  Charrette	  	  
o 2008	  Evaluation	  and	  Appraisal	  Report	  
o 2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  
o Chapter	  90	  –	  Zoning	  Code	  
o Future	  Land	  Use	  Map	  –	  No	  7	  
o Official	  Zoning	  Map	  
o Ordinance	  16-‐1655	  
o Planning	  and	  Zoning	  Communication	  4.28.2016,	  5.31.2018	  
o Staff	  Reports	  4.11.18	  and	  6.12.18	  
o Town	  Traffic	  Consultant	  Comments	  

	  
Applicant	  Documents	  

Applicant	  Letter	  of	  Intent	  May	  8,	  2018	  and	  attachments	  thereto	  
o Valet	  Operational	  Plan	  
o Encroachment	  Area	  Graphics	  and	  Proposed	  Agreement	  
o Proposed	  ROW	  Improvements	  	  
o Street-‐Ends	  Study	  
o Conflicts	  Diagrams	  
o Site	  Plan	  –	  Complete	  Set	  3.29.2018	  

	  
Thomas	  A.	  Hall	  Inc.	  	  

o Traffic	  Impact	  Analysis	  –	  March	  2018	  
o Parking	  Lift	  Queuing	  Study	  
o Traffic	  Appendix	  Letter	  	  
o Thomas	  A.	  Hall	  Inc.	  –	  review	  of	  comments	  Walter	  Lugo	  Ocean	  Engineering	  Inc.	  

4.23.2018	  
o Synacovski	  Romanik	  Saye	  –	  Compliance	  Review	  with	  Sec.	  90-‐33	  by	  	  

	  
Research	  

o 22	  Benefits	  of	  Urban	  Street	  Trees	  by	  Dan	  Burden	  
http://www.walkable.org/download/22_benefits.pdf	  

o Coral	  Gables	  –	  Encroachment	  Agreement	  
o City	  of	  Surfside	  Loading	  Space	  Regulations	  
o City	  of	  Aventura	  Loading	  Space	  Regulations	  
o Town	  of	  Lauderdale-‐By-‐The	  Sea	  Loading	  Space	  Regulations	  
o Benefits	   of	   Parking	   Lift	   Systems	   http://parkplusinc.com/news/10-‐social-‐benefits-‐sustainable-‐

parking/	  
	  

Site	  Visit	  	  	   6.19.18	  and	  research	  on	  Google	  Maps	  



 11	  

Exhibit	  1	  
	  

Consistent	  with	  2006	  Charrette,	  2008	  EAR	  and	  2010	  Adopted	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  
	  

The	  Variance	  and	  Conditional	  use	  requests	  that	  accompany	  the	  Site	  Plan	  application	  are	  
consistent	   with	   the	   Town’s	   2010	   Adopted	   Comprehensive	   Plan,	   as	   further	   discussed	  
below.	  

Description	  of	  Application	  for	  Variances	  and	  Conditional	  Use:	  

Variance	  No.	  1:	  Two	  12’	  by	  30’	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces	  are	  required	  for	  a	  hotel	  
use	   that	   is	   greater	   than	   100,000	   sq.	   ft.	   in	   size.	   	   The	   second	   off-‐street	   loading	  
space	  will	  be	  provided	  on	  90th	  Street	  at	  approximately	  10’	  X	  30’	  in	  size.	  	  As	  such	  a	  
Variance	  is	  required.	  

Variance	   No.	   2:	   There	   is	   insufficient	   land	   area	   to	   install	   the	   required	   10	   foot	  
landscape	  buffer	  and	  3	  trees	  per	  50	  lineal	  feet	  of	  building	  frontage	  on	  the	  north	  
side	  of	  the	  property,	  adjacent	  to	  90th	  Street:	  	  The	  Variance	  request	  proposed	  to	  
include	   some	   of	   the	   landscape	   buffer	   area	   and	   required	   trees	   within	   the	  
proposed	  encroachment	  area,	  within	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way;	  

Variance	   No.	   3:	  One	  35-‐foot	   tree	   is	   required	   for	   every	   25	   lineal	   ft.	   of	   building	  
frontage,	  which	  results	   in	  a	  requirement	  of	  8	   large	  trees	  between	  the	  property	  
line	  and	  the	  existing	  building	  setbacks.	  The	  request	  is	  to	  permit	  5	  of	  the	  required	  
trees	  to	  be	  located	  outside	  the	  property	  line,	  within	  the	  proposed	  encroachment	  
area.	  	  

Conditional	   Use	   Request	   No.	   1:	   	   The	   proposed	   Condo-‐Hotel	   incudes	   the	  
provision	  of	  a	  hotel	  pool	  to	  serve	  its	  guests.	  	  Per	  section	  90-‐41	  (c	  )	  of	  the	  Town	  
Zoning	   Code,	   a	   hotel	   pool	   is	   required	   to	   receive	   Conditional	   Use	   review	   and	  
approval	  to	  ensure	  compatibility	  with	  adjacent	  uses.	  	  

Conditional	  Use	  Request	  No.	  2:	  The	  off-‐site	  parking	  provisions	  of	  the	  Town	  code	  
permit	  a	  parking	  lift	  system	  utilizing	  tandem	  parking.	  	  The	  proposed	  three-‐tiered	  
parking	  system	  may	  be	  approved	  by	  the	  Town,	  subject	  to	  Conditional	  Use	  review	  
and	  approval.	  

	  

	  



 12	  

	  

	  

Findings:	  

The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  development	  is:	  

1. Consistent	   with	   the	   Town’s	   vision	   for	   redevelopment,	   which	   supports	   the	  
location	  of	  tourist	  facilities	  east	  of	  Collins	  Avenue;	  

2. Proposes	  innovative	  land	  development	  standards	  that	  are	  based	  on	  sound	  planning	  and	  
transportation	   principals,	  with	   the	  minimum	  amount	   of	   flexibility	   necessary	   to	   permit	  
the	   redevelopment	   of	   the	   existing	   multifamily	   condominium	   without	   impacting	   the	  
surrounding	  area	  and	  while	  simultaneously	  preserving	  the	  integrity	  of	  the	  architecturally	  
significant	  designation	  of	  the	  buildings;	  

3. Proposes	   the	   location	  of	   landscape	  buffers	  and	   trees	   in	   the	  public	   right	  of	  way,	  which	  
results	   in	   open	   space	   improvements	   to	   the	   benefit	   of	   the	   general	   public,	   which	   is	  
consistent	  with	   the	  Town’s	  standards	   that	  encourage	  the	   installation	  of	  street	   trees	   in	  
the	   public	   right-‐of	   way	   as	   a	   means	   to	   provide	   shade	   trees	   and	   improve	   pedestrian	  
walkability;	  	  

4. Provides	   additional	   public	   open	   space	  on	   90th	   Street,	  which	   dead	   ends	   at	   the	  Atlantic	  
Beach,	   consistent	  with	   the	  Town’s	  practice	  and	  desire	   to	   create	   such	  pockets	  of	  open	  
space,	  as	  further	  reflected	  in	  the	  Street	  End	  Analysis	  provided	  by	  applicant.	  	  	  

5. Complies	   with	   the	   Town’s	   Parking	   standards	   by	   providing	   108	   parking	   spaces	   in	   a	  
parking	   lift	   system	   that	   will	   be	   contained	   completely	   within	   the	   building,	   avoiding	  
potential	  impacts	  of	  noise,	  glare	  and	  the	  like	  on	  adjacent	  properties;	  

6. Meets	  the	  Town’s	  requirement	  for	  the	  provision	  of	  2	  off	  –street	  loading	  spaces;	  one	  to	  
be	  approximately	  10’	  by	  30’	   in	  size,	  which	  is	  only	  a	  “de	  minimis”	  amount	  less	  than	  the	  
required	  12’	  by	  30’	  space,	  and	  which	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  loading	  space	  standard	  size	  
of	  other	  local	  municipalities.	  	  

7. Does	  not	  result	  in	  any	  public	  safety	  issues	  and	  does	  not	  result	  in	  an	  increase	  the	  level	  of	  
service	   standards	   of	   adjacent	   roadways,	   as	   evidenced	   in	   the	   Traffic	   Impact	   Analysis,	  
prepared	  for	  the	  site.	  6	  

	  

Conclusions:	  
	  
Each	  application	   is	   consistent	  with	  and	   in	   furtherance	  of	   the	   recommendations	  of	   the	  
2006	   Charrette,	   the	   2008	   Evaluation	   and	   Appraisal	   Report,	   the	   Town’s	   2010	   adopted	  
Comprehensive	  Plan,	  and	  the	  criteria	  and	  standards	  of	  Chapter	  90-‐	  Zoning	  Code.	  
	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
6	  See	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall	  Inc.	  Traffic	  Impact	  Analysis,	  including	  update	  to	  the	  analysis	  provided	  in	  March	  
2018	  



 13	  

	  

Supporting	  Documentation	  

Consistent	  with	  2006	  Charrette	  

The	  Town	  held	  a	  Charette	  in	  2006	  to	  gain	  community	  input	  regarding	  the	  future	  vision	  
of	  the	  community	  and	  to	  identify	  action	  steps	  to	  achieve	  that	  vision.	  	  	  

The	   requested	   variance	   supports	   several	   of	   the	   specific	   recommendations	   that	   were	  
derived	  from	  the	  2006	  Charrette,	  as	  reflected	  in	  the	  Town’s	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  as	  
follows:	  	  

• Implement	  a	  comprehensive	  community-‐wide	  streetscape	  improvement	  program	  
to	   create	   safer,	  more	  attractive	   streets	   that	  promote	  walking	  and	  enhance	   the	  
value	  and	  livability	  of	  Surfside.	  	  

• The	   installation	   of	   landscaping	   and	   street	   trees	   on	   90th	   Street	   enhance	  
the	  streetscape	  in	  a	  manner	  that	  promotes	  walking	  to	  the	  Surfside	  beach,	  
which	   enhances	   the	   value	   and	   livability	   of	   Surfside.	   	   Without	   the	  
variance,	   such	   landscaping	   could	  not	  be	  added	   to	   the	  north	   side	  of	   the	  
subject	   property	   and	   thus	   the	   present	   large	   expanse	   of	   unattractive	  
pavement	  would	  remain.	  	  

• Identify	  architectural	  styles	  that	  are	  appropriate	  to	  Surfside	  and	  which	  reflect	  the	  
traditions	  of	  the	  community.	  	  

• Through	  the	  adoption	  of	  the	  Architectural	  Significant	  Building	  provisions,	  
the	   Town	   has	   identified	   architectural	   styles	   that	   are	   appropriate	   to	  
Surfside.	   	   The	   designation	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   as	   an	   Architecturally	  
Significant	  Building	  reflects	  the	  traditions	  of	  the	  community	  through	  the	  
preservation	   of	   the	   MiMo	   style	   of	   architecture,	   which	   encourages	   the	  
preservation	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   setbacks,	   where	   appropriate,	   to	  
maintain	  the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  building.	  

• Plant	  shade	  trees	  along	  all	  thoroughfares	  to	  improve	  the	  pedestrian	  environment	  
and	  to	  promote	  walkability.	  	  

• There	  is	  insufficient	  land	  area	  between	  the	  existing	  building	  setback	  and	  
the	  property	   line	  on	   the	  north	  side	   to	  accommodate	  all	  of	   the	   required	  
street	  trees	  entirely	  within	  the	  private	  property.	  The	  installation	  of	  some	  
of	   the	   trees	  within	   the	  90th	  Street	   right-‐of-‐way	   improves	   the	  pedestrian	  
environment	   and	   promotes	   walkability	   to	   and	   from	   the	   beach	   via	   90th	  
Street	  as	  recommended.	  	  

Town	   of	   Surfside	   January	   2010	   Comprehensive	   Plan	   1-‐4	   and	   1-‐5	   Future	   Land	   Use	  
Element	  	  

	  



 14	  

	  

	  

	  

Consistent	  with	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  Goals,	  Objectives	  and	  Policies	  	  

The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  use	  is	  consistent	  with	  Goal	  1,	  Objective	  1	  and	  Policy	  1.1	  
of	  the	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  [FLUE].	  

• The	   proposed	   Condo-‐Hotel	   is	   located	   on	   property	   that	   contains	   a	   High	   Density	  
Residential/Tourist	  Future	  Land	  Use	  designation,	  which	  permits	  a	  hotel	  use	  up	  to	  a	  
maximum	  density	  of	   109	  dwelling	  units	   per	   acre	   (du/ac),	   at	   a	  maximum	  height	  of	  
120	  feet.	  

• The	   proposed	   Condo-‐Hotel	   has	   a	   maximum	   density	   of	   66	   du/ac,	   which	   is	  
approximately	   27%	   less	   than	   maximum	   density	   otherwise	   permitted	   by	   the	   High	  
Density	   Residential/Tourist	   Future	   Land	   Use	   category.	   	   The	   proposed	   maximum	  
height	   of	   the	   building	   is	   120	   ft.,	   which	   is	   consistent	   and	   in	   compliance	   with	   the	  
permitted	  maximum	  height.	  

Goal	   1:	   Ensure	   that	   the	   character	   and	   location	   of	   future	   land	   uses	  
provides	  high	  economic	  and	  quality	  of	  life	  benefits	  to	  the	  Town's	  residents	  
and	   business	   people	   while	   preserving	   the	   Town's	   natural	   resources,	  
residential	  character	  and	  appropriate	  levels	  of	  public	  services.	  	  

Objective	   1	   –	   Coordination	   of	   land	   uses	   with	   topography	   and	   soils:	  
Maintain	   existing	   development	   and	   achieve	   new	   development	   and	  
redevelopment	   which	   is	   consistent	   with	   the	   goal	   above	   and	   which	  
otherwise	  coordinates	  future	  land	  uses	  with	  the	  appropriate	  topography	  
and	   soil	   conditions	   and	   the	   availability	   of	   facilities	   and	   services.	   This	  
objective	  shall	  be	  measured	  by	  implementation	  of	  its	  supporting	  policies.	  
[9J5.006	  (3)	  (b)	  1]	  	  

Policy	   1.1	   –	   The	   Town	   shall	   maintain,	   improve	   and	   strictly	   enforce	  
provisions,	  which	  are	  consistent	  with	  the	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Map,	  including	  
the	   land	   uses	   and	   densities	   and	   intensities	   specified	   thereon	   and	  
including	  the	  following:	  	  

High	  Density	  Residential/Tourist:	  up	  to	  109	  dwelling	  or	  hotel	  units	  
per	  acre	  and	  not	  more	  than	  120	  feet	  in	  height.	  The	  permitted	  uses	  



 15	  

are	  single	  family,	  duplex,	  and	  multi-‐family	  residential	  uses,	  hotels,	  
public	   schools,	   places	   of	   public	   assembly,	   and	   parks	   and	   open	  
spaces.	  	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  1-‐10	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  	  

The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  is	  consistent	  with	  Objective	  3	  and	  Policy	  3.1	  FLUE	  in	  that	  the	  
proposed	   use	   provides	   for	   the	   renewal	   of	   an	   Architecturally	   Significant	   designated	  
building	  that	  is	  currently	  used	  for	  multifamily	  residential	  use,	  to	  accommodate	  a	  tourist	  
facility	   on	   property	   located	   in	   the	   High	   Density	   Residential/Tourist	   Future	   Land	   Use	  
category.	  

Objective	   3	   –	   Redevelopment	   and	   renewal:	   Encourage	   the	  
redevelopment	  and	  renewal	  of	  blighted	  areas.	  The	  Town	  shall	  coordinate	  
public	  and	  private	  resources	  necessary	  to	  initiate	  needed	  improvements	  
to	   prevent	   decline	   and/or	   redevelopment	   within	   currently	   defined	  
redevelopment	   areas	   as	   well	   as	   areas	   that	   may	   in	   the	   future	   exhibit	  
indications	  of	  blight	  or	  decline.	  	  

Policy	  3.6	  –	  The	  Town	  shall	  maintain	  a	  future	   land	  use	  map	  pattern	  and	  
other	   development	   regulations	   which	   limit	   new	   tourist	   facilities	   to	  
properties	   in	   the	  Moderate	   Density	   Residential/Tourist,	   Moderate-‐High	  
Residential,	  and	  High	  Density	  Residential/Tourist	  land	  use	  categories.	  	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  1-‐12	  and	  1-‐13	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  	  

The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  use	   is	   consistent	  with	  Policy	  3.7	  FLUE	  by	  providing	   for	   the	  
alteration	  and	  addition	  to	  an	  existing	  Architecturally	  Significant	  designated	  building,	   in	  
compliance	   with	   the	   Town’s	   adopted	  Multifamily	   Residential	   and	   Commercial	   Design	  
Guidelines.	  

These	  design	  guidelines	  encourage	   the	  architecturally	  authentic	   restoration	  of	  existing	  
structures	   and	  preservation	  of	   the	  existing	   structure,	   as	   proposed	   in	   the	   alteration	   to	  
the	  existing	  Architecturally	  Significant	  designated	  building.	  	  

Policy	   3.7	   –	   The	   Town	   shall	   adopt,	   maintain,	   and	   improve	   where	  
appropriate,	  zoning	  code	  regulations	  which	  help	  secure	  a	  high	  quality	  of	  
environment,	   regarding	   livability,	   visual	   interest,	   identity	   and	   sense	   of	  
place	  by	  implementing	  the	  recommendations	  as	  presented	  in	  the	  Town’s	  
adopted	  Design	  Guidelines.	  	  



 16	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  1-‐13	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  

	  
	  

Objective	   4	   –	   Elimination	   or	   reduction	   of	   uses	   which	   are	   inconsistent	   with	  
community	  character:	  In	  general,	  encourage	  the	  elimination	  or	  reduction	  of	  uses	  
which	  are	  inconsistent	  with	  the	  community's	  character	  and	  future	  land	  uses.	   In	  
particular,	   achieve	   the	   elimination	   of	   all	   inconsistent	   land	   uses.	   This	   objective	  
shall	  be	  measured	  by	  implementation	  of	  its	  supporting	  policies.	  [9J-‐5.006	  (3)	  (b)	  
3]	  	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  1-‐13	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  	  

The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	   is	  consistent	  with	  Objective	  10,	  Policy	  10.1	  and	  Policy	  10.3	  
by	  using	   innovative	   land	  development	   standards	   that	   apply	  best	  planning	  practices	   to	  
preserve	  the	  Architecturally	  Significant	  designated	  building	  and	  alteration	  and	  additions	  
to	   that	  building	   in	  a	  manner	   that	  meets	   the	   intent	  and	  purpose	  of	   the	  Town’s	   zoning	  
code,	  with	  the	  minimum	  amount	  of	  variance	  necessary.	  	  

Objective	  10	  –	   Innovative	  development	  regulations:	  Encourage	  the	  use	  
of	   innovative	   land	   development	   regulations.	   This	   objective	   shall	   be	  
measured	  by	  implementation	  of	  its	  supporting	  policy.	  [9J-‐5.006	  (3)	  (b)	  10]	  	  

Policy	   10.1	   –	   Through	   its	   building	   permit	   and	   development	   review	  
process,	  the	  Town	  shall	  encourage	  residents	  and	  developers	  to	  adhere	  to	  
the	  design	   recommendations	  as	   set	   forth	   in	   the	  Town’s	  adopted	  design	  
guidelines	  and	  the	  November	  2006	  Charrette.	  	  

Policy	   10.3	   –	   The	   Town	   shall	   utilize	   Best	   Practices	   planning	   research	   to	  
review	  and	  modify	  zoning	  code	  regulations.	  	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  1-‐17	  Future	  Land	  Use	  Element	  	  

	  
	  

Consistency	  with	  Surfside	  Multifamily	  Residential	  and	  Commercial	  Design	  Guidelines	  
	  
The	   proposed	   Condo-‐Hotel	   has	   been	   designed	   to	   preserve	   the	   Mid-‐Century	  
architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building,	  as	  expressed	  in	  the	  Town’s	  design	  
guidelines:	  
	  



 17	  

“Introduction	  
	  
These	   guidelines	   are	   intended	   to	   help	   secure	   a	   high	   quality	   of	  
environment,	   regarding	   livability,	   visual	   interest,	   identity	   and	   sense	   of	  
place,	   in	   Surfside’s	   commercial	   and	   multifamily	   districts	   by	   providing	  
guidance	  for	  the	  design	  of	  new	  buildings	  within	  the	  existing	  area.	  These	  
guidelines	   are	   intended	   to	   focus	   on	   the	   characteristics	   of	   architectural	  
compatibility	   and	   to	   leave	   individual	   property-‐owners	   the	   maximum	  
flexibility	  to	  build	  to	  meet	  their	  own	  needs	  and	  objectives.	  
…	  
Lastly,	  in	  order	  to	  establish	  a	  sense	  of	  historical	  significance,	  the	  Town	  of	  
Surfside	  encourages	   the	   architecturally	   authentic	   restoration	  of	   existing	  
structures.	  Where	  restoration	  can	  become	  a	  minimum,	   these	  guidelines	  
further	  encourage	  the	  preservation	  of	  the	  existing	  structure.	  
…	  

	  
A.	  STYLE	  AND	  BUILDING	  FORM	  
	  
New	   construction	   should	   recognize	   the	   historic	   context	   and	  
should	   be	   compatible	   in	   massing,	   scale,	   proportion	   and	  
articulation	  with	   the	  context.	  The	  predominant	  characteristics	  of	  
these	  architectural	  articulations	  include:	  
…	  
Mid-‐Century	   Modern:	   horizontal	   emphasis,	   flat	   roofs	   with	  
extended	  overhangs,	  asymmetrical,	  emphasized	  material	  changes,	  
minimal	  to	  non-‐existent	  ornamentation.”	  

	  
Town	  of	  Surfside	  Design	  Guidelines	  	  

Consistent	  with	  Transportation	  Elements	  Goals	  Objectives	  and	  Policies	  

The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  is	  consistent	  with	  Policy	  1.2	  of	  the	  Transportation	  Element.	  	  
The	   proposed	   alteration	   and	   additions	   to	   the	   existing	   development	   will	   not	   cause	  
roadway	   levels	   of	   service	   to	   fall	   below	   the	   standards	   contained	   within	   the	  
Transportation	  Element	  and	  will	  not	  cause	  further	  degradation	  of	  service	  as	  evidenced	  
by	  the	  Traffic	  Analysis	  prepared	  by	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall	  Inc.	  	  

Policy	  1.2	  –	  The	  Town	  shall	  review	  all	  proposed	  developments	  and	  issue	  
development	  orders	  only	  when	  it	  finds	  that	  a	  proposed	  development	  will	  
not	  cause	  roadway	  levels	  of	  service	  to	  fall	  below	  the	  above	  standards	  or	  
cause	   further	   degradation	   of	   service	   if	   conditions	   at	   the	   time	   of	   the	  
review	  indicate	  that	  standards	  are	  already	  below	  the	  above	  standards.	  	  



 18	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  2-‐9	  Transportation	  Element	  	  

There	   is	   no	   building	   encroachment	   into	   the	   right-‐of-‐way	   proposed.	   Encroachment	   is	  
only	  for	  the	  purpose	  of	  providing	  landscaping	  and	  trees.	  	  

As	   such	   the	   proposed	   use	   and	   corresponding	   variance	   requests	   are	   consistent	   with	  
Objective	  5	  and	  Policy	  5.1.	  	  

Objective	  5	  –	  Right-‐of-‐way	  protection:	   In	  general,	  protect	  existing	  rights-‐of-‐way	  
and	  future	  rights-‐of-‐	  way	  from	  building	  encroachment	  including	  rights-‐of-‐way	  for	  
mass	   transit.	   In	   particular,	   achieve	   zero	   net	   loss	   of	   right-‐of-‐way	   from	   building	  
encroachment	   throughout	   the	   period	   during	   which	   this	   plan	   is	   in	   effect.	   [9J-‐
5.007	  (4)	  (b)	  5]	  	  

Policy	  5.1	  –	  The	  Town	  shall	  use	  the	  land	  development	  code	  as	  enacted,	  the	  land	  
development	  code	  enforcement	  procedures	  and	  the	  building	  code	  enforcement	  
procedures	   to	   protect	   existing	   rights-‐of-‐way	   through	   setback	   requirements	  
which	  prohibit	  right-‐of-‐way	  encroachments	  of	  any	  kind.	  [9J-‐5.007	  (4)	  (c)	  4]	  	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  2-‐12	  Transportation	  Element	  	  

	  

Consistent	  with	  the	  Recreation	  and	  Open	  Space	  Element	  Goals,	  Objectives	  and	  Policies	  	  

The	   proposed	   Condo-‐Hotel	   use	   proposes	   to	   install	   landscaping	   and	   trees	   within	   a	  
portion	   of	   the	   90th	   Street	   right-‐of-‐way,	   which	   currently	   contains	   a	   wide	   expanse	   of	  
paved	  area.	  	  

These	   improvements	   are	   consistent	   with	   street	   end	   improvements	   permitted	   by	   the	  
Town	  where	   such	   streets	   also	   dead-‐end	   at	   the	  beach,	   as	   illustrated	   in	   the	   applicant’s	  
street-‐end	  study.	  	  	  

The	   proposed	   right-‐of-‐way	   improvements	   will	   enhances	   the	   pedestrian	   access	   and	  
provide	  open	  space	  where	  none	  currently	  exists,	   in	  accordance	  with	  Goal	  1	  and	  Policy	  
1.2	  of	  the	  Recreation	  and	  Open	  Space	  Element.	  

Goal	  1:	  Provide	  adequate	  recreation	  and	  open	  space	  facilities	  to	  serve	  the	  
Town's	  residents.	  	  



 19	  

Policy	   1.2	   –	   All	   beach	   access	   facilities	   shall	   be	   accessible	   from	   public	  
roads.	   The	   Town	   shall	  map	   all	   road	   rights-‐of-‐way	   that	   dead-‐end	   at	   the	  
Atlantic	   beach	   and	   shall	   provide	   benches,	   picnic	   tables	   or	   other	  
improvements	  at	  these	  sites	  to	  create	  “pocket	  parks.”	  	  	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  January	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  7-‐4	  Recreation	  and	  Open	  Space	  Element	  	  

Supports	  the	  Town’s	  Incentives	  for	  Economic	  Development	  and	  Redevelopment	  

The	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  use	  supports	  the	  Town’s	  desire	  to	  encourage	  redevelopment	  
and	  reinvestment	  in	  the	  tourist	  area	  along	  the	  east	  side	  of	  Collins	  Avenue,	  as	  reflected	  
in	  the	  Town’s	  2008	  Evaluation	  and	  Appraisal	  Report.	  	  

“CHAPTER	   TWO	   —	   LOCAL	   ISSUES	   IDENTIFIED	   Local	   Issue	   #	   1-‐-‐	   Economic	  
Development	  and	  Redevelopment	  	  

There	   have	   been	   a	   number	   of	   market	   conditions	   that	   have	   affected	  
economic	   development	   and	   redevelopment	   in	   Surfside.	   Many	   of	   the	  
hotels	  on	  Collins	  Avenue	  have	  been	  converted	   to	  condominiums,	  which	  
has	   now	   generated	   the	   need	   for	   new	   or	   redeveloped	   hotels.	   Tourists	  
produce	   tourist	   tax	   revenue	   and	   bring	   revenue	   to	   the	   shops	   and	  
restaurants	   in	   the	   business	   district.	   A	   vital	   component	   of	   economic	  
development	   in	   Surfside	   is	   attracting	   new	   hotels	   to	   replace	   the	   recent	  
loss	   of	   tourist	   facilities	   on	  Collins	  Avenue.	   The	  Town	   should	   amend	   the	  
Comprehensive	  Plan	   to	  add	  policies	   that	  encourage	   redevelopment	  and	  
reinvestment	   in	   the	   tourist	   area	   along	   the	   east	   side	   of	   Collins	   Avenue.	  
Such	  policies	  should	  include	  a	  marking	  initiative.	  The	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  
should	   also	   be	   amended	   to	   include	   a	   study	   of	   zoning	   incentives	   for	  
redevelopment,	  since	  the	  Town	  has	  expressed	  much	  interest	  in	  providing	  
incentives	   to	   developers	   to	   encourage	   reinvestment	   in	   the	   business	  
district	  and	  along	  Collins	  Avenue	  and	  Harding	  Avenue.	  “	  

Town	  of	  Surfside	  
Evaluation	  and	  Appraisal	  Report	  Pages	  8	  -‐	  10	  	  

	  

	  

	  



 20	  

Exhibit	  2	  	  
Table	  1	  	  

Site	  Plan	  Data	  Review	  
	  

Proposed	  Site	  
Plan	  –	  	  
East	  Parcel	  

Applicable	  
Regulations	  	  

Permitted/Required	  	   Proposed	   In	  Compliance	  
	  
Requires	  Conditional	  Use	  
Approval	  
	  	  
Requires	  a	  Variance	  	  

Permitted	  Use	  	  

Future	  Land	  
Use	  Category	  

	  

	  	  

Future	  Land	  Use	  
Element	  Policy	  1.1	  	  

City	  Future	  Land	  
Use	  Map	  –	  FLU	  
Map	  No.	  7	  dated	  
November	  2008	  

High	  Density	  Residential	  /	  
Tourist	  Category	  

	  

Permits	  Hotel	  use	  

	  

Proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  

	  

In	  compliance	  

Permitted	  Use	  	  

Zoning	  District	  

	  

Official	  City	  Zoning	  
Map	  –	  Dated	  
February	  2013	  	  

Sec.	  90-‐41	  (c	  )	  
Table	  of	  Regulated	  
uses	  [H120	  zoning	  
district]	  

H120	  Height	  Restriction	  120	  

Permits	  Hotel	  use	  	  

Proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  

	  

In	  compliance	  

	  

Accessory	  Use	  –	  Hotel	  Pool	  
permitted	  as	  a	  Conditional	  
Use	  

Proposed	  Hotel	  Pool	   Requires	  Conditional	  Use	  
Review	  and	  Approval	  

Density	   Max.	  Density	  

Policy	  1.1	  FLUE	  

And	  	  

	  Sec.	  90.45.1-‐	  
Density	  for	  
Aggregation	  of	  
Lots	  =	  85%	  of	  
permitted	  max.	  
density	  

Maximum	  of	  109	  du/ac	  	  -‐	  
[permits	  90	  du’s	  @	  85%	  =	  76	  
du’s]	  

	  

55	  du’s	  at	  a	  density	  of	  approx.	  
66	  du/ac	  proposed	  

	  

(Request	  is	  approximately	  27	  
%	  less	  than	  the	  maximum	  
density	  permitted)	  

In	  compliance	  

Height	  	   Sec.	  90.43	  Max.	  
Height	  

Maximum	  height	  120	  ft.	  

Sec.	  90.44	  	  

Permits	  additional	  height	  for	  
30%	  of	  rooftop	  area	  for	  
mechanical	  equipment,	  
rooftop	  deck	  and	  parapet	  
wall	  

(20ft	  permitted)	  

120	  ft.	  proposed	  

	  

14.2	  ft.	  proposed	  

In	  compliance	  



 21	  

Setbacks	   Sec.	  90-‐45	  

Min.	  Setbacks	  

Front	  setback	  	  
(Collins	  Avenue)	  40	  ft.	  
	  
Sec.	  90.47	  
Yards	  generally,	  allowable	  
projections	  	  in	  H120	  –	  	  
	  
Projections	  of	  
balconies	  features	  into	  
required	  yards	  
Maximum	  8	  feet	  for	  front,	  
secondary	  
and	  rear	  and	  5	  feet	  for	  
interior	  side	  
	  

Existing	  front	  setback	  	  
	  
26.11	  ft.	  	  –	  	  
	  
Permitted	  by	  architecturally	  
significant	  designation	  Sec.	  
90-‐33	  
	  
	  
7	  ft.	  front	  encroachment	  and	  
7.1	  ft.	  side	  encroachment	  
	  
Permitted	  by	  architecturally	  
significant	  designation	  Sec	  90-‐
33	  

In	  compliance	  

Rear	  setback	  (Beach)	  30ft	  	  	  
	  
	  

Existing	  rear	  setback	  (Beach)	  
146	  .9	  ft.	  

	  

In	  compliance	  

Rear	  setback	  from	  platted	  
bulkhead	  line	  -‐	  20	  ft.	  
	  

Existing	  rear	  setback	  from	  
platted	  bulkhead	  line	  
15	  ft.	  	  
	  
Permitted	  by	  architecturally	  
significant	  designation	  Sec	  90-‐
33	  

In	  compliance	  

North	  –	  Street	  Side	  Setback	  
(90th	  Street)	  20	  ft.	  
	  

Existing	  street	  side	  (90th	  St.)	  
setback	  –	  10	  ft.	  	  

Permitted	  by	  architecturally	  
significant	  designation	  Sec	  90-‐
33	  

In	  compliance	  

South	  -‐	  side	  setback	  10	  ft.	  	  
	  

Proposed	  south	  side	  setback	  -‐	  
10	  ft.	  

In	  compliance	  

Yards	  	   Sec.	  90.47	  
Yards	  -‐	  allowable	  
projections	  	  
	  
	  

Maximum	  8	  feet	  for	  front,	  
secondary	  
and	  rear	  and	  5	  feet	  for	  
interior	  side	  
	  

Existing	  encroachment	  	  
7	  ft.	  front	  encroachment	  	  
	  
7.1	  ft.	  side	  encroachment	  –	  	  
	  
Permitted	  by	  
architecturally	  significant	  
designation	  Sec	  90-‐33	  

In	  compliance	  

Unit	  size	  	   Sec.	  90-‐42	  
Min.	  Unit	  size	  	  
	  

1	  bedroom	  –	  800	  sq.	  ft.	  

2	  bedroom-‐	  950	  sq.	  ft.	  

3	  bedroom	  –	  1,150	  sq.	  ft.	  

Proposed	  

1	  bedroom	  –	  977	  sq.	  ft.	  

2	  bedroom	  –	  1,272	  sq.	  ft.	  

3	  bedroom-‐	  2,240	  sq.	  ft.	  

In	  compliance	  

Lot	  standards	  	   Sec.	  90.49	  
Lot	  Standards	  	  
Min.	  Lot	  Width	  

Minimum	  lot	  width	  50	  feet	  
	  

Existing	  73	  ft.	  	   In	  compliance	  



 22	  

Min	  Pervious	  area	   Minimum	  Pervious	  
area	  20%	  
	  

Proposed	  20%	   In	  compliance	  

Architecture	  
and	  Roof	  Decks	  

Sec.	  90-‐50.1	  (2)	  
	  
Architecture	  
required	  for	  all	  	  	  
elevations	  for	  new	  
structures	  and	  
multistory	  
additions,	  greater	  
than	  15	  ft.	  in	  
height	  
Architecture	  	  

Minimum	  of	  10%	  wall	  
openings	  including	  
windows,	  doors	  or	  
transitional	  spaces	  
defined	  by	  porches,	  
porticoes	  or	  
colonnades.	  
	  

More	  than	  10%	  wall	  openings	  
provided	  	  

In	  compliance.	  

Roof	  materials	  are	  
limited	  as	  follows:	  
	  
a.	  Clay	  Tile;	  or	  
	  
b.	  White	  concrete	  tile;	  or	  
	  
c.	  Solid	  color	  cement	  tile	  
which	  color	  is	  
impregnated	  with	  the	  same	  
color	  
intensity	  throughout,	  
provided	  said	  
color	  if	  granted	  approval	  by	  
the	  
Design	  Review	  Board;	  
	  
d.	  Architecturally	  
embellished	  metal	  if	  
granted	  approval	  by	  the	  
Design	  
Review	  Board;	  or	  
	  
e.	  Other	  Florida	  Building	  
Code	  approved	  
roof	  material(s)	  if	  granted	  
approval	  by	  
the	  Design	  Review	  Board.	  
	  

	   	  

	   Sec.	  90.50.2	  (3)	  
Roof	  Deck	  
Provisions	  
Required	  
Proposed	  
Roof	  Decks	  are	  
limited	  to	  
	  

	  
a.	  Maximum	  70%	  of	  the	  
aggregate	  roof	  area;	  62%	  
	  
b.	  Shall	  not	  exceed	  the	  
maximum	  roof	  height	  
required	  by	  any	  abutting	  
property’s	  zoning	  
designation;	  
120	  feet	  
	  
c.	  Minimum	  setback	  of	  10	  
feet	  from	  the	  roofline	  
on	  all	  sides	  

Roof	  deck	  will	  include	  
terraces	  for	  two	  
private	  penthouses.	  
	  
Max.	  proposed	  62%	  aggregate	  
roof	  area.	  
	  
Does	  not	  exceed	  max.	  roof	  
height	  of	  any	  abutting	  
property	  –	  120	  ft.	  
	  
Min	  10	  ft.	  setback	  provided	  
from	  the	  roofline	  on	  all	  sides.	  

	  

Utilities	   Sec.	  90.67.2	  
Underground	  
utilities	  

All	  utilities	  including	  
telephone,	  cable,	  and	  
electrical	  systems	  shall	  be	  

Existing	  -‐	  lines	  are	  installed	  
underground.	  
	  

In	  compliance	  



 23	  

	   installed	  
underground.	  
	  

Parking	   Sec.	  90-‐77(c	  )	  
Required	  Parking	  	  
	  
Sec.	  90-‐77	  (f)	  
Parking	  Lifts.	  

108	  spaces	  required	  	   108	  spaces	  proposed	  

100%	  triple	  automated	  
parking	  lift	  system	  

	  

Total	  number	  of	  spaces	  
provided	  –	  in	  compliance	  	  

Proposed	  triple	  lift	  parking	  
system	  requires	  Conditional	  
Use	  Review	  and	  approval	  
required	  (Sec.	  90-‐35)	  	  	  

Off-‐street	  	   Sec.	  90	  –	  83	  Off-‐
street	  loading	  

Min	  2	  loading	  spaces	  
required	  for	  hotel	  greater	  
than	  100,000	  sq.	  ft.	  in	  size	  
	  
Min.	  off-‐street	  loading	  space	  
size	  	  -‐	  12	  ft.	  by	  30	  ft.	  	  

Proposed	  2	  off-‐street	  loading	  
spaces	  
	  
1	  –	  at	  a	  size	  of	  12	  ft.	  X	  30	  ft.	  
	  
2	  –	  at	  a	  size	  of	  approx.	  10	  ft.	  
by	  30	  ft.	  	  

Variance	  required	  (Division	  
6)	  to	  permit	  one	  of	  the	  off-‐
street	  loading	  spaces	  at	  a	  
min.	  size	  of	  approx.	  10	  ft.	  by	  
30	  ft.	  	  	  

	  

	  

Landscape	  /	  
Buffer	  areas	  	  

Sec.	  90.91	  
Vegetative	  
Provisions	  	  

Min.	  required	  pervious	  area	  
–	  50%	  

Proposed	  
Xeriscape	  in	  pervious	  
area	  79%	  
	  

In	  compliance	  

Sec.	  90.91.2	  
Buffers	  
	  
	  

Requires	  min.	  10	  ft.	  buffer	  
and	  3	  trees	  per	  50	  ft.	  of	  
building	  frontage	  
	  
	  

Portions	  of	  proposed	  buffer	  
and	  trees	  located	  on	  north	  
side	  (abutting	  90th	  Street)	  to	  
be	  provided	  in	  proposed	  
encroachment	  area	  

Variance	  required	  (Division	  
6)	  	  

	  

Sec.	  90.93	  (1)	  (b)	  
Open	  Space	  
	  

	  

One	  35	  ft.	  tree	  per	  25	  lineal	  
ft.	  of	  building	  façade	  
	  
8	  Trees	  required	  

Proposed	  8	  trees	  to	  be	  
provided,	  5	  of	  which	  to	  be	  
installed	  in	  the	  proposed	  
encroachment	  area.	  

Variance	  required	  (Division	  
6)	  	  

	  

	  

	   	  



 24	  

Exhibit 3 

 

Compliance with Zoning Code Parking Lift Requirements Section 90-77 (f) 

 

As provided by Section 90-77(f), two-vehicle tandem parking lifts are permitted in the Town.  All 
other mechanical parking systems are required to obtain conditional use approval.  

 

The Applicant is proposing to use a parking system that allows for vertical stacking of three 
vehicles.   

 

Findings and Conclusions: The proposed three-tiered parking lift system complies with all of 
the Town’s requirements to permit the parking lift system, as follows: 

 

(1) A traffic queuing analysis shall be submitted by the owner of the building 

for parking areas using parking lifts, for review and approval by the Town 

Manager, to ensure efficient processing times and queue lengths. The 

number of parking lifts permitted to be counted as required parking spaces 

shall be determined by the approved queuing analysis; and 

 

Findings:  A traffic queuing analysis was prepared by the applicant’s traffic 
consultant, the results of which found that the proposed three tiered parking 
system will provide for efficient processing times and queue lengths to 
accommodate 108 parking spaces.7 

 

 

(2) All parking lifts shall be located within a fully enclosed parking garage and 

shall not be visible from exterior view. No outside parking lifts shall be 

permitted; and 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
7	  See	  Traffic	  Queuing	  Analysis	  Prepared	  by	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall,	  P.E.	  



 25	  

 

Findings:  All of the parking lifts will be located in a subterranean garage 
structure and will not be visible from the exterior of the building. 

 

 (3) Parking lifts shall be permitted only when operated by an attendant or a 

licensed and insured valet parking company on a 24-hour/seven-days-a week 

basis, to be confirmed by restrictive covenant to be recorded by the 

owner/applicant prior to establishment of the use; and 

 

Findings:  All of the parking for the building will be provided via 24-hour valet 
service. 

 

(4) No resident, guest, patron or customer of the building shall be permitted to 

operate the parking lift. A physical barrier shall be placed in the parking 

area to prohibit access to the parking lift area by residents, guests, patrons 

or customers of the building; and 

Findings: No physical access to the basement will be available to residents, 
guests, or patrons. 

 

(5) All parking lifts shall be maintained and kept in good working order; and 

 

Findings: The Applicant will be entering into a maintenance agreement with the 
manufacturer of the lifts prior to installation. 

 

(6) The parking lift platform must be sealed and of a sufficient width and length to 
completely cover the bottom of the vehicle on the platform to prevent dripping liquids or 
debris onto the vehicle below; and 

 

Findings: The parking lift platform has been designed to comply with this 



 26	  

requirement. 

 

(6) All lifts must be designed so that power is required to lift the car, but that 

no power is required to lower the car, in order to ensure that the lift can be 

lowered and the top vehicle can be accessed in the event of a power outage; 

and 

 

Findings: The proposed lifts have been designed to comply with this 
requirement. 

 

(7) All parking lifts must be designed to prevent lowering of the lift when a vehicle is 
parked below the lift; and 

 

Findings: The proposed lifts have been designed to comply with this 
requirement. 

 

(8) Ceiling heights of any parking level with parking lifts shall be a minimum of 14 feet 4 
inches and sufficient to accommodate all types of passenger vehicles. Such required 
height shall be proposed in the traffic queuing study and approved by the town manager. 
There shall be no beams, plumbing, or sprinklers that lower or otherwise interfere with 
this clearance across the entire span of the parking space; and 

 

Findings:  The ceiling height of the parking level meets and exceeds this 
minimum requirement. 

 

(10) Noise and vibration barriers shall be utilized to ensure that surrounding walls 
decrease sound and vibration emissions outside of the parking garage. 

 

Findings: Noise from the system will be minimized in that it will be located in 
the basement of the building, completely subterranean. 



 27	  

	  

Exhibit	  4	  	  
	  

Request	  for	  Conditional	  Use	  for	  Three-‐	  Tiered	  Parking	  Lift	  System	  and	  Hotel	  Pool	  
Compliance	  with	  Section	  90-‐23	  	  

	  
1.	  	  Conditional	  Use	  Application	  to	  Permit	  Proposed	  Three-‐tiered	  Parking	  Lift	  System	  

A	   three-‐tiered	   parking	   system	   has	   been	   proposed	   to	   accommodate	   the	   108	   required	  
parking	  spaces.	  	  The	  system	  will	  be	  fully	  contained	  within	  the	  building.	  	  Vehicles	  will	  access	  the	  
system	  via	  a	  two-‐elevators	  operated	  100%	  of	  the	  time	  by	  a	  24-‐hour	  valet	  service.	  	  A	  pick	  up	  and	  
drop	   off	   area,	   including	   a	   valet	   stand,	   will	   be	   provided	   on	   the	   north	   side	   of	   the	   property,	  
providing	   access	   to	   and	   from	   the	   building	   from	   90th	   Street.	   	   An	   encroachment	   agreement	   is	  
proposed	  to	  accommodate	  potential	  vehicular	  stacking	  that	  may	  occur	   in	  the	  adjacent	  right	  of	  
way.	  	  	  

The	  proposed	   three-‐tiered	  parking	   lift	   system	   is	   in	   compliance	  with	   the	  Conditional	  Use	  
Standards	  of	  review	  as	  provided	  in	  section	  90-‐23.2,	  and	  as	  further	  discussed	  herein.	  

90-‐23.2	  Standards	  of	  review.	  	  

(1) 	   The	  proposed	  use	  shall	  be	  consistent	  with	   the	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  and	   the	  Zoning	  
Code;	  

Findings	  and	  conclusions:	  The	  application	  is	  consistent	  with	  Town’s	  2010	  adopted	  
Comprehensive	  Plan,	  as	  further	  discussed	  in	  Exhibit	  1	  and	  is	  in	  compliance	  with	  the	  
Town’s	   Zoning	  Code	   standards	   for	   parking	   lifts,	   as	   further	  discussed	   in	  Exhibit	   3,	  
attached	  to	  this	  report.	  

(2) 	   The	   establishment,	   maintenance	   or	   operation	   of	   the	   proposed	   use	   shall	   not	   be	  
detrimental	  to	  or	  endanger	  the	  public	  health,	  safety,	  or	  general	  welfare;	  	  

Findings	   and	   conclusions:	   Research	   of	   parking	   lift	   industry	   standards	  
supports	   the	   findings	   that	   the	   establishment,	  maintenance	   or	   operation	   of	  
the	   proposed	   parking	   lift	   system	   is	   not	   detrimental	   to	   or	   endangers	   the	  
public,	  health,	  safety	  or	  general	  welfare,	  but	  rather	  provides	  to	  the	  contrary,	  
results	   in	   certain	   social	   and	   environmental	   benefits	   to	   the	   public	   health,	  
safety	  and	  welfare,	  as	  summarized	  below:	  

• Reduces	   impact	   on	   historic	   areas	   and	   buildings	   –	   smaller	   footprint	  
and	  discrete	  access;	  

• Increases	  personal	  safety	  at	  night;	  
• Reduces	  accidents	  and	  car	  damage;	  
• Minimizes	  theft;	  
• Increases	  safety	  for	  pedestrians	  and	  cyclists;	  and,	  
• Reduces	   noise	   impact	   and	   pollution,	   acoustic	   and	   vibrational	  

impacts;	  



 28	  

o Vehicles	  engines	  are	  turned	  off	  during	  storage	  and	  retrieval,	  
which	  according	  to	  industry	  standards,	  reduces	  emissions	  up	  
to	  80%.	  

o Reduces	   energy	   consumption	  by	  providing	  minimal	   lighting	  
and	  reduced	  ventilation	  requirements.	  8	  

	  
Additionally,	   a	   traffic	   queuing	   analysis	   was	   prepared	   by	   the	   applicant’s	  
traffic	   consultant,	   which	   found	   that	   the	   proposed	   three	   tiered	   parking	  
system	   will	   provide	   for	   efficient	   processing	   times	   and	   queue	   lengths	   to	  
accommodate	  the	  required	  parking	  of	  108	  vehicles.9	  

	  
(3) 	  The	  proposed	  use	  shall	  be	  compatible	  with	  the	  community	  character	  of	  the	  immediate	  

neighborhood.	   In	   addition	   to	   compatibility	   there	   must	   be	   congruity	   between	   the	  
subject	   development	   and	   neighboring	   improvements	   and	   surroundings	   including	   but	  
not	  limited	  to	  form,	  spacing,	  heights,	  setbacks,	  materials,	  color,	  rhythm	  and	  pattern	  of	  
architectural	   or	   aesthetic	   interest	   or	   value	   as	   well	   as	   with	   any	   overlays	   and	   other	  
development	  schemes	  or	  legislation.	  	  

Findings	  and	  conclusions:	  	  The	  proposed	  parking	  lift	  system	  will	  be	  located	  
completely	  within	   the	  building	   and	  designed	   to	  meet	   all	   of	   the	  parking	   lift	  
standards	  of	  the	  Town	  zoning	  code,	  as	  discussed	  in	  Exhibit	  3	  of	  this	  report.	  	  	  

The	  location	  of	  the	  lifts	  below	  ground	  will	  ensure	  that	  the	  parking	  lift	  facility	  
is	  not	  visible	   from	  adjacent	  properties	  and	   that	  neighboring	  properties	  are	  
not	  impacted	  by	  noise	  that	  may	  otherwise	  be	  associated	  with	  the	  parking	  lift	  
system.	  

(4) 	   Adequate	  provisions	   shall	   be	   included	   for	  parking	   and	   safe	   traffic	  movement,	   both	  
vehicular	  and	  pedestrian,	  both	  internal	  to	  the	  use	  and	  in	  the	  area	  which	  will	  serve	  the	  
use;	  	  

Findings	   and	   conclusions:	   	   The	  parking	   lift	   system	  has	   been	  designed	   to	  
safely	  move	  vehicles	  in	  and	  out	  of	  the	  parking	  lift	  system,	  as	  analyzed	  in	  the	  
traffic	  consultant’s	  queuing	  analysis.	  	  

(5) 	   Adequate	  measures	  exist	  including	  landscaping	  or	  other	  buffering	  measures	  or	  shall	  
be	   taken	   to	  mitigate	   any	   adverse	   effects	   of	   noise,	   light	   or	   other	   potential	   nuisances;	  
and	  	  

Findings	   and	   conclusions:	   As	   previously	   noted,	   the	   location	   of	   the	   lifts	  
below	   ground	   will	   ensure	   that	   the	   parking	   lift	   system	   is	   not	   visible	   from	  
adjacent	   properties	   and	   that	   neighboring	   properties	   are	   not	   impacted	   by	  
noise,	  lighting	  and	  glare.	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
8	  See	  http://parkplusinc.com/news/10-‐social-‐benefits-‐sustainable-‐parking/	  
9	  See	  Traffic	  Queuing	  Analysis	  Prepared	  by	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall,	  P.E.	  



 29	  

(6) 	   The	   establishment	   of	   the	   conditional	   use	   shall	   not	   impede	   the	   development	   of	  
surrounding	  properties	  for	  uses	  permitted	  in	  the	  zoning	  district;	  and	  	  

Findings	  and	  conclusions:	  The	  provision	  of	  a	  three	  tiered	  parking	  system	  
will	   have	   no	   direct	   impact	   on	   the	   development	   of	   surround	   properties	  
permitted	  in	  the	  zoning	  district.	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
Proposed	  Operational	  Plan	  and	  Voluntary	  Additional	  Conditions	  	  
	  
The	   applicant	   has	   also	   provided	   a	   Valet	   Operational	   Plan,	   which	   incudes	   additional	  
“voluntary”	  conditions	  related	  to	  the	  parking	  system.	  10	  	  
	  
The	   Operational	   Plan	   shows	   how	   the	   parking	   system	   will	   integrate	   within	   the	   existing	  
development	   in	   the	   area,	   with	   special	   attention	   given	   to	   the	   interaction	   of	   the	   proposed	  
parking	  system	  and	  access	  to	  and	  from	  the	  Surf	  Club	  development,	  which	  is	   located	  to	  the	  
north	  and	  shares	  access	  from	  90th	  Street	  with	  the	  property.	  As	  reflected	  in	  the	  Plan	  and	  the	  
applicant’s	   traffic	   consultant’s	   corresponding	   traffic	   analyses,	   it	   is	   anticipated	   that	   the	  
development,	  as	  proposed,	  will	  not	  negatively	   impact	  vehicular	  and	  pedestrian	  movement	  
in	  that	  portion	  of	  90th	  Street	  located	  east	  of	  Collins	  Avenue.	  	  	  
	  
Vehicular	  Access	  Encroachment	  Agreement	  
	  
Preservation	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   setbacks	   has	   resulted	   in	   the	   need	   to	   encroach	   in	   a	  
small	  area	  of	  the	  90th	  Street	  right-‐of-‐way	  (382	  sq.	  ft.)	  in	  order	  to	  provide	  a	  vehicular	  drive	  
aisle	  that	  meets	  the	  current	  minimum	  code	  standards,	  which	  cannot	  be	  met	  on	  site	  because	  
the	  existing	  building	  provides	   for	  only	  a	  10	   ft.	   setback	   from	  the	  property	   line	  on	   its	  north	  
side.	  	  
	  
As	   such,	   the	   applicant	   has	   designed	   a	   revised	   vehicular	   entrance	   and	   stacking	   area	   along	  
90th	  Street,	  which	  should	  result	  in	  a	  reduction	  in	  traffic	  issues	  along	  Collins	  Avenue,	  a	  major	  
trafficway,	   and	   improve	   pedestrian	   safety,	   as	   determined	   by	   the	   applicant’s	   traffic	  
consultant.	  	  
	  
Similar	  agreements	  are	  used	  in	  other	  South	  Florida	  municipalities	  so	  as	  to	  permit	  vehicular	  
access	  areas	  to	  encroach	  within	  a	  public	  right-‐of-‐way	  where	  existing	  building	  setbacks	  limit	  
the	  ability	  to	  improve	  the	  development	  site	  to	  meet	  current	  code	  standards.11	  
	  
New	  Pedestrian	  Corridor	  
	  
The	   applicant	   is	   also	   proposing	   off-‐site	   improvements,	   for	   the	   purpose	   of	   enhancing	   the	  
pedestrian	  experience	  and	  walkability	  for	  Town	  residents	  accessing	  the	  beach.	  	  
	  
These	   improvements	   are	   proposed	   from	   Harding	   Avenue	   to	   the	   beach	   to	   provide	   for	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
10	  See	  Applicant’s	  Valet	  Operational	  Plan,	  attached	  to	  Letter	  of	  Intent,	  Dated	  May	  8,	  2018	  
11	  See	  Coral	  Gables	  Encroachment	  Agreement	  as	  an	  example-‐
http://www.coralgables.com/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid=13860	  



 30	  

widened	  sidewalks,	  more	  parking,	  and	  new	  landscaping	  along	  the	  90th	  Street	  corridor.	  	  	  
	  
The	  south	  side	  of	  90th	  Street,	  between	  Collins	  and	  the	  street	  end,	  has	  been	  redesigned	  in	  a	  
manner	  that	  benefits	  the	  general	  public	  by	  providing	  an	  improved	  sidewalk	  with	  landscape	  
buffering	  on	  both	  sides.	  	  
	  
These	  proposed	  improvements	  are	  consistent	  with	  the	  recommendations	  contained	  in	  the	  
2006	   Charrette	   and	   the	   Goals,	   Objectives	   and	   Policies	   of	   the	   2010	   Town	   Comprehensive	  
Plan,	   both	   of	   which	   support	   the	   enhancement	   of	   public	   rights-‐of-‐ways	   with	   landscaping,	  
sidewalks	   and	   open	   space,	   to	   improve	   pedestrian	  walkability,	   especially	   on	   those	   streets	  
that	  dead	  end	  at	  the	  beach.	  12	  
	  
Locating	  trees	  within	  the	  public	  right	  of	  way	  is	  also	  consistent	  with	  the	  provisions	  of	  Section	  
90-‐89.4(6),	  which	  includes	  standards	  for	  the	  installing	  street	  trees	  within	  the	  public	  right-‐
of-‐way,	   the	   benefits	   of	   which	   are	   supported	   by	   best	   planning	   practices.	   Such	   benefits	  
include,	  for	  example:	  

	  
• The	   creation	   of	   safer	   walking	   environments	   by	   separating	   of	   motorists	   from	   one	  

another,	  pedestrians	  and	  buildings;	  
• Improvements	   in	   walkability	   by	   providing	   rain,	   sun,	   heat	   and	   skin	   protection	   for	  

pedestrians;	  and,	  	  	  
• The	  creation	  of	  streets	  that	  present	  a	  more	  aesthetically	  pleasing	  environments.13	  

	  
The	   proposed	   use	   of	   the	   public	   right-‐of-‐way	   is	   also	   supported	   by	   Town	   past	   practice	   to	  
reduce	  the	  right-‐of-‐way	  on	  streets	  that	  dead-‐end	  at	  the	  beach	  to	  provide	  for	  installation	  of	  
open	   space	   areas	   and	   landscaping	   and	   trees,	   as	   illustrated	   in	   the	   applicant’s	   street-‐end	  
study.14	  
	  
The	   proposed	   modifications	   to	   90th	   Street	   also	   proposes	   to	   enhance	   the	   pedestrian	  
experience	   from	   Harding	   to	   the	   hardpack,	   with	   the	   assumption	   that	   90th	   Street	   will	   be	  
reduced	   to	   a	   “one-‐way”	   road	   between	   Harding	   Avenue	   and	   Collins	   Avenue	   as	   further	  
expressed	  in	  the	  2006	  Charrette	  and	  the	  Town’s	  Comprehensive	  Plan.	  
The	  applicant	  has	  also	  proffered	  significant	   funds	  to	  be	  used	  for	  off-‐site	   improvements	  on	  
90th	  Street,	  between	  Harding	  and	  Collins	  Avenue.	  	  	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
12	  See	  Exhibit	  1	  of	  this	  report.	  
13	  22	  Benefits	  of	  Urban	  Street	  Trees	  by	  Dan	  Burden	  http://www.walkable.org/download/22_benefits.pdf	  
14	  See	  applicant’s	  street	  end	  study	  



 31	  

	  

These	  improvements	  will	  result	  in	  significant	  benefit	  to	  the	  community.	  	  

2.	  	  Conditional	  Use	  Request	  to	  Permit	  Hotel	  Pool	  	  
	  
The	  applicant	  is	  also	  requesting	  approval	  to	  permit	  a	  hotel	  pool.	  	  
	  
Findings	  and	  Conclusions:	  
	  

A	  pool	  is	  consistent	  with	  other	  properties	  within	  the	  zoning	  district	  and	  is	  not	  
expected	  be	  a	  detriment	  to	  public	  health,	  safety	  or	  welfare.	  The	  proposed	  building	  
characteristics	  and	  pool	  are	  compatible	  with	  the	  community	  character	  of	  the	  
immediate	  neighborhood.	  

	   	  



 32	  

Exhibit	  5	  	  

Request	  for	  Variance	  from	  Chapter	  90-‐	  Zoning	  Code	  	  
Compliance	  of	  Proposed	  	  

Variance	  Requests	  	  

Three	  variances	  are	  required	  as	  a	  result	  of	  the	  development	  site	  constraints	  of	  the	  existing	  building	  
setbacks,	  which	  are	  summarized	  below.	  	  	  

Variance	  No.	  1:	  Two	  12’	  by	  30’	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces	  are	  required	  for	  a	  hotel	  use	  that	  is	  
greater	  than	  100,000	  sq.	  ft.	   in	  size.	   	  While	  two	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces	  are	  proposed	  to	  be	  
provided,	   one	   of	   the	   proposed	   loading	   spaces	   is	   approximately	   10’	   X	   30’	   in	   size,	  which	   is	  
slightly	  less	  than	  the	  required	  minimum.	  	  	  As	  such	  a	  Variance	  is	  required.	  

Variance	   No.	   2:	   There	   is	   insufficient	   land	   area	   to	   install	   the	   required	   10-‐foot	   landscape	  
buffer	  and	  3	  trees	  per	  50	   lineal	   feet	  of	  building	   frontage	  on	  the	  north	  side	  of	   the	  property,	  
adjacent	  to	  90th	  Street.	   	  The	  Variance	  request	   is	  to	  allow	  some	  of	  the	  landscape	  buffer	  area	  
and	  required	  trees	  to	  be	  located	  within	  the	  proposed	  encroachment	  area	  on	  90th	  Street.	  

Variance	   No.	   3:	   One	   35-‐foot	   tree	   is	   required	   for	   every	   25	   lineal	   ft.	   of	   building	   frontage,	  
which	  results	   in	  a	   requirement	  of	  8	   large	   trees	  between	   the	  property	   line	  and	   the	  existing	  
building	  setbacks.	  Since	  there	  is	  insufficient	  land	  area	  between	  the	  north	  side	  property	  line	  
and	  the	  existing	  building	  setback	  to	  install	  the	  all	  of	  the	  required	  larger	  trees,	  the	  request	  is	  
to	  permit	  5	  of	  the	  required	  trees	  to	  be	  located	  outside	  the	  property	  line,	  within	  the	  proposed	  
encroachment	  area	  on	  90th	  Street.	  	  

-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐	  

Sec.	  42-‐114.	  –	  of	  the	  Town	  Zoning	  Code	  sets	  forth	  the	  conditions	  for	  variances.	  	  

(1)	  	   Variances	  shall	  only	  be	  issued	  when	  there	  is:	  	  

a.	  	   A	  showing	  of	  good	  and	  sufficient	  cause;	  	  

b.	   	   A	  determination	   that	   failure	   to	   grant	   the	   variance	  would	   result	   in	   exceptional	   hardship;	  
and	  	  

c.	   	   A	  determination	  that	  the	  granting	  of	  a	  variance	  will	  not	  result	   in	  increased	  flood	  heights,	  
additional	   threats	   to	  public	  expense,	  create	  nuisance,	  cause	   fraud	  on	  or	  victimization	  of	  
the	  public,	  or	  conflict	  with	  existing	  local	  laws	  or	  ordinances.	  	  

(2)	   	   Variances	   shall	   only	   be	   issued	   upon	   a	   determination	   that	   the	   variance	   is	   the	   minimum	  
necessary	  deviation	  from	  the	  requirements	  of	  this	  article.	  	  

(3)	  	   Variances	  shall	  not	  be	  granted	  after-‐the-‐fact.	  	  

(4)	   	   The	   floodplain	   administrator	   shall	   maintain	   the	   records	   of	   all	   variance	   actions,	   including	  
justification	  for	  their	  issuance	  or	  denial,	  and	  report	  such	  variances	  upon	  request	  to	  FEMA	  and	  
the	  Florida	  Division	  of	  Emergency	  Management	  State	  Floodplain	  Management	  Office.	  	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  



 33	  

Landscape	  Buffer	  and	  Street	  Trees	  
	  
Zoning	   Code	   Section	   90-‐91.2.requires	   that	   a	   10	   foot	   landscaped	   buffer	   be	   provided	   on	   the	   private	  
property	  abutting	  streets	  and	  other	  property	  lines.	  	  The	  landscape	  buffer	  is	  to	  include	  three	  trees	  for	  
every	   50	   feet	   linear	   feet	   of	   property.	   	   On	   the	   side	   of	   the	   property	   that	   abuts	   90th	   Street,	   there	   is	  
insufficient	   land	  area	  between	  the	  setback	  of	   the	  existing	  building	  and	  the	  property	   line	  to	  provide	  
the	  required	  buffer	  and	  trees	  on	  the	  applicant’s	  property.	  
	  
Findings	  and	  Conclusions:	  
	  

The	  subject	  property	  is	  narrow	  in	  width	  [73	  ft.].	  The	  location	  of	  the	  existing	  building	  do	  not	  
provide	   sufficient	   land	  area	   to	   locate	  all	   of	   the	   required	   landscape	  buffer	   and	   trees	  on	   the	  
north	   side	   of	   the	   property	   that	   abuts	   90th	   Street.	   	   The	   applicant	   has	   proposed	   to	   locate	   a	  
portion	  of	   the	  buffer	  and	  required	   trees	  within	  a	  small	  area	  of	   the	  90th	  Street	  right-‐of-‐way	  
(only	   382	   sq.	   ft.),	   the	   terms	   and	   conditions	   of	   which	   have	   been	   addressed	   in	   a	   proposed	  
encroachment	  agreement.	  

	  
For	  the	  same	  reasons,	  the	  applicant	  is	  also	  seeking	  a	  variance	  from	  Section	  90.93(1b).	  -‐	  Open	  
Space	  (Open	  Space	  Trees),	  which	  requires	  one	  35	  foot	  tree	  for	  buildings	  greater	  than	  75	  feet	  
in	  height,	  per	  25	  linear	  feet	  of	  a	  building,	  to	  be	  provided	  on	  each	  side	  of	  the	  building	  in	  that	  
all	   of	   the	   required	   larger	   trees	   cannot	   be	   located	   entirely	   within	   the	   private	   property.	  	  
Similarly,	   the	   applicant	   is	   proposing	   to	   locate	   several	   of	   the	   larger	   trees	   in	   the	   proposed	  
encroachment	  area.	  	  
	  

Response:	  	  Variance	  from	  Requirements	  for	  Landscape	  Buffer	  and	  Trees	  

There	  is	  good	  and	  sufficient	  cause	  to	  grant	  the	  variance	  request	  to	  allow	  the	  required	  landscape	  
buffer	  and	  trees	  to	  be	  located	  adjacent	  to	  the	  property,	  within	  a	  proposed	  encroachment	  area:	  	  

o The	  existing	  building	  has	  been	  designated	  by	  the	  Town	  as	  an	  Architecturally	  Significant	  
building	  in	  accordance	  with	  Section	  90-‐33	  of	  the	  Town	  Zoning	  Code,	  which	  encourages	  
that	   alterations	   and	  additions	   to	   the	  existing	  building,	   as	  proposed,	   do	  not	   result	   in	   a	  
change	  to	  the	  existing	  setbacks	  of	  the	  building	  where	  the	  preservation	  of	  such	  setbacks	  
preserve	  the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building.	  	  

o The	   existing	   building	   was	   built	   in	   1966,	   prior	   to	   the	   enactment	   by	   the	   Town	   of	   the	  
current	  landscape	  buffer	  and	  tree	  requirements.	  	  

o The	  existing	  building	  provides	  only	  a	  10	  ft.	  setback	  on	  its	  north	  side,	  which	  is	  insufficient	  
to	   locate	   the	   required	   landscape	   buffer	   and	   trees.	   The	   width	   of	   the	   lot	   is	   extremely	  
narrow	   [73	   ft.]	   and	   does	   not	   afford	   the	   opportunity	   to	   change	   the	   existing	   building	  
setback	  on	  its	  north	  side	  to	  accommodate	  the	  proposed	  Condo-‐Hotel	  use.	  	  	  

o The	  requested	  variance	  does	  not	  subvert	  the	   intent	  of	  the	  Town’s	   landscape	  code.	   	  To	  
the	  contrary	  the	  request	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  spirit,	  purpose,	  and	  intent	  of	  the	  Town’s	  
landscape	  code,	  in	  that	  landscaping	  and	  trees	  are	  still	  being	  provided	  along	  the	  street	  to	  
provide	  shade	  and	  enhance	  the	  pedestrian	  walkability	  on	  90th	  Street.	  	  

Without	   the	   granting	   of	   the	   variances	   requesting	   relief	   from	   the	   Town’s	   landscape	   buffer	   and	  
tree	  requirements,	  the	  addition	  of	  a	  landscape	  buffer	  and	  trees	  on	  the	  north	  side	  of	  the	  property	  
would	  not	  be	  possible	  and,	  as	  such,	  the	  existing	  condition	  of	  90th	  Street	  would	  remain	  largely	  as	  a	  
paved	  area.	  	  

	  



 34	  

Additionally,	  failure	  to	  grant	  the	  variance	  will	  create	  an	  exceptional	  hardship	  that	  is	  peculiar	  to	  
the	   subject	   property	   and	   that	   does	   not	   apply	   to	   any	   other	   property	   located	   within	   the	   H120	  
zoning	  district	  nor	  in	  the	  surrounding	  neighborhood.	  

o The	   applicant	   sought	   and	   received	   approval	   from	   the	   Town	   for	   the	   Architectural	  
Significant	  building	  designation	  and	  relied	  in	  good	  faith	  on	  the	  Town’s	  desire	  to	  preserve	  
the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building.	  	  

o The	   site	   width	   does	   not	   provide	   the	   opportunity	   for	   the	   applicant	   to	   relocate	   the	  
building	   in	   order	   to	   increase	   the	   setbacks	   to	   accommodate	   the	   landscape	   buffer	   and	  
trees	  all	  on	  the	  private	  property.	  	  

o There	   is	   no	   precedent	   established	   as	   a	   result	   of	   granting	   the	   variance	   in	   that	   the	  
variance	  applies	  to	  the	  only	  site	   in	  the	  H120	  zoning	  district	  that	  has	  a	  building	  with	  an	  
Architecturally	  Significant	  designation.	  	  The	  existing	  building	  setbacks	  on	  the	  north	  side	  
are	  necessary	   to	  maintain	   the	  architectural	   integrity	  of	   the	  north	  side	  elevation	  of	   the	  
building.	  	  The	  building	  is	  situated	  on	  a	  lot	  with	  a	  narrow	  width,	  which	  limits	  the	  ability	  to	  
increase	  the	  setback	  area,	  and	  locate	  the	  required	  landscape	  buffer	  and	  street	  trees	  on	  
the	  site.	  	  For	  all	  of	  these	  reasons,	  the	  requested	  variances	  are	  unique	  and	  peculiar	  to	  the	  
subject	  property.	  	  

	  

The	   request	   to	   locate	   landscaping	  and	  street	   trees	  within	  a	  proposed	  encroachment	  area	  does	  
not	  result	  in	  increased	  flood	  heights,	  additional	  threats	  to	  public	  expense,	  create	  nuisance,	  cause	  
fraud	  on	  or	  victimization	  of	  the	  public,	  or	  conflict	  with	  existing	  local	  laws	  or	  ordinances.	  	  

The	  addition	  of	  a	  landscaped	  area	  and	  street	  trees	  within	  the	  proposed	  encroachment	  area	  does	  
not	  harm	  public	  safety.	  Locating	  street	  trees	  in	  the	  public	  right	  of	  way	  is	  also	  consistent	  with	  the	  
provisions	   of	   Section	   90-‐89.4(6),	  which	   includes	   standards	   for	   the	   installing	   street	   trees	  within	  
the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way,	  as	  further	  addressed	  in	  the	  applicant’s	  traffic	  consultant’s	  traffic	  impact	  
analysis.	  

This	  request	  to	  install	  trees	  within	  a	  portion	  of	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way	  is	  in	  keeping	  with	  the	  best	  
practice	   planning	   practices,	   which	   support	   improvements	   made	   to	   public	   rights-‐of-‐way	   that	  
enhance	  and	  encourage	  pedestrian	  activity,	  recognizing	  that	  there	  are	  benefits	  of	  locating	  trees	  
within	  public	  rights-‐of-‐ways	  to:	  

• Create	   safer	   walking	   environments	   by	   separating	   of	   motorists	   from	   one	   another,	  
pedestrians	  and	  buildings.	  

• Improve	   walkability	   by	   providing	   rain,	   sun,	   and	   heat	   and	   skin	   protection	   for	  
pedestrians.	  	  

• Create	  streets	  that	  result	  in	  more	  aesthetically	  pleasing	  environments	  than	  what	  is	  
created	  by	  large	  expanses	  of	  paved	  areas.15	  

	  
The	  variance	  relief	  requested	  is	  the	  minimum	  necessary	  deviation	  from	  the	  Town’s	  
landscape	   code	   requirements	   in	   that	   the	   landscape	   buffer	   and	   trees	   are	   being	  
installed	   where	   feasible	   on	   the	   private	   property,	   and	   the	   remaining	   of	   which	   is	  
proposed	   to	   be	   included	   within	   a	   small	   portion	   of	   the	   public	   right-‐of-‐way,	   as	  
depicted	   in	   the	   encroachment	   agreement	   and	   illustrations	   provided	   by	   the	  
applicant.	  

	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
15	  22	  Benefits	  of	  Urban	  Street	  Trees	  by	  Dan	  Burden	  http://www.walkable.org/download/22_benefits.pdf	  



 35	  

Lastly,	  Section	  42-‐112	  Historic	  structures,	  permits	  variances	  to	  be	  issued	  for	  	  “the	  repair	  or	  rehabilitation	  
of	  "historic"	  structures…upon	  a	  determination	  that	  the	  proposed	  repair	  or	  rehabilitation	  will	  not	  preclude	  
the	  structure's	  continued	  designation	  as	  a	  historic"	  structure”.	  	  	  

The	  variance	  request	  similarly	  permits	  alteration	  and	  additions	  to	  an	  “architecturally	  significant”	  building	  
in	  a	  manner	  that	  will	  not	  preclude	  the	  structure’s	  continued	  designation	  as	  an	  “architecturally	  significant”	  
building.	  	  

Finally,	   the	  variance	  request	   is	  consistent	  with	  the	  Town’s	  2010	  Comprehensive	  Plan,	  which	  encourages	  
flexibility	  and	  innovative	  standards	  to	  be	  applied	  towards	  the	  preservation	  of	  structures	  that	  preserve	  the	  
community	   character.	   Exhibit	   1	   attached	   to	   this	   report	   provides	   a	   more	   detailed	   description	   of	  
consistency	  with	  the	  Plan	  and	  its	  associated	  documents.	  	  

-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐-‐	  

Off-‐street	  Loading	  Space	  	  

Zoning	  Code	  Section	  90-‐83	  Off-‐	  Street	  Loading	  requires	  that	  off-‐street	  loading	  space	  meet	  a	  minimum	  
design	   standard	   of	   12’	   X	   30’.	   	   The	   applicant	   proposed	   to	   provide	   2	   loading	   spaces	   –	   one	   with	   a	  
minimum	  size	  of	  approximately	  10’	  X	  30’.	   	  As	  such,	  a	  variance	  requesting	  relief	   from	  the	  minimum	  
size	  standard	  is	  required.	  

Findings	  and	  Conclusions:	  

• There	  is	  good	  and	  sufficient	  cause	  to	  grant	  the	  variance	  request	  to	  allow	  the	  off-‐	  street	  loading	  
space	  to	  be	  provided	  at	  a	  size	  of	  approximately	  10	  ft.	  X	  30	  ft.:	  

o In	   accordance	   with	   Section	   90-‐33	   of	   the	   Town	   code,	   the	   existing	   building	   has	   been	  
designated	  an	  Architecturally	  Significant	  building.	  

o The	   designation	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   as	   an	   Architecturally	   Significant	   results	   in	   the	  
need	  to	  preserve	  the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  building,	  which	  limits	  the	  ability	  of	  the	  
applicant	  to	  make	  certain	  ground	  floor	  modifications	  to	  the	  site.	  	  

o The	   existing	   building	   was	   built	   in	   1966,	   prior	   to	   the	   enactment	   by	   the	   Town	   of	   the	  
current	  off-‐street	  loading	  space	  requirements.	  

o The	  width	  of	   the	   lot	  on	  which	   the	  existing	  building	   is	   located	   is	  extremely	  narrow	   [73	  
ft.],	  which	  does	  not	  provide	  sufficient	  land	  area	  for	  a	  second	  off-‐street	  loading	  space	  to	  
be	  provided	  at	  the	  full	  12	  ft.	  by	  30	  ft.	  size,	  as	  required	  by	  the	  code.	  

o This	  proposed	  size	  of	  approx.	  10’	  X	  30’	  is	  a	  standard	  applied	  in	  other	  local	  municipalities,	  
and	   as	   such	   is	   in	   keeping	  with	   best	   planning	   practices	   and	   not	   out	   of	   the	   norm	  as	   to	  
what	  is	  a	  sufficient	  size	  this	  type	  of	  off-‐site	  loading	  area.	  	  

o The	   requested	   variance	   does	   not	   subvert	   the	   intent	   of	   the	   Town’s	   off-‐street	   loading	  
space	  requirements.	  	  To	  the	  contrary	  the	  request	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  spirit,	  purpose,	  
and	  intent	  of	  the	  Town’s	  the	  requirements,	  in	  that:	  

§ The	  proposal	   to	   alter	   the	  existing	  building	  provides	   for	   two	  off-‐street	   loading	  
spaces	  as	  required	  by	  the	  code;	  and,	  

§ The	  requested	  approx.	  10	  ft.	  by	  30	  ft.	  size	  is	  only	  slightly	  less	  in	  size	  than	  the	  12	  
ft.	  b	  30	  ft.	  min	  standard;	  and,	  

§ There	  are	  no	  changes	  being	  proposed	  to	  the	  site	  that	  would	  otherwise	  result	  in	  
reducing	   the	   land	   area	   at	   the	   ground	   level	   that	   results	   in	   the	   need	   for	   the	  
variance.	   	  Rather	   the	   request	   is	  due	   to	   the	   fact	   that	   the	  existing	  building	   site	  
setbacks	   and	   configuration	   do	   not	   provide	   sufficient	   land	   area	   at	   the	   ground	  
level	   to	   add	  a	   second	  off-‐street	   loading	   space	  at	   the	  12	   ft.	   by	  30	   ft.	   required	  



 36	  

size	  without	  significantly	  modifying	  the	  building	  and	  the	  ground	  floor,	  and	  thus	  
potentially	  impacting	  the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  building.	  

	  

The	   variance	   request	   gives	   effect	   to	   the	   ordinance’s	   intent	   in	   that	   the	   required	   2	   off-‐street	  
loading	  spaces	  are	  being	  provided.	  	  The	  ability	  to	  provide	  2	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces,	  with	  one	  
space	  meeting	  the	  code	  standard	  size	  and	  the	  other	  slightly	   less	   in	  size,	  provides	  appropriate	  
loading	  n	  a	  manner	   that	   achieves	  a	  balance	  between	   the	  off-‐site	   loading	   space	  needs	  of	   the	  
proposed	   use	   and	   the	   limitation	   of	   land	   area	   on	   the	   site	   to	   meet	   the	   minimum	   code	  
requirement.	  	  	  

Without	   the	   granting	   of	   the	   variances	   requesting	   relief	   from	   the	   Town’s	   off-‐site	   loading	   space	  
size	   standard,	   the	  building	   site	   could	   not	   be	  modified	   to	   increase	   the	   size	   of	   the	   space,	   and	   2	  
loading	  spaces	  could	  not	  be	  provided,	  as	  proposed.	  	  

Failure	   to	  grant	   the	  variance	  will	   create	  an	  exceptional	   hardship	   that	   is	  peculiar	   to	   the	  subject	  
property	  and	  that	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  any	  other	  property	   located	  within	  the	  H120	  zoning	  district	  
nor	  in	  the	  surrounding	  neighborhood.	  

o The	   applicant	   sought	   and	   received	   approval	   from	   the	   Town	   for	   the	   Architectural	  
Significant	  building	  designation	  and	  relied	  in	  good	  faith	  on	  the	  Town’s	  desire	  to	  preserve	  
the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building.	  	  

o Both	  the	  Town	  and	  the	  applicant	  were	  aware	  that	  there	  are	  certain	  ground	  floor	   level	  
constraints	   that	   prohibit	   modifications	   to	   the	   site	   to	   ensure	   the	   preservation	   of	   the	  
architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building.	  

o There	   is	   no	   precedent	   established	   as	   a	   result	   of	   granting	   the	   variance	   in	   that	   the	  
variance	  applies	  to	  the	  only	  site	   in	  the	  H120	  zoning	  district	  that	  has	  a	  building	  with	  an	  
Architecturally	  Significant	  designation.	  	  	  	  

o The	   placement	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   site	   does	   not	   provide	   the	   opportunity	   for	   the	  
applicant	   to	   relocate	   the	   building	   in	   order	   to	   increase	   the	   ground	   floor	   land	   area	   to	  
accommodate	  the	  additional	  12’	  x	  30’	  space,	  which	  is	  unique	  and	  peculiar	  to	  the	  subject	  
property.	  	  

	  

• The	   request	   to	  provide	   an	   additional	   loading	   space	  on	  90th	   Street	   does	  not	   result	   in	   increased	  
flood	   heights,	   additional	   threats	   to	   public	   expense,	   create	   nuisance,	   cause	   fraud	   on	   or	  
victimization	  of	  the	  public,	  or	  conflict	  with	  existing	  local	  laws	  or	  ordinance	  in	  that	  the	  size	  is	  only	  
slightly	  less	  than	  the	  minimum	  required.	  	  

• The	  provision	  of	  a	  second	  off-‐street	  loading	  space	  at	  a	  size	  of	  approximately	  10	  ft.	  by	  30	  ft.	  is	  in	  
keeping	  with	  standards	  for	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces	  in	  several	  local	  south	  Florida	  municipalities.	  	  
For	  example:	  

o Cities	  of	  Aventura,	  Sunny	  Isles	  and	  Lauderdale-‐By-‐The-‐	  Sea	  have	  minimum	  standard	  for	  
off-‐street	   loading	  space	  of	  10	  ft.	   	  By	  25	  ft.,	  which	   is	  similar	   to	  the	  size	  as	  requested	   in	  
this	  variance.	  

The	   proposed	   10	   ft.	   by	   30	   ft.	   off-‐street	   parking	   space	   does	   not	   harm	   public	   safety,	   as	   reflected	   in	   the	  
applicant’s	  Traffic	  Impact	  Analysis	  study.	  



 37	  

The	   requested	   variance	   is	   the	  minimum	  necessary	   deviation	   from	   the	   requirements	   of	   the	   Town’s	   off-‐
street	   parking	   code	   requirements,	   proposing	   only	   2’	   ft.	   less	   in	   width	   than	   the	   required	   standard	   and	  
providing	  approx.	  30’	  in	  length	  as	  required	  by	  the	  code.	  	  

o The	   reduced	   size	   of	   the	   off-‐street	   parking	   space	   has	   been	   designed	   to	   the	  maximum	  
area	  feasible	  that	  can	  be	  accommodated	  on	  the	  site	  due	  to	  the	  site	  constraints	  imposed	  
by	  the	  preservation	  of	  the	  existing	  ground	  floor	  building	  façade	  on	  the	  west	  side.	  

It	   should	  also	  be	  noted	  that	  Section	  42-‐116	  Historic	  structures,	  permits	  variances	   to	  be	   issued	   for	   	  “the	  
repair	   or	   rehabilitation	   of	   "historic"	   structures	   …upon	   a	   determination	   that	   the	   proposed	   repair	   or	  
rehabilitation	   will	   not	   preclude	   the	   structure's	   continued	   designation	   as	   a	   historic"	   structure”.	   	   The	  
variance	  request	  similarly	  permits	  alteration	  and	  additions	  to	  an	  “architecturally	  significant”	  building	  in	  a	  
manner	   that	   will	   not	   preclude	   the	   structure’s	   continued	   designation	   as	   an	   “architecturally	   significant”	  
building.	  	  

	  

	  

	   	  



 38	  

Exhibit	  6	  	  
	  

Responses	  to	  Staff	  Comments	  of	  Conditional	  Use	  and	  Variance	  Requests	  
	  
	  
	  
Conditional	  Use	  Review	  Comments	  and	  Responses	  
Proposed	  Three-‐Tiered	  Parking	  Lift	  System	  
	  
Staff	   comments:	   The	   proposed	   use	   of	   the	   property	   as	   a	   hotel	   with	   parking	   lifts	   and	   pools	   is	  
consistent	  with	  the	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  and	  Zoning	  Code.	  
	   	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  The	  Applicant	  has	  submitted	  a	  Traffic	  Analysis	  (8995	  Collins	  Avenue	  Traffic	  
Impact	  Study	  (Revised).	  Staff	  has	  reviewed	  the	  report	  and	  has	  concerns	  related	  to	  the	  limited	  
vehicular	  staging	  area	  being	  proposed	  which	  only	  permits	  three	  vehicles	  at	  a	  time.	  The	  
resubmitted	  application	  includes	  an	  additional	  lift	  to	  assist	  with	  vehicles	  leaving	  the	  property,	  
however,	  Staff	  continues	  to	  have	  concerns	  over	  the	  fact	  that	  only	  three	  vehicles	  may	  be	  staged	  
at	  the	  drop	  off.	  
	  
Response	  –	  Do	  not	  agree:	  	  	  

	  
The	  Traffic	  Analysis	  was	  prepared	  by	  a	  professional	  traffic	  engineer,	  including	  revisions	  
requested	  by	  the	  Town	  traffic	  consultant,	  the	  result	  of	  which	  was	  the	  acceptance	  of	  the	  
traffic	  impact	  analysis,	  its	  findings	  and	  conclusions,	  which	  has	  found	  that	  the	  staging	  
area	  to	  accommodate	  three	  vehicles	  is	  sufficient.	  
	  
The	  staff’s	  comments	  conflict	  with	  the	  determination	  made	  by	  the	  Town’s	  traffic	  
consultant	  in	  his	  acceptance	  of	  the	  findings	  and	  conclusions	  of	  the	  professional	  traffic	  
impact	  analysis,	  as	  amended.	  
	  
There	  is	  no	  evidence	  or	  analysis	  put	  forth	  by	  staff	  that	  meets	  the	  professional	  standards	  
for	  a	  traffic	  impact	  analysis	  study	  that	  provides	  the	  basis	  for	  their	  concerns.	  

	  
	  
Staff	  comment:	  	  The	  Applicant	  is	  proposing	  that	  all	  lifts	  will	  be	  located	  in	  a	  subterranean	  garage	  
structure	  and	  will	  not	  be	  visible	  from	  the	  exterior.	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  
	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  Applicant	  is	  proposing	  that	  all	  parking	  for	  the	  building	  will	  be	  provided	  via	  
24-‐hour	  valet	  service.	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  Applicant	  has	  indicated	  that	  physical	  access	  to	  the	  basement	  will	  not	  be	  



 39	  

available	  to	  the	  general	  public	  including	  residents,	  guests,	  patrons	  or	  customers.	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  Applicant	  is	  proposing	  to	  enter	  into	  a	  maintenance	  agreement	  with	  the	  
manufacturer	  of	  the	  lifts	  prior	  to	  installation.	  It	  is	  important	  to	  note	  that	  there	  is	  only	  one	  lift	  to	  
and	  from	  the	  parking	  level	  where	  the	  vehicles	  are	  stored.	  Two	  lifts	  are	  proposed	  to	  
accommodate	  ingress	  and	  egress.	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  
	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  applicant	  has	  indicated	  that	  the	  proposed	  lifts	  fully	  comply	  with	  this	  
requirement.	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  applicant	  has	  indicated	  that	  the	  proposed	  lifts	  fully	  comply	  with	  this	  
requirement.	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  
	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  applicant	  has	  indicated	  that	  the	  proposed	  lifts	  fully	  comply	  with	  this	  
requirement.	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  	  
	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  height	  of	  the	  parking	  garage	  is	  proposed	  to	  be	  19	  feet	  which	  has	  been	  
determined	  to	  be	  enough	  height	  for	  the	  parking	  lifts	  and	  associated	  vehicles.	  	  
	  
	   Response:	  	  Agree.	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  However,	  Staff	  has	  reviewed	  the	  Traffic	  Analysis	  Report	  and	  has	  concerns	  
related	  to	  the	  limited	  vehicular	  staging	  area	  being	  proposed	  which	  only	  permits	  three	  vehicles	  at	  
a	  time.	  
	  
Response:	  	  Do	  not	  agree.	  	  

The	  Traffic	  Analysis	  was	  prepared	  by	  a	  professional	  traffic	  engineer,	  including	  revisions	  
requested	  by	  the	  Town	  traffic	  consultant,	  the	  result	  of	  which	  was	  acceptance	  of	  the	  
traffic	  impact	  analysis,	  its	  findings	  and	  conclusions,	  which	  has	  found	  that	  the	  staging	  
area	  to	  accommodate	  three	  vehicles	  is	  sufficient.	  
	  
The	  staff’s	  comments	  conflict	  with	  the	  determination	  made	  by	  the	  Town’s	  traffic	  
consultant	  in	  his	  acceptance	  of	  the	  findings	  and	  conclusions	  of	  the	  professional	  traffic	  
impact	  analysis,	  as	  amended.	  
	  



 40	  

There	  is	  no	  evidence	  or	  analysis	  put	  forth	  by	  staff	  that	  meets	  the	  professional	  standards	  
for	  a	  traffic	  impact	  analysis	  study	  that	  provides	  the	  basis	  for	  their	  concerns.	  

	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  applicant	  has	  indicated	  that	  the	  parking	  garage	  with	  the	  lifts	  is	  below	  
grade	  thus	  minimizing	  noise.	  They	  have	  not	  indicated	  if	  any	  other	  noise	  or	  vibration	  barriers	  will	  
be	  utilized.	  In	  addition	  to	  the	  standards	  set	  forth	  in	  this	  zoning	  code	  for	  the	  particular	  use,	  all	  
proposed	  
	  
	   Response:	  Agree.	  

	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  The	  limited	  stacking	  and	  single	  garage	  elevator	  lift	  continues	  to	  create	  
concerns	  regarding	  stacking	  and	  the	  potential	  for	  spillover	  into	  the	  street.	  	  
	  
The	  parking	  lift	  conditional	  use	  would	  allow	  for	  a	  site	  plan	  that	  only	  has	  space	  for	  three	  vehicles	  
at	  the	  pickup	  and	  drop	  off	  area,	  while	  utilizing	  a	  triple	  lift	  system	  for	  parking.	  	  
	  
This	  system	  stacks	  vehicles	  three	  high	  and	  is	  providing	  one	  lift	  for	  ingress	  and	  one	  for	  egress,	  but	  
has	  only	  one	  lift	  to	  accommodate	  the	  cars.	  	  
	  
This	  has	  caused	  staff	  to	  be	  concerned	  about	  potential	  encroachment	  into	  the	  right	  of	  way	  for	  
excess	  vehicles.	  
	  
Responses:	  Do	  not	  agree.	  

1. The	  parking	  lift	  system	  provisions	  of	  the	  Town	  Code	  provide	  the	  standards	  by	  which	  
such	  systems	  are	  to	  be	  evaluated.	  	  	  

2. In	  particular,	  the	  code	  requires	  a	  queuing	  analysis	  to	  be	  prepared	  by	  a	  professional	  
traffic	  engineer.	  	  	  

3. This	  analysis	  has	  been	  prepared	  by	  a	  professional	  traffic	  engineer	  and	  was	  reviewed	  and	  
accepted	  by	  the	  Town’s	  traffic	  engineering	  consultant,	  the	  conclusion	  of	  which	  was	  that	  
the	  drop	  off	  areas	  and	  lift	  system	  ensures	  efficient	  processing	  times	  and	  queue	  lengths	  
to	  accommodate	  the	  proposed	  parking	  stacked	  vehicles.16	  

4. Additionally,	  the	  applicant	  has	  added	  an	  additional	  “car	  elevator”,	  providing	  a	  two	  car	  
elevator	  system,	  to	  address	  this	  concern.	  

5. The	  constraints	  of	  on-‐site	  design	  are	  a	  result	  of	  the	  preservation	  of	  the	  architectural	  
integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building,	  in	  keeping	  with	  the	  recommendations	  of	  the	  2006	  
Charrette	  and	  Town	  Comprehensive	  Plan,	  and	  the	  Architecturally	  Significant	  designation	  
of	  the	  building	  per	  code	  section	  90-‐33.	  	  	  

6. At	  the	  time	  the	  building	  was	  built	  in	  the	  1960s,	  the	  current	  code	  standards	  were	  not	  in	  
place.	  	  As	  such,	  the	  building	  was	  built	  with	  only	  a	  10	  foot	  setback	  from	  90th	  Street,	  
providing	  a	  very	  limited	  space	  between	  the	  existing	  building	  and	  the	  property	  line,	  
insufficient	  to	  accommodate	  a	  drop	  off	  area	  and	  staging	  of	  vehicles	  entirely	  within	  the	  
private	  property.	  

7. An	  encroachment	  agreement	  has	  been	  proposed	  to	  address	  the	  right-‐of-‐way-‐	  
encroachment	  and	  accommodate	  an	  improved	  drop	  off	  area	  in	  keeping	  with	  current	  
code	  standards.	  

8. Encroachment	  agreements	  are	  a	  tool	  used	  by	  many	  communities	  to	  permit	  such	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
16	  See	  Traffic	  Queuing	  Analysis	  Prepared	  by	  Thomas	  A.	  Hall,	  P.E.	  



 41	  

encroachments	  into	  rights-‐of-‐way,	  especially	  where	  the	  encroachment	  is	  a	  result	  of	  a	  
setback	  issue	  caused	  by	  preservation	  of	  setbacks	  of	  an	  existing	  “historic”	  structure.	  	  	  

9. Both	  the	  Town	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  and	  Design	  Guidelines	  call	  for	  flexibility	  and	  
implementation	  of	  innovative	  design	  solutions	  and	  standards	  for	  the	  purpose	  of	  
encouraging	  the	  redevelopment	  of	  areas	  east	  of	  Collins	  Avenue	  for	  tourist	  facilities,	  and	  
for	  preserving	  the	  architecturally	  significant	  buildings.	  

10. A	  Traffic	  Impact	  Analysis	  was	  also	  prepared	  by	  a	  professional	  transportation	  engineer,	  
reviewed	  and	  accepted	  by	  the	  Town	  traffic	  consultant,	  as	  modified,	  which	  includes	  the	  
analysis	  of	  the	  proposed	  encroachment	  into	  90th	  Street,	  east	  of	  Collins	  Avenue,	  and	  
which	  concludes	  that	  the	  functionality	  of	  the	  street	  is	  not	  impacted	  by	  the	  proposed	  
encroachment.	  

11. Research	  of	  parking	  lift	  industry	  standards	  also	  supports	  the	  fact	  that	  where	  more	  
parking	  spaces	  can	  be	  accommodated	  in	  a	  lift	  system,	  there	  are	  social	  and	  
environmental	  benefits	  that	  result,	  improving	  the	  public,	  health,	  safety	  and	  general	  
welfare	  of	  the	  community,	  as	  a	  result	  of	  a:	  

a. Reduction	  in	  impact	  on	  historic	  areas	  and	  buildings	  –	  smaller	  footprint	  and	  
discrete	  access	  

b. Increase	  in	  personal	  safety	  at	  night	  	  
c. Reduction	  in	  accidents	  and	  car	  damage	  
d. Minimization	  of	  theft	  
e. Increase	  in	  safety	  for	  pedestrians	  and	  cyclists	  
f. Reduction	  in	  noise	  impact	  and	  pollution,	  acoustic	  and	  vibrational	  impacts	  

i. Vehicles	  engines	  are	  turned	  off	  during	  storage	  and	  retrieval	  which	  
according	  to	  industry	  standards,	  reduces	  emissions	  up	  to	  80%	  

ii. Reduces	  energy	  consumption	  by	  providing	  minimal	  lighting	  and	  reduced	  
ventilation	  requirements.	  17	  

	  
	  
Staff	   Comments:	   	   The	   site	   improvements	   being	   proposed	   are	   not	   congruent	   with	   other	  
surrounding	   properties	   since	   the	   applicant	   is	   proposing	   to	   utilize	   the	   Town’s	   right-‐of-‐way	   to	  
meet	  site	  development	  standards	  for	  landscaping	  and	  access	  ways.	  
	  
Response:	  	  Do	  not	  agree.	  

1. The	  conditional	  use	  and	  variance	  requests	  are	  proposed	  on	  a	  site	  that	  has	  a	  unique	  
and	  peculiar	  situation	  as	  a	  result	  of	  the	  building	  being	  designated	  as	  an	  
Architecturally	  Significant	  Building,	  which	  limits	  ground	  floor	  site	  modifications	  that	  
could	  potentially	  impact	  the	  preservation	  of	  the	  integrity	  of	  the	  building’s	  
architectural	  significance.	  

2. Any	  alteration	  or	  addition	  to	  the	  existing	  building	  as	  permitted	  under	  the	  
Architectural	  designated	  standards	  [90-‐33)	  would	  result	  in	  the	  need	  to	  landscaping	  
and	  accessways	  to	  meet	  current	  code	  standards	  to	  the	  greatest	  extent	  possible.	  	  

3. The	  request	  to	  utilize	  a	  very	  small	  portion	  of	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way	  is	  because	  the	  
location	  of	  the	  existing	  building	  on	  the	  lot	  does	  not	  provide	  sufficient	  area	  at	  the	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
17	  See	  http://parkplusinc.com/news/10-‐social-‐benefits-‐sustainable-‐parking/	  



 42	  

ground	  floor	  level	  to	  install	  the	  landscaping	  and	  accessway	  entirely	  within	  the	  
property	  to	  meet	  current	  code	  standards.	  	  	  

4. The	  existing	  site	  access	  conditions	  are	  outdated	  and	  do	  not	  meet	  current	  code	  
standards.	  By	  permitting	  a	  minimal	  right-‐of-‐way	  area	  (382	  sq.	  ft.)	  of	  encroachment	  
to	  be	  used	  to	  accommodate	  access	  improvements	  to	  provide	  improved	  drop	  off	  and	  
vehicular	  use	  areas	  can	  be	  modified	  to	  upgrade	  the	  current	  site	  access,	  	  more	  which	  
is	  more	  congruent	  with	  the	  surrounding	  area	  than	  what	  currently	  exists	  on	  the	  site.	  	  

5. Without	  approval	  of	  the	  encroachment	  into	  the	  right	  of	  way,	  the	  existing	  poor	  
access	  conditions	  will	  remain,	  which	  is	  not	  congruent	  with	  surrounding	  properties.	  	  

6. Additionally,	  the	  proposed	  parking	  lift	  will	  be	  located	  completely	  within	  the	  building	  
and	  designed	  to	  meet	  all	  of	  the	  parking	  lift	  standards	  of	  the	  Town	  zoning	  code,	  as	  
further	  discussed	  in	  Exhibit	  3,	  attached	  to	  this	  report.	  	  	  

7. The	  subterranean	  location	  of	  the	  lift	  system	  will	  ensure	  that	  the	  parking	  lift	  facility	  is	  
not	  visible	  from	  adjacent	  properties	  and	  that	  neighboring	  properties	  are	  not	  
impacted	  by	  noise,	  glare	  and	  similar	  impacts	  that	  may	  otherwise	  be	  associated	  with	  
a	  parking	  lift	  system.	  

Staff	  Comments:	  It	  is	  staff’s	  interpretation	  that	  there	  is	  not	  adequate	  area	  available	  at	  the	  drop	  
off	  and	  pick	  up	  driveway	  for	  the	  ingress	  and	  egress	  of	  vehicles	  on	  the	  property.	  The	  applicant	  is	  
proposing	  one	  lift	  for	  the	  triple	  stacked	  vehicles	  as	  well	  as	  three	  spaces	  for	  the	  drop	  off	  area.	  
This	  means	  that	  Staff’s	  concern	  is	  if	  more	  than	  three	  vehicles	  are	  either	  arriving	  or	  departing,	  
there	  would	  be	  spillover	  of	  cars	  into	  the	  right-‐of-‐way.	  The	  applicant	  has	  also	  indicated	  that	  they	  
will	  be	  storing	  parts	  for	  the	  lifts	  on	  site	  to	  provide	  efficient	  turnaround	  times	  to	  repair	  any	  
services	  problems,	  however	  with	  only	  one	  lift,	  any	  delay	  would	  cause	  vehicles	  to	  be	  overflowed	  
into	  the	  right	  of	  way,	  resulting	  in	  an	  unsafe	  vehicular	  and	  pedestrian	  condition.	  

Response:	  	  Do	  not	  agree.	  	  	  

1. The	  parking	  lift	  system	  has	  been	  designed	  to	  safely	  move	  vehicles	  in	  and	  out	  of	  the	  
parking	  lift	  system,	  as	  further	  reflected	  in	  the	  traffic	  queuing	  analysis	  that	  was	  
prepared	  in	  accordance	  with	  the	  code	  requirements.	  

2. The	  staff’s	  comments	  conflict	  with	  the	  determination	  made	  by	  the	  Town’s	  traffic	  
consultant	  in	  his	  acceptance	  of	  the	  findings	  and	  conclusions	  of	  the	  professional	  
traffic	  impact	  and	  queuing	  analyses.	  

3. There	  is	  no	  alternative	  analysis	  put	  forth	  by	  staff	  that	  meets	  the	  professional	  
standards	  for	  a	  traffic	  impact	  and	  queuing	  study	  that	  provides	  the	  basis	  for	  their	  
concerns.	  

4. There	  is	  no	  evidence	  provided	  in	  support	  of	  the	  staff’s	  comments	  that	  “any	  delay”	  in	  
the	  lifting	  of	  vehicles	  would	  cause	  vehicles	  to	  be	  “overflowed	  into	  the	  right-‐of-‐way”,	  
resulting	  in	  an	  “unsafe	  vehicular	  and	  pedestrian	  condition”.	  

5. To	  the	  contrary,	  a	  queuing	  analysis	  has	  been	  performed	  by	  a	  professional	  
transportation	  engineer,	  in	  accordance	  with	  standards	  of	  the	  Town	  Code,	  which	  
demonstrates	  that	  there	  is	  sufficient	  queuing	  provided	  to	  meet	  the	  code	  standards,	  
none	  of	  which	  results	  in	  an	  unsafe	  vehicular	  and	  pedestrian	  condition.	  

6. Additionally,	  the	  applicant	  has	  added	  an	  additional	  “car	  elevator”	  to	  address	  this	  



 43	  

concern.	  
	  

Staff	  comments:	  
The	  application	  includes	  two	  landscape	  variances.	  	  
	  
The	  code	  requires	  specific	  quantities	  of	  landscaping	  to	  be	  planted	  onsite.	  	  
	  
There	  is	  not	  adequate	  space	  from	  the	  existing	  building	  to	  the	  right	  of	  way	  line	  to	  plant	  the	  
required	  landscaping.	  	  
	  
The	  alterations	  of	  the	  building	  will	  increase	  the	  non-‐conformity;	  therefore	  the	  project	  loses	  
its	  non-‐conforming	  status	  and	  will	  not	  be	  vested	  for	  the	  current	  landscaping.	  	  
	  
The	  applicant	  is	  proposing	  to	  permit	  off-‐site	  landscape	  improvements,	  immediately	  
adjacent	  to	  the	  property	  in	  the	  surrounding	  public	  right-‐of-‐way.	  	  
	  
The	  quality	  and	  materials	  of	  the	  proposed	  landscaping	  would	  meet	  the	  code	  
requirements	  if	  they	  were	  installed	  onsite.	  	  
	  
The	  parking	  lifts	  proposed	  are	  located	  in	  a	  subterranean	  garage	  structure	  and	  will	  not	  be	  
visible	  from	  the	  exterior.	  	  
	  
This	  will	  limit	  noise,	  light	  and	  other	  potential	  nuisances.	  	  
	  

Hotel	  Pool	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  The	  hotel	  pool	  will	  be	  adequately	  landscaped	  and	  is	  not	  expected	  to	  negatively	  
impact	  neighboring	  properties.	  	  
	  
Response:	  Agree.	  

	  
	  

Variance	  Review	  Comments	  and	  Responses:	  
	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  	  
	  
The	  existing	  building	  was	  constructed	  in	  1966.	  The	  code	  requirements	  have	  been	  modified	  since	  
that	  time	  resulting	  in	  a	  non-‐conforming	  structure.	  The	  non-‐conforming	  code	  section	  states	  that	  
a	   non-‐conformity	  may	   remain	   but	   cannot	   be	   enlarged	   or	   altered,	   unless	   the	   enlargement	   or	  
alteration	  is	  conforming.	  The	  Town’s	  Design	  Review	  Board	  has	  approved	  the	  existing	  building	  as	  
Architecturally	  Significant	  under	  the	  terms	  of	  Town	  Code	  Section	  90-‐33(3)	  which	  allows	  for	  the	  
expansion	  to	  existing	  buildings	  in	  the	  H120	  Zoning	  District	  based	  on	  previously	  established	  
setbacks	  for	  the	  building.	  However,	  the	  Architecturally	  Significant	  designation	  does	  not	  exempt	  
the	   building	   and	   property	   from	   other	   Code	   requirements	   such	   as	   parking,	   buffers	   and	  
landscaping.	  
	  
The	  applicant	  is	  requesting	  to	  expand	  the	  existing	  building	  with	  three	  additional	  floors	  and	  



 44	  

increasing	   the	   number	   of	   units	   which	   does	   not	   meet	   the	   requirements	   or	   intent	   of	   the	  
nonconforming	   code	   section.	   Pursuant	   to	   the	   requirements	   of	   the	   non-‐conforming	   section	   of	  
the	  Town	  Code,	  alterations	  of	  the	  magnitude	  proposed	  by	  the	  applicant	  require	  that	  the	  site	  be	  
brought	   into	  conformance	  with	  the	  Town	  Code.	  Thus,	  the	  applicant	   is	  requesting	  variances	  for	  
the	  three	  items.	  
	  
Response.	  Do	  not	  agree.	  
	  

1. While	  the	  Architecturally	  Significant	  designation	  does	  not	  exempt	  the	  building	  and	  
property	   from	  meeting	  other	  code	  requirements,	   the	   implementing	  Ordinance	  16-‐
1655,	   made	   it	   very	   clear	   that	   the	   intent	   and	   purpose	   was	   to	   “incentivize	   the	  
preservation,	  renovation	  and	  enhancement	  of	  architecturally	  significant	  buildings	  on	  
H120	  zoned	  lots”.	  	  	  

2. The	   amendment	   provided	   for	   text	   changes	   to	   the	   provisions	   that	   governs	  
nonconforming	   structures,	   to	  provide	  “alternative	  development	  option	   for	  owners	  
of	   building	   deemed	  architecturally	   significant”,	  which	   includes	   the	  preservation	  of	  
existing	  setbacks	  where	  such	  preservation	  is	  deemed	  necessary	  and	  appropriate	  to	  
preserve	  the	  architectural	  design	  integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building.	  

3. The	   Town’s	   Comprehensive	   Plan	   further	   encourages	   the	   use	   of	   flexible	   and	  
innovative	   land	  development	  standards	   in	  support	  of	   redevelopment	  of	  properties	  
east	  of	  Collins	  Avenue	  for	  tourist	  facilities,	  and	  to	  preserve	  buildings	  that	  reflect	  the	  
historic	  and	  architectural	  characteristics	  of	  the	  community.	  	  [See	  Exhibit	  1]	  

4. As	  such,	  it	  would	  be	  impossible	  to	  achieve	  the	  intent	  of	  provisions	  of	  Section	  90-‐33,	  
which	  permits	  the	  alteration	  and	  addition	  to	  existing	  designated	  buildings,	  without	  
triggering	  the	  imposition	  of	  the	  current	  development	  standards,	  making	  the	  request	  
for	  relief	  from	  certain	  code	  provisions	  inevitable.	  

5. The	  request	  to	  provide	  landscaping	  and	  trees	  in	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way	  achieves	  the	  
same	  end	  result,	   regardless	  of	  where	  the	  planting	   is	   located,	  which	   is	   to	  provide	  a	  
landscaped	   canopy	   and	   open	   space	   area	   between	   the	   street	   and	   the	   area	  where	  
pedestrians	  will	  walk.	  	  

6. The	   traffic	   impact	   analysis	   further	   concluded	   that	   the	   encroachment	   of	   the	  
landscaping	  would	  not	  change	  the	  functionality	  of	  90th	  Street.	  

7. As	  previously	  noted,	  planning	  literature	  further	  supports	  the	  location	  of	  street	  trees	  
and	  landscaping	  in	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way,	  citing	  safety	  benefits,	  as	  well.	  	  

	  
	  
Staff	  Comment:	  
A.	   Section	   90-‐82.	   –	   (Loading	   Space	   Size).	   The	   applicant	   is	   choosing	   to	   expand	   the	   non-‐
conforming	  building	  so	  therefore	  the	  Code	  requirement	  for	  two	  loading	  spaces	  (12’	  x	  30’)	  must	  
be	  met.	  The	  site	  plan	  includes	  one	  space	  at	  12’x30’	  and	  another	  at	  (9’x25’)	  which	  does	  not	  meet	  
the	  size	  requirement	  of	  the	  Code.	  The	  lack	  of	  a	  second	  full	  size	  loading	  space	  could	  result	  in	  on-‐
street	  loading	  and	  unloading.	  
	  



 45	  

Other	  properties	  within	  the	  same	  zoning	  district	  would	  be	  required	  to	  meet	  the	  requirement.	  
	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree	  with	  staff’s	  comparison	  of	  the	  conditions	  of	  the	  subject	  property	  and	  
other	  properties	  in	  the	  H120	  zoning	  district.	  	  

1. Other	  properties	  do	  not	  have	   the	  unique	  circumstance	  as	   the	   subject	  property,	  which	  
contains	   an	   existing	   architecturally	   significant	   building	   with	   existing	   site	   ground	   floor	  
conditions	  that	  limit	  the	  applicant’s	  ability	  to	  meet	  current	  code	  standard.	  	  	  

2. The	  request	  is	  to	  permit	  a	  secondary	  loading	  space	  at	  a	  minimum	  size	  of	  approximately	  
10’	   by	   30’	   which	   is	   in	   keeping	  with	   loading	   space	   standards	   employed	   by	   other	   local	  
communities	  and	  which	   is	  only	  de	  minimis	   in	   its	   request	   for	  a	  “lesser	  width”	   from	  the	  
12’	  required	  by	  code.	  

3. The	   applicant	   is	   proposing	   a	   conversion	   of	   the	   existing	   multifamily	   use	   to	   provide	   a	  
Condo-‐Hotel,	   at	   a	   level	   of	   quality	   and	   standard	   that	   will	   ensure	   the	   success	   of	   the	  
proposed	  project.	  	  	  

a. Expansion	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   is	   not	   only	   necessary	   to	   make	   such	   a	  
conversion	   feasible	   and	   practical	   to	   meet	   industry	   standards	   in	   quality	   and	  
function,	   and	   to	   ensure	   that	   the	   redevelopment	   meets	   the	   expectations	   of	  
quality	  of	  the	  Town,	  but	  is	  also	  necessary	  to	  meet	  other	  state	  and	  federal	  code	  
standards,	  as	  well,	  such	  as,	  but	  not	  limited	  to,	  improvements	  necessary	  to	  meet	  
ADA	  accessibility	  standards,	  and	  current	  hurricane	  proof	  standards	  that	  did	  not	  
exist	  when	  the	  building	  was	  constructed	  in	  the	  1960s.	  	  	  

b. Such	   internal	   building	   improvements	   would	   most	   definitely	   trigger	   the	   costs	  
factor	   that	   would	   result	   in	   the	   loss	   of	   the	   legal	   nonconforming	   status	   of	   the	  
existing	  building,	  requiring	  request	  for	  relief	  from	  Town	  code	  provisions	  in	  order	  
to	  permit	  the	  Condo-‐Hotel	  development.	  

	  
Staff	   comment:	   The	   Code	   requires	   a	   10-‐foot	   buffer	   with	   three	   trees	   every	   50	   linear	   feet.	  
However,	  the	  applicant	  is	  choosing	  to	  relocate	  the	  entrance	  to	  the	  building	  and	  valet	  parking	  to	  
the	  90th	   Street	   side	  of	   the	  property	   thus	   resulting	   in	   the	   required	  buffer	   and	   trees	  not	  being	  
completely	  located	  within	  the	  applicant’s	  property.	  Several	  of	  the	  required	  trees	  and	  portions	  of	  
the	   buffer	   are	   provided	   off-‐site	   in	   the	   Right-‐of-‐	   Way	   which	   the	   applicant	   is	   requesting	   an	  
encroachment	  agreement	  with	  the	  Town	  in	  order	  to	  maintain.	  
	  
However,	  these	  areas,	  landscaped	  or	  otherwise,	  do	  not	  count	  toward	  the	  applicant’s	  Landscape	  
Buffer	  Code	  requirement.	  Other	  properties	  within	  the	  same	  zoning	  district	  would	  be	  required	  to	  
meet	  the	  requirement	  on	  their	  property.	  
	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree	  for	  same	  reasons	  as	  previously	  stated.	  

1. Staff	  is	  not	  fully	  considering	  the	  constraints	  imposed	  by	  the	  preservation	  of	  the	  existing	  
setbacks	   and	  other	   site	   conditions,	  which	  makes	   it	   impossible	   to	   locate	   trees	   and	   the	  
landscape	   buffer	   entirely	   on	   the	   private	   property,	   without	   significantly	   changing	   the	  
setback	   of	   the	   building	   on	   its	   north	   side,	   and	   thus,	   significantly	   impacting	   the	  
architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  north	  façade	  of	  the	  building.	  

	  
Staff	   comment:	   	   The	   applicant	   is	   choosing	   to	   relocate	   the	   entrance	   to	   the	   building	   and	   valet	  
parking	   to	   the	   90th	   Street	   side	   of	   the	   property	   thus	   resulting	   in	   all	   of	   the	   required	   trees	   not	  
being	   able	   to	   be	   completely	   located	   within	   the	   applicant’s	   property.	   Several	   of	   the	   required	  
large	   trees	   are	   provided	   off-‐site	   in	   the	   Right-‐of-‐Way	   which	   the	   applicant	   is	   requesting	   an	  



 46	  

encroachment	   agreement	   with	   the	   Town	   in	   order	   to	   maintain.	   However,	   these	   areas,	   trees	  
located	  in	  the	  Right-‐of-‐Way,	  do	  not	  count	  toward	  the	  applicant’s	  required	  trees.	  
	  
Other	  properties	  within	  the	  same	  zoning	  district	  would	  be	  required	  to	  meet	  the	  requirement	  on	  
their	  property.	  
	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree.	  

1. The	  relocation	  of	  the	  entrance	  to	  90th	  street	  is	  necessary	  to	  improve	  the	  negative	  access	  
conditions	   that	   currently	   and	   historically	   have	   existed	   on	   the	   site.	   	   The	   relocation	  
removes	   the	   primary	   access	   from	   Collins	   Avenue,	   a	   major	   trafficway,	   and	   more	  
appropriately	   locates	   it	  on	  a	  portion	  of	  90th	  Street	  that	   is	  anticipated	  to	  have	  very	   low	  
traffic	  volume	  due	  to	  the	  dead	  end	  at	  the	  beach.	  	  	  

2. The	  choice	  to	  relocate	  the	  entrance	  has	  been	  proposed	  in	  consideration	  of	  providing	  the	  
best	  access	  feasible	  to	  and	  from	  the	  site,	  so	  as	  to	  meet	  the	  Town’s	  codes	  to	  the	  greatest	  
extent	  possible.	  

3. The	  site	  improvements	  must	  be	  considered	  within	  the	  context	  of	  a	  comprehensive	  site	  
review,	   with	   thought	   to	   how	   the	   improvements	   “collectively”	   improve	   the	   overall	  
current	   site	   conditions,	   without	   negatively	   impacting	   the	   adjacent	   roadways	   and	  
surrounding	  area	  as	  has	  been	  confirmed	  by	  the	  applicant’s	  traffic	  consultant.	  

	  
Staff	  comments:	  The	  existing	  structure	  was	  developed	  under	  a	  different	  code,	  which	  is	  not	  the	  
result	   of	   the	   applicant.	   However,	   as	   discussed	   under	   Variance	   Criteria	   (1)	   the	   applicant	   is	  
choosing	  to	  make	  additions	  and	  alterations	  to	  the	  building	  which	  trigger	  a	  loss	  of	  the	  building’s	  
non-‐conforming	  status	  and	  thus	  the	  project	  must	  meet	  the	  requirements	  of	  the	  Town	  Code.	  
	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree	  for	  all	  of	  the	  reasons	  previously	  noted	  herein.	  	  
	  
Staff	  Comments	  regarding	  review	  of	  Section	  90-‐82.	  –	  (Loading	  Space	  Size).	  	  

	  
Staff	  comments:	  The	  applicant	  is	  choosing	  to	  expand	  the	  non-‐conforming	  building	  so	  therefore	  
the	  Code	   requirement	   for	   two	   loading	  spaces	   (12’	   x	  30’)	   is	   required.	  Therefore,	   the	   request	   is	  
the	  result	  of	  the	  applicant.	  

	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree.	  
1. The	   applicant	   is	   proposing	   a	   Condo-‐Hotel	   use	   greater	   than	   100,000	   sq.	   ft.	   in	   size,	  

which	   triggers	   the	  demand	   for	   the	  provision	  of	  2	   loading	  spaces,	  however,	   for	   the	  
purpose	  of	  providing	  a	  conversion	  of	  the	  existing	  multifamily	  use	  to	  a	  Condo-‐Hotel,	  
at	   a	   level	   of	   quality	   and	   standard	   that	   will	   ensure	   the	   success	   of	   the	   proposed	  
project.	  	  	  

a. Expansion	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   is	   not	   only	   necessary	   to	   make	   such	   a	  
conversion	  feasible	  and	  practical	  to	  meet	   industry	  standards	   in	  quality	  and	  
function,	  but	  also	  to	  ensure	  that	  redevelopment	  of	  the	  site	  is	  feasible	  so	  as	  
to	   meet	   the	   expectations	   of	   the	   Town	   and	   its	   desire	   to	   redevelopment	  
outdated	   multifamily	   buildings	   located	   east	   of	   Collins	   Avenue	   for	   tourist	  
related	  uses,	  where	  without	   such	  building	  alterations	  and	  additions,	   could	  
not	  be	  met.	  

2. The	  applicant	   is	  providing	  2	  off-‐street	   loading	   spaces,	   in	  keeping	  with	   the	   spirit	  of	  
the	   code	   provisions,	   with	   only	   one	   being	   slightly	   less	   in	   size	   than	   the	   required	  



 47	  

standard,	  due	  to	  existing	  site	  constraints	  of	  the	  an	  existing	  building	  which	  has	  been	  
designated	  as	  an	  Architecturally	  Significant	  building	  by	  the	  Town,	  and	  not	  as	  a	  result	  
of	  any	  ground	  floor	  changes	  in	  site	  conditions	  being	  proposed	  by	  the	  applicant.	  	  

	  
Staff	  comments:	  
The	  Code	  requires	  a	  10-‐foot	  buffer	  with	  three	  trees	  every	  50	  linear	  feet.	  However,	  the	  applicant	  
is	  choosing	  to	  relocate	  the	  entrance	  to	  the	  building	  and	  valet	  parking	  to	  the	  90th	  Street	  side	  of	  
the	  property	  thus	  resulting	  in	  the	  required	  buffer	  and	  trees	  not	  being	  completely	  located	  within	  
the	  applicant’s	  property.	  Therefore,	  the	  request	  is	  the	  result	  of	  the	  applicant.	  
	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree	  for	  the	  same	  reasons	  stated	  above.	  	  	  

1. The	  relocation	  of	  the	  entrance	  to	  90th	  street	  is	  necessary	  to	  improve	  the	  negative	  access	  
conditions	   that	   currently	   and	   historically	   have	   existed	   on	   the	   site.	   	   The	   relocation	  
removes	   the	   primary	   access	   from	   Collins	   Avenue,	   a	   major	   trafficway,	   and	   more	  
appropriately	   locates	   it	  on	  a	  portion	  of	  90th	  Street	  that	   is	  anticipated	  to	  have	  very	   low	  
traffic	  volume	  due	  to	  the	  dead	  end	  at	  the	  beach.	  	  	  

2. The	  choice	  to	  relocate	  the	  entrance	  has	  been	  proposed	  in	  consideration	  of	  providing	  the	  
best	  access	  feasible	  to	  and	  from	  the	  site,	  so	  as	  to	  meet	  the	  Town’s	  codes	  to	  the	  greatest	  
extent	  possible.	  

3. As	  previously	  noted,	  the	  request	  is	  due	  to	  the	  fact	  that	  the	  existing	  north	  side	  setbacks	  
of	   the	   building	   are	   being	   preserved	   to	   preserve	   the	   architectural	   integrity	   of	   the	  
building,	   which	   is	   unique	   to	   the	   subject	   property	   and	   not	   comparable	   to	   other	  
properties	  in	  the	  H120.	  

4. The	  request	  is	  not	  due	  to	  a	  change	  in	  existing	  ground	  floor	  site	  conditions	  on	  the	  north	  
side	   of	   the	   property	   by	   the	   applicant	   resulting	   in	   the	   need	   to	   request	   relief	   from	   the	  
code.	  

	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  The	  existing	  structure	  does	  not	  meet	  current	  Code	  requirements	  for	  setbacks.	  
The	   building	  was	   found	   to	   be	  Architecturally	   Significant	   by	   the	  Design	   Review	  Board	   allowing	  
expansion	   of	   the	   building	   with	   historic	   setbacks	   but	   not	   exempting	   the	   property	   from	   other	  
Code	  requirements.	  
	  

Response:	  Do	  not	  agree.	  

There	  is	  good	  and	  sufficient	   cause	  to	  grant	  the	  variance	  request	  to	  allow	  the	  required	  
landscape	   buffer	   and	   street	   trees	   to	   be	   located	   adjacent	   to	   the	   property,	   within	   a	  
proposed	  encroachment	  area	  for	  the	  following	  reasons:	  	  

o In	   accordance	  with	   Section	   90-‐33	   of	   the	   Town	   code,	   the	   existing	   building	   has	  
been	  designated	  an	  Architecturally	  Significant	  building.	  

o The	   existing	   building	   has	   been	   designated	   by	   the	   Town	   as	   an	   Architecturally	  
Significant	  building	  in	  accordance	  with	  Section	  90-‐33	  of	  the	  Town	  Zoning	  Code,	  
which	   requires	   that	   alterations	   and	   additions	   to	   the	   existing	   building,	   as	  
proposed,	   in	  a	  manner	  that	  preserves	  the	  architectural	   integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  
building.	  	  



 48	  

o The	  existing	  building	  was	  built	   in	  1966,	  prior	  to	  the	  enactment	  by	  the	  Town	  of	  
the	  current	  landscape	  buffer	  and	  street	  tree	  requirements.	  

o The	   width	   of	   the	   lot	   on	   which	   the	   existing	   building	   is	   located	   is	   extremely	  
narrow	   [73	   ft.],	   and	   the	  existing	  building	  provides	  only	  a	  10	   ft.	   setback	  on	   the	  
north	  side,	  which	  is	  insufficient	  to	  accommodate	  the	  required	  landscape	  buffer	  
and	  trees.	  	  

o The	   setbacks	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   are	   being	   preserved	   to	   preserve	   the	  
architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  building’s	  north	  side	  façade.	  	  

o It	   is	  not	  feasible	  to	  change	  the	  existing	  building	  setback	   in	  any	  way	  that	  would	  
otherwise	  provide	  additional	   space	  needed	   to	   locate	   the	   landscape	  buffer	  and	  
trees	  entirely	  within	  the	  property.	  

o The	   requested	   variance	   does	   not	   subvert	   the	   intent	   of	   the	   Town’s	   landscape	  
code.	   	   To	   the	   contrary	   the	   request	   is	   consistent	  with	   the	   spirit,	   purpose,	   and	  
intent	   of	   the	   Town’s	   landscape	   code,	   in	   that	   landscaping	   and	   trees	   are	   being	  
added	  to	  the	  benefit	  of	  the	  general	  public.	  

o The	   variance	   request	   gives	   effect	   to	   the	   ordinance	   intent	   in	   that	   without	   the	  
granting	  of	   the	   variance	   the	  addition	  of	   a	   landscaped	  area	  and	   trees	  along	  90	  
Street	  would	  not	  otherwise	  be	  possible.	  	  

	  

• Additionally,	   there	   is	  good	  and	   sufficient	   cause	   to	  grant	   the	  variance	  request	   to	  allow	  
the	  off-‐	  street	   loading	  space	  to	  be	  provided	  at	  approximately	  10	  ft.	  X	  30	  ft.	   in	  size,	   for	  
the	  following	  reasons.	  

o The	  existing	  building	  was	  built	   in	  1966,	  prior	  to	  the	  enactment	  by	  the	  Town	  of	  
the	  current	  off-‐street	  loading	  space	  requirements.	  

o The	   width	   of	   the	   lot	   on	   which	   the	   existing	   building	   is	   located	   is	   extremely	  
narrow	  [73	  ft.],	  which	  does	  not	  provide	  sufficient	  land	  area	  to	  increase	  the	  size	  
of	  the	  proposed	  a	  second	  off-‐street	  loading	  space.	  

o The	   requested	   variance	   does	   not	   subvert	   the	   intent	   of	   the	   Town’s	   off-‐street	  
loading	  space	  requirements.	  	  To	  the	  contrary	  the	  request	  is	  consistent	  with	  the	  
spirit,	  purpose,	  and	  intent	  of	  the	  Town’s	  the	  requirements,	  in	  that:	  

§ The	   proposal	   to	   alter	   the	   existing	   building	   provides	   for	   2	   off-‐street	  
loading	  spaces	  as	  required	  by	  the	  code;	  and,	  

§ The	  requested	  approx.	  10	  ft.	  by	  30	  ft.	  size	  is	  only	  slightly	  less	  in	  size	  than	  
the	  12	  ft.	  b	  30	  ft.	  min	  standard;	  and,	  

o The	  applicant	  is	  providing	  2	  off-‐street	  loading	  spaces,	  in	  keeping	  with	  the	  spirit	  
of	  the	  code	  provisions,	  with	  only	  one	  being	  slightly	  less	  in	  size	  than	  the	  required	  
standard,	  due	   to	  existing	   site	   constraints	  of	   the	  an	  existing	  building	  which	  has	  
been	  designated	  as	  an	  Architecturally	  Significant	  building	  by	  the	  Town,	  and	  not	  
as	  a	  result	  of	  any	  ground	  floor	  changes	  in	  site	  conditions	  being	  proposed	  by	  the	  
applicant.	  	  

	  

	  
	  
	  



 49	  

Staff	  comment:	  The	  original	  structure	  was	  built	  in	  1966.	  It	  was	  not	  deliberately	  developed	  to	  be	  
inconsistent	  with	  the	  Town.	  It	  was	  developed	  prior	  to	  the	  current	  Town	  Code	  requirements.	  The	  
proposed	  project	  is	  to	  add	  three	  stories	  to	  the	  existing	  structure	  while	  maintaining	  the	  existing	  
setbacks.	   The	   hardship	   has	   not	   been	   deliberately	   or	   knowingly	   created	   to	   establish	   an	  
inconsistent	  project.	  
	  
	   Response:	  Agree.	  
	  
Staff	   comment:	  The	  applicant	   is	   requesting	   to	  add	   three	  stories	   to	   the	  existing	  structure.	  This	  
will	  allow	  renovation	  as	  well	  as	  additional	  units.	  This	  will	  result	  in	  greater	  financial	  return.	  
	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree	  that	   the	   financial	   return	   is	   the	  basis	   for	   the	  requested	  variances,	  as	  
eluded	  to	  by	  staff.	  

1. The	   applicant	   is	   proposing	   a	   Condo-‐Hotel	   use	   greater	   than	   100,000	   sq.	   ft.	   in	   size,	  
which	   triggers	   the	  demand	   for	   the	  provision	  of	  2	   loading	  spaces,	  however,	   for	   the	  
purpose	  of	  providing	  a	  conversion	  of	  the	  existing	  multifamily	  use	  to	  a	  Condo-‐Hotel,	  
at	   a	   level	   of	   quality	   and	   standard	   that	   will	   ensure	   the	   success	   of	   the	   proposed	  
project.	  	  	  

a. Expansion	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   is	   not	   only	   necessary	   to	   make	   such	   a	  
conversion	  feasible	  and	  practical	  to	  meet	   industry	  standards	   in	  quality	  and	  
function,	  but	  also	  to	  ensure	  that	  redevelopment	  of	  the	  site	  is	  feasible	  so	  as	  
to	   meet	   the	   expectations	   of	   the	   Town	   and	   its	   desire	   to	   redevelopment	  
outdated	   multifamily	   buildings	   located	   east	   of	   Collins	   Avenue	   for	   tourist	  
related	  uses,	  where	  without	   such	  building	  alterations	  and	  additions,	   could	  
not	  be	  met.	  

2. The	  applicant	   is	  providing	  2	  off-‐street	   loading	   spaces,	   in	  keeping	  with	   the	   spirit	  of	  
the	   code	   provisions,	   with	   only	   one	   being	   slightly	   less	   in	   size	   than	   the	   required	  
standard,	  due	  to	  existing	  site	  constraints	  of	  the	  an	  existing	  building	  which	  has	  been	  
designated	  as	  an	  Architecturally	  Significant	  building	  by	  the	  Town,	  and	  not	  as	  a	  result	  
of	  any	  ground	  floor	  changes	  in	  site	  conditions	  being	  proposed	  by	  the	  applicant.	  	  

	  	  
Staff	  comments:	  The	  original	  structure	  was	  built	  in	  1966	  under	  different	  Code	  provisions	  which	  
allow	  for	  a	  greater	   floor	  area	  then	  is	  permitted	  by	  the	  current	  Code.	  Granting	  of	  the	  variances	  
would	   provide	   the	  Applicant	  with	   special	   treatment	   then	  other	   owners	   of	   lands,	   buildings,	   or	  
structures	  in	  the	  same	  zoning	  district.	  
	  
Response:	  Do	  not	  agree.	  

Failure	  to	  grant	  the	  variance	  will	  create	  an	  exceptional	  hardship	  that	  is	  peculiar	  to	  the	  
subject	  property	  and	  that	  does	  not	  apply	  to	  any	  other	  property	  located	  within	  the	  H120	  
zoning	  district	  nor	  in	  the	  surrounding	  neighborhood.	  

1. The	   applicant	   sought	   and	   received	   approval	   from	   the	   Town	   for	   the	   Architectural	  
Significant	   building	   designation	   and	   relied	   in	   good	   faith	   on	   the	   Town’s	   desire	   to	  
preserve	  the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  existing	  building.	  

2. Both	  the	  Town	  and	  the	  applicant	  were	  aware	  that	  the	  certain	  setbacks	  and	  existing	  
site	  conditions	  would	  need	  to	  be	  maintained	  in	  order	  to	  preserve	  the	  architectural	  
integrity	  of	  the	  building.	  	  



 50	  

3. The	  existing	  site	  and	  building	  restriction	   impose	  a	   limited	  development	  ability	  that	  
does	  not	  permit	  the	  applicant	  to	  relocate	  the	  building	  so	  as	  to	  increase	  the	  northern	  
setback	   to	   be	   able	   to	   install	   the	   landscape	   buffer	   and	   street	   trees	   on	   the	   private	  
property,	   nor	   provide	   a	   secondary	   off-‐street	   loading	   space	   at	   a	   12’	   by	   30’	   min.	  
standard.	  	  

4. There	  are	  no	  other	  properties	   located	  in	  the	  H120	  zoning	  that	  have	  Architecturally	  
Significant	  designated	  buildings,	  the	  constraints	  of	  which	  require	  preservation	  of	  the	  
architectural	  significance	  of	  the	  existing	  building.	  	  	  

5. No	  precedent	  would	  be	  established	  as	  a	   result	  of	  granting	   the	  variance	   to	  provide	  
relief	   from	   certain	   code	   provisions	   that	   cannot	   be	   met	   due	   to	   the	   fact	   that	   the	  
ground	   floor	   modifications	   necessary	   to	   meet	   current	   code	   standards	   cannot	   be	  
modified	  without	  impacting	  the	  architectural	  integrity	  of	  the	  building.	  	  	  

6. As	   such,	   the	   granting	   of	   the	   variances	   would	   not	   set	   a	   precedent	   since	   these	  
circumstances	  is	  unique	  and	  only	  applies	  to	  the	  subject	  property.	  	  

	  
Staff	   comments:	   	   The	   requested	   variances	   are	   not	   excessive	   and	   appear	   to	   be	   the	  minimum	  
variance	  needed	  to	  accommodate	  the	  proposed	  site	  plan;	  however	  the	  property	  can	  be	  utilized	  
as	  is	  and	  therefore	  the	  variances	  are	  a	  result	  of	  the	  proposed	  addition.	  
	  
Response:	  	  Agree	  that	  the	  requested	  variances	  are	  the	  minimum	  needed	  to	  accommodate	  the	  
proposed	  site	  plan.	  	  
	   	  
Do	  not	  agree	  that	  the	  property	  as	  is	  can	  be	  utilized	  for	  a	  Condo-‐Hotel	  use.	  	  

1. The	   applicant	   is	   proposing	   a	   conversion	   of	   the	   existing	   multifamily	   use	   to	   provide	   a	  
Condo-‐Hotel,	   at	   a	   level	   of	   quality	   and	   standard	   that	   will	   ensure	   the	   success	   of	   the	  
proposed	  project.	  	  	  

a. Expansion	   of	   the	   existing	   building	   is	   not	   only	   necessary	   to	   make	   such	   a	  
conversion	   feasible	   and	   practical	   to	   meet	   industry	   standards	   in	   quality	   and	  
function,	   and	   to	   ensure	   that	   the	   redevelopment	   meets	   the	   expectations	   of	  
quality	  of	  the	  Town,	  but	  is	  also	  necessary	  to	  meet	  other	  state	  and	  federal	  code	  
standards,	  as	  well,	  such	  as,	  but	  not	  limited	  to,	  improvements	  necessary	  to	  meet	  
ADA	  accessibility	  standards,	  and	  current	  hurricane	  proof	  standards	  that	  did	  not	  
exist	  when	  the	  building	  was	  constructed	  in	  the	  1960s.	  	  	  

b. Such	   internal	   building	   improvements	   would	   most	   definitely	   exceed	   the	  
maximum	  building	  improvement	  costs	  factor	  that	  would	  result	  in	  the	  loss	  of	  the	  
legal	  nonconforming	  status	  of	   the	  existing	  building,	   requiring	  request	   for	  relief	  
from	  Town	  code	  provisions	  in	  order	  to	  permit	  the	  Condo-‐Hotel	  development.	  

	  
	  
Staff	  comments:	  The	  requested	  variances	  are	  generally	  in	  harmony	  with	  the	  intent	  and	  purpose	  
of	  the	  Town	  of	  Surfside	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  and	  the	  Town	  Code,	  however	  the	  requests	  do	  not	  
meet	   the	   Town	   Code	   requirements	   for	   approval	   and	   the	   variances	  would	   be	   injurious	   to	   the	  
neighborhood	  and	  potentially	  detrimental	   to	   the	  public	   safety	  and	  welfare.	  Recommendation:	  
Denial	  
	  



 51	  

Response:	   	  Agree	   that	   the	   variances	   are	   in	   harmony	  with	   intent	   and	  purpose	  of	   the	   Town	  of	  
Surfside	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  and	  the	  Town	  Code.	  

Do	  not	  agree	  that	  the	  variance	  requests	  do	  not	  meet	  the	  Town	  Code	  requirements	  and	  
that	  they	  would	  be	  injurious	  to	  the	  neighborhood	  and	  potentially	  detrimental	  to	  the	  
public	  safety	  and	  welfare,	  as	  supported	  by	  my	  record	  and	  expert	  opinion	  documents,	  
based	  on	  the	  a	  review	  of	  the	  Town’s	  regulations,	  as	  provided	  in	  attached	  Exhibits	  1,	  2,	  3	  
and	  4	  and	  as	  further	  supported	  by	  the	  traffic	  impact	  analysis	  and	  queuing	  studies	  
performed	  by	  the	  applicant’s	  traffic	  consultant,	  and	  reviewed	  and	  accepted	  by	  the	  
Town’s	  traffic	  cons	  

	  	  
	  	  
	  

	  

	  



Town of Surfside

Planning & Zoning Communication

Agenda Date: June 28, 2018

From: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager
Sarah Sinatra Gould, AlCP, Town Planner

Table of Contents:

1. Applicant Proposal
2. Site Plan Staff Analysis
3. Development Impact Committee Summary
4. Application
5. Site Plan Package

REQUEST:

Tarek Kirschen of 303 Surfside Blvd. LLC., Is proposing a four unit townhouse development at

303 Surfside Boulevard, with a general location on the west side of Harding Avenue, north of
91®' Street/Surfside Boulevard. The total gross acreage of the site is .57 acres and is within the
H30C zoning district. The proposed development consists of four townhouses units with two car

garages and roof terraces.

The application was originally submitted In October 2016. Two development review meetings
were held with the applicant to address technical review comments.

The applicant then sold the project to the current owner, who resubmitted the plans on May 4,
2018. A final DIC meeting was held with the applicant on May 24, 2018.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board/Design Review Board

recommend approval of the site plan application based on acceptance of the Development

Conditions.

Budget Impact: Mitigation fees are required to be paid to the Miami-Dade School Board as well
as water and sewer connection fees. The applicant has agreed to contribute to improvements
on 91®' Street extended the length of the property. They have also agreed to underground the
utilities immediately west of the property and to provide paving along the Harding Avenue

sidewalk, consistent with the Surf Club's design, immediately across Harding Avenue.

1

4B



Growth Impact: The applicant is proposing four townhouse units. This is proposed on vacant
land and will not be replacing existing development.

Staff Impact: There has been no impact to staff other than the work necessary to review the
project. The applicant has funded the review through the cost recovery process and the building
permit review will be funded through the building permit fees.

Sarah Sinatra Gould, AlCP, Town Planner illermo Olmedillo, Town Manager



3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SITE PLAN REPORT 
 



4 

 

SITE PLAN INFORMATION: 
Address 303 Surfside Boulevard   

General Location West side of Harding Avenue, North of 91st Street 

Property Size TOTAL: .57 gross acres  

Zoning District H30C  

Adjacent Zoning Districts H30B to the north  

H30C to the east  

H30C to the south  

H30C to the West 

Future Land Use Moderate Low Density Residential 

Density Permitted 17 dwelling units per acre X .57 of acre  

TOTAL PERMITTED= 9 dwelling units X15% reduction = 8 

Density Proposed  TOTAL PROPOSED: 4  dwelling units  

Number of parking spaces TOTAL Provided: 12 spaces   

TOTAL Required: 9 spaces 

 

ZONING CODE, APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS 

Sec. 90.42  
Minimum Unit Sizes Minimum Required Proposed  

Three-bedroom 1150 square feet 2,680 square feet 

 
Sec. 90.43  
Maximum Building Heights Maximum Required Proposed  

H30C 30 feet maximum 29.46 feet  

 
Sec. 90.44  
Modification 
of Height Maximum Permitted       Proposed Must be of high architectural quality integral 

to the design of the building 

H30C 3 ft.  10% of roof 
area 

3 feet, 9.9% 
of roof area 

The mechanical equipment, rooftop decks and 
parapet walls meet these criteria.   

 
 



5 

 

Sec. 90.45(b)  
Minimum Required Setbacks Proposed  

Front  20 feet 41 feet 7 inches 

Side  8 feet 6 inches  10 feet  

Rear  10 feet 21 feet 5 inches  

 
Sec. 90.47.1 Yards generally, allowable projections 
Required Proposed  

Every part of a required yard shall be open to the sky, except ordinary 
projections of sills, cornices, roof eaves and ornamental features may 
project not more than 24 inches into any required yard. 

No projection proposed 

 

 
Sec. 90.49  
Lot Standards Required Proposed  

Minimum Lot width 50 feet  89 Feet  

Minimum Pervious 
area 20% 44%  

 
Sec. 90.50.1(2)  
Architecture Required Proposed  

All elevations for new 
structures and multi-
story additions 
(additions greater than 
fifteen (15) feet in 
height)  

Minimum of 10% wall openings including 
windows, doors or transitional spaces 
defined by porches, porticoes or 
colonnades. 

Project meets or exceed 10% wall 
openings 

Roof materials are 
limited as follows: 

 

a. Clay Tile; or 
b. White concrete tile; or 
c. Solid color cement tile which color is 

impregnated with the same color 
intensity throughout, provided said 
color if granted approval by the 
Design Review Board;  

d. Architecturally embellished metal if 
granted approval by the Design 
Review Board; or 

e. Other Florida Building Code approved 
roof material(s) if granted approval by 
the Design Review Board. 

Flat roofs are proposed with private 
roof decks for each unit.     

 
 
 
 
 



6 

 

Sec. 90.50.2 (3)  
Roof Deck Provisions Required Proposed  

Roof Decks are limited to 

a. Maximum 70% of the aggregate roof area;  26% 

b. Shall not exceed the maximum roof height 
required by any abutting property’s zoning 
designation; 

 30 feet.  

c. Minimum setback of 10 feet from the roofline 
on all sides  

11 feet 6 inches 

 
Sec. 90.51(1)  

Maximum frontage of 
buildings Required Proposed  

H30C For every 50 feet, a minimum 3 foot change in 
wall plane. 

Met through multiple building 
articulations  

 
Sec. 90.61.1  

Paving in front and rear yards in H30  Required Proposed  

Front setbacks, amount that may be paved with any type 
of material that is not readily permeable by rainwater and 
groundwater. 

Maximum 50% paved  21% 

Front Yard Landscaping Minimum 30% 79% 

Rear Yard Landscaping Minimum 20% 83% 

 
Sec. 90.67.2 

Underground utilities  

Required Proposed 

All utilities including telephone, cable, and 
electrical systems shall be installed 
underground. 

The lines will be installed underground. The 
applicant has proffered to underground the 
existing line to the west of the property, running 
parallel north and south.  

 
Sec. 90.77(c) 

Off-Street Parking 
Minimum Required Proposed 

9 Spaces 12 Spaces 

 
Sec. 90.83  

Off-Street Loading Minimum Required Proposed  

Multifamily building 20,000 – 
100,000 square feet 

10,630 square foot building, therefore no 
loading is required.   No loading provided  

 
 
 



7 

 

 
Sec. 90.91  

Vegetative Provisions Minimum Required Proposed  

Xeriscape in pervious area 40% 40% 

 
Sec. 90.91.2  

Buffers 

Application meets or exceeds all requirements.  Landscape buffer adjacent to 
streets and abutting properties 

 
Sec. 90.93 

Open Space 

Application meets or exceeds all requirements. Landscaping along all buildings 
and structures, shrubs and trees 
required in open space 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  

6-1-2017 
3-26-2018 
5-24-2018 

 

 



9 

 

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT COMMITTEE MEETING 

The Development Impact Committee (DIC)* met on June 1, 2017 to discuss the site plan application 
for 9116 Harding Avenue (“the Project”). The DIC meeting was attended by the following: 

Staff Attendees: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Duncan Tavares, Assistant Town Manager 
Edwin Morrow, Tourism Director 
Ross Prieto, Building Official 
Randy Stokes, Public Works Director 

   Linda Miller, Town Attorney 
   Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner 
   David Allen, Police Chief  
   Tim Millan, Parks and Recreation Director  
     
    
Applicant Attendees: Richard Wasserstein, Owner 
   Marco Ruiz, Swedroe Architects 
   Bud Martin, Landscape Architect 
 
Citizen Attendees:   Victor May 
     
The purpose of the DIC meeting is to discuss impacts of the projects and any mitigation efforts 
offered by the property owner.   

The DIC shall review all developments (except single family and two-family homes) and 
recommend where applicable, whether, and the extent to which the following criteria has 
been met (staff responses are in italics).  
 

1. The development, as proposed, conforms to the comprehensive plan and the 
zoning code; 
 
The site plan has been reviewed three times by the Development Review Group. 
All outstanding comments have been addressed and the proposed site plan 
conforms to the comprehensive plan and the zoning code.  
 

2. The development, as proposed, will have a favorable or unfavorable impact on the  
environment and natural resources, including a consideration of the means and 
estimated cost necessary to minimize the adverse impacts, if any;  
 
The proposed development is not expected to have an unfavorable impact on the 
environment and natural resources. The applicant will meet all Town, County and 
State regulations.  
 

3. The development, as proposed, will have a favorable or unfavorable impact on the 
economy of the Town of Surfside;  
 



10 

 

The development is expected to have a favorable impact on the economy of the 
Town as it will add taxable value. It will also generate water and sewer fees and 
applicable building permit fees.   

4. The development, as proposed, will efficiently use or unduly burden water, sewer, 
solid waste disposal, education, recreation or other necessary public facilities 
which have been constructed or planned and budgeted for construction in the 
area;  
 
An application has been submitted to the Miami-Dade School Board to determine 
if concurrency has been met. If not, the applicant is required to coordinate with the 
school board on potential financial obligations to meet concurrency. Lastly, the 
water and sewer impact will be accommodated through the Town’s water and 
sewer fees. 
 

5. The development, as proposed, will efficiently use or unduly burden or affect 
public transportation facilities, including mass transit, public streets, and roads, 
which have been planned and budgeted for construction in the area, and if the 
development is or will be accessible by private or public roads or streets.  

 
The project is a four unit townhouse development. It is not expected to impact 
public transit or roads.  
 

6. The development, as proposed, is consistent with the community character of the 
immediate neighborhood. In addition to consistency there must be congruity 
between the subject development and neighboring improvements and 
surroundings including but not limited to form, spacing, heights, setbacks, 
materials, color, rhythm and pattern of architectural or aesthetic interest or value 
as well as with any overlays and other development schemes or legislation.  
 

The applicant is proposing a four unit townhouse development, which is consistent 
with the smaller scale development commonly seen on the Harding Avenue corridor. 
The setbacks, articulations and aesthetics are consistent with the corridor.  

7. In the event of redevelopment, applicant shall also submit a detailed plan for 
demolition. 
 
Acknowledged.  

 

The conditions shall become part of the resolution. If the resolution is recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Board to the Town Commission, it will become a covenant running with the 
property as part of the Development Order. The Planning and Zoning Board and the Town 
Commission may modify any of the conditions and/or request additional conditions to be 
included in the Development Order.   

 



11 

 

 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT COMMITTEE MEETING 

The Development Impact Committee (DIC)* met on March 26, 2018 to discuss the site plan 
application for 9116 Harding Avenue (“the Project”). The DIC meeting was attended by the following: 

Staff Attendees: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Duncan Tavares, Assistant Town Manager 
Ross Prieto, Building Official 
Randy Stokes, Public Works Director 

   Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 
   Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner 
   David Allen, Police Chief  
   Tim Millan, Parks and Recreation Director  

Eric Czerniejewski, Traffic Engineer 
   Bill Tesauro, Landscape Reviewer   
 
       
Applicant Attendees: Tarek Kirschen, Owner 
   Marco Ruiz, Swedroe Architects 
 
Citizen Attendees:   None 
     
The purpose of the DIC meeting is to discuss impacts of the projects and any mitigation efforts 
offered by the property owner.   

The DIC shall review all developments (except single family and two-family homes) and 
recommend where applicable, whether, and the extent to which the following criteria has 
been met (staff responses are in italics).  
 

1. The development, as proposed, conforms to the comprehensive plan and the 
zoning code; 
 
The site plan has been reviewed four times by the Development Review Group. All 
outstanding comments have been addressed and the proposed site plan conforms 
to the comprehensive plan and the zoning code.  
 

2. The development, as proposed, will have a favorable or unfavorable impact on the  
environment and natural resources, including a consideration of the means and 
estimated cost necessary to minimize the adverse impacts, if any;  
 
The proposed development is not expected to have an unfavorable impact on the 
environment and natural resources. The applicant will meet all Town, County and 
State regulations.  
 

3. The development, as proposed, will have a favorable or unfavorable impact on the 
economy of the Town of Surfside;  
 



12 

 

The development is expected to have a favorable impact on the economy of the 
Town as it will add taxable value. It will also generate water and sewer fees and 
applicable building permit fees.   

4. The development, as proposed, will efficiently use or unduly burden water, sewer, 
solid waste disposal, education, recreation or other necessary public facilities 
which have been constructed or planned and budgeted for construction in the 
area;  
 
An application has been submitted to the Miami-Dade School Board to determine 
if concurrency has been met. If not, the applicant is required to coordinate with the 
school board on potential financial obligations to meet concurrency. Lastly, the 
water and sewer impact will be accommodated through the Town’s water and 
sewer fees. 
 

5. The development, as proposed, will efficiently use or unduly burden or affect 
public transportation facilities, including mass transit, public streets, and roads, 
which have been planned and budgeted for construction in the area, and if the 
development is or will be accessible by private or public roads or streets.  

 
The project is a four unit townhouse development. It is not expected to impact 
public transit or roads.  
 

6. The development, as proposed, is consistent with the community character of the 
immediate neighborhood. In addition to consistency there must be congruity 
between the subject development and neighboring improvements and 
surroundings including but not limited to form, spacing, heights, setbacks, 
materials, color, rhythm and pattern of architectural or aesthetic interest or value 
as well as with any overlays and other development schemes or legislation.  
 

The applicant is proposing a four unit townhouse development, which is consistent 
with the smaller scale development commonly seen on the Harding Avenue corridor. 
The setbacks, articulations and aesthetics are consistent with the corridor.  

7. In the event of redevelopment, applicant shall also submit a detailed plan for 
demolition. 
 
Acknowledged.  

 

The conditions shall become part of the resolution. If the resolution is recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Board to the Town Commission, it will become a covenant running with the 
property as part of the Development Order. The Planning and Zoning Board and the Town 
Commission may modify any of the conditions and/or request additional conditions to be 
included in the Development Order.   

 



13 

 

 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT COMMITTEE MEETING 

The Development Impact Committee (DIC)* met on May 24, 2018 to discuss the site plan application 
for 9116 Harding Avenue (“the Project”). The DIC meeting was attended by the following: 

Staff Attendees: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Duncan Tavares, Assistant Town Manager 
Ross Prieto, Building Official 
Randy Stokes, Public Works Director 

   Kathy Mehaffey, Town Attorney 
   Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner 
   David Allen, Police Chief  
   Tim Millan, Parks and Recreation Director  
   Carina Harvey, Traffic Engineer 
   Bill Tesauro, Landscape Reviewer   
    
Applicant Attendees: Tarek Kirschen, Owner 
   Marco Ruiz, Swedroe Architects 
 
Citizen Attendees:   None 
     
The purpose of the DIC meeting is to discuss impacts of the projects and any mitigation efforts 
offered by the property owner.   

The applicant has agreed to contribute to improvements on 91st Street extended the length of 
the property. They have also agreed to underground the utilities immediately west of the 
property and to provide paving along the Harding Avenue sidewalk, consistent with the Surf 
Club’s design, immediately across Harding Avenue. 

The DIC shall review all developments (except single family and two-family homes) and 
recommend where applicable, whether, and the extent to which the following criteria has 
been met (staff responses are in italics).  
 

1. The development, as proposed, conforms to the comprehensive plan and the 
zoning code; 
 
The site plan has been reviewed five times by the Development Review Group. All 
outstanding comments have been addressed and the proposed site plan conforms 
to the comprehensive plan and the zoning code.  
 

2. The development, as proposed, will have a favorable or unfavorable impact on the  
environment and natural resources, including a consideration of the means and 
estimated cost necessary to minimize the adverse impacts, if any;  
 
The proposed development is not expected to have an unfavorable impact on the 
environment and natural resources. The applicant will meet all Town, County and 
State regulations.  
 



14 

 

3. The development, as proposed, will have a favorable or unfavorable impact on the 
economy of the Town of Surfside;  
 
The development is expected to have a favorable impact on the economy of the 
Town as it will add taxable value. It will also generate water and sewer fees and 
applicable building permit fees.   

4. The development, as proposed, will efficiently use or unduly burden water, sewer, 
solid waste disposal, education, recreation or other necessary public facilities 
which have been constructed or planned and budgeted for construction in the 
area;  
 
An application has been submitted to the Miami-Dade School Board to determine 
if concurrency has been met. If not, the applicant is required to coordinate with the 
school board on potential financial obligations to meet concurrency. Lastly, the 
water and sewer impact will be accommodated through the Town’s water and 
sewer fees. 
 

5. The development, as proposed, will efficiently use or unduly burden or affect 
public transportation facilities, including mass transit, public streets, and roads, 
which have been planned and budgeted for construction in the area, and if the 
development is or will be accessible by private or public roads or streets.  

 
The project is a four unit townhouse development. It is not expected to impact 
public transit or roads.  
 

6. The development, as proposed, is consistent with the community character of the 
immediate neighborhood. In addition to consistency there must be congruity 
between the subject development and neighboring improvements and 
surroundings including but not limited to form, spacing, heights, setbacks, 
materials, color, rhythm and pattern of architectural or aesthetic interest or value 
as well as with any overlays and other development schemes or legislation.  
 

The applicant is proposing a four unit townhouse development, which is consistent 
with the smaller scale development commonly seen on the Harding Avenue corridor. 
The setbacks, articulations and aesthetics are consistent with the corridor.  

7. In the event of redevelopment, applicant shall also submit a detailed plan for 
demolition. 
 
Acknowledged.  
 

The conditions shall become part of the resolution. If the resolution is recommended by the 
Planning and Zoning Board to the Town Commission, it will become a covenant running with the 
property as part of the Development Order. The Planning and Zoning Board and the Town 
Commission may modify any of the conditions and/or request additional conditions to be 
included in the Development Order.   



15 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPLICATION 
 



Town of Surfside – Multi-Family and Non-Residential Site Plan Application 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE
MULTI-FAMILY AND NON-RESIDENTIAL SITE-PLAN APPLICATION

A complete submittal includes all items on the “Multifamily and Non-Residential Site-Plan Application 
Submission Checklist” document as well as completing this application in full. The owner and agent must sign 
the application with the appropriate supplemental documentation attached.  Please print legibly in ink or type 
on this application form. 

PROJECT INFORMATION

OWNER’S NAME 

PHONE / FAX 

AGENT’S NAME 

ADDRESS

PHONE / FAX 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 

ZONING CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSED WORK 

INTERNAL USE ONLY

Date Submitted Project Number 

Report Completed Date

Fee Paid $

ZONING STANDARDS Required Provided

Plot Size 

Setbacks (F/R/S) 

Lot Coverage 

Height

Pervious Area 

SIGNATURE OF OWNER   DATE  SIGNATURE OF AGENT    DATE

DRB Meeting

Application / Plans Due

 ____/____/ 20__

 ____/____/ 20__

303 Surfside Blvd LLC

305 507 5007

Tarek Kirschen, MGRM

18170 Collins Ave, Sunny Isles beach FL 33160

305 890 9900

303 Sufside Blvd, SUrfside, FL 33154

5/29/18



 

Page 1 of 3 
Town of Surfside – Submission Checklist – Multi-family and Non-Residential Site Plan Application 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE  
SUBMISSION CHECKLIST 

MULTI-FAMILY AND NON-RESIDENTIAL SITE-PLAN APPLICATION 
 

 
 

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS FOR REVIEW: 

 Completed “Multi-Family and Non-Residential Site Plan Application” form  
 

 Application fee: $12,000 made out to “Town of Surfside”  
 

 Ownership Affidavit  
 

 Recent photographs of the subject property and all abutting, diagonal and fronting properties 
visible from the street (to be provided prior to Design Review Board Meeting) 

 
FOR THE FOLLOWING PLEASE PROVIDE: 

 Ten (10) full sized sets (24” x 36” sheets) of complete design development drawings signed 
and sealed 

 One (1) CD, with site plan in PDF format, or other common windows based format. 

 Provided prior to Design Review Board Meeting - Fifteen (15) reduced sized sets (11” x 17” 
sheets) of the complete design development drawings  

 

 Site Plan (Minimum scale of 1" = 20').  
Please show / provide the following: 
 A legal description, including the section, township, and range or subdivision lot and 

block. 
 Site boundaries clearly identified, and ties-to-section corners 
 Proposed uses 
 Location and height of all structures and total floor area with dimensions to lot lines, and 

designations of use 
 Building separations 
 Vehicular circulation system for cars, bicycles, and other required vehicle types, with 

indication of connection to public rights-of-way 
 Location of all parking and loading areas 
 All adjacent rights-of-way, with indication of ultimate right-of-way line, center line, width, 

paving width, existing median cuts and intersections, street light poles, and other utility 
facilities and easements 

 Location of all cross streets and driveways within three hundred fifty (350) feet of 
property limits 

 Pedestrian circulation system 
 Provider of water and wastewater facilities 
 Existing and proposed fire hydrant location 
 The following computations: 

o Gross acreage 
o Net acreage 

Cont.  

Project Name  Project Number 
 



 

Page 2 of 3 
Town of Surfside – Submission Checklist – Multi-family and Non-Residential Site Plan Application 

 

 
o Gross acreage covered by the property excluding road easements and rights-of-way, 

if any 
o Number of dwelling units and density for residential uses only 
o Square footage of ground covered by buildings or structures and designation of use. 
o Required number of parking spaces 
o Number of parking spaces provided 
o Pervious, impervious and paved surface, in square footage and percentage 

 Site Plan location sketch, including section, township, and range, showing adjacent 
property owners 

 Geometry of all paved areas including centerlines, dimensions, radii, and elevations 
 Location of trash and garbage disposal system and provisions for accessibility to 

garbage trucks 
 Loading areas and provisions for accessibility to vehicles of the required type 
 Areas for emergency vehicles and fire engines, and provisions for accessibility to 

vehicles of the required type 
 Number of sets required shall be determined by Town Staff. 
 Other such information as required by the Town. 

 

 Survey. A survey less than one (1) year old (including owner’s affidavit that no changes 
have occurred since the date of the survey). The survey shall be prepared by a Florida 
registered land surveyor, certified as to meeting the requirements of the applicable Section 
of the Florida Administrative Code, reflecting existing natural features, such as topography, 
vegetation, existing paving, existing structures, and water bodies 

 

 Landscape Plan and Irrigation Plan 
Please show / provide the following: 
 landscape calculations (required and provided) 
 existing tree survey with indication of existing native vegetation that will be preserved 
 proposed and existing landscaping 

 

 Lighting Plan 
Please show / provide the following: 
 photometric measurements 
 Lighting details and spillage onto adjacent properties and rights-of-way 

 

 Sign Plan for all signs which will be on site 
Please show / provide the following: 
 Show dimensioned locations and mounting details of signs on building elevations and 

locations of signs on site plan  
 Note colors, materials, lighting and dimensions  
 Show dimensions and square footages (proposed and existing) 
 Identify materials and colors – background, trim/border, and copy 
 Show fonts and graphics 

 

 Pavement markings and traffic signing plan 
 

 Schematic water and sewer plan 
Please show / provide the following: 
 Location and size of all mains and lift stations  



 

Page 3 of 3 
Town of Surfside – Submission Checklist – Multi-family and Non-Residential Site Plan Application 

 
Cont.  

 

 Paving and drainage plans 
Please show / provide the following: 
 location of all drainage features and retention areas, if any 
 

 Architectural Elevations (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1') 
Please show / provide the following: 
 Separate elevations of all sides of existing and proposed buildings with all dimensions, 

including height. 
 Label exterior materials, color, texture and trim, roof material, Roof color and pitch, 

windows, doors, screens, skylights and all exposed mechanical equipment and 
screening 

 Provide color elevations, showing all material finishes, textures and landscaping for all 
elevations of the proposed building(s) and structure(s), which should include at a 
minimum: 
o All exterior materials, colors and finishes, keyed to samples provided 
o Roof slopes and materials including specifications and color 
o Detail of doors, windows, garage doors 
o Dimensions of structure(s) - height, width, and length 
o Deck, railing, stairs details including materials, colors, finishes, and decorative details 
o Exposed foundation treatment 
o Gutters and eaves 
 

 Provide samples of colors and/or materials mounted on a display board (to be provided prior 
to Design Review Board Meeting) 

 

 Such additional data, maps, plans, or statements as the Town may require to fully describe 
and evaluate the particular proposed plan 

 
 
 
 
 



Town of Surfside 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD/ 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
MINUTES 

June 27, 2018 – 6:00 p.m. 
Town Hall Commission Chambers –  

9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor, Surfside, FL  33154 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Chair Lindsay Lecour called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Deputy Clerk Riera called the roll with the following members present:
Chair Lindsay Lecour, Board Member Peter Glynn and Board Member Jorge Garcia.  Vice
Chair Judith Frankel and Board Member Brian Roller were absent.

2. Town Commission Liaison Report – Vice Mayor Daniel Gielchinsky
Vice Mayor Gielchinsky reported on the parking waiver ordinance, undergrounding and the
future of the Design Review Board and the possibility of consolidating the Board to just a
Planning and Zoning Board.

3. Approval of Minutes: April 26, 2018
Board Member Glynn made a motion to approve the minutes.  The motion received a second
from Board Member Garcia and all voted in favor.

4. Quasi-Judicial Application:

A. 8995 Collins Avenue - Site Plan; Conditional Use for Hotel Pool and Alternative
Parking System; Variances for Landscaping and Loading Space Size
This item was deferred.

B. 303 Surfside Boulevard – Site Plan for Four Unit Townhouse Development
This item was deferred.

5. Local Planning Agency Items:

A. Downtown Business District Parking Requirement Waiver

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING
SECTION 90-77 “OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS,” OF “CHAPTER
90 ZONING” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO
PROVIDE A PARKING EXEMPTION PROGRAM TO ADDRESS VACANCY
AND ECONOMIC REVITALIZATION IN THE SD-B40 ZONING DISTRICT;
PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Deputy Clerk Riera read the title of the ordinance.  Town Planner Sinatra presented the
item.  Assistant Town Manager Tavares gave further details on the item.

PZ #3



  
 

2 
 

Board Member Glynn made a motion to recommend to the Town Commission.  The motion 
received a second from Board Member Garcia and the motion carried 3-0 on roll call vote. 
 

6. Discussion Items: 
 
A. Walkability – Verbal Update 

Town Planner Sinatra Gould commented that she does not have an update on this item. It 
is still being looked into by the Town Manager. 
 

B. Construction Fencing for Single Family 
Town Planner Sinatra Gould presented the item. 
 
After some discussion, Town Planner Sinatra Gould stated that she will speak with the 
Code Compliance Director and the Town Manager on the other options to have contractors 
maintain fencing. 
 

C. Aggregation of Single Family Lots 
Town Planner Sinatra Gould presented the item. 
 
By consensus, the Board was in favor of this item. 
 

D. Sustainability Subcommittee Update 
Town Planner Sinatra Gould explained that at the last Town Commission meeting, the 
Commission decided to shift the responsibility of creating the agendas to the Town 
Commission. She suggested striking this item from the agenda since it no longer would fall 
under the Planning and Zoning Board. 
 

E. Future Agenda Items 
Town Planner Sinatra Gould commented to include the aggregation of single family lots. 
 

7. Adjournment: 
There being no further business to come before the Planning and Zoning Board, Board Member 
Glynn made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  The motion received a second from Board 
Member Garcia and all voted in favor.  The meeting adjourned at 6:23 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2018 

 

    
________________________ 

      Chair Lindsay Lecour 
Attest: 
 

______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

 

 



IT
EM

 
O

U
TC

O
M

E 
N

EX
T 

ST
EP

S 
TE

N
TA

TI
VE

 
SC

H
ED

U
LE

 
CO

M
PL

ET
E 

FU
TU

RE
 P

Z 
DI

SC
U

SS
IO

N
 IT

EM
S 

U
pd

at
e 

to
 si

gn
 c

od
e 

N
ee

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
re

vi
sio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
sig

n 
co

de
  

St
af

f t
o 

pr
ep

ar
e 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

St
ep

ba
ck

 d
isc

us
sio

n 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
ha

s r
eq

ue
st

ed
 th

e 
PZ

 
bo

ar
d 

an
al

yz
e 

th
is 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

vi
su

al
 a

nd
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n 
of

 
vo

lu
m

e,
 h

ow
 m

uc
h 

sq
ua

re
 

fo
ot

ag
e 

do
es

 th
is 

eq
ua

te
 to

 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

Si
de

w
al

k 
ae

st
he

tic
s a

nd
 

cr
os

sin
g 

Co
lli

ns
 A

ve
nu

e 
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

di
sc

us
sio

n 
ite

m
 to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

if 
w

al
ka

bi
lit

y 
ca

n 
be

 
im

pr
ov

ed
. C

om
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

us
es

 o
n 

th
e 

w
es

t s
id

e 
of

 
Co

lli
ns

.  

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 

Im
pa

ct
 fe

e 
di

sc
us

sio
n 

Pr
op

os
ed

 in
 F

Y1
9 

Bu
dg

et
  

W
ay

s t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 p
er

vi
ou

s 
ar

ea
 o

f l
ot

s  
Pl

ac
e 

on
 P

Z 
ag

en
da

 fo
r d

isc
us

sio
n.

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
PZ

 w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 st
an

da
rd

s  
Fu

tu
re

 P
Z 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Pl

an
s 

Re
qu

ire
 l

an
ds

ca
pe

 p
la

ns
 f

or
 l

ar
ge

 
sc

al
e 

re
no

va
tio

ns
 

(r
en

ov
at

io
ns

 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

50
%

 
of

 
th

e 
sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
ho

us
e)

 

Fu
tu

re
 P

Z 
Fu

tu
re

 P
Z 

Fe
nc

es
 &

 H
ed

ge
s i

n 
th

e 
fr

on
t o

f s
in

gl
e 

fa
m

ily
 

re
sid

en
ce

s 

Di
sc

us
sio

n 
on

 h
ed

ge
 h

ei
gh

t i
n 

th
e 

fr
on

t 
Fu

tu
re

 P
Z 

O
N

 U
PC

O
M

IN
G 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
 A

GE
N

DA
 

Ag
gr

eg
at

io
n 

of
 S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 
Re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 th

e 
To

w
n 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

Di
sc

us
s l

im
ita

tio
ns

 o
n 

bu
ild

in
g 

le
ng

th
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 si
ng

le
 fa

m
ily

 
lo

ts
, i

f a
gg

re
ga

te
d.

  

Au
gu

st
 C

om
m

iss
io

n 
– 

Fi
rs

t R
ea

di
ng

  

Ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

pa
tt

er
n 

PZ
 d

isc
us

sio
n 

on
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
sa

fe
ty

 
an

d 
w

al
ka

bi
lit

y 
Pi

lo
t p

ro
je

ct
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

O
N

 F
U

TU
RE

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 A
G

EN
DA

 

5B



Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 w
as

te
 a

nd
 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

nt
ai

ne
r 

sc
re

en
in

g 

Sc
re

en
in

g 
fo

r c
on

ta
in

er
s, 

gr
ee

n 
sc

re
en

, v
eg

et
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
e 

pi
ct

ur
es

 
fr

om
 C

om
m

iss
io

ne
r K

lig
m

an
 

Dr
af

t c
od

e 
am

en
dm

en
t 

 
Di

d 
no

t m
ov

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 

Dr
iv

ew
ay

 m
at

er
ia

l 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
M

od
ify

 c
od

e 
to

 a
llo

w
 st

am
pe

d 
co

nc
re

te
 a

nd
 c

on
cr

et
e 

sla
bs

 w
ith

 
de

co
ra

tiv
e 

ro
ck

 o
r g

ra
ss

 in
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Dr
af

t c
od

e 
am

en
dm

en
t 

 
Di

d 
no

t m
ov

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 

Pa
in

tin
g 

of
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 
To

w
n 

St
af

f t
o 

pr
ep

ar
e 

or
di

na
nc

e 
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

or
di

na
nc

e 
fo

r 
co

m
m

iss
io

n 
 

Di
d 

no
t 

m
ov

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
 

CO
M

PL
ET

ED
  

Li
m

ita
tio

n 
on

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
le

ng
th

 in
 H

40
 &

 H
30

C 
Re

vi
sit

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
lim

ita
tio

ns
 a

s w
el

l a
s 

gr
ee

n 
w

al
ls 

to
 so

ft
en

 th
e 

br
ea

ks
 in

 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g.
  

PZ
 R

ev
ie

w
. 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

he
ar

d 
on

 fi
rs

t 
re

ad
in

g,
 

M
ar

ch
 1

3 

Ap
ril

 P
Z 

 
 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
  

H4
0,

 
H3

0 
&

 
SD

B4
0 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

ly
 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

or
di

na
nc

e 
 

Re
vi

ew
 

w
ith

 
PZ

 
op

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
ly

 
sig

ni
fic

an
t 

or
di

na
nc

e 
fo

r o
th

er
 zo

ni
ng

 d
ist

ric
ts

.  

PZ
 d

isc
us

sio
n 

 
M

ar
ch

 P
Z 

 
 

N
o 

ac
tio

n 

Gr
ee

n 
Ro

of
s 

 
Re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 th

e 
To

w
n 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 P

Z 
 

N
o 

ac
tio

n 
Ph

ot
ov

ol
ta

ic
 In

ce
nt

iv
es

 
Re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 th

e 
To

w
n 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

Di
sc

us
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 
so

la
r p

an
el

s 
fo

r a
ll 

re
sid

en
tia

l 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

  

Fe
br

ua
ry

 P
Z 

 
N

o 
ac

tio
n 

 

Dr
iv

ew
ay

 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
co

de
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
th

at
 li

m
its

 
a 

dr
iv

ew
ay

 so
 th

at
 it

 d
oe

s n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

fr
on

t p
la

ne
 o

f t
he

 h
om

e.
 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
 

 
Co

m
pl

et
e 

Gi
ve

 a
 fo

ot
, g

et
 a

 fo
ot

 
re

la
tin

g 
Se

a 
Le

ve
l R

ise
 

 - 
Fl

at
 R

oo
f v

s.
 P

itc
h 

ro
of

 
   

Pl
ac

e 
on

 a
ge

nd
a 

fo
r d

isc
us

sio
n 

on
 

re
fe

re
nd

um
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

vi
su

al
s,

 
tim

el
in

e 
an

d 
cr

os
s s

ec
tio

n.
  

Fe
br

ua
ry

  C
om

m
iss

io
n 

 
2nd

 re
ad

in
g 

 
 

 
Co

m
pl

et
e 



 R
oo

f P
itc

h 
of

 S
in

gl
e 

Fa
m

ily
  

M
od

ify
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ro

of
 

pi
tc

h 
ab

ov
e 

to
p 

of
 th

e 
tr

us
s a

s a
n 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 fe
at

ur
e 

Pr
ov

id
e 

sid
e 

by
 si

de
 

el
ev

at
io

n 
in

 
cu

rr
en

t c
od

e 
to

 th
e 

to
p 

of
 

th
e 

fla
t r

oo
f 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
it 

is 
3 

fe
et

 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

to
p 

of
 a

 
pi

tc
he

d 
ro

of
.  

Fe
br

ua
ry

 C
om

m
iss

io
n 

2nd
 re

ad
in

g 
 

Co
m

pl
et

e 

Tr
el

lis
 

Re
vi

ew
 i

f 
a 

tr
el

lis
 a

tt
ac

he
d 

to
 t

he
 

ho
us

e 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

an
 

ac
ce

ss
or

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

  

Th
is 

ha
s n

ot
 

be
en

 a
 

re
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

iss
ue

. 
Pr

ov
id

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

if 
th

is 
is 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
  

Tr
el

lis
 

Re
vi

ew
 if

 a
 tr

el
lis

 
at

ta
ch

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
ho

us
e 

is 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
an

 
ac

ce
ss

or
y 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  

Th
is 

ha
s n

ot
 

be
en

 a
 

re
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

iss
ue

. P
  

Av
er

ag
e 

sid
e 

se
tb

ac
k 

/M
as

sin
g 

M
od

ify
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 si
de

 
se

tb
ac

ks
 o

n 
up

pe
r f

lo
or

s f
or

 si
ng

le
 

fa
m

ily
 h

om
es

 

Di
re

ct
io

n 
if 

th
is 

is 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 
Th

e 
To

w
n 

ha
s a

lre
ad

y 
m

od
ifi

ed
 th

e 
co

de
 to

 
pr

oh
ib

it 
co

ve
re

d 
ba

lc
on

ie
s 

co
un

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 
se

tb
ac

ks
.  

Av
er

ag
e 

sid
e 

se
tb

ac
k 

/M
as

sin
g 

M
od

ify
 

or
di

na
nc

e 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

id
e 

se
tb

ac
ks

 o
n 

up
pe

r f
lo

or
s f

or
 

sin
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 
ho

m
es

 

Th
e 

To
w

n 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
m

od
ifi

ed
 th

e 
co

de
 to

 
pr

oh
ib

it 
co

ve
re

d 
ba

lc
on

ie
s 

co
un

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 
se

tb
ac

ks
.  



Sa
te

lli
te

 d
ish

es
 

Fu
rt

he
r r

ev
ie

w
  b

y 
st

af
f 

Di
re

ct
io

n 
if 

th
is 

is 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 
Th

is 
iss

ue
 h

as
 

no
t c

om
e 

up
 

as
 a

 p
ro

bl
em

 
an

d 
it 

is 
no

t 
cl

ea
r i

f t
hi

s i
s 

st
ill

 d
es

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
re

gu
la

te
d.

  

Sa
te

lli
te

 d
ish

es
 

Fu
rt

he
r r

ev
ie

w
  

by
 st

af
f 

Th
is 

iss
ue

 h
as

 
no

t c
om

e 
up

 
as

 a
 p

ro
bl

em
 

an
d 

it 
is 

no
t 

cl
ea

r i
f t

hi
s i

s 
st

ill
 d

es
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

re
gu

la
te

d.
  

Re
sid

en
tia

l o
r c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

w
in

d 
tu

rb
in

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
or

di
na

nc
e 

re
gu

la
tin

g 
w

in
d 

tu
rb

in
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
hu

rr
ic

an
e 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
, n

oi
se

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

 

Di
re

ct
io

n 
if 

th
is 

is 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 
Th

is 
iss

ue
 h

as
 

no
t c

om
e 

up
 

as
 a

 p
ro

bl
em

 
an

d 
it 

is 
no

t 
cl

ea
r i

f t
hi

s i
s 

st
ill

 d
es

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
re

gu
la

te
d.

  

Re
sid

en
tia

l o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 w
in

d 
tu

rb
in

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

or
di

na
nc

e 
re

gu
la

tin
g 

w
in

d 
tu

rb
in

es
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
hu

rr
ic

an
e 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
, 

no
ise

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 

Th
is 

iss
ue

 h
as

 
no

t c
om

e 
up

 
as

 a
 p

ro
bl

em
 

an
d 

it 
is 

no
t 

cl
ea

r i
f t

hi
s i

s 
st

ill
 d

es
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

re
gu

la
te

d.
  

Se
tb

ac
k 

fo
r p

ar
ap

et
 a

bo
ve

 
30

 fe
et

 o
n 

sin
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 
ho

m
es

 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

or
di

na
nc

e 
to

 re
qu

ire
 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
et

ba
ck

  
Di

re
ct

io
n 

if 
th

is 
is 

st
ill

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

as
 

th
e 

co
de

 
co

ul
d 

be
 

m
od

ifi
ed

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
pi

tc
he

d 
ro

of
s.

 

Se
tb

ac
k 

fo
r p

ar
ap

et
 

ab
ov

e 
30

 fe
et

 o
n 

sin
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 h
om

es
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

or
di

na
nc

e 
to

 
re

qu
ire

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

se
tb

ac
k 

 

Di
re

ct
io

n 
if 

th
is 

is 
st

ill
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
as

 
th

e 
co

de
 

co
ul

d 
be

 
m

od
ifi

ed
 to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

pi
tc

he
d 

ro
of

s. 

Fi
na

l Z
on

in
g 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 w

ill
 a

na
ly

ze
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

s 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 

Fi
na

l 
Zo

ni
ng

 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

 
w

ill
 a

na
ly

ze
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

s 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 



ba
se

d 
on

 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
s.

 
N

ee
d 

di
re

ct
io

n 
if 

an
yt

hi
ng

 
fu

rt
he

r i
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
 

ba
se

d 
on

 
co

nd
iti

on
s o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
s.

  

Re
qu

iri
ng

 n
ot

ic
in

g 
fo

r 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f h

ou
se

s 
Re

se
ar

ch
 o

pt
io

n 
an

d 
pl

ac
e 

on
 a

ge
nd

a 
fo

r d
isc

us
sio

n 
 

 
 

 
Ye

s  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Si
gn

 D
ef

in
iti

on
s  

M
od

ify
 si

gn
 d

ef
in

iti
on

s f
or

 
m

on
um

en
t a

nd
 si

gn
 a

re
a 

Dr
af

te
d 

co
de

 
am

en
dm

en
t  

 
 

 

Ca
rp

or
ts

 
Re

qu
ire

 im
pr

ov
ed

 su
rf

ac
e 

on
 fr

am
e 

Ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 
Co

de
  

 
Se

pt
em

be
r P

Z 
Ye

s  

Pr
ov

id
e 

su
m

m
ar

y 
on

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ho

ur
s a

nd
 

no
ise

 o
rd

in
an

ce
 

 

Pl
ac

e 
up

da
te

 o
n 

PZ
 a

ge
nd

a.
  

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r P
Z 

Ye
s  

W
or

kf
or

ce
 h

ou
sin

g 
up

da
te

 
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r P
Z 

Ye
s 

Ad
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 

lic
en

se
d 

ar
ch

ite
ct

 fo
r D

RB
 

su
bm

itt
al

s  

Re
vi

ew
in

g 
en

tir
e 

se
ct

io
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

DR
B 

 
Dr

af
t c

od
e 

am
en

dm
en

t  
 

 
M

ay
 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

Ag
en

da
  

Co
rr

id
or

 A
na

ly
sis

 
St

ud
y 

co
rr

id
or

 
be

tw
ee

n 
Co

lli
ns

 
&

 
Ha

rd
in

g 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
co

de
 

am
en

dm
en

ts
  

W
or

k 
au

th
or

iza
tio

n 
to

 
be

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
N

O
VE

M
BE

R 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

  
Co

m
pl

et
e 

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 P
ai

nt
 C

ol
or

s 
Di

sc
us

sio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 Z

on
in

g 
Bo

ar
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if 

a 
co

lo
r 

pa
le

tt
e 

is 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r s

in
gl

e 
fa

m
ily

 h
om

es
 

an
d 

w
ha

t 
co

lo
rs

/c
rit

er
ia

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

in
cl

ud
ed

  

Pl
ac

e 
on

 
fu

tu
re

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

Zo
ni

ng
 

ag
en

da
 fo

r 
di

sc
us

sio
n 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

W
ill

 a
dd

 t
o 

Jo
in

t 
M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 

PZ
/C

om
m

iss
io

n.
 

Co
m

pl
et

e 



Pa
rk

in
g 

Tr
us

t F
un

d 
Di

sc
us

sio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 Z

on
in

g 
Bo

ar
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 c
ap

 f
or

 p
ay

m
en

t 
in

to
 th

e 
fu

nd
 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n 
Ju

ly
 P

Z 
ag

en
da

  

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t  

Ju
ly

 C
om

m
iss

io
n 

fo
r 1

st
 re

ad
in

g,
 

Ju
ly

 P
Z 

Au
gu

st
 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

fo
r 

2nd
 re

ad
in

g 
  

Co
m

pl
et

e 

Tu
rt

le
 L

ig
ht

in
g 

 
To

w
n 

St
af

f t
o 

pr
ep

ar
e 

re
vi

ew
 

N
o 

or
di

na
nc

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 
Tu

rt
le

 
lig

ht
in

g 
al

re
ad

y 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 
co

de
.  

CO
M

PL
ET

E 
Tu

rt
le

 L
ig

ht
in

g 
 

To
w

n 
St

af
f 

to
 

pr
ep

ar
e 

re
vi

ew
 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Co

lo
r P

al
et

te
 

Di
sc

us
sio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 &

 Z
on

in
g 

Bo
ar

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
a 

co
lo

r 
pa

le
tt

e 
is 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

an
d 

w
ha

t 
co

lo
rs

/c
rit

er
ia

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
  

Pl
ac

e 
on

 
fu

tu
re

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

Zo
ni

ng
 

ag
en

da
 fo

r 
di

sc
us

sio
n 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t  

Re
pl

ac
ed

 
w

ith
 

re
pa

in
tin

g 
of

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

. 

Co
m

pl
et

e 

Ba
y 

Dr
iv

e 
&

 9
6th

 S
tr

ee
t 

O
pe

n 
Ba

y 
Dr

iv
e 

of
f 9

6th
 S

tr
ee

t 
St

af
f w

ill
 

re
se

ar
ch

  
Po

lic
e 

an
d 

Bu
ild

in
g 

to
 

re
se

ar
ch

  
N

o 
ch

an
ge

.  
Po

lic
e 

Ch
ie

f c
ite

d 
sa

fe
ty

 c
on

ce
rn

s 

CO
M

PL
ET

E 

Si
gn

/a
w

ni
ng

 c
od

e 
Di

sc
us

se
d 

at
 Jo

in
t M

ee
tin

g 
St

af
f 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
to

 
w

or
k 

on
 d

ra
ft 

W
or

k 
Au

th
or

iza
tio

n 
- 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
Ju

ly
 C

om
m

iss
io

n 
Au

gu
st

 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
 

CO
M

PL
ET

E 

As
 b

ui
lt 

re
vi

ew
s f

or
 

re
sid

en
tia

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
Di

sc
us

s i
nc

re
as

in
g 

ca
no

py
 in

 to
w

n,
 

st
re

et
 tr

ee
s,

 w
ha

t c
an

 b
e 

pl
an

te
d 

in
 

RO
W

 

Re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 
pr

ep
ar

e 
re

po
rt

 fo
r 

di
sc

us
sio

n 
an

d 
po

ss
ib

le
 

co
de

 
am

en
dm

en
t 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

M
ar

ch
 P

Z 
CO

M
PL

ET
E 

Ad
de

d 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 F
Y2

01
5 

bu
dg

et
 



In
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
flo

od
 

el
ev

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 H
12

0 
di

st
ric

t 

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
ne

ed
ed

 

 
N

/A
 

CO
M

PL
ET

E 

So
la

r p
an

el
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
or

di
na

nc
e 

re
gu

la
tin

g 
so

la
r 

pa
ne

ls 
Dr

af
t c

od
e 

am
en

dm
en

t 
In

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
M

ar
ch

 P
Z 

CO
M

PL
ET

E 

Ca
r c

ha
rg

in
g 

st
at

io
n 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

or
di

na
nc

e 
re

gu
la

tin
g 

ca
r 

ch
ar

gi
ng

 st
at

io
ns

 re
qu

iri
ng

 th
em

 in
 

ne
w

 m
ul

ti 
fa

m
ily

, r
es

ea
rc

h 
w

ha
t 

ot
he

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 d
oi

ng
 

Dr
af

t c
od

e 
am

en
dm

en
t 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

De
ce

m
be

r P
Z 

 
CO

M
PL

ET
E 

Py
ra

m
id

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
s o

f 
st

ep
ba

ck
s i

n 
th

e 
H1

20
 

di
st

ric
t 

N
o 

ac
tio

n 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

sin
ce

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
Zo

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
st

ep
ba

ck
s a

s p
ar

t o
f w

al
l f

ro
nt

ag
e 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 

 
 

N
/A

 
 

Ga
ra

ge
 d

oo
r c

la
rif

ic
at

io
n 

M
od

ify
 c

od
e 

to
 re

m
ov

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
fo

r t
w

o 
se

pa
ra

te
 g

ar
ag

e 
do

or
s 

Dr
af

t c
od

e 
am

en
dm

en
t 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

N
ov

em
be

r P
Z 

CO
M

PL
ET

E 

10
%

 w
in

do
w

 o
pe

ni
ng

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t p
er

 st
or

y 
Di

sc
us

sio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 

Zo
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
or

di
na

nc
e 

fo
r 

co
m

m
iss

io
n 

 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

Ju
ne

 P
Z 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

fo
r f

irs
t 

re
ad

in
g 

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

in
 fr

on
t o

f 
co

nv
er

te
d 

ga
ra

ge
 

De
te

rm
in

e 
if 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

pl
an

te
r i

s 
su

ffi
ci

en
t v

er
su

s r
eq

ui
rin

g 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g.
  

Re
vi

ew
ed

 
co

de
 a

nd
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

th
at

 p
la

nt
er

 
is 

on
ly

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 in

 
ca

se
s w

he
re

 
th

e 
dr

iv
ew

ay
 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
to

o 
sh

or
t. 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
 

Ye
s  

Sh
ed

s 
M

od
ify

 o
rd

in
an

ce
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 sq
ua

re
 

fo
ot

ag
e,

 b
ut

 re
du

ce
 h

ei
gh

t a
nd

 a
dd

 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.  

Dr
af

t c
od

e 
am

en
dm

en
t 

In
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

Di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 
M

ar
ch

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
1s

t r
ea

di
ng

 in
 

M
ay

. P
Z 

in
 

M
ay

 
 


	DRB #2 - Minutes
	3A - 9513 Harding Ave.
	3B - 9571 Harding Ave.
	3C - 9257 Carlyle Ave.
	3D - 9248 Dickens Ave.
	3E - 9072 Carlyle Ave.
	3F - 700 Surfside Blvd.
	4A - 8995 Collins Ave.
	4B - 303 Surfside Blvd.
	P&Z #3 - Minutes
	5B - Furture Agenda Items



